LOK SABHA

THE INCOME-TAX BILL, 1961

(Report of the Select Committee)

(Presented on the 10th August, 1961)



89 85.8.61

A Commence of the Commence of

LOK SABHA SECRETARIAT NEW DELHI August, 1961

Price: Rs. 4.00

to the Lok Sebbeduring the lith. Lith and lith Sessions of Second Lok Sebbe.

81. Ae.	Home of the Report	Date of presentation		
1.	The Maternity Benefit Bill, 1961	17-2-1961		
2.	The Indian Reilways (Amendment) Pill, 1961	7-8-1961		
3.	The Incompany Bill, 1966	10-6-1961		

19-5-1961

30-11-1961

The Representation of the People (Amendment) Bill, 1961

The Extradition Bill, 1961

5.

CONTENTS

											PAGE
t. Co	omposition of	the Select (Comm	ittee						•	(ii)
2. R	eport of the Se	lect Comm	ittee		•	•				•	(v)
3. M	inutes of Diss	ent .	•						•		(xxiii)
4. B	ill as reported	by the Sele	ct Co	mmitt	ce	•					ī
Appendix	I—Motion in Commit		abha i	for ref	erenc	æ of i	the Bi	11 to S	Select	•	230
	II—Statemer mmittee	nt of memor	anda/	repre	sentat	ions r	eceive	ed by	the S	elect	232
Appendix	III—List of Com	Association mittee	s who	gave	evic	lence	befor	re th	e Sel	lect •	238
Appendix	IV-Minutes	of the sitti	ngs of	the S	elect	Com	nittee				239

THE INCOME-TAX BILL, 1961

Composition of the Select Committee

Shri Mulchand Dube-Chairman.

Members

2. Shri K. R. Acher	ì
3. Shri P. Subbiah Ambalam	
4. Shri Amjad Ali	
5. Shri Premji R. Assar	!
6. Shri Bahadur Singh	į.
7. Shri Prafulla Chandra Borooah	
8. Shri D. R. Chavan	
9. Shri Shree Narayan Das	•
10. Shri M. L. Dwivedi	!
11. Shri D. A. Katti	
12. Shri P. Kunhan	
13. Shri Bhausaheb Raosaheb Mahagaon kar	
14. Shri Mathew Maniyangadan	
15. Shri M. R. Masani	
16. Shri T. C. N. Menon	
17. Shri Radheshyam Ramkumar Morarka	
18. Shri Narendrabhai Nathwani	
19. Shri C. D. Pande	
20. Shri Naval Prabhakar	
21. Shri Ram Shanker Lal	
22. Shri Shivram Rango Rane	
23. Shri Jaganatha Rao	
24. Shri K. V. Ramakrishna Reddy	

- 9. The Committee considered the Bill clause by clause at their eighth, ninth, tenth and eleventh sittings held on the 11th, 12th, 13th and 17th July, 1961.
- 10. The Committee considered and adopted the Report on the 7th August, 1961.
- 11. The observations of the Committee with regard to the principal changes proposed in the Bill are detailed in the succeeding paragraphs.
- 12. Clause 2.—(1) Item (1) (a). The amendment is intended to make it clear that the assessment and collection are to be made by officers of the Government as such officers.
- (2) Item (15). The Committee are of the opinion that the advancement of an object of general public utility which involves the carrying on of any activity for profit should not come within the ambit of a charitable purpose.
- (3) Item (18) (b). The Committee have substituted the words 'not a private company' for the words 'public company' in conformity with section 23A of the existing Income-tax. Act so that foreign companies are also included within the definition of a company in which public are substantially interested.

The other amendments made in the item are merely clarificatory.

- (4) Item (22). The Committee are of the view that the loan to a shareholder referred to in this item should be treated as dividend only if the shareholder receiving it has a substantial interest in the company as defined in item 2(32) of the clause.
- (5) Item (30).—The amendment made in the item is consequential upon the amendment made in clause 6 relating to the definition of 'not ordinarily resident'.
- (6) Item (44).—The Committee are of the opinion that only Gazetted Officers should be authorised to exercise the powers of a Tax Recovery Officer.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

13. Clause 5.—While considering clause 6, the Committee have decided to reintroduce the category of "not ordinarily resident" and existing provision that income which accrues or arises outside India to a person not ordinarily resident should not be included in his total income unless it is derived from a business controlled in or a profession set up in India should be restored in the clause.

The Committee further feel that it should be clarified that income which has been included in the total income of a person on the basis that it has accrued or arisen or is deemed to have accrued or arisen to him should not again be so included on the basis that it is received or deemed to be received in India.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

14. Clause 6.—The Committee have given careful thought to this clause and are of the opinion that the category of "not ordinarily resident" as defined in the existing Income-tax Act should be restored but the liability of such a person should be that of a "non-resident".

This has been secured by amending clause 6 and clause 2 (30) suitably.

15. Clause 9.—The Committee consider that it ought to be clarified in the clause that where purchases are made in India solely for the purposes of export without having any establishment or office in India for the purpose and without subjecting the goods to any manufacturing process such transactions should not be treated as "business connections."

The clause has been amended accordingly.

- 16. Clause 10.—(1) Item (6). The Committee think that remuneration paid to foreign technicians having special knowledge and experience in industrial or business management techniques whose service cotracts have been approved by the Central Government should also be exempted from assessment for a period of six months.
- (2) Item (10). The Committee feel that the benefit of exemption from tax at prsent available in respect of gratuities payable to employees of the Government and employees of local authorities and statutory corporations should be extended to persons in private employment also.

Accordingly, it is proposed that a sum equal to half a month's salary for each year of completed service, calculated on the basis of the average salary for the three years immediately preceding the year in which the gratuity is paid, subject to a maximum of Rs. 24,000/or 15 months' pay, whichever is less, should be exempted. The balance, if any, would be the subject matter for relief under clause 89(1).

Interest on approved foreign loans given to an industrial undertaking in India is exempted if the proceeds of the loan are utilised for purchasing capital plant or machinery abroad for the undertaking. The Committee are of the opinion that this exemption should be extended to interest on loan advanced for the purchase of raw materials abroad.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

- 17. Clauses 11—13.—These clauses relate to exemption of income of a trust or an institution for a charitable or religious purpose. Following the recommendation of the Direct Taxes Administration Enquiry Committee, it has been proposed in the Bill that if any trust accumulates its income beyond 25% of the total income of that year, such accumulations shall be taxed. Many of the witnesses who appeared before the Committee were of the view that this provision would work hardship and would force genuine trusts to fritter away their incomes in order to gain exemption. Further, small trusts with long-term objectives could achieve the objective only if they were permitted to accumulate. In the opinion of the Committee there is considerable force in these representations, and having considered all aspects of the problem, they have come to the following conclusions:—
 - (1) Small trusts with an annual income of less than Rs. 10,000/-should not be hit by the restrictions relating to accumulation.
 - (2) Trusts with annual incomes exceeding Rs. 10,000/- should not be subjected to this restriction if such trusts intimate in advance the specific object for which the funds are being accumulated and also the period within which the funds so accumulated are to be spent on the charitable objective. This period should not exceed 10 years. A further consideration is that the amount accumulated in the case of these trusts should be invested in Government securities or other securities approved by Government.
 - (3) So long as a trust spends its income for a genuine charitable purpose, property held under trust for the purpose should also include a business undertaking held under trust. Therefore, the Explanation to clause 11 given in the Bill, in the Committee's view, should be amended to provide that property held under trust would include a business undertaking.
 - (4) Having regard to the widening of the provisions relating to trusts and business held by trusts, the Committee feel that any business not carried on by a trust should not come within the purview of the exemptions.

- (5) The exemption conferred on charitable trusts should be applicable for trusts created hereafter only to those trusts which are not for the benefit of any particular race, religious community or caste.
- (6) The word "relative" for the purpose of clause 13 should include also the lineal descendants of brothers and sisters.

Clauses 11 to 13 have been amended accordingly.

18. Clause 15.—The Committee are of the view that it should be clarified that where any salary paid in advonce is included in the total income for any year it shall not be included again in the total income when the salary becomes due.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

19. Clause 17.—The Committee think that the words "by way of loan or otherwise" occurring in item (v) of sub-clause (1) might suggest that loans like those for the purchase of a conveyance or a house are to be taxed as salary in the year in which they are taken. These words should, therefore, be omitted.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

- 20. Clause 23.—Amendments made in the clause are of a clarificatory and drafting nature.
- 21. Clause 27.—Amendments made in the clause are formal in nature and bring the provision of item (i) in line with similar provisions in clause 64(iii) and (iv).

The other amendments made in the clause are to make the intention clear.

- 22. Clauses 30 and 31.—Amendments made in the clauses are of a formal nature.
- 23. Clause 32.—The amendment made in the clause is intended to bring the provisions of the clause in conformity with the amendment made in the existing Income-tax Act by section 6(i) of the Finance Act, 1961.
- 24. Clause 33.—The Committee have considered at length the question of development rebate and are of the opinion that
- (i) The condition that all shareholders immediately before the amalgamation should become shareholders of the amalgamated company should be changed so as to bring this provision in conformity with the provision relating to amalgamation in the Companies Act, 660 (B) L.S.—2.

- 1956. In the Companies Act an amalgamation can take place even if shareholders holding shares equal to 9/10 in value of the total shares continue in the amalgamated company.
- (ii) If a 100% subsidiary company is merged in its parent company, being a holding company, the benefit of development rebate available to the subsidiary company should not lapse.
- (iii) The definition of amalgamation should be changed to make it clear that it covers an amalgamation of two or more companies.

The Committee further feel that the benefit of development rebate should be available to a company whether private or public on conversion from a firm if all its shareholders were partners in that firm immediately before succession.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

25. Clause 34.—Under Explanation 6 of clause 43(1), both the parent company and the subsidiary company would be eligible for depreciation on the actual cost to the parent company in the case of a ship. This may result in the total depreciation exceeding the actual cost. This is not the intention. Further in the case of capital assets other than ships the initial depreciation may in some cases result in the aggregate of all deductions exceeding the actual cost. Necessary amendments have therefore been proposed.

The period of ten years referred t_0 in sub-clause (3) (a) has been reduced to eight years in conformity with the change made in clause 34(3) (b).

The clause has been amended accordingly.

26. Clause 37.—The Committee think that the word "necessarily" in sub-clause (1) should be omitted because it would be difficult to decide whether or not an expenditure was necessarily incurred. They have, therefore, omitted the word from this sub-clause.

The other amendment made in the clause is consequential upon amendments made in the Finance Act, 1961, after the introduction of this Bill.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

27. Clause 40.—The Committee are of the view that all cesses should be allowed as business expenses because they are of small amounts and though sometimes computed on the basis of profits they are really of the nature of revenue expenditure. Therefore, the word "cess" occurring in item (a) (ii) has been omitted.

The Committee further feel that in sub-clause (b) reference to Hindu undivided family, association of persons and body of individuals should be omitted.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

28. Clause 41.—The Committee are of the opinion that in cases where profits are assessed after the closure of the business under the provisions of this clause it is but fair that any loss which might have been incurred in the year in which the business had been closed should be set off against such profits and only the balance should be taxed.

This has been provided in the amended clause.

The other amendments made in the clause are intended to bring out the real intention of the clause or are consequential or of a drafting nature.

29. Clause 43.—Explanation (4) The Committee are of the view that where the assessee is subjected to tax on the excess of the sale price over the written down value at the time of his original sale, he should get the benefit of this excess when the written down value is computed for the purpose of calculating depreciation at the time of re-purchase of the asset.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

- 30. Clause 46.—The clause has been redrafted to make its intention clear in its relation to clauses 45 and 48.
- 31. Clause 47.—Item (ii) has been amended to bring its language in conformity with that of clause 49 (iii) (b).

The other amendment is of a drafting nature.

32. Clause 48.—For the reasons given in respect of clause 37 the word "necessarily" occurring in item (i) of this clause has been omitted.

The other amendment is clarificatory in nature to bring within its scope the types of cases mentioned in clause 49.

33. Clause 54.—This clause gives a concession in the matter of capital gains arising from the transfer of a house property used by the assessee or his parent for purpose of residence. The concession is that if the assessee has within a period of one year before or after the date purchased a new property for his own residence, the capital gain will be reduced by the amount of money spent on the new residence. If the cost of the new house is greater than the capital gain made, no assessment will be made on capital gain. The Committee

feel that an assessee instead of purchasing a new property may, construct one. The concession under this clause should be available in these cases as well and the time limit for new construction should be two years after the date of such transfer.

The Committee further feel that in giving this concession the assessee need not be asked to exercise a choice. It should be given in every case to which it applies.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

A corresponding amendment is also necessary to clause 155 to enable the Department to rectify, the assessment if already made, for providing the relief where after the assessment is made the assessee purchases or constructs a new property within the time limits mentioned above.

- 34. Clause 55.—The amendment made in this clause is clarificatory in nature.
- 35. Clause 57.—For the reasons given in respect of clause 37, the Committee have omitted the word "necesarily" occurring in the clause.
- 36. Clause 64.—According to the wording of the original clause there was an element of doubt as to the particular person in whose hands the income of the spouse or the minor child should be taxed. The Committee feel that in order to remove these doubts it should be clarified, (a) that the income should be clubbed in the hands of that spouse who has the greater income (exclusive of the share income of the firm); (b) likewise, the income of the minor child should be clubbed with that of the parent who has the larger income of the two (exclusive of the income from the partnership). Where any such income is once included in the total income of either spouse or parent, any such income arising in any succeeding year should not be included in the total income of the other spouse or parent except after giving that spouse or parent an opportunity to be heard.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

- 37. Clauses 65 and 67.—The amendments made in these clauses are of a clarificatory or drafting nature.
- 38. Clause 68.—The Committee are of the view that where there is evidence to show that the amount belongs to some other persons, the Income-tax Officer should have power to assess that other person. Therefore, the fact that the explanation offered by the assessee is not satisfactory should not invariably force the Income-tax Officer to treat it as the income of the assessee.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

39. Clause 69.—The Committee feel that the word "shall" occurring in the clause should be substituted by the word "may" for the same reasons as given in the preceding paragraph.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

- 40. Clause 72.—The amendments made in the clause are of a drafting nature.
- 41. Clause 79.—The Committee think that the provisions of this clause should be applied only where a change in the shareholding of the company has been brought about with the intention of reducing tax liability.

The clause has been re-drafted accordingly.

42. Clause 84.—The Committee are of the view that where a minor part, not exceeding 20% of the assets of a new industrial undertaking consisted of second-hand items, the benefit of tax holiday should not be denied in toto but that in computing the capital employed the value of such assets should be excluded.

In the view of the Committee, sub-clause (4) should be redrafted on the lines of the language used in section 15C of the existing Income-tax Act, but making it applicable to a class of industrial undertakings instead of to individual units. A further change suggested is that before the provisions of the sub-clause are applied an enquiry should be made.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

43. Clause 87.—The Committee feel that item (a) of sub-clause (1) as originally drafted may create some difficulty because at the time of payment of premia it could not relate to the "total income" as such total income is computed only after the close of the relevant previous year. In order to get over this difficulty the expression "total income" should be substituted by the words "income chargeable to income-tax".

In the opinion of the Committee a special provision is desirable to allow a higher rebate on account of the insurance premia paid by authors, playwrights, artists, musicians or actors who have a short working life and in whose case special provisions may be necessary for insurance. A provision has been inserted to enable the Government to permit them higher rebate.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

44. Clause 88.—The Committee consider that only donations to institutions or funds not expressed to be for the benefit of a particular race, religious community or caste should be allowed exemption. The Committee also feel that it should be clarified that a deduction to which the assessee is entitled in respect of any donation made to an institution or fund to which sub-clause (5) applies should not be affected merely by reason of the fact that subsequent to the donation any part of the income of the institution or fund has become chargeable to tax due to non-compliance with any of the provisions of clause 11.

The clause has been amended accordingly and the other amendments made in this clause are intended to make the intention clear.

45. Clause 99.—The Committee are of the view that the list of industries to which the provisions of this clause are applicable needs amplification and should include new industries which have assumed importance in the context of the industrial development of the country. A revised list has accordingly been drawn up for this purpose and appears in the Fifth Schedule to the Bill.

The Committee have also proposed that the benefit of this clause in regard to the new industries now added should be available only in respect of capital invested in companies floated on or after 1-4-61 or of capital issued by existing concerns on or after that date. The Committee further feel that the benefit of this clause should apply to those undertakings which are set up before the 1st of April, 1967. However companies once covered by section 56A of the existing Income-tax Act or this clause should get the concession for a minimum period of ten years. The necessary amendments have been carried out in this clause read with the Fifth Schedule.

- 46. Clause 104.—The Committee are of the opinion that super-tax payable under this clause should be on the balance of distributable income after deducting not only dividends actually distributed but also the following items of bona fide expenditure which may have been incurred by the company but not allowable as expenditure:—
 - (i) bonus or gratuity paid to an employee.
 - (ii) legal charges.
 - (iii) any such expenditure as is referred to in item (c) of clause 40.
 - (iv) any expenditure claimed as a revenue expenditure but not allowed to be deducted as such and not resulting in the creation of an asset or enhancement in the value of an existing asset.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

The other amendment made in the clause is of a drafting nature.

- 47. Clause 109.—The Committee consider that the following further deductions should be allowed in computing the "distributable income" under this clause:—
 - (i) Losses under the head "capital gains" which are not allowed to be set off against general business income.
 - (ii) Income arising outside India, the remittance of which into India is prohibited, provided that when subsequently the restrictions on remittance are removed the amount so deducted shall be added in computing the distributable income of the year in which the restrictions are removed.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

48. Clause 112.—The Committee are of the view that as the tax on compensation and capital gains have to be computed in the same manner, difficulties would arise where an assessee has income from compensation as well as income from capital gains.

The clause has been redrafted to remove this difficulty.

49. Clause 113.—Under sub-clause (3) a non-resident is required to file his declaration before the 30th June of the assessment year in which he first becomes assessable. The Committee think that occasions may arise where a person hitherto resident may become non-resident. In such a case the option cannot be obviously exercised before the 30th June of the year in which he first became assessable because as a resident he would already have been assessed. The Committee are, therefore, of the opinion that the words "in which he first becomes assessable" should be substituted by the words "in which he first becomes assessable as a non-resident".

Under sub-clause (5) a belated declaration is permitted if the assessee was prevented by sufficient cause from not making it within the prescribed time provided that the omission to make such a declaration has not resulted in reducing his liability to tax. However, when this belated declaration is made, the benefit of the declaration is given only for the assessment year in which the declaration is made and for subsequent assessment years. The Committee feel that this benefit should be given also in respect of pending assessments for the years in which the assessee was a non-resident.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

The other amendment made in the clause is of a clarificatory nature.

- 50. Clause 114.—For the same reasons as those given against clause 112, this clause has also been amended suitably.
- 51. Clause 132.—The Committee feel that it would be better if the existing provision in this regard is restored and the matter of removal of books regulated by rules as at present.
- 52. Clause 137.—The Committee are of the opinion that a provision permitting disclosure of information to any person authorised to require information under the Foreign Exchange Regulation Act may be added.

They further feel that the definition of "public servant" given in this clause should not apply to provisions like clause 137(3) (xviii).

The clause has been amended suitably.

The other amendments are of a drafting nature.

53. Clause 139.—The Committee had received a number of representations that the period of four months prescribed for filing the returns of income in various cases was too short and that in the case of companies and foreign concerns it would be practically impossible to send in the returns within the said period of four months.

Having regard to these difficulties, the Committee consider that in the case of assessees having income from business or profession the period of four months may be extended to six months and further where the accounting year of the business ends after the 31st December, interest for non-submission of returns may be from the 1st January instead of from the 1st October.

Another amendment proposed by the Committee provides for calculation of interest in the case of registered firms which delay submission of returns.

By an amendment made to sub-clause (3) the Committee have proposed that assessees having losses under the head "capital gains" should be entitled to file return showing such losses.

The other amendments made in the clause are of a clarificatory or consequential nature.

54. Clause 140.—The Committee feel that it should be open to the absentee assessee also to sign the return contemplated under clause 139.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

55. Clause 141.—The Committee are of the view that provision should be made for set off in respect of losses under the head "capital gains" before a provisional assessment is made.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

- 56. Clause 147.—The amendments made in the clause are of a consequential or drafting nature.
- 57. Clause 149.—In regard to recpening past assessments the Committee are of the opinion that there should be a time limit for every type of case falling under the existing section 34. Accordingly the Committee have proposed that no reassessment proceedings shall be initiated beyond 16 years and an assessment for any year falling within 8 to 16 years range should not be reopened unless the escapement for that particular year is Rs. 50,000 or more.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

The other amendments made in the clause are of a drafting or consequential nature.

58. Clause 150.—The Committee feel that when an assessment is reopened in pursuance of an order on appeal it should be made clear that it does not permit the reopening of an assessment which had been barred by time at the time the assessment appealed against was made.

This has been provided in the amended clause.

- 59. Clause 155.—Sub-clause (8) has been added for the reasons mentioned in respect of clause 54.
- 60. Clause 159.—The amendment made in this clause is clarificatory in nature.
- 61. Clause 178.—The Committee consider that a time limit should be laid down for the Income-tax Officer to intimate to the liquidator the amount that is to be set apart under the provisions of this clause. Accordingly the Committee have suggested a period of three months for this purpose.

Doubts have been expressed whether the liquidator would be debarred from paying to the secured creditors who have priority over Government dues on the day the company went into liquidation. To set at rest these doubts, an amendment has been proposed permitting payments to secured creditors in such cases.

660 (B) L.S.—3.

62. Clause 179.—Almost all the witnesses who appeared before the Committee expressed the view that the extension of liability to shareholders when the Directors could not pay the tax would deter company formation. The Committee have come to the conclusion that the Directors alone should be held responsible for the tax unrecovered from the company. It would, however, be open to a Director to prove that non-payment of the tax by the company was not due to any gross negligence, misfeasance or breach of duty on his part. In that event the liability should not attach to him.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

63. Clause 180.—The Committee feel that the existing provisions are somewhat rigid and do not fully take into account the short working life of an author or an artist. The Committee have, therefore, suggested that the manner and the period of allocation of lump sum receipts of such assessees should be left to be framed by rules.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

64. Clause 182.—The Committee are of the view that in the place of sub-clause 4, it should be provided that the firm may withhold 30% share of profits of each partner as security for the due payment of the tax by the partner. If the partner fails to pay his tax the amount withheld to the extent of the tax will be payable to the Government. This, in the opinion of the Committee will avoid hardships and secure at the same time prompt payment of tax by the partner.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

65. Clause 184.—The Committee feel that an application to the Income-tax Officer under sub-clause (3) where a partner happens to be absent from India, may be signed by some other person authorised to do so on his behalf, and, in the case of a mentally incapacitated person, may be signed by a person entitled under law to represent him.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

66. Clause 186.—The Committee consider that it would be desirable to have a time limit for cancellation of registration of a firm and they think that eight years limit would be adequate.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

67. Clause 194.—The amendment will secure that exemption certificates will be issued in proper cases, so that dividends by companies are paid without deductions.

68. Clause 201.—The Committee are of the opinion that the amount of tax, in the event of its non-payment, should not be treated as an over-riding charge vis-a-vis other charges upon the assets of the person or the company, as the case may be.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

- 69. Clauses 204 and 207.—Amendments made in the clauses are of a drafting or consequential nature.
- 70. Clauses 209 and 210.—The Committee feel that it should be made clear in item (a) (i) of clause 209 and in sub-clause (1) of clause 210 that reference is to regular assessment only and not to provisional assessment.

The clauses have been amended accordingly.

- 71. Clause 212.—Amendments made in the clause are of a drafting nature.
- 72. Clause 217.—The Committee are of the view that the amount on which interest should be payable by the assessee under the clause should be the amount by which advance tax falls short of the 75% of the tax referred to in sub-clause (1) of clause 215 so as to bring this on par with clause 215, which is the position under the existing law.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

- 73. Clause 220.—The amendment made in the clause is of a clarificatory nature.
- 74. Clause 221.—The Committee are of the opinion that where as a result of any final order on appeal, revision or reference, the amount of tax, with respect to the default in the payment of which the penalty was levied, has been wholly reduced, the penalty levied should be automatically cancelled and the amount of penalty paid should be refunded.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

The other amendments made in this clause are clarificatory in nature.

75. Clause 230.—The Committee feel that the rule making power under the clause should be vested in the Board consistent with other similar provisions in the Bill.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

76. Clause 231.—The existing wording of the clause would seem to permit an Income-tax Officer to avail himself of a longer period

for initiating recovery proceedings by the simple expedient of postponing the issue of notice regarding default. The Committee, therefore, consider that the words "the Income-tax Officer sends an intimation in writing to such person to the effect that he is deemed to be an assessee in default" should be replaced by the words "the assessee is deemed to be in default".

- 77. Clause 241.—The amendments made in the clause are of a drafting nature.
- 78. Clause 246.—The Committee are of the opinion that in order to remove any possible doubt an order of assessment, reassessment or re-computation under clause 147 or clause 150 should be specifically referred to in this clause. They further feel that an order under clause 216 should also be made appealable.

The Committee are of the view that the proviso to this clause which bars an appeal against a penalty for default till the tax is paid is not really necessary in the context of the new provisions in the Bill for enforcing prompt payment of tax, for example, the provision relating to levy of interest etc.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

The other amendment made in the clause is of a drafting nature.

79. Clause 248.—According to the existing law the provisions of this clause are restricted only to persons who are under an obligation to deduct tax on the sums mentioned in clause 195.

This intention has been made clear in the clause.

- 80. Clauses 249 and 250.—The amendments made in the clauses are of a drafting nature.
- 81. Clause 253.—The amendments made in the clause are consequential upon the omission of original clause 275.
- 82 Clause 254.—Original sub-clause (1) of this clause sought to vest in the Appellate Tribunal power to enhance the tax or any penalty levied.

In the Committee's view it would not be proper to vest enhancement powers in the Appellate Tribunal because the Appellate Tribunal is the final Court of appeal on facts. If power of enhancement is given there would be no opportunity for the appellant to have that order considered by a higher court.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

- 83. Clause 255.—The Committee feel that the Appellate Tribunal should have the powers of a civil court for proceeding against anyone guilty of contempt of it.
 - Sub-clause (6) has been amended accordingly.
- 84. Clauses 257 and 263.—Amendments made in the clauses are of a drafting or consequential nature.
- 85. Clause 265.—As a reference can be made directly to the Supreme Court under clause 257, after the words 'High Court' the words 'Supreme Court' have been inserted in this clause.
- 86. Clauses 271 and 274.—For the reasons given against clause 254, these clauses should be amended so that the Appellate Tribunal does not have power to impose a penalty in the first instance.
- 87. Original clause 275.—The original clause 275 sought to make provision regarding penalty for abetment etc. of false returns. It was urged by the witnesses who appeared before the Committee that the power of punishment for abetment should not vest in the tax authorities and that respective professional associations who have power to take disciplinary proceedings against the members of profession should be the authority to take action in this regard. The Committee feel that neither the tax authorities nor the professional associations should have the power to punish abetment. Abetment should be made an offence punishable by a magistrate in the same manner as other offences referred to in clause 277.

Therefore, the original clause 275 has been deleted and a new provision has been introduced in clause 278.

88. Clause 275 (Original clause 276).—The Committee are of the opinion that an explanation on the lines of the explanations occurring in clauses 153 and 263 should be added to this clause to provide that in computing the period of limitation for the purpose of this clause, the time taken in giving an opportunity to the assessee to be re-heard under the proviso to clause 129 and any period during which a proceeding under this Chapter for the levy of penalty is stayed by an order or injunction of any court would be excluded.

The amended clause provides for the same.

- 89. Clause 277 (Original clause 278).—This clause has been amended to conform to the language used in new clause 278.
- 90. Clause 278 (New Clause).—The new clause has been added for the reasons stated in regard to the original clause 275.

- 91. Clause 279.—Amendment made in the clause is consequential in nature.
- 92. Clause 280.—A difficulty may arise if the public servant who contravenes the provisions of clause 137 is the Commissioner himself. To get over this difficulty, it has been provided that in all cases the sanction of the Central Government is to be obtained.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

- 93. Clause 286.—The amendment made in the clause is of a drafting nature.
- 94. Clause 287.—Publication of the names of persons is to be withheld upto the stage of the first appeal. In the cases covered by clause 274(2) the first appeal lies with the Appellate Tribunal. The Committee, therefore, feel that in such cases, publication of names should not be made before the appeal is disposed of by the Appellate Tribunal.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

95. Clause 288.—The Committee are of the opinion that the ban on retired officers of the Income-tax Department should apply even to Income-tax Officers.

In the Committee's view, penalties imposed under items (i) and (ii) of clause 271(1) should not lead to disqualification as these penalties are for comparatively minor offences.

The clause has been amended accordingly.

- 96. Clause 295.—The amendments made in this clause are consequential in nature.
- 97. Clause 297.—Where re-assessment proceedings are initiated on a direction from the appellate authority under the repealed Act, Clause 150 should apply. The amendment made in sub-clause (2) (d) (ii) makes the necessary saving provision.
- 98. First Schedule.—The amendments made in this Schedule are of a drafting nature.
- 99. Second Schedule.—The Committee feel that as non-officials may also be authorised to act as auctioneers, rule 1(e) should be suitably amended.
- Rule 92 (2) has been amended to provide that the Board may make rules with regard to "the area within which Tax Recovery Officers may exercise jurisdiction".

- 100. Fifth Schedule (New).—A new Schedule has been added for the reasons mentioned in respect of clause 99.
- 101. The recommendations of the President have been obtained under Articles 117(1) and 274(1) of the Constitution in respect of the amendments made in the Bill.
- 102. The Select Committee recommend that the Bill as amended be passed.

JAGANATHA RAO

New Delhi; The 9th August, 1961.

Minutes of Dissent

I

Quite a few of the sharp edges of the Income-tax Bill, 1961, have been rounded off by the discussions in the Select Committee and many of the harsh provisions sought to be added have been made more tolerable as a result of amendments to the Bill made by the Select Committee. Nevertheless, several provisions still remain in the Bill which, to my mind, call for a note of dissent.

The re-enactment of Income-tax law after four decades presents a golden opportunity of removing the various injustices which have been brought to light by the working of the Act over a generation. It is a matter for regret that this opportunity is being missed. The Bill, no doubt, introduces order and system into Income-tax Law but the Bill does not attempt to introduce the essential element of justice and fairness to the assessee who, in the vast majority of cases, is a small man with a modest income.

Clause 2(47) will have the effect of enlarging the scope of the capital gains tax by providing that it will be applicable to cases of amalgamation of companies. Such a levy, to my mind, should not be imposed since it would discourage amalgamations which are often necessary to achieve efficiency in administration or economy in working. This levy is all the more objectionable since it will apply even in cases where the shareholders of the amalgamating companies receive neither cash consideration nor shares of a higher market value than that of the shares which are extinguished. It will hit the middle classes who hold the bulk of the corporate share capital of this country.

Clause 9 seeks to perpetuate the doctrine of "business connection" on the basis of which non-residents are chargeable to Indian tax. At a time when India needs to boost its exports and is equally keen to import capital goods and invite foreign collaboration, it is essential that the vague and nebulous concept of "business connection" should be substituted by something more precise which would restrict the liability within reasonable limits. The English principle that trading in England would attract tax but not trading with England should be incorporated in our law.

"Charity", it has been said, "begins at home". In that context, the proposal in Clause 13(b) that exemption from taxation in respect of charitable trusts should be available only where the trust is open to

all citizens of India and is not restricted to any religious community or caste is, if I may say so, misconceived. This proposal was not in the original Bill; otherwise, I am sure, it would have raised a storm of protest throughout the country. Under the law of the land, a trust is a public charitable trust if it ensures for the benefit of the public or a section of the public and trusts in favour of members of any religious community or caste are recognised by the law as valid charitable trusts. That being the case, there does not appear to be any adequate reason why exemption from tax should be denied to trusts which are for members of a designated community or caste. Personally, I am not in favour of communal trusts or in favour of communalism in any form whatever, but the point at issue is whether, if a citizen is actuated by a charitable impulse and choses to create a trust for the benefit of a section of the people, the State should step in as the beneficiary and take away a part of the income of the trust in the form of tax. Where the government collects income-tax from public charitable trusts, it really deprives some of the poorest citizens of the country of desperately needed help which they would have otherwise got under the trust.

Even in regard to donations to charitable trusts, the present position, by virtue of Clause 88 (5) (iii), by which the donor is only exempted if the donation is of a non-denominational character is a questionable one. Whether we like it or not, there are millions of people in India who are caste or community conscious, and if they feel like making a donation to a charity that is of a sectarian nature, it is better that they should do so than they should not perform that act of charity at all. Just as we cannot legislate people into goodness, we cannot tax them into nationalism. That is a process which is basically an educational one and must take time. The coercive power of law and taxation is not a fit instrument to make people enlightened and broadminded. The only result would be, in a large number of cases, to dry up the springs of philanthropy without benefit to the State and with loss to the poor and needy among one section of the people or another.

Clause 32 provides for depreciation only in respect of buildings, machinery, plant and furniture. In respect of the cost of mines, quarries, patents and copyrights, no deduction is allowable either on revenue account or by way of depreciation. In many other countries the cost of capital assets like mines, quarries, patents and copyrights, which get exhausted in the process of working, is allowed to be debited to the profit and loss account either in the form of depreciation or as revenue expense. The absence of such a provision in the present Income-tax Law should be remedied when a new Act is being enacted.

Clauses 33 and 34, which deal with development rebate, provide that the development rebate would be taken back if the asset is sold

within eight years. It is but just and fair that the development rebate should not be taken back where the asset is not sold singly but the entire business is transferred as a going concern to a successor; e.g. where an individual is succeeded by a firm, or a firm by a limited company, or a joint family is succeeded by a partnership or a limited company. But the Bill proposes not to withdraw development rebate only in cases of amalgamation of companies or succession to a firm by a limited company. The choice of these two exceptions is purely arbitrary. There is no reason why a firm succeeded by a limited company should not lose development rebate, but an individual succeeded by a limited company or a limited company succeeded by another limited company should lose development rebate.

Under the existing law, the income of a trust created for a beneficiary (other than a spouse or minor child) is not taxable in the hands of the settlor, if the trust is irrevocable for at least six years. Clause 62(i) (ii) of the Bill proposes to make a complete departure in this respect. It provides that even if the trust is absolutely bona fide, so long as it is revocable after any period of time, the income must still continue to be assessed in the hands of the settlor. India will probably be the first and only country to tax the trust income in such cases where the income has been paid over bona fide to someone else and the settlor has no interest at all in the income. The present law has worked quite fairly and there is no justification change. To my mind, it is unfair to tax settlors of honest trusts who have parted with all their interest in the income or corpus, merely because the trusts are made revocable at a distant point of time for reasons totally unconnected with tax evasion. For instance, a trust may be made revocable only because the settlor is not sure whether the beneficiary would turn out to be a worthy object of his bounty or not. There seems to be no justification for taxing settlors in such cases.

Clause 79 seeks to provide that a company should not be allowed to carry forward its losses unless 51 per cent of the share capital remains in the hands of the same shareholders. Whereas other countries are amending their income-tax laws to provide for carrying back business losses, the Bill tries to abridge even the limited right of carrying forward business losses. The principle of corporate entity, which is the very foundation of company law, is sought to be undermined by Clause 79. The draft of this clause puts the onus on the assessee to prove that the change in the shareholding was not effected with a view to avoiding or reducing tax liability. This is clearly putting the onus on the wrong side. This clause should be omitted. But if it is sought to be retained at all, it should apply

in cases where the circumstances show that the change in the shareholding was effected with a view to avoiding or reducing tax liability, without casting the onus on the taxpayer to prove the negative.

The new provision sought to be introduced in Clause 87, viz. that rebate on insurance premia would not be available unless the premia are paid out of income chargeable to income-tax, is a departure from the existing law. How is the Income-tax Department concerned with the source from which the insurance premia are paid? Why should not a man pay insurance premia out of moneys gifted to him by another and accumulate his taxable income, without losing rebate on the premia? The new provision would only mean further harassment to honest taxpayers who will have to prove that the insurance premia were paid out of income chargeable to tax before they can get rebate in respect of such premia. Suppose the insurance premia are paid by cheques drawn on a bank account in which have been credited both taxable income and non-taxable income. The taxpayer will lose the whole or a part of the rebate in such a case. This provision, to my mind, is most inequitable, unjust and irrational. The innovation sought to be made would serve no purpose but would merely work needless hardship on honest tax-payers.

Companies in which the public are not substantially interested are required to declare the prescribed statutory percentage of their profits by way of dividend. It is essential that Clause 104 should be amended so as to provide, as the English law provides, that if the declaration of no dividend or less than the prescribed dividend is due to the necessity of meeting the current business requirements of the company, penal super-tax should not be levied on the company. A number of cases have arisen in which companies which, instead of declaring dividends, applied the income of a certain year to paying off past tax liabilities or bona fide trade liabilities were yet subjected to penal super-tax. Thus the companies which act prudently and honestly are yet ordered to pay a penalty. Such a legal provision is clearly unjust, and yet the Bill seeks to perpetuate the injustice.

Clause 179 marks a violent departure from the well-settled principles of Indian jurisprudence. For the first time in the history of Indian law, Clause 179 seeks to unsettle the well-settled law that directors or shareholders of a limited company are not personally liable for the debts of the company. Clause 179 seeks to make a most dangerous innovation. If today such a provision is enacted in incometax law, it may be enacted tomorrow in the excise law, the customs law, the sales tax law and the wide variety of other laws which constitute the heavy burden of direct and indirect taxation in this country. It is basically wrong to cut at the very root of the juristic

concept of limited liability merely to get at a few dishonest directors. The only effect of such a provision would be to scare away honest people from the directorship of private companies, for fear of unlimited personal liability. Clause 179, as it emerges from the Select Committee, puts the onus on the wrong side. The directors are presumed to be guilty and therefore personally liable for all the tax dues of the company, unless they discharge the onus of proving that they acted with care and good faith.

NEW DELHI;

M. R. MASANI.

7th August, 1961.

The Income Tax Bill, 1961, as it has emerged from the Select Committee has made some improvements specially in its coherence and the logical arrangement of the Sections of the Indian Income Tax Act, 1922. However, no major and drastic changes have been introduced affecting the substance of the law and some other changes brought here are almost ineffective and useless for practical purposes. For example, the liability of the directors of a private company on liquidation in clause 179 as amended is not a matter which can be easily enforced by the Income Tax Department and will be almost inoperative. Some of the provisions of the Bill incorporated in accordance with the recommendations of the Direct Taxes Administrative Enquiry Committee are of such nature.

Regarding deductions from income from house property in Clause 24 sub-clause 1(i) (a) in respect of repairs the change brought about has little value in so far as deductions of 1/6 of the annual value are made annually by the owner without actually spending the money.

Clause 221 of the Bill permits levy of penalties and not the amount of default in case of default of payment of tax. The Law Commission observed that arrears of taxes were mounting but powers under these sections were not used in majority cases. Thus, while the total amount of arrears during 1958-59 stood at 271.60 crores of rupees, the amount in respect of which penalty has been levied was only 1:81 crores of rupees. Some more stringent measures should have been provided.

Regarding Clauses 270, 271, 272 and 273 providing for maximum penalty liable for amounts of tax sought to be evaded, I want to emphasize the fact that it is never levied and moderate penalties imposed by the assessing officers are reduced by the Appellate authorities. Non levy of deterrent penalty has been an important factor encouraging evasion. The deterrent provided in the present Bill is quite inadequate in so far as the evader rates chances of his detection at less than 1:3. According to Professor Kaldor, the likelihood of detection in India is not above 1 to 10 and for a real deterrent, has recommended a penalty of 20 times the sum risked and not 1½ times. In U.S.A. a tax evader is charged from 12 to 20 times the sum escaped and is frequently dragged before the courts and is awarded long terms of imprisonment. Unless it is brought home

to the potential tax evader that attempts at concealment will not only not pay but actually land him in goal, there could be no effective check against tax evasion.

Income taxation is a means for bring about an equilitarian society. It is an instrument which can be employed profitably by the Government. The object can best be obtained if we fix a ceiling on incomes as we have already done so in the case of lands in the rural sector. Until we do that we require that tax avoidance and tax evasion should be effectively checked and other requirements of tax revenue be adequately fulfilled.

NEW DELHI;

LAISRAM ACHAW SINGH

The 8th August, 1961.

oe sgrillering

THE INCOME-TAX BILL, 1961 (As reported by the Select Committee)

ARRANGEMENT OF CLAUSES

CHAPTER I

PRELIMINARY

CLAUSES

- 1. Short title, extent and commencement.
- 2. Definitions.
- 3. "Previous year" defined.

CHAPTER II

BASIS OF CHARGE

- 4. Charge of income-tax.
- 5. Scope of total income.
- 6. Residence in India.
- 7. Income deemed to be received.,
- 8. Dividend income.
- 9. Income deemed to accrue or arise in India.

CHAPTER III

INCOMES WHICH DO NOT FORM PART OF TOTAL INCOME

- 10. Incomes not included in total income.
- 11. Income from property held for charitable or religious purposes.
- 12. Income of trusts or institutions from voluntary contributions.
- 13. Section 11 not to apply in certain cases.

660 (B) L.S.-6.

CHAPTER IV

COMPUTATION OF TOTAL INCOME

Heads of income

CLAUSES

14. **Meads** of income.

A.—Salaries

- 15. Salaries.
- 16. Deductions from salaries.
- 17. "Salary", "perquisite" and "profits in lieu of salary" defined.

B.—Interest on securities

- 18. Interest on securities.
- 19. Deductions from interest on securities.
- 20. Deductions from interest on securities in the case of a banking company.
- 21. Amounts not deductible from interest on securities.

C.—Income from house property

- 22. Income from house property.
- 23. Annual value how determined.
- 24. Deductions from income from house property.
- 25. Amounts not deductible from income from house property.
- 26. Property owned by co-owners.
- 27. "Owner of house property", "annual charge", etc., defined.

D.—Profits and gains of business or profession

- 28. Profits and gains of business or profession.
- 29. Income from profits and gains of business or profession, how computed.
- 30. Rent, rates, taxes, repairs and insurance for buildings.
- 31. Repairs and insurance of machinery, plant and furniture.
- 32. Depreciation.

1

- 33. Development rebate.
- 34. Conditions for depreciation allowance and development rebate.

S ... 1 1 1 2 2 2

- 35. Expenditure on scientific research.
- 36. Other deductions.
- 37. General.

CLAUSES

- 38. Building, etc., partly used for business, etc., or not exclusively so used.
- 39. Managing agency commission,
- 40. Amounts not deductible.
- 41. Profits chargeable to tax.
- 42. Special provision for deductions in the case of business for prospecting, etc., for mineral oil.
- 43. Definitions of certain terms relevant to income from profits and gains of business or profession.
- 44. Insurance business.

E.—Capital gains

- 45. Capital gains.
- 46. Capital gains on distribution of assets by companies in liquidation.
- 47. Transactions not regarded as transfer.
- 48. Mode of computation and deductions.
- 49. Cost with reference to certain modes of acquisition.
- 50. Special provision for computing cost of acquisition in the case of depreciable assets.
- 51. Advance money received.
- 52. Consideration for transfer in cases of under-statement.
- 53. Capital gains exempt from tax.
- 54. Profit on sale of property used for residences.
- 55. Meaning of "adjusted", "cost of improvements" and "cost of acquisition".

F.—Income from other sources

- 56. Income from other sources.
- 57. Deductions.
- 58. Amounts not deductible.
- 59. Profits chargeable to tax.

CHAPTER V

INCOME OF OTHER PERSONS, INCLUDED IN ASSESSEE'S TOTAL INCOME

- 60. Transfer of income where there is no transfer of assets.
- 61. Revocable transfer of assets.
- 62. Transfer irrevocable for a specified period.
- 69. "Transfer" and "revocable transfer" defined.

CLAUSES

- 64. Income of individual to include income of spouse, minor child, etc.
- 65. Liability of person in respect of income included in the income of another person.

CHAPTER VI

Aggregation of income and set off or carry forward of loss Aggregation of income

- 66. Total income.
- 67. Method of computing a partner's share in the income of the firm.
- 68. Cash credits.
- 69. Unexplained investments.

Set off, or carry forward and set off.

- 70. Set off of loss from one source against income from another source under the same head of income.
- 71. Set off of loss from one head against income from another.
- 72. Carry forward and set off of business losses.
- 73. Losses in speculation business.
- 74. Losses under the head "Capital gains".
- 75. Losses of registered firms.
- 76. Losses of unregistered firms assessed as registered firms.
- 77. Losses of unregistered firms or their partners.
- 78. Carry forward and set off of losses in case of change in comstitution of firm or on succession.
- 79. Carry forward and set off of losses in the case of certain companies.
- 80. Submission of return for losses.

CHAPTER VII

INCOMES FORMING PART OF TOTAL INCOME ON WHICH NO INCOMETAX IS PAYABLE

- 81. Income of co-operative societies.
- 82. Dividends from co-operative society.
- 83. Income of marketing society.
- 84. Income of newly established industrial undertakings or hotels.
- 85. Dividend from new industrial undertaking or hotel.
- 86. Other incomes.

CHAPTER VIII

REBATES AND RELIEFS

A.—Rebate of income-tax

CLAUSES

28

Ċ

- 87. Rebate on life insurance premia, annuities and contributions to provident funds, etc.
- 88. Donations for charitable purposes.

B.—Relief for income-tax

89. Relief when salary, etc. is paid in arrears or in advance.

CHAPTER IX

Double Taxation Relief

- 90. Agreement with foreign countries.
- 91. Countries with which no agreement exists.

CHAPTER X

SPECIAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO AVOIDANCE OF TAX

- 92. Income from transactions with non-residents, how computed in certain cases.
- 93. Avoidance of income-tax by transactions resulting in transfer of income to non-residents.
- 94. Avoidance of tax by certain transactions in securities.

CHAPTER XI

SUPER-TAX

. A.—General

- 95. Charge of super-tax.
- 96. Total income for super-tax.
- 97. Applicability of Act to super-tax.
- 98. Avoidance of super-tax.
- B.—Incomes forming part of total income on which no super-tax is payable
 - 99. Incomes not chargeable to super-tax.

C.—Rebate of super-tax

- 100. Donations for charitable purposes.
- 101. Newly established industrial undertakings or hotels.

CLAUSES

- 102. Share from registered firm.
- 103. Relief for salary, etc. received in arrear, etc.
 - D.—Additional super-tax on undistributed profits
- 104. Super-tax on undistributed income of certain companies.
- 105. Special provisions for certain companies.
- 106. Period of limitation for making orders under section 104.
- 107. Approval of Inspecting Assistant Commissioner for orders under section 104.
- 108. Savings for company in which public are substantially interested.
- 109. "Distributable income", "Investment company" and "statutory percentage" defined.

CHAPTER XII

DETERMINATION OF TAX IN CERTAIN SPECIAL CASES

- 110. Determination of tax where total income includes income on which no tax is payable.
- 111. Tax on accumulated balance of recognised provident fund
- 112. Tax on compensation.
- 113. Tax in the case of non-resident.
- 114. Tax on capital gains in cases of assessees other than companies.
- 115. Tax on capital gains in case of companies.

CHAPTER XIII

INCOME-TAX AUTHORITIES

A.—Appointment and control

116. Income-tax authorities.

₹

- 117. Appointment of Income-tax authorities.
- 118. Control of Income-tax authorities.
- 119. Instructions to subordinate authorities.

B — Jurisdiction

........................

- 120. Jurisdiction of Directors of Inspection.
- 121. Jurisdiction of Commissioners.
- 122. Jurisdiction of Appellate Assistant Commissioners.

CLAUSES

- 123. Jurisdiction of Inspecting Assistant Commissioners.
- 124. Jurisdiction of Income-tax Officers.
- 125. Powers of Commissioner respecting specified cases or persons.
- 126. Powers of Board respecting specified area, classes of persons or incomes.
- 127. Transfer of cases from one Income-tax Officer to another.
- 128. Functions of Inspectors of Income-tax.
- 129. Change of incumbent of an office.
- 130. Authority competent to take or continue certain preceedings.

C.—Powers

- 131. Power regarding discovery, production of evidence, etc.
- 132. Powers of search and seizure.
- 133. Power to call for information.
- 134. Power to inspect registers of companies.
- 135. Power of Director of Inspection, Commissioner and Inspecting Assistant Commissioner.
- 136. Proceedings before Income-tax authorities to be judicial proceedings.

D.—Disclosure of information

- 137. Disclosure of information prohibited.
- 138. Disclosure of information respecting tax payable.

CHAPTER XIV

PROCEDURE FOR ASSESSMENT

- 139. Return of income.
- 140. Return by whom to be signed.
- 141. Provisional assessment.
- 142. Enquiry before assessment.
- 143. Assessment.
- 144. Best judgement assessment.
- 145. Method of accounting.
- 146. Recpening of assessment at the instance of the assessee.
- 147. Income escaping assessment.
- 148. Issue of notice where income has escaped assessment.
- 149. Time limit for notice.

- 150. Provision for cases where assessment is in pursuance of an order on appeal, etc.
- 151. Sanction for issue of notice.
- 152. Other provisions.
- 153. Time limit for completion of assessments and re-assessments.
- 154. Rectification of mistake.
- 155. Other amendments.
- 156. Notice of demand.
- 157. Intimation of loss.
- 158. Intimation of assessment of firm.

CHAPTER XV

LIABILITY IN SPECIAL CASES

A.—Legal representatives

- 159. Legal representatives.
 - B.—Representative assessees—general provisions
- 160. Representative assessee.
- 161. Liability of representative assessee.
- 162. Right of representative assessee to recover tax paid.
 - C.—Representative assessees—special cases
- 163. Who may be regarded as agent.
- 164. Charge of tax where share of beneficiaries unknown.
- 165. Case where part of trust income is chargeable.
 - D.—Representative assessees—miscellaneous provisions
- 166. Direct assessment or recovery not barred.
- 167. Remedies against property in cases of representative assessees.

E.—Executors

- 168. Executors.
- 169. Right of executor to recover tax paid.
 - F.—Succession to business or profession
- 170. Succession to business otherwise than on death.

G.—Partition

- 171. Assessment after partition of a Hindu undivided family.
- H.—Profits of non-residents from occasional shipping business
- 172. Shipping business of non-residents.
 - I.—Recovery of tax in respect of non-residents
- 173. Recovery of tax in respect of non-resident from his assets.
 - J.—Persons leaving India
- 174. Assessment of persons leaving India.
 - K.—Persons trying to alienate their assets
- 175. Assessment of persons likely to transfer property to avoid tax.
 - L.—Discontinuance of business, or dissolution
- 176. Discontinued business.
- 177. Association dissolved or business discontinued.
- 178. Company in liquidation.
 - M.—Private company in liquidation
- 179. Liability of directors of private company in liquidation.
 - N.—Special provisions for certain kinds of income
- 180. Royalties or copyright fees for literary or artistic work.
 - O.-Liability of State Governments
- 181. Interest on tax free securities of a State Government.

CHAPTER XVI

SPECIAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO FIRMS

A.—Assessment of firms

- 182. Assessment of registered firms.
- 183. Assessment of unregistered firms.
 - B.—Registration of firms
- 184. Application for registration.
- 185. Procedure on receipt of application.
- 186. Cancellation of registration.

660 (B) LS-7

- C.—Changes in constitution, succession and dissolution
- 187. Change in constitution of a firm.
- 188. Succession of one firm by another firm.
- 189. Firm dissolved or business discontinued.

CHAPTER XVII

COLLECTION AND RECOVERY OF TAX

A.—General

- 190. Deduction at source and advance payment.
- 191. Direct payment.

B.—Deduction at source

- 192. Salary.
- 193. Interest on securities.
- 194. Dividends.
- 195. Other sums.
- 196. Interest or dividend payable to Government or the Reserve Bank.
- 197. Certificate for deduction at lower rate.
- 198. Tax deducted is income received.
- 199. Credit for tax deducted.
- 200. Duty of person deducting tax.
- 201. Consequences of failure to deduct or pay.
- 202. Deduction only one mode of recovery.
- 203. Certificate for tax deducted.
- 204 Meaning of "person responsible for paying".
- 205 Bar against direct demand on assessee.
- 206. Person paying salary to furnish prescribed return.

C.—Advance payment of tax

- 207. Advance tax and income subject to advance tax.
- 208. Condition of liability to pay advance tax.
- 209. Computation of advance tax.
- 210. Order by Income-tax Officer.
- 211. Instalments of advance tax.
- 212. Estimate by assessee.

- 213. Commission receipts.
- 214. Interest payable by Government.
- 215. Interest payable by assessee.
- 216. Interest payable by assessee in case of under-estimate, etc.
- 217. Interest payable by assessee when no estimate made.
- 218. When assessee deemed to be in default.
- 219. Credit for advance tax.

D.—Collection and recovery

- 220. When tax payable and when assessee deemed in default.
- 221. Penalty payable when tax in default.
- 222. Certificate to Tax Recovery Officer.
- 223. Tax Recovery Officer to whom certificate is to be issued.
- 224. Validity of certificate, and amendment thereof.
- 225. Stay of proceedings under certificate and amendment or withdrawal thereof.
- 226. Other modes of recovery.
- 227. Recovery through State Government.
- 228. Recovery of Indian tax in Pakistan and Pakistan tax in India.
- 229. Recovery of penalties, fine, interest and other sums.
- 230. Tax Clearance Certificates.
- 231. Period for commencing recovery proceedings.
- 232. Recovery by suit or under other law not affected.

E.—Tax payable under provisional assessment

- 233. Recovery of tea payable under provisional assessment.
- 234. Tax paid by deduction or advance payment.

CHAPTER XVIII

RELIEF RESPECTING TAX ON DIVIDENDS IN CERTAIN CASES

- 235. Relief to shareholders in respect of agricultural income-tax attributable to dividends.
- 236. Relief to company in respect of dividend paid out of past taxed profits.

.

CHAPTER XIX

REFUNDS

- 237. Refunds.
- 238. Person entitled to claim refund in certain special cases.
- 239. Form of claim for refund and limitation.
- 240. Refund on appeal, etc.
- 241. Power to withhold refund in certain cases.
- 242. Correctness of assessment not to be questioned.
- 243. Interest on delayed refunds.
- 244. Interest on refund where no claim is needed.
- 245. Set off of refunds against tax remaining payable.

CHAPTER XX

APPEALS AND REVISION

- A.—Appeals to the Appellate Assistant Commissioner
- 246. Appealable orders.
- 247. Appeal by partner.
- 248. Appeal by person denying liability to deduct tax.
- 249. Form of appeal and limitation.
- 250. Procedure in appeal.
- 251. Powers of the Appellate Assistant Commissioner.

B.—Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal

- 252. Appellate Tribunal.
- 253. Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.
- 254. Orders of Appellate Tribunal.
- 255. Procedure of Appellate Tribunal.

C.—Reference to High Court

- 256. Statement of case to the High Court.
- 257. Statement of cases to Supreme Court in certain cases.
- 258. Power of High Court or Supreme Court to require statement to be amended.
- 259. Case before High Court to be heard by not less than two Judges.
- 260. Decision of High Court or Supreme Court on the case stated.

D.-Appeals to the Supreme Court

- 261. Appeal to Supreme Court.
- 262. Hearing before Supreme Court.

E.—Revision by the Commissioner

- 263. Revision of orders prejudicial to revenue.
- 264. Revision of other orders.

F.—General

- 265. Tax to be paid notwithstanding reference, etc.
- 266. Execution for costs awarded by Supreme Court.
- 267. Amendment of assessment on appeal.
- 268. Exclusion of time taken for copy.
- 269. Definition of "High Court".

CHAPTER XXI

PENALTIES IMPOSABLE

- 270. Failure to furnish information regarding securities, etc.
- 271. Failure to furnish returns, comply with notices, concealment of income, etc.
- 272. Failure to give notice of discontinuance.
- 273. False estimate of or failure to pay advance tax.
- 274. Procedure.
- 275. Bar of limitation for imposing penalties.

CHAPTER XXII

OFFENCES AND PROSECUTIONS

- 276. Failure to make payments or deliver returns or statements or allow inspection.
- 277. False statement in declaration.
- 278. Abetment, of false return, etc.
- 279. Prosecution to be at instance of Commissioner.
- 280. Disclosure of particulars by public servants.

CHAPTER XXIII

MISCELLANEOUS

- 281. Transfers to defraud revenue void.
- 282. Service of notice generally.
- 283. Service of notice when family is disrupted or firm, etc., to dissolved.
- 284. Service of notice in the case of discontinued business.
- 285. Information by persons responsible for paying interest.
- 286. Information by companies respecting shareholders to whom dividends have been paid.
- 287. Publication of information respecting penalties in certain cases.
- 288. Appearance by authorised representative.
- 289. Receipt to be given.
- 290. Indemnity.
- 291. Power to tender immunity from prosecution.
- 292. Cognisance of offences.
- 293. Bar of suits in civil courts.
- 294. Act to have effect pending legislative provision for charge of tax.
- 295. Power to make rules.
- 296. Rules to be placed before Parliament.
- 297. Repeals and savings.
- 298. Power to remove difficulties.

THE FIRST SCHEDULE.

THE SECOND SCHEDULE.

THE THIRD SCHEDULE.

THE FOURTH SCHEDULE.

THE FIFTH SCHEDULE.

THE INCOME-TAX BILL, 1961

(AS REPORTED BY THE SELECT COMMITTEE)

(Words side-lined or underlined indicate the amendments suggested by the Committee; asterisks indicate omissions).

A \TT T

BILL

to consolidate and amend the law relating to income-tax and super-tax.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Twelfth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

CHAPTER I

PRELIMINARY

1. (1) This Act may be called the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Short title, extent and commencement.

(2) It extends to the whole of India.

10

15

20

- (3) Save as otherwise provided in this Act, it shall come into force on the 1st day of April, 1962.
 - 2. In this Act, unless the context otherwise requires,—

Definitions.

- (1) "agricultural income" means—
- (a) any rent or revenue derived from land which is used for agricultural purposes and is either assessed to land revenue in India or is subject to a local rate assessed and collected * * * * by officers of the Government as such;
 - (b) any income derived from such land by-
 - (i) agriculture; or
 - (ii) the performance by a cultivator or receiver of rent-in-kind of any process ordinarily employed by a cultivator or receiver of rent-in-kind to render the produce raised or received by him fit to be taken to market; or

(iii) the sale by a cultivator of receiver of rent-inkind of the produce raised or received by him, in respect of which no process has been performed other than a process of the nature described in paragraph (ii) of this sub-clause:

5

(c) any income derived from any building owned and occupied by the receiver of the rent or revenue of any such land, or occupied by the cultivator, or the receiver of rent-in-kind, of any land with respect to which, or the produce of which, any process mentioned in paragraphs (ii) and (iii) 10 of sub-clause (b) is carried on:

Provided that the building is on or in the immediate vicinity of the land, and is a building which the receiver of the rent or revenue or the cultivator, or the receiver of rent-in-kind, by reason of his connection with the land, requires as a dwelling house, or as a store-house, or other out-building;

- (2) "annual value", in relation to any property, means its amnual value as determined under section 23;
- (3) "Appellate Assistant Commissioner" means a person 2C appointed to be an Appellate Assistant Commissioner of Incometax under sub-section (1) of section 117;
- (4) "Appellate Tribunal" means the Appellate Tribunal constituted under section 252;
- (5) "approved gratuity fund" means a gratuity fund which 25 has been and continues to be approved by the Commissioner in accordance with the rules contained in Part C of the Fourth Schedule;
- (6) "approved superannuation fund" means a superannuation fund or any part of a superannuation fund which has been 30 and continues to be approved by the Commissioner in accordance with the rules contained in Part B of the Fourth Schedule;
- (7) "assessee" means a person by whom income-tax or supertax or any other sum of money is payable under this Act, and includes—
 - (a) every person in respect of whom any proceeding under this Act has been taken for the assessment of his income or of the income of any other person in respect of which he is assessable, or of the loss sustained by him or by such other person, or of the amount of refund due to him or 40 to such other person;

- (b) every person who is deemed to be an assessee under any provision of this Act;
- (c) every person who is deemed to be an assessee in default under any provision of this Act;
- (8) "assessment" includes re-assessment;
- (9) "assessment year" means the period of twelve months commencing on the 1st day of April every year;
- (10) "average rate of income-tax" means the rate arrived at by dividing the amount of income-tax calculated on the total income, by such total income;
- (11) "average rate of super-tax" means the rate arrived at by dividing the amount of super-tax calculated on the total income, by such total income;
- (12) "Board" means the Central Board of Revenue constituted under the Central Board of Revenue Act, 1924;
- (13) "business" includes any trade, commerce or manufacture or any adventure or concern in the nature of trade, commerce or manufacture;
- (14) "capital asset" means property of any kind held by an assessee, whether or not connected with his business or profession, but does not include—
 - (i) any stock-in-trade, consumable stores or raw materials held for the purposes of his business or profession;
 - (ii) personal effects, that is to say, moveable property (including wearing apparel, jewellery and furniture) held for personal use by the assessee or any member of his family dependent on him;
 - (iii) agricultural land in India;
- (15) "charitable purpose" includes relief of the poor, education, medical relief, and the advancement of any other object of general public utility not involving the carrying on of any activity for profit;
- (16) "Commissioner" means a person appointed to be a Commissioner of Income-tax under sub-section (1) of section 117;
 - (17) "company" means—
 - (i) any Indian company, or
 - (ii) any association, whether incorporated or not and whether Indian or non-Indian, which is or was assessable or was assessed under the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922, as a company for the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1947, or which is declared by general or special order of the Board to be a company for the purposes of this Act;

II of 1922.

40

35

والمتراشطين

5

10

15

20

25

30

4 of 1924.

- (18) "company in which the public are substantially interested"—A company is said to be a company in which the public are substantially interested—
 - (a) if it is a company owned by the Government or in which not less than forty per cent. of the shares are held by the Government; or
 - (b) if it is not a private company as defined in the companies Act, 1956, and
 - (i) its shares (not being shares entitled to a fixed rate of dividend whether with or without a further right to participate in profits) carrying not less than fifty per cent. of the voting power have been allotted unconditionally to, or acquired unconditionally by, and were throughout the relevant previous year beneficially held by, the Government or a corporation established by a Central, 15 State or Provincial Act or the public (not being a director, or a company to which this clause does not apply);
 - (ii) the said shares were at any time during the relevant previous year the subject of dealing in any recognised stock exchange in India or were freely transferable by the holder to other members of the public; and
 - (iii) the affairs of the company, or the shares carrying more than fifty per cent. of its total voting power were at no time during the relevant previous year controlled or held by five or less persons.

Explanation 1.—In computing the number of five or less persons aforesaid,—

- (i) the Government or any corporation established by a Central, State or Provincial Act or company to which this clause applies shall not be taken into ac-3° count, and
- (ii) persons who are relatives of one another, and persons who are nominees of any other person together with that other person, shall be treated as a single person.

Explanation 2.—In its application to any such company 35 as is referred to in sub-clause (2) of clause (iii) of section 109, sub-clause (b) shall have effect as if for the words "not less than fifty per cent." and "more than fifty per cent." the words "not less than forty per cent." and "more than sixty per cent." had been substituted:

2 of 1912.

(19) "co-operative society" means a co-operative society registered under the Co-operative Societies Act, 1912, or under any other law for the time being in force in any State for the registration of co-operative societies:

1 of 1956.

5

10

15

- (20) "director", "manager" and "managing agent", in relation to a company, have the meanings respectively assigned to them in the Companies Act, 1956;
- (21) "Director of Inspection" means a person appointed to be a Director of Inspection under sub-section (1) of section 117, and includes a person appointed to be an Additional Director of Inspection, a Deputy Director of Inspection or an Assistant Director of Inspection:

(22) "dividend" includes—

- (a) any distribution by a company of accumulated profits, whether capitalised or not, if such distribution entails the release by the company to its shareholders of all or any part of the assets of the company;
- (b) any distribution to its shareholders by a company of debentures, debenture-stock, or deposit certificates in any form, whether with or without interest, and any distribution to its preference shareholders of **** shares by way of bonus, to the extent to which the company possesses accumulated profits, whether capitalised or not;
- (c) any distribution made to the shareholders of a company on its liquidation, to the extent to which the distribution is attributable to the accumulated profits of the company immediately before its liquidation, whether capitalised or not;
- (d) any distribution to its shareholders by a company on the reduction of its capital, to the extent to which the company possesses accumulated profits which arose after the end of the previous year ending next before the 1st day of April, 1933, whether such accumulated profits have been capitalised or not;
- (e) any payment by a company, not being a company in which the public are substantially interested, of any sum (whether as representing a part of the assets of the company or otherwise) by way of advance or loan to a shareholder, being a person who has a substantial interest in the company, or any payment by any such company on behalf, or for the individual benefit, of any such shareholder, to the extent to which the company in either case possesses accumulated profits;

25

20

30

35

put "dividend" does not include-

ř

- (i) a distribution made in accordance with sub-clause (c) or sub-clause (d) in respect of any share issued for full cash consideration, where the holder of the share is not entitled in the event of liquidation to participate in the 5 surplus assets;
- (ii) any advance or loan made to a shareholder by a company in the ordinary course of its business, where the lending of money is a substantial part of the business of the company;
- (iii) any dividend paid by a company which is set off by the company against the whole or any part of any sum previously paid by it and treated as a dividend within the meaning of sub-clause (e), to the extent to which it is so set off.

Explanation 1.—The expression "accumulated profits", wherever it occurs in this clause, shall not include capital gains arising before the 1st day of April, 1946, or after the 31st day of March, 1948, and before the 1st day of April, 1956.

Explanation 2.—The expression "accumulated profits" in sub- $_{20}$ clauses (a), (b), (d) and (e), shall include all profits of the company up to the date of distribution or payment referred to in those sub-clauses, and in sub-clause (c) shall include all profits of the company up to the date of liquidation;

(23) "firm", "partner" and "partnership" have the meanings respectively assigned to them in the Indian Partnership Act, 1932; but the expression "partner" shall also include any person who being a minor, has been admitted to the benefits of partnership;

- (24) "income" includes—
 - (i) profits and gains;
 - (ii) dividend:
- (iii) the value of any perquisite or profit in lieu of salary taxable under clauses (2) and (3) of section 17;
- (iv) the value of any benefit or perquisite, whether convertible into money or not, obtained from a company either by a director or by a person who has a substantial interest in the company, or by a relative of the director or such person, and any sum paid by any such company in respect of any obligation which, but for such payment, would have been 40 payable by the director or other person aforesaid;
- (v) any sum chargeable to income-tax under clauses (ii) and (iii) of section 28 or section 41 or section 59;

(vi) any capital gains chargeable under section 45:

(vii) the profits and gains of any business of insurance carried on by a mutual insurance company or by a co-operative society, computed in accordance with section 44 or any surplus taken to be such profits and gains by virtue of provisions contained in the First Schedule:

- (25) "Income-tax Officer" means a person appointed to be an Income-tax Officer under ****** section 117;
- (26) "Indian company" means a company formed and registered under the Companies Act, 1956, and includes—
 - (i) a company formed and registered under any law relating to companies formerly in force in any part of India (other than the State of Jammu and Kashmir);
 - (ii) in the case of the State of Jammu and Kashmir, a company formed and registered under any law for the time being in force in that State:

Provided that the registered office of the company in all cases is in India;

- (27) "Inspecting Assistant Commissioner" means a person appointed to be an Inspecting Assistant Commissioner of Income-tax under sub-section (1) of section 117;
- (28) "Inspector of Income-tax" means a person appointed to be an Inspector of Income-tax under sub-section (2) of section 117;
- (29) "legal representative" has the meaning assigned to it in clause (11) of section 2 of the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908;
- (30) "non-resident" means a person who is not a "resident", and for the purposes of sections 92, 93, 113 and 168, includes a person who is not ordinarily resident within the meaning of subsection (6) of section 6:

(31) "person" includes—

- (i) an individual,
- (ii) a Hindu undivided family,
- (iii) a company,
- (iv) a firm,
- (v) an association of persons or a body of individuals, whether incorporated or not,
 - (vi) a local authority, and
- (vii) every artificial juridical person, not falling within any of the preceding sub-clauses;

1 et 1956. . 10

15

5

20

g of 1908.

30

25

- (32) "person who has a substantial interest in the company", in relation to a company, means a person who is the beneficial owner of shares, not being shares entitled to a fixed rate of dividend whether with or without a right to participate in profits, carrying not less than twenty per cent. of the voting power;
- (33) "prescribed" means prescribed by rules made under this Act;
- (34) "previous year" means the previous year as defined in section 3;
- (35) "principal officer", used with reference to a local authority or a company or any other public body or any association of persons or any body of individuals, means—
 - (a) the secretary, treasurer, manager or agent of the authority, company, association or body, or
 - (b) any person connected with the management or ad- 15 ministration of the local authority, company, association or body upon whom the Income-tax Officer has served a notice of his intention of treating him as the principal officer thereof;
 - (36) "profession" includes vocation;

- (37) "public servant" has the same meaning as in section 21 of the Indian Penal Code;
- 45 of 1.60.
- (38) "recognised provident fund" means a provident fund which has been and continues to be recognised by the Commissioner in accordance with the rules contained in Part A of the 25 Fourth Schedule, and includes a provident fund established under a scheme framed under the Employees' Provident Funds Act, 1952;
- 19 of 1952, -
- (39) "registered firm" means a firm registered under the provisions of clause (a) of sub-section (1) of section 185 or under 30 that provision read with sub-section (7) of section 184;
- (40) "regular assessment" means the assessment made under section 143 or section 144;
- (41) "relative", in relation to an individual, means the husband, wife, brother or sister or any lineal ascendant or descendant of that individual:
- (42) "resident" means a person who is resident in India within the meaning of section 6;

(43) "tax" means income-tax and super-tax chargeable under the provisions of this Act;

(44) "Tax Recovery Officer" means-

(i) a Collector;

5

10

15

- (ii) an additional Collector or any other officer authorised to exercise the powers of a Collector under any law relating to land revenue for the time being in force in a State; or
- (iii) any Gazetted officer of the Central or a State Government who may be authorised by the Central Government, by notification in the Official Gazette, to exercise the powers of a Tax Recovery Officer;
- (45) "total income" means the total amount of income referred to in section 5, computed in the manner laid down in this Act;
 - (46) "total world income" includes all income wherever accruing or arising, except incomes which are not included in the total income under any of the provisions of Chapter III and except any capital gains which are not includible in the total income of an assessee;
 - (47) "transfer", in relation to a capital asset, includes the sale, exchange or relinquishment of the asset or the extinguishment of any rights therein or the compulsory acquisition thereof under any law;
- 25 (48) "unregistered firm" means a firm which is not a registered firm.
 - 3. (1) For the purposes of this Act, "previous year" means— "Previous year" defined
 - (a) the financial year immediately preceding the assessment year; or
- 30 (b) if the accounts of the assessee have been made up to a date within the said financial year, then, at the option of the assessee, the twelve months ending on such date; or

- (c) in the case of any person or business or class of persons or business not falling within clause (a) or clause (b), such period as may be determined by the Board or by any authority authorised by the Board in this behalf; or
- (d) in the case of a business or profession newly set up in the 5 said financial year, the period beginning with the date of the setting up of the business or profession and—
 - (i) ending with the said financial year, or
 - (ii) if the accounts of the assessee have been made up to a date within the said financial year, then, at the option of 10 the assessee, ending on that date, or
 - (iii) ending with the period, if any, determined under clause (c), |

as the case may be; or '

and the same

- (e) in the case of a business or profession newly set up in the 15 twelve months immediately preceding the said financial year—
 - (i) if the accounts of the assessee have been made up to a date within the said financial year and the period from the date of the setting up of the business or profession to such date does not exceed twelve months, then, at the option of the assessee, such period, or
 - (ii) if any period has been determined under clause (c), then the period beginning with the date of the setting up of the business or profession and ending with that period,

as the case may be; or

25

- (f) where the assessee is a partner in a firm and the firm has been assessed as such, then, in respect of the assessee's share in the income of the firm, the period determined as the previous year for the assessment of the income of the firm; or
- (g) in respect of profits and gains from life insurance busi-30 ness, the year immediately preceding the assessment year for which annual accounts are required to be prepared under the Insurance Act, 1938, or under that Act read with section 43 of the Life Insurance Corporation Act, 1956.

4 of 1938. 31 of 1956.

(2) Where an assessee has newly set up a business or profession 35 in the said financial year and his accounts are made up to a date in the assessment year in respect of a period not exceeding twelve months from the date of such setting up, then, notwithstanding anything contained in sub-clause (iii) of clause (d) of sub-section (1), the assessee shall, in respect of that business or profession, at his 40 option, be deemed to have no previous year for the said assessment

vear under that clause and such option shall, in relation to the immediately succeeding assessment year, have effect as an option exercised under sub-clause (i) of clause (e) of sub-section (1).

- (3) Subject to the other provisions of this section, an assessee 5 may have different previous years in respect of separate sources of his income.
- (4) Where in respect of a particular source of income or in respect of a business or profession newly set up, an assessee has once exercised the option under clause (b) or sub-clause (ii) of clause 10 (d) or sub-clause (i) of clause (e) of sub-section (1) or has once been assessed, then, he shall not, in respect of that source, or, as the case may be, business or profession, be entitled to vary the meaning of the expression "previous year" as then applicable to him, except with the consent of the Income-tax Officer and upon such conditions 15 as the Income-tax Officer may think fit to impose.

CHAPTER II

BASIS OF CHARGE

4. (1) Where any Central Act enacts that income-tax shall be Charge of charged for any assessment year at any rate or rates, income-tax at income-tax. 20 that rate or those rates shall be charged for that year in accordance with, and subject to the provisions of this Act in respect of the total income of the previous year or previous years, as the case may be, of every person:

Provided that where by virtue of any provision of this Act income-25 tax is to be charged in respect of the income of a period other than the previous year, income-tax shall be charged accordingly.

- (2) In respect of income chargeable under sub-section (1), income-tax shall be deducted at the source or paid in advance, where it is so deductible or payable under any provision of this Act.
- 5. (1) Subject to the provisions of this Act, the total income of Scope of any previous year of a person who is a resident includes all income total income from whatever source derived which-
 - (a) is received or is deemed to be received in India in such year by or on behalf of such person; or
- (b) accrues or arises or is deemed to accrue or arise to him 35 in India during such year; or
- (c) accrues or arises to him outside India during such year: Provided that, in the case of a person not ordinarily resident in India within the meaning of sub-section (6) of section 6, the income which accrues or arises to him outside India shall not be so included unless it is, derived from a business controlled in or a profession set up in India.

- (2) Subject to the provisions of this Act, the total income of any previous year of a person who is a non-resident includes all income from whatever source derived which—
 - (a) is received or is deemed to be received in India in such year by or on behalf of such person; or
 - (b) accrues or arises or is deemed to accrue or arise to him in India during such year.

Explanation 1.—Income accruing or arising outside India shall not be deemed to be received in India within the meaning of this section by reason only of the fact that it is taken into account in a balance 10 sheet prepared in India.

Explanation 2.—For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that income which has been included in the total income of a person on the basis that it has accrued or arisen or is deemed to have accrued or arisen to him shall not again be so included on the basis 15 that it is received or deemed to be received by him in India.

Residence in India.

- 6. For the purposes of this Act—
 - (1) an individual is said to be resident in India in any previous year, if he—
 - (a) is in India in that year for a period or periods 20 amounting in all to one hundred and eighty-two days or more; or
 - (b) maintains or causes to be maintained for him a dwelling place in India for a period or periods amounting in all to one hundred and eighty-two days or more in that year 25 and has been in India for thirty days or more in that year; or
 - (c) having within the four years preceding that year been in India for a period or periods amounting in all to three hundred and sixty-five days or more, is in India for a period or periods amounting in all to sixty days or more 30 in that year.
 - (2) A Hindu undivided family, firm or other association of persons is said to be resident in India in any previous year in every case except where during that year the control and management of its affairs is situated wholly outside India.
 - (3) A company is said to be resident in India in any previous year, if—
 - (i) it is an Indian company; or
 - (ii) during that year, the control and management of its affairs is situated wholly in India.

- (4) Every other person is said to be resident in India in any previous year in every case, except where during that year the control and management of his affairs is situated wholly outside India
- (5) If a person is resident in India in a previous year relevant to an assessment year in respect of any source of income, he shall be deemed to be resident in India in the previous year relevant to the assessment year in respect of each of his other sources of income.

5

10

15

20

25

40

- (6) A person is said to be "not ordinarily resident" in India in any previous year if such person is-
 - (a) an individual who has not been resident in India in nine cut of the ten previous years preceding that year, or has not during the seven previous years preceding that year been in India for a period of, or periods amounting in all to, seven hundred and thirty days or more: or
 - (b) a Hindu undivided family whose manager has not been resident in India in nine out of the ten previous years preceding that year, or has not during the saven previous years preceding that year been in India for a period of or periods amounting in all to, seven hundred and thirty days or more.
- 7. The following incomes shall be deemed to be received in the Jaconse previous year:—

deemed to be received.

- (i) the annual accretion in the previous year to the balance at the credit of an employee participating in a recognised provident fund, to the extent provided in Rule 6 of Part A of the Fourth Schedule:
- (ii) the transferred balance in a recognised provident fund, to the extent provided in sub-rule (4) of Rule 11 of Part A of the 30 Fourth Schedule.
- 8. For the purposes of inclusion in the total income of an assessee. Dividend any dividend declared by a company or distributed or paid by it within the meaning of sub-clause (a) or sub-clause (b) or subas clause (c) or sub-clause (d) or sub-clause (e) of clause (22) of section 2 shall be deemed to be the income of the previous year in which it is so declared, distributed or paid, as the case may be.

deemed to

accrue or arise in

9. (1) The following incomes shall be deemed to accrue or arise Income in India-

(i) all income accruing or arising, whether directly or in- India.

directly, through or from any business connection in India, or

through or from any property in India, or through or from any asset or source of income in India, or through or from any money lent at interest and brought into India in cash or in kind or through the transfer of a capital asset situate in India;

Explanation.—For the purposes of this clause—

- (a) in the case of a business of which all the operations are not carried out in India, the income of the business deemed under this clause to accrue or arise in India shall be only such part of the income as is reasonably attributable to the operations carried out in India;
- (b) in the case of a non-resident, no income shall be deemed to accrue or arise in India to him through or from operations which are confined to the purchase of goods in India for the purpose of export:

Provided that the non-resident has no office or agency 15 in India for this purpose and the goods are not subjected to any kind of manufacturing process before being exported from India.

- (ii) income which falls under the head "Salaries", if it is earned in India;
- (iii) income chargeable under the head "Salaries" payable
 ** by the Government to a citizen of India ******* for ****
 service outside India;
 - (iv) a dividend paid by an Indian company outside India.
- (2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (1), any 25 pension payable outside India to a person residing permanently outside India shall not be deemed to accrue or arise in India, if the pension is payable to a person referred to in article 314 of the Constitution or to a person who, having been appointed before the 15th day of August, 1947, to be a Judge of the Federal Court or of a High 3c Court within the meaning of the Government of India Act, 1935, continues to serve on or after the commencement of the Constitution as a Judge in India.

CHAPTER III

INCOMES WHICH DO NOT FORM PART OF TOTAL INCOME

35

- Incomes not 10. In computing the total income of a previous year of any periacluded in son, any income falling within any of the following clauses shall not be included ****—
 - (1) agricultural income;

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

- (2) any sum received by an individual as a member of a Hindu undivided family, where such sum has been paid out of the income of the family, or, in the case of any impartible estate, where such sum has been paid out of the income of the estate belonging to the family;
- (3) any receipts which are of a casual and non-recurring nature, unless they are—
 - (i) capital gains, chargeable under the provisions of section 45; or
 - (ii) receipts arising from business or the exercise of a profession or occupation; or
 - (iii) receipts by way of addition to the remuneration of an employee;
- (4) in the case of a non-resident, any income from interest on, or from premium on the redemption of, any bonds issued by the Central Government under a loan agreement between the Central Government and the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development or under a loan agreement between the Central Government and the Development Loan Fund of the United States of America or by any industrial undertaking or financial corporation in India under a loan agreement with the said Bank or Fund, as the case may be, which is guaranteed by the Central Government;
- (5) subject to such conditions as the Central Government may prescribe, the value of any travel concession or assistance received by or due to any person, being a citizen of India, from his employer for himself, his wife and children, in connection with his proceeding on leave to his home-district in India;
- (6) in the case of an individual who is not a citizen of India.—
 - (i) subject to such conditions as the Central Government may prescribe, passage moneys or the value of any free or concessional passage received by or due to such individual from his employer for himself, his wife and children, in connection with his proceeding on home leave out of India;
 - (ii) the remuneration received by him as ambassador, high commissioner, envoy, minister, charge d'affaires, commissioner, counsellor or the secretary, adviser or attache of an embassy, high commission, legation or commission of a foreign State, for service in such capacity;
 - (iii) the remuneration received by him as a consul de

carriere, whether called a consul-general, consul, viceconsul, consular agent, pro-consul or by any other name, of a foreign State for service in such capacity;

- (iv) the remuneration received by him as a trade commissioner or other official representative in India of the 5 Government of a foreign State (not holding office as such in an honorary capacity), if the remuneration of the corresponding officials, if any, of the Government resident for similar purposes in the country concerned enjoys a similar exemption in that country;
- (v) the remuneration received by him as a member of the staff of any of the officials referred to in clause (ii), clause (iii) or clause (iv), if the member—
 - (a) is a subject of the country represented;
 - (b) is not engaged in any business or profession or 15 employment in India otherwise than as a member of such staff; and further, where the individual is a member of the staff of any official referred to in clause (iv), if the country represented has made corresponding provisions for similar exemptions in the case of members 20 of the staff of the corresponding officials of the Government;
- (vi) the remuneration received by him as an employee of a foreign enterprise for services rendered by him during his stay in India, provided the following conditions are 25 fulfilled—
 - (a) the foreign enterprise is not engaged in any trade or business in India;
 - (b) his stay in India does not exceed in the aggregate a period of ninety days in such previous year; and 30
 - (c) such remuneration is not liable to be deducted from the income of the employer chargeable under this Act;
- (vii) the remuneration due to or received by him chargeable under the head "Salaries" for services rendered 35 as a technician in the employment of the Government or of a local authority or of any corporation set up under any special law or in any business carried on in India, if he was not resident in any of the four financial years immediately preceding the financial year in which he arrived in India to 40 the extent mentioned below—
 - . (a) where his contract of service was approved by the Central Government before the commencement of

his service-

(i) in the case of a technician who has special knowledge and experience in industrial or business management techniques, such remuneration due to or received by him during the period of six months commencing from the date of his arrival in India,

(ii) in the case of any other technician, such remuneration due to or received by him during the thirty-six months commencing from the date of his arrival in India, and where any such person continues to remain in employment in India after the expiry of the thirty-six months afcresaid and the tax on his income chargeable under the head "Salaries" is paid by the employer to the Central Government (which tax in the case of an employer being a company may be paid notwithstanding anything contained in section 200 of the Companies Act, 1956) the tax so paid by the employer for a period not exceeding twenty-four months following the expiry of the thirty-six months afcresaid:

(b) in any other case, not being the case of a technician who has special knowledge and experience in industrial or business management techniques, such remuneration due to or received by him for the period of three hundred and sixty-five days in all commencing from the date of his arrival in India.

Explanation.—"Technician" means a person having specialised knowledge and experience in—

- (i) constructional or manufacturing operations, or in mining or in the generation or distribution of electricity or any other form of power, or
- (ii) industrial or business management techniques,

who is employed in India in a capacity in which such specialised knowledge and experience are actually utilised.

(viii) any income chargeable under the head "Salaries" received by or due to any such individual being a non-resident as remuneration for services rendered in connection with his employment on a foreign ship where his total stay in India does not exceed in the aggregate a period of ninety days in the previous year;

5

10

15

1 of 1956.

20

25

30

40

- (7) any allowances or perquisites paid or allowed as such outside India by the Government to a citizen of India for rendering service outside India:
- (8) in the case of an individual who is assigned to duties in India in connection with any co-operative technical assistance programmes and projects in accordance with an agreement entered into by the Central Government and the Government of a toreign State (the terms whereof provide for the exemption given by this clause)—
 - (a) the remuneration received by him directly or 10 indirectly from the Government of that foreign State for such duties, and
 - (b) any other income of such individual which accrues or arises outside India, and is not deemed to accrue or arise in India, in respect of which such individual is required to 15 pay any income or social security tax to the Government of that foreign State;
- (9) the income of any member of the family of any such individual as is referred to in clause (8) accompanying him to India, which accrues or arises outside India, and is not deemed to 20 accrue or arise in India, in respect of which such member is required to pay any income or social security tax to the Government of that foreign State;
- (10) any death-cum-retirement gratuity received under the revised Pension Rules of the Central Government or under any 25 similar scheme of a State Government, a local authority or a corporation established by a Central, State or Provincial Act or any payment of retiring gratuity received after the first day of June, 1953 under the New Pension Code applicable to the members of the Defence Services; or any other gratuity not 30 exceeding one half month's salary for each year of completed service, calculated on the basis of the average salary for the three years immediately preceding the year in which the gratuity is paid, subject to a maximum of twenty-four thousand rupees or fifteen months' salary so calculated, whichever is less;

(11) any payment from a provident fund to which the Provident Funds Act, 1925 applies;

- (12) the accumulated balance due and becoming payable to an employee participating in a recognised provident fund, to the extent provided in Rule 8 of Part A of the Fourth Schedule;
- (13) any payment from an approved superannuation fund made on the death of a beneficiary or in lieu of or in commutation

19 of 1925.

of an annuity, or by way of refund of contributions on the death of a beneficiary;

- (14) any special allowance or benefit, not being in the nature of an entertainment allowance or other perquisite within the meaning of clause (2) of section 17, specifically granted to meet expenses wholly, necessarily and exclusively incurred in the performance of the duties of an office or employment of profit, to the extent to which such expenses are actually incurred for that purpose;
- (15) (i) monthly payment on the 15 Year Annuity Certificates issued by or under the authority of the Central Government or such other annuity certificates issued by or under the authority of that Government as that Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, specify in this behalf, to the extent to which the amounts of the certificates do not exceed in each case the maximum amount which is permitted to be invested therein:
- (ii) interest on Treasury Savings Deposit Certificates, Post Office Cash Certificates, Post Office National Savings Certificates, National Plan Certificates, Twelve Year National Plan Savings Certificates and such other certificates issued by the Central Government as that Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, specify in this behalf, and interest on deposits in Post Office Savings Banks, to the extent to which the amounts of such certificates or deposits do not exceed in each case the maximum amount which is permitted to be invested or deposited therein;
- (iii) interest on securities held by the Issue Department of the Central Bank of Ceylon constituted under the Ceylon Monetery Law Act, 1949;
 - (iv) interest payable—
 - (a) by Government or a local authority on moneys borrowed by it from sources outside India;
 - (b) by an industrial undertaking in India on moneys borrowed by it under a loan agreement entered into with any such financial institution in a foreign country as may be approved in this behalf by the Central Government by general or special order;
 - (c) by an industrial undertaking in India on any moneys borrowed or debt incurred by it in a foreign country in respect of the purchase outside India of raw materials or capital plant and machinery, in any case where the loan or debt is approved by the Central Government, having regard to its

5

IC

15

20

25

30

35

terms generally and in particular to the terms of its repayment:

- (16) scholarships, granted to meet the cost of education;
- (17) any daily allowance received by any person by reason of his membership of Parliament or of any State Legislature or 5 of any Committee thereof;
- (18) any payment made, whether in cash or in kind, by the Central Government or any State Government in pursuance of gallantry awards instituted or approved by the Central Government:

TO

- (19) any amount received by the Ruler of an Indian State as privy purse under article 291 of the Constitution:
- (20) the income of a local authority which is chargeable under the head "Interest on Securities", "Income from house property", "Capital gains" or "Income from other sources" or from a 15 trade or business carried on by it which accrues or arises from the supply of a commodity or service within its own jurisdictional area:
- (21) any income of a scientific research association for the time being approved for the purpose of clause (ii) of sub-section 20 (1) of section 35 which is applied solely to the purposes of that association;
- (22) any income of a University or other educational institution, existing solely for educational purposes and not for purposes of profit;

 25
- (23) any income of an association or institution established in India having as its object the control, supervision, regulation or encouragement in India of the games of cricket, hockey, football, tennis or such other games or sports as the Central Government may specify in this behalf from time to time by noti-30 figation in the Official Gazette:

Provided that-

- (i) the association or institution applies its income, or accumulates it for application, solely to the objects for which it is established;
- (ii) no part of the income of the association or institution is distributed in any manner to its members except as grants to any association or institution affiliated to it; and
- (iii) the association or institution is, for the time being, approved for the purpose of this clause by the Central Gov- 40 ernment by general or special order:

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

(24) any income chargeable under the head "Interest on securities", "Income from house property" and "Income from other sources" of a registered union within the meaning of the Indian Trade Unions Act, 1926, formed primarily for the purpose of 16 of 1926. regulating the relations between workmen and employers or between workmen and workmen:

(25) (i) interest on securities which are held by, or are the property of, any provident fund to which the Provident Funds Act, 1925, applies, and any capital gains of the fund arising from the sale, exchange or transfer of such securities:

10 of 1925.

- (ii) any income received by the trustees on behalf of a recognised provident fund;
- (iii) any income received by the trustees on behalf of an approved superannuation fund:
- (26) any income of a member of a Scheduled Tribe, as defined in clause (25) of article 366 of the Constitution, residing in any area specified in Part A or Part B of the Table appended to paragraph 20 of the Sixth Schedule to the Constitution, or in the Union Territories of Manipur and Tripura, provided member is not in the service of Government.
- 11. (1) Subject to the provisions of sections 60 to 63, the follow- Income from ing income shall not be included in the total income of the previous property held for year of the person in receipt of the income-

charitable or religious

- (a) income derived from property held under trust wholly purposes. for charitable or religious purposes, to the extent to which such income is applied to such purposes in India; and, where any such income is accumulated for application to such purposes in India, to the extent to which the income so accumulated is not in excess of twenty-five per cent. of the income from property or rupees ten thousand, whichever is higher;
- (b) income derived from property held under trust in part only for such purposes, the trust having been created before the commencement of this Act. to the extent to which such income is applied to such purposes in India; and where any such income is finally set apart for application to such purposes in India, to the extent to which the income so set apart is not in excess of twenty-five per cent. of the income from the property held under trust in part;
 - (c) income from property held under trust—
 - (i) created on or after the 1st day of April, 1952, for a charitable purpose which tends to promote international

welfare in which India is interested, to the extent to which such income is applied to such purposes outside India, and

(ii) for charitable or religious purposes, created before the 1st day of April, 1952, to the extent to which such income is applied to such purposes outside India:

Provided that the Board, by general or special order, has directed in either case that it shall not be included in the total income of the person in receipt of such income.

Explanation.—For the purposes of clauses (a) and (b), in computing twenty-five per cent. of the income from any such property 10 as is referred to in the said clauses for any previous year, the income from such property for the year immediately preceding the previous year may be adopted, if that income is higher than the income for the previous year.

- (2) Where the persons in receipt of the income have complied with 15 the following conditions, the restriction specified in clause (a) or clause (b) of sub-section (1) as respects accumulation or setting apart shall not apply for the period during which the said conditions remain complied with—
 - (a) such persons have, by notice in writing given to the ^{2C} Income-tax Officer in the prescribed manner, specified the purpose for which the income is being accumulated or set apart and the period for which the income is to be accumulated or set apart, which shall in no case exceed ten years;
 - (b) the money so accumulated or set apart is invested in ²⁵ any Government security as defined in clause (2) of section 2 of the Public Debt Act, 1944, or in any other security which may be approved by the Central Government in this behalf;

18 of 1944.

5

(3) Any income referred to in sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) as is applied to purposes other than charitable or religious purposes 30 as aforesaid or ceases to be accumulated or set apart for application thereto shall be deemed to be the income of such person of the previous year in which it is so applied or ceases to be so accumulated or set apart.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, "property" includes a business undertaking.

12. (1) Any income of a trust for charitable or religious purposes or of a charitable or religious institution derived from voluntary contributions and applicable solely to charitable or religious purposes shall not be included in the total income of the trustees or the institution, as the case may be.

Income of trusts or institutions from voluntary Contributions.

- (2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section where any such contributions as are referred to in sub-section (1) are made to a trust or a charitable or religious institution by a trust or a charitable or religious institution to which the provisions of section 11 apply, such contributions shall, in the hands of the trust or institution receiving the contributions, be deemed to be income derived from property for the purposes of that section and the provisions of that section shall apply accordingly.
- 13. Nothing contained in section 11 shall operate so as to exclude Section 11 from the total income of the previous year of the person in receipt not to apply thereof-

- (a) any part of the income from the property held under a trust for private religious purposes which does not enure for the benefit of the public;
- (b) in the case of a trust or charitable or religious institution created or established after the commencement of this Act,
 - (i) if the trust or institution is created or established for the benefit of any particular race, religious community or caste; or
 - (ii) if under the terms of the trust or the rules governing the institution any part of such income enures directly or indirectly for the benefit of the author of the trust or the founder of the institution or any relative of such author or founder, and, where the author of the trust or the founder of the institution is a Hindu undivided family, any part of such income enures directly or indirectly for the benefit of any member of the Hindu undivided family or any relative of any member of the family."

Explanation.—For the purposes of sections 11, 12 and "trust" includes any other legal obligation and for the purposes of section 13 "relative" also includes a lineal descendant of a brother or sister.

CHAPTER IV

COMPUTATION OF TOTAL INCOME Heads of income

35 14. Save as otherwise provided by this Act, all income shall, for Heads of the purposes of charge of income-tax and computation of total income, income. be classified under the following heads of income:—

A.—Salaries.

15

20

25

- B.—Interest on securities.
- C.—Income from house property.
- D.—Profits and gains of business or profession.
- E.—Capital gains.
- F.—Income from other sources.

A.—Salaries

Salaries.

- 15. The following income shall be chargeable to income-tax under the head "Salaries"—
 - (a) any salary due from an employer or a former employer to an assessee in the previous year, whether paid or not:

5

- (b) any salary paid or allowed to him in the previous year by or on behalf of an employer or a former employer though not due or before it became due to him:
- (c) any arrears of salary paid or allowed to him in the previous year by or on behalf of an employer or a former employer, if not charged to income-tax for any earlier previous year.

Explanation.—For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that where any salary paid in advance is included in the total income of any person for any previous year it shall not be included again in the total income of the person when the salary becomes due.

Deductions from salaries.

- 16. The income chargeable under the head "Salaries" shall be computed after making the following deductions, namely:—
 - (i) any amount not exceeding five hundred rupees, expended by the assessee on the purchase of books and other publications necessary for the purpose of his duties;
 - (ii) in respect of any allowance in the nature of an entertainment allowance specifically granted to the assessee by his employer—
 - (a) in the case of an assessee who is in receipt of a salary from the Government, a sum equal to one-fifth of his 3° salary (exclusive of any allowance, benefit or other perquisite) or five thousand rupees, whichever is less; and
 - (b) in the case of any other assessee who is in receipt of such entertainment allowance and has been continuously in receipt of such entertainment allowance regularly from 35 his present employer from a date before the 1st day of April, 1955, the amount of such entertainment allowance regularly received by the assessee from his present employer in any previous year ending before the 1st day of April, 1955, or a sum equal to one-fifth of his salary (exclusive of any 40 allowance, benefit or other perquisite) or seven thousand five hundred rupees, whichever is the least;

- (iii) any amount paid by the assessee in respect of taxes on professions, trades, callings or employments levied under any State or Provincial Act;
- (iv) where the assessee is not in receipt of a conveyance allowance, whether as such or as part of his salary, and owns a conveyance which is used for the purposes of his employment, such sum as the Income-tax Officer may estimate in respect of such use as representing the expenditure incurred by him in its maintenance and as representing its normal wear and tear;
- (v) any amount actually expended by the assessee, not being an amount expended on the purchase of books or other publications, or on entertainment or on the maintenance of a conveyance, which, by the conditions of his service, he is required to spend out of his remuneration wholly, necessarily and exclusively in the performance of his duties.
- 17. For the purposes of sections 15 and 16 and of this section,—
 - (1) "salary" includes—
 - (i) wages:

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

- (ii) any annuity or pension;
- (iii) any gratuity;
- (iv) any fees, commissions, perquisites or profits in lieu of or in addition to any salary or wages;
 - (v) any advance * * of salary;
- (vi) the annual accretion to the balance at the credit of an employee participating in a recognised provident fund, to the extent to which it is chargeable to tax under Rule 6 of Part A of the Fourth Schedule; and
- (vii) the aggregate of all sums that are comprised in the transferred balance as referred to in sub-rule (2) of Rule 11 of Part A of the Fourth Schedule of an employee participating in a recognised provident fund, to the extent to which it is chargeable to tax under sub-rule (4) thereof;
- (2) "perquisite" includes—
- (i) the value of rent-free accommodation provided to the assessee by his employer;
- (ii) the value of any concession in the matter of rent respecting any accommodation provided to the assessee by his employer:

"Salary",
"perquisite"
and "profits
in lieu of
salary"
defined.

- (iii) the value of any benefit or amenity granted or provided free of cost or at concessional rate in any of the following cases—
 - (a) by a company to an employee who is a director thereof:
 - (b) by a company to an employee being a person who has a substantial interest in the company;
 - (c) by any employer (including a company) to an employee to whom the provisions of paragraphs (a) and (b) of this sub-clause do not apply and whose income 10 under the head "Salaries", exclusive of the value of all benefits or amenities not provided for by way of monetary payment, exceeds eighteen thousand rupees;
- (iv) any sum paid by the employer in respect of any obligation which, but for such payment, would have been pay- 15 able by the assessee; and
- (v) any sum payable by the employer, whether directly or through a fund, other than a recognised provident fund or an approved superannuation fund, to effect an assurance on the life of the assessee or to effect a contract for an annuity; 20
- (3) "profits in lieu of salary" includes—
- (i) the amount of any compensation due to or received by an assessee from his employer or former employer at or in connection with the termination of his employment or the modification of the terms and conditions relating thereto;
- (ii) any payment [other than any payment referred to in clause (10), clause (11) or clause (12) of section 10], due to or received by an assessee from an employer or a former employer or from a provident or other fund (not being an approved superannuation fund), to the extent to which it 30 does not consist of contributions by the assessee or interest on such contributions.

B.—Interest on securities

Interest on securities.

- 18. (1) The following amounts due to an assessee in the previous year shall be chargeable to income-tax under the head "Interest on 35 securities".—
 - (i) interest on any security of the Central or State Government;
 - (ii) interest on debentures or other securities for money 40 issued by or on behalf of a local authority or a company or a corporation established by a Central, State or Provincial Act.

- (2) Nothing contained in sub-section (1) shall be construed as precluding an assessee from being charged to income-tax in respect of any interest on securities received by him in a previous year if such interest had not been charged to income-tax for any earlier previous 5 year.
 - 19. Subject to the provisions of section 21, the income chargeable Deductions after from interest on securities. under the head "Interest on securities" shall be computed making the following deductions-
 - (i) any reasonable sum expended by the assessee for the purpose of realising such interest;
 - (ii) any interest payable on moneys borrowed for the purpose of investment in the securities by the assessee.
 - 20. (1) In the case of a banking company—

10

15

20

Deductions from interest

- (i) the sum to be regarded as a sum reasonably expended for on securities in the case the purpose referred to in clause (i) of section 19 shall be an of a banking amount bearing to the aggregate of its expenses as are admissi-cempany. ble under the provisions of sections 30, 31, 36 and 37 [other than clauses (iii), (vi) and (vii) of sub-section (1) of section 361 the same proportion as the gross receipts from interest on securities (inclusive of tax deducted at source) chargeable to income-tax under section 18 bear to the gross receipts of the company from all sources which are included in the profit and loss account of the company;
- (ii) the amount to be regarded as interest payable on moneys borrowed for the purpose referred to in clause (ii) of section 19 25 shall be an amount which bears to the amount of interest payable on all moneys berrowed by the company the same proportion as the gross receipts from interest on securities (inclusive of tax deducted at source) chargeable to income-tax under section 18 bear to the gross receipts from all sources which are included in the 30 profit and loss account of the company.
- (2) The expenses deducted under clauses (i) and (ii) of subsection (1) shall not again form part of the deductions admissible under sections 30 to 37 for the purposes of computing the income of 35 the company under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession".

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, "moneys borrowed" includes moneys received by way of deposits.

21. Notwithstanding anything contained in sections 19 and 20, any Amounts not 40 interest chargeable under this Act which is payable outside India from interest (not being interest on a loan issued for public subscription before the on securities. 660 (B) L.S.—11.

1st day of April, 1938) on which tax has not been paid or deducted under Chapter XVII-B, and in respect of which there is no person in India who may be treated as an agent under section 163 shall not be deducted in computing the income chargeable under the head "Interest on securities".

C.—Income from house property

5

Income from house property.

22. The annual value of property consisting of any buildings or lands appurtenant thereto of which the assessee is the owner, other than such portions of such property as he may occupy for the purposes of any business or profession carried on by him the profits of 10 which are chargeable to income-tax, shall be chargeable to income-tax under the head "Income from house property".

Annual
value how
determined.

23. (1) For the purposes of section 22, the annual value of any property shall be deemed to be the sum for which the property might reasonably be expected to let from year to year:

Provided that where the property is in the occupation of a tenant and the taxes levied by any local authority in respect of the property are, under the law authorising such levy, payable wholly by the owner, or partly by the owner and partly by the tenant, a deduction shall be made equal to the part, if any, of the tenant's liability borne by the owner.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this sub-section in the case of a property the construction of which was completed before the 1st day of April, 1950, the total amount of such taxes, and in the case of any other property, one-half of the total amount of such taxes 25 shall be deemed to be the tenant's liability:

Provided further that in the case of a building comprising one or more residential units the erection of which is begun and completed after the 1st day of April, 1961, the annual value as determined under this sub-section shall, for a period of three years from the date of completion of the building, be reduced by a sum equal to the aggregate of—

- (i) in respect of any residential unit whose annual value as so determined, does not exceed six hundred rupees, by the amount of such annual value;
- (ii) in respect of any residential unit whose annual value as so determined exceeds six hundred rupees, by an amount of six hundred rupees;

so, however, that the income in respect of any residential unit is in no case a loss.

(2) Where the property is in the occupation of the owner for the purposes of his own residence, the annual value shall first be determined as in sub-section (1) and further be reduced by onehalf of the amount so determined or one thousand eight hundred rupees, whichever is less:

Provided that where the sum so arrived at exceeds ten per cent.

5 of the total income of the owner, the excess shall be disregarded.

Explanation.—Where any such residential unit as is referred to in the second proviso to sub-section (1) is in the occupation of the owner for the purposes of his own residence, nothing contained in that proviso shall apply in computing the annual value of that residential unit.

- (3) Where the property referred to in sub-section (2) consists of one residential house only and it cannot actually be occupied by the owner by reason of the fact that owing to his employment, business or profession carried on at any other place, he has to reside at 15 that other place in a building not belonging to him, the annual value of such house shall—
 - (a) if the house was not actually occupied by the owner during the whole of the previous year, be taken to be nil, or
 - (b) if the house was actually occupied by the owner for a fraction of the previous year, be taken to be that fraction of the annual value determined under sub-section (2):

Provided that the following conditions are in either case ful-filled:—

- (i) the house is not actually let, and
- (ii) no other benefit therefrom is derived by the owner.
- 24. (1) Income chargeable under the head "Income from house Deductions property" shall, subject to the provisions of sub-section (2), be computed after making the following deductions, namely:—

 Deductions from house property.

(i) in respect of repairs,—

20

25

30

35

40

(a) where the property is in the occupation of the owner, or where the property is let to a tenant and the owner has undertaken to bear the cost of repairs, a sum equal to one-sixth of the annual value:

(b) where the property is in the occupation of a tenant who has undertaken to bear the cost of repairs.—

- (i) the excess of the annual value over the amount of rent payable for a year by the tenant; or
- (ii) a sum equal to one-sixth of the annual value, whichever is less;
- (ii) the amount of any premium paid to insure the property against risk of damage or destruction;

- (iii) where the property is subject to a mortgage or other capital charge, the amount of any interest on such mortgage or charge:
- (iv) where the property is subject to an annual charge, not being a capital charge, the amount of such charge;
- (v) where the property is subject to a ground rent, the amount of such ground rent;
- (vi) where the property has been acquired, constructed, repaired, renewed or reconstructed with borrowed capital, the amount of any interest payable on such capital;
- (vii) any sums paid on account of land revenue in respect of the property;
- (viii) any sums spent to collect the rent from the property, not exceeding six per cent. of the annual value of the property;
- (ix) where the property is let and was vacant during a part 15 of the year, that part of the annual value which is proportionate to the period during which the property is wholly unoccupied or, where the property is let out in parts, that portion of the annual value appropriate to any vacant part, which is proportionate to the period during which such part is wholly unoccupied; and
- (x) subject to such rules as may be made in this behalf, the amount in respect of rent from property let to a tenant which the assessee cannot realise.
- (2) The total amount deductible under sub-section (1) in res-25 pect of property of the nature referred to in sub-section (3) of section 23 shall not exceed the annual value of the property as determined under section 23.

Amounts not deductible from income from house property.

25. Notwithstanding anything contained in section 24, any annual charge or interest chargeable under this Act which is payable out- 30 side India (not being interest on a loan issued for public subscription before the 1st day of April, 1938), on which tax has not been paid or deducted under Chapter XVII-B and in respect of which there is no person in India who may be treated as an agent under section 163 shall not be deducted in computing the income chargeable 35 under the head "Income from house property".

Property owned by co-swners. 26. Where property consisting of buildings or buildings and lands appurtenant thereto is owned by two or more persons and their respective shares are definite and ascertainable, such persons shall

not in respect of such property be assessed as an association of persons, but the share of each such person in the income from the property as computed in accordance with sections 22 to 25 shall be included in his total income.

27. For the purposes of sections 22 to 26—

15

20

25

30

"Owner of house property", "annual charge", etc., defined.

- (i) an individual who transfers otherwise than for adequate consideration any house property to his or her spouse, not being a transfer in connection with an agreement to live apart, or to a minor child not being a married daughter, shall be deemed to be the owner of the house property so transferred;
 - (ii) the holder of an impartible estate shall be deemed to be the individual owner of all the properties comprised in the estate:
- (iii) a member of a co-operative society to whom a building or part thereof ******* is allotted or leased under a house building scheme of the society shall be deemed to be the owner of that building or part thereof;
 - (iv) "annual charge" means a charge to secure an annual liability, but does not include any tax in respect of property or income from property imposed by a local authority, or the Central or a State Government:
 - (v) "capital charge" means a charge to secure the discharge of a liability of a capital nature;
- (vi) taxes levied by a local authority in respect of any property shall be deemed to include service taxes levied by the local authority in respect of the property.

D.—Profits and gains of business or profession

28. The following income shall be chargeable to income-tax Profits and under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession",—

gains of business or profession",—

- (i) the profits and gains of any business or profession which profession. was carried on by the assessee at any time during the previous year;
- (ii) any compensation or other payment due to or received by.—
- 35 (a) any person, by whatever name called, managing the whole or substantially the whole of the affairs of an Indian company, at or in connection with the termination of his management or the modification of the terms and conditions relating thereto;

- (b) any person, by whatever name called, managing the whole or substantially the whole of the affairs in India of any other company, at or in connection with the termination of his office or the modification of the terms and conditions relating thereto;
- (c) any person, by whatever name called, holding an agency in India for any part of the activities relating to the business of any other person, at or in connection with the termination of the agency or the modification of the terms and conditions relating thereto:
- (iii) income derived by a trade, professional or similar association from specific services performed for its members.

Explanation 1.—The profits and gains of a business shall include the profits and gains of managing agency.

Explanation 2.—Where speculative transactions carried on by an 15 assessee are of such a nature as to constitute a business, the business (hereinafter referred to as "speculation business") shall be deemed to be distinct and separate from any other business.

Income from profits business or profession, how computed.

29. The income referred to in section 28 shall be computed in and gains of accordance with the provisions contained in sections 30 to 43.

Rent, rates, ings.

- 30. In respect of rent, rates, taxes, repairs and insurance for pretaxes, repairs and insuran-mises, used for the purposes of the business or profession, the followee for build- ing deductions shall be allowed-
 - (a) where the premises are occupied by the assessee—
 - (i) as a tenant, the rent paid for such premises; and 25 further if he has undertaken to bear the cost of repairs to the premises, the amount paid on account of such repairs;

20

- (ii) otherwise than as a tenant, the amount paid by him on account of current repairs to the premises;
- (b) any sums paid on account of land revenue, local rates 30 or municipal taxes;
- (c) the amount of any premium paid in respect of insurance against risk of damage or destruction of the premises.

Repairs and insurance of machinery, plant and furniture.

- 31. In respect of repairs and insurance of machinery, plant or furniture used for the purposes of the business or profession, the 35 following deductions shall be allowed-
 - (i) the amount paid on account of current repairs thereto;
 - (ii) the amount of any premium paid in respect of insurance against risk of damage or destruction thereof.

- 32. (1) In respect of depreciation of buildings, machinery, plant or Depreciation furniture owned by the assessee and used for the purposes of the business or profession, the following deductions shall, subject to the provisions of section 34, be allowed—
 - (i) in the case of ships other than ships ordinarily plying on inland waters, such percentage on the actual cost thereof to the assessee as may in any case or class of cases be prescribed;
 - (ii) in the case of buildings, machinery, plant or furniture, other than ships covered by clause (i), such percentage on the written down value thereof as may in any case or class of cases be prescribed;
 - (iii) in the case of any building, machinery, plant or furniture which is sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed in the previous year (other than the previous year in which it is first brought into use), the amount by which the moneys payable in respect of such building, machinery, plant or furniture, together with the amount of scrap value, if any, fall short of the written down value thereof:

Provided that such deficiency is actually written off in the books 20 of the assessee.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this clause,—

5

10

15

25

30

35

- (1) "moneys payable" in respect of any building, machinery, plant or furniture includes—
 - (a) any insurance, salvage or compensation moneys payable in respect thereof;
 - (b) where the building, machinery, plant or furniture is sold, the price for which it is sold;
- (2) "sold" includes a transfer by way of exchange or a compulsory acquisition under any law for the time being in force.
- (iv) in the case of any building which has been newly erected after the 31st day of March, 1961, where the building is used solely for the purpose of residence of persons employed in the business and drawing a remuneration not exceeding two hundred rupees per mensem, or where the building is used solely or mainly for the welfare of such persons as a hospital, creche, school, canteen, library, recreational centre, shelter, rest-room or lunch-room, a sum equal to twenty per cent. of the actual cost of the building to the assessee in respect of the previous year of erection of the building; but any such sum shall not be deductible in determining the written down value for the purposes of clause (ii) of sub-section (1).

(2) Where, in the assessment of the assessee, (or, if the assessee is a registered firm or an unregistered firm assessed as a registered firm, in the assessment of its partners) full effect cannot be given to any allowance under clause (i) or clause (ii) or clause (iv) of subsection (1) in any previous year owing to there being no profits or gains chargeable for that previous year, or owing to the profits or gains chargeable being less than the allowance, then, subject to the provisions of sub-section (2) of section 72 and sub-section (3) of section 73, the allowance or part of the allowance to which effect has not been given as the case may be, shall be added to the amount of the allowance for depreciation for the following previous year and deemed to be part of that allowance, or if there is no such allowance for that previous year, be deemed to be the allowance for that previous year, and so on for the succeeding previous years.

Development rebate.

- 33. (1) In respect of a new ship acquired or new machinery or 15 plant (other than office appliances or road transport vehicles, installed after the 31st day of March, 1954, which is owned by the assessee and is wholly used for the purposes of the business carried on by him, a sum by way of development rebate, equivalent to—
 - (i) in the case of a ship acquired after the 31st day of Decem- 20 ber, 1957, forty per cent. and in the case of a ship acquired before the 1st day of January, 1958, twenty-five per cent. of the actual cost of the ship to the assessee, and
 - (ii) in the case of machinery or plant installed before the 1st day of April, 1961, twenty-five per cent. and in the case of 25 machinery or plant installed after the 31st day of March, 1961, twenty per cent. of the actual cost of the machinery or plant to the assessee.

shall, subject to the provisions of section 34, be allowed as a deduction in respect of the previous year in which the ship was acquired or the 30 machinery or plant was installed or, if the ship, machinery or plant is first put to use in the immediately succeeding previous year, then, in respect of that previous year.

(2) In the case of a ship acquired or machinery or plant installed after the 31st day of December, 1957, where the total income of the 35 assessee assessable for the assessment year relevant to the previous year in which the ship was acquired or the machinery or plant installed or the immediately succeeding previous year, as the case may be, [the total income for this purpose being computed without making any allowance under sub-section (1)] is nil or is less than the full 40

amount of the development rebate calculated at the rate applicable thereto under that sub-section,—

5

10

15

20

35

- (i) the sum to be allowed by way of development rebate for that assessment year under sub-section (1) shall be only such amount as is sufficient to reduce the said total income to nil: and
- (ii) the amount of the development rebate, to the extent to which it has not been allowed as aforesaid, shall be carried forward to the following assessment year, and the development rebate to be allowed for the following assessment year shall be such amount as is sufficient to reduce the total income of the assessee assessable for that assessment year, computed in the manner aforesaid, to nil, and the balance of the development rebate, if any, still outstanding shall be carried forward to the following assessment year and so on, so however that no portion of the development rebate shall be carried forward for more than eight assessment years immediately succeeding the assessment year relevant to the previous year in which the ship was acquired or the machinery or plant installed or the immediately succeeding previous year, as the case may be.

Explanation.—Where for any assessment year development rebate is to be allowed in accordance with the provisions of subsection (2) in respect of ships acquired or machinery or plant installed in more than one previous year, and the total income of the assessee assessable for that assessment year [the total income for this purpose being computed without making any allowance under sub-section (1)] is less than the aggregate of the amounts due to be allowed in respect of the assets aforesaid for that assessment year, the following procedure shall be followed, namely:—

- 39 (i) the allowance under clause (ii) of sub-section (2) shall be made before any allowance under clause (i) of that sub-section is made; and
 - (ii) where an allowance has to be made under clause (ii) of sub-section (2) in respect of amounts carried forward from more than one assessment year, the amount carried forward from an earlier assessment year shall be allowed before any amount carried forward from a later assessment year.
- (3) Where in a scheme of amalgamation, a company (hereinafter in this sub-section referred to as the predecessor) sells or other-40 wise transfers to the company formed in pursuance of the predecessor's amalgamation with that company (hereinafter in this subsection referred to as the successor) any ship, machinery or plant 660 (B) L.S.—12.

in respect of which development rebate has been allowed to the predecessor under sub-section (1),—

(a) the successor shall continue to fulfil the conditions mentioned in sub-section (3) of section 34 in respect of the reserve created by the predecessor and in respect of the 5 period within which such ship, machinery or plant shall not be sold or otherwise transferred and in default of any of these conditions, the provisions of sub-section (5) of section 155 shall apply to the successor as they would have applied to the predecessor had it committed the default:

10

25

35

40

(b) the balance of development rebate, if any, still outstanding to the predecessor in respect of such ship, machinery or plant shall be allowed to the successor in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (2), so, however, that the 'total period for which the balance of development rebate shall be 15 carried forward in the assessments of the predecessor and the successor shall not exceed the period of eight years specified in sub-section (2) and the successor shall be treated as the assessee in respect of such ship, machinery or plant for the purposes of section 33 and section 34. 20

Explanation.—For the purposes of this sub-section, "amalgamation" means the merger of two or more companies (each of which is hereinafter in this Explanation referred to as the amalgamating company) to form one company (hereinafter in this Explanation referred to as the amalgamated company) in such a manner that—

- (i) all the property of the amalgamating companies immediately before the amalgamation becomes the property of the amalgamated company by virtue of the amalgamation;
- (ii) all the liabilities of the amalgamating companies immediately before the amalgamation become the liabilities of the 30 amalgamated company by virtue of the amalgamation; and
- (iii) * * * shareholders holding not less than nine-tenths in value of the shares of the amalgamating companies immediately before the amalgamation become shareholders of the amalgamated company by virtue of the amalgamation,

otherwise than as a result of the acquisition of property of one company by another company pursuant to the purchase of such property by the other company or as a result of the distribution of such property to the other company after the winding up of the first mentioned company:

and includes the merger of a subsidiary company in the holding company, where the whole of the share capital of the subsidiary company is held by the holding company or its nominee and the subsidiary company is an Indian company.

(4) Where a firm is succeeded to by a company in the business carried on by it as a result of which the firm sells or otherwise transfers to the company any ship, machinery or plant, the provisions of clauses (a) and (b) of sub-section (3) shall, so far as may be, apply 5 to the firm and the company.

Explanation.—The provisions of this clause shall apply only where-

- (i) all the property of the firm relating to the business immediately before the succession becomes the property of the company;...
- (ii) all the liabilities of the firm relating to the business immediately before the succession become the liabilities of the company; and
- (iii) all the shareholders of the company were partners of the firm immediately before the succession. 15
- 34. (1) The deductions referred to in sub-section (1) of section Conditions 32 shall be allowed only if the prescribed particulars have been for depreciation allowfurnished; and the deduction referred to in section 33 shall be ance and allowed only if the particulars prescribed for the purpose of clause rebate. 20 (i) and clause (ii) of sub-section (1) of section 32 have been furnished by the assessee in respect of the ship or machinery or plant.

development

- (2) For the purposes of section 32—
- (i) the aggregate of all deductions in respect of depreciation made under sub-section (1) of section 32 or under the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922 or under any Act repealed by that Act or under the Indian Income-tax Act, 1886, shall, in no case, exceed the actual cost to the assessee of the buildings. machinery, plant or furniture, as the case may be;

Explanation.--Where a capital asset is transferred by a company to a subsidiary company, then, if the conditions of clause (iv) of section 47 are satisfied, in determining the aggregate of all deductions in respect of depreciation under this clause, account shall also be taken of the deductions in respect of depreciation allowed in the case 35 of the company from which the asset has been transferred.

(ii) nothing in clause (i) or clause (ii) or clause (iv) sub-section (1) of section 32 shall be deemed to authorise the allowance for any previous year of any sum in respect of any building, machinery, plant or furniture sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed in that year.

11 of 1922. 2 of 1886.

25

40

- (3) (a) The deduction referred to in section 33 shall not be allowed unless an amount equal to seventy-five per cent. of the development rebate to be actually allowed is debited to the profit and loss account of the relevant previous year and credited to a reserve account to be utilised by the assessee during a period of 5 eight years next following for the purposes of the business of the undertaking, other than—
 - (i) for distribution by way of dividends or profits; or
 - (ii) for remittance outside India as profits or for the creation of any asset outside India:

Provided that this clause shall not apply where the assessee is a company, being a licensee within the meaning of the Electricity (Supply) Act, 1948 or where the ship has been acquired or the machinery or plant has been installed before the 1st day of January, 1958.

54 of 1948.

15

(b) If any ship, machinery or plant is sold or otherwise transferred by the assessee to any person at any time before the expiry of eight years from the end of the previous year in which it was acquired or installed, any allowance made under section 33 or under the corresponding provisions of the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922 in 20 II of 1922. respect of that ship, machinery or plant shall be deemed to have been wrongly made for the purposes of this Act, and the provisions of sub-section (5) of section 155 shall apply accordingly:

Provided that this clause shall not apply—

- (i) where the ship has been acquired or the machinery or plant has been installed before the first day of January, 1958; or
- (ii) where the ship, machinery or plant is sold or otherwise transferred by the assessee to the Government, a local authority, a corporation established by a Central, State or Provincial Act or a Government company as defined in section 617 of the Companies 30 Act, 1956; or

1 of 1956,

(iii) where the sale or transfer of the ship, machinery or plant is made in connection with the amalgamation or succession referred to in sub-section (3) or sub-section (4) of section 33.

- 35. (1) In respect of expenditure on scientific research, the Expenditure on scientific research.
 - (i) any expenditure (not being in the nature of capital expenditure) laid out or expended on scientific research related to the business;

5

- (ii) any sum paid to a scientific research association which has as its object the undertaking of scientific research or to a university, college or other institution to be used for scientific research:
- Provided that such association, university, college or institution is for the time being approved for the purposes of this clause by the prescribed authority:
 - (iii) any sum paid to a university, college or other institution to be used for research in social science or statistical research related to the class of business carried on, being a university, college or institution which is for the time being approved for the purposes of this clause by the prescribed authority:
- (iv) in respect of any expenditure of a capital nature on scientific research related to the business carried on by the assessee, such deduction as may be admissible under the provisions of sub-section (2).
 - (2) For the purposes of clause (iv) of sub-section (1),—
- (i) one-fifth of the capital expenditure incurred in any previous year shall be deducted for that previous year; and the balance of the expenditure shall be deducted in equal instalments for each of the four immediately succeeding previous years.
- Explanation.—Where any capital expenditure has been incurred before the commencement of the business, the aggregate of the expenditure so incurred within the three years immediately preceding the commencement of the business shall

be deemed to have been incurred in the previous year in which the business is commenced;

- (ii) notwithstanding anything contained in clause (i), where an asset representing expenditure of a capital nature ceases to be used in a previous year for scientific research 5 related to the business and the value of the asset at the time of the cessation, together with the aggregate of deductions already allowed under clause (i) falls short of the said expenditure, then—
 - (a) there shall be allowed a deduction for that pre- 10 vious year of an amount equal to such deficiency, and
 - (b) no deduction shall be allowed under that clause for that previous year or for any subsequent previous year;
- (iii) if the asset mentioned in clause (ii) is sold, without having been used for other purposes, in the year of cessation, 15 the sale price shall be taken to be the value of the asset at the time of the cessation; and if the asset is sold, without having been used for other purposes, in a previous year subsequent to the year of cessation, and the sale price falls short of the value of the asset taken into account at the time of cessation, an 20 amount equal to the deficiency shall be allowed as a deduction for the previous year in which the sale took place;
- (iv) where a deduction is allowed for any previous year under this section in respect of expenditure represented wholly or partly by an asset, no deduction shall be allowed under 25 clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) of sub-section (1) of section 32 for the same previous year in respect of that asset;
- (v) where the asset is used in the business after it ceases to be used for scientific research related to that business, depreciation shall be admissible under clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) of 30 sub-section (1) of section 32.
- (3) If any question arises under this section as to whether, and if so, to what extent, any activity constitutes or constituted, or any asset is or was being used for, scientific research, the Board shall refer the question to the prescribed authority, whose decision shall 35 be final.
- (4) The provisions of sub-section (2) of section 32 shall apply in relation to deductions allowable under clause (iv) of sub-section (1) as they apply in relation to deductions allowable in respect of depreciation.

- 36. (1) The deductions provided for in the following clauses Other shall be allowed in respect of the matters dealt with therein, in deductions. computing the income referred to in section 28—
 - (i) the amount of any premium paid in respect of insurance against risk of damage or destruction of stocks or stores used for the purposes of the business or profession;

5

10

15

20

25

3Õ

35

40

(ii) any sum paid to an employee as bonus or commission for services rendered, where such sum would not have been payable to him as profits or dividend if it had not been paid as bonus or commission:

Provided that the amount of the bonus or commission is reasonable with reference to—

- (a) the pay of the employee and the conditions of his service;
- (b) the profits of the business or profession for the previous year in question; and
- (c) the general practice in similar business or profession;
- (iii) the amount of the interest paid in respect of capital borrowed for the purposes of the business or profession;

Explanation.—Recurring subscriptions paid periodically by shareholders or subscribers in * * * Mutual Benefit Societies which fulfil such conditions as may be prescribed, shall be deemed to be capital borrowed within the meaning of this clause;

- (iv) any sum paid by the assessee as an employer by way of contribution towards a recognised provident fund or an approved superannuation fund, subject to such limits as may be prescribed for the purpose of recognising the provident fund or approving the superannuation fund, as the case may be; and subject to such conditions as the Board may think fit to specify in cases where the contributions are not in the nature of annual contributions of fixed amounts or annual contributions fixed on some definite basis by reference to the income chargeable under the head 'Salaries' or to the contributions or to the number of members of the fund;
- (v) any sum paid by the assessee as an employer by way of contribution towards an approved gratuity fund created by him for the exclusive benefit of his employees under an irrevocable trust;

- (vi) in respect of animals which have been used for the purposes of the business or profession otherwise than as stock-intrade and have died or become permanently useless for such purposes, the difference between the actual cost to the assessee of the animals and the amount, if any, realised in respect of the 5 carcasses or animals:
- (vii) subject to the provisions of sub-section (2), the amount of any debt, or part thereof, which is established to have become a bad debt in the previous year;
- (viii) in respect of any special reserve created by a financial 10 corporation which is engaged in providing long-term finance for industrial development in India, an amount not exceeding ten per cent. of the total income carried to such reserve account:

Provided that the corporation is for the time being approved by the Central Government for the purposes of this clause: 15

Provided further that where the aggregate of the amounts carried to such reserve account from time to time exceeds the paid-up share capital (excluding the amounts capitalised from reserves) of the corporation, no allowance under this clause shall be made in respect of such excess.

- - (i) no such deduction shall be allowed unless such debt or part thereof—
 - (a) has been taken into account in computing the income of the assessee of that previous year or of an earlier previous year, or represents money lent in the ordinary course of the business of banking or money-lending which is carried on by the assessee, and

- (b) has been written off as irrecoverable in the accounts of the assessee for that previous year;
- (ii) if the amount ultimately recovered on any such debt or part of debt is less than the difference between the debt or part and the amount so deducted, the deficiency shall be deductible in the previous year in which the ultimate recovery is made:

- (iii) any such debt or part of debt may be deducted if it has already been written off as irrecoverable in the accounts of an earlier previous year, but the Income-tax Officer had not allowed it to be deducted on the ground that it had not been established to have become a bad debt in that year;
- (iv) where any such debt or part of debt is written off as irrecoverable in the accounts of the previous year and the Income-tax Officer is satisfied that such debt or part became a bad debt in any earlier previous year not falling beyond a period of four previous years immediately preceding the previous year in which such debt or part is written off, the provisions of sub-section (6) of section 155 shall apply.
- 37. (1) Any expenditure (not being expenditure of the nature described in sections 30 to 36 and not being in the nature of capital 15 expenditure or personal expenses of the assessee), laid out or expended wholly * * * * and exclusively for the purposes of the business or profession shall be allowed in computing the income chargeable under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession".
- 20 (2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (1), no expenditure in the nature of entertainment expenditure shall be allowed in the case of a company, which exceeds the aggregate amount computed as hereunder:—

25

(i) on the first Rs. 10,00,000 of the profits and gains of the business (computed before making any allowance under section 33 or in respect of entertainment expenditure)

5

10

30

35

40

at the rate of 1% or Rs. 5,000, whichever is higher;

(ii) on the next Rs. 40,00,000 of the profits and gains of the business (computed in the manner aforesaid)

at the rate of 1%;

(iii) on the next Rs. 1,20,00,000 of the profits and gains of the business (computed in the manner aforesaid).

at the rate of 1%,

(iv) on the balance of the profits and gains of the business (computed in the manner aforesaid).

nil.

38. (1) Where a part of any premises is used as dwelling house Building, etc.

by the assessee,—

partly used

partly used

See Building, etc. partly used for business etc., or not of execusively so used.

(a) the deduction under sub-clause (i) of clause (a) of section 30, in the case of rent, shall be such amount as the 660 (B) LS—13

Income-tax Officer may determine having regard to the proportionate annual value of the part used for the purpose of the business or profession, and in the case of any sum paid for repairs, such sum as is proportionate to the part of the premises used for the purpose of the business or profession;

- (b) the deduction under clause (b) of section 30 shall be such sum as the Income-tax Officer may determine having regard to the part so used.
- (2) Where any building, machinery, plant or furniture is not 10 exclusively used for the purposes of the business or profession, the deductions under sub-clause (ii) of clause (a) and clause (c)section 30, clauses (i) and (ii) of section 31 and clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) of sub-section (1) of section 32 shall be restricted to a fair proportionate part thereof which the Income-tax Officer may determine, having regard to the user of such building, machinery, 15 plant or furniture for the purposes of the business or profession.

Managing agency commission.

39. Where a managing agent of a company is liable under an agreement in writing made for adequate consideration to share managing agency commission with a third party or third parties, the said agent and the said party or parties shall file a declaration show- 20 ing the proportion in which such commission is shared between them under the agreement, and on proof to the satisfaction of the Incometax Officer of the facts contained in such declaration, such agent and each such party shall be chargeable only on the share to which such agent or party is entitled under the agreement.

Amounts not deductible.

- **40.** Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in sections 30 to 39. the following amounts shall not be deducted in computing the income chargeable under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession",
 - (a) in the case of any assessee—

30

25

- (i) any interest chargeable under this Act which is payable outside India (not being interest on a loan issued for public subscription before the 1st day of April, 1938), on which tax has not been paid or deducted under Chapter XVII-B and in respect of which there is no person in India 35 who may be treated as an agent under section 163:
- (ii) any sum paid on account of any * * rate or tax levied on the profits or gains of any business or profession or assessed at a proportion of, or otherwise on the basis of, any such profits or gains;

- (iii) any payment which is chargeable under the head "Salaries", if it is payable outside India and if the tax has not been paid thereon nor deducted therefrom under Chapter XVII-B;
- (iv) any payment to a provident or other fund established for the benefit of employees of the assessee, unless the assessee has made effective arrangements to secure that tax shall be deducted at source from any payments made from the fund which are chargeable to tax under the head "Salaries":
- (b) in the case of any firm, * * * * any payment of interest, salary, bonus, commission or remuneration made by the firm to any partner of the firm: * * * *

(c) in the case of any company—

Ŝ

1

15

20

25

30

35

- (i) any expenditure which results directly or indirectly in the provision of any remuneration or benefit or amenity to a director or to a person who has a substantial interest in the company or to a relative of the director or of such person as the case may be,
- (ii) any expenditure or allowance in respect of any assets of the company used by any person referred to in sub-clause (?) either wholly or partly for his own purposes or benefit,

if in the opinion of the Income-tax Officer any such expenditure or allowance as is mentioned in sub-clauses (i) and (ii) is excessive or unreasonable having regard to the legitimate business needs of the company and the benefit derived by or accruing to it therefrom;

Explanation.—The provisions of this clause shall apply notwithstanding that any amount not to be allowed under this clause is included in the total income of any person referred to in sub-clause (i);

(d) in the case of a banking company, the amounts which have been allowed as a deduction in computing its income chargeable to income-tax under the head "Interest on securities" under the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 20.

Profits shargeable to tax

- 41. (1) Where an allowance or deduction has been made in the assessment for any year in respect of loss, expenditure or trading liability incurred by the assessee, and subsequently during any previous year the assessee has obtained, whether in cash or in any other manner whatsoever, any amount in respect of such loss or expenditure or some benefit in respect of such trading liability by way of remission or cessation thereof, the amount obtained by him or the value of benefit accruing to him, shall be deemed to be profits and gains of business or profession and accordingly chargeable to income-tax as the income of that previous year, whether the business or profession in respect of which the allowance or deduction has been made is in existence in that year or not.
- (2) Where any building, machinery, plant or furniture which is owned by the assessee and which was or has been used for the purposes of business or profession is sold, discarded, demolished or des- 15 troyed * * * *, and the moneys payable in respect of such building, machinery, plant or furniture, as the case may be, together with the amount of scrap value, if any, exceed the written down value, so much of the excess as does not exceed the difference between the actual cost and the written down value shall be charge- 20 able to income-tax as income of the business or profession of the previous year in which the moneys payable for the building, machinery, plant or furniture became due:

Provided that where the building sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed is a building to which Explanation 5 to section 43 applies, 25 and the moneys payable in respect of such building, together with the amount of scrap value, if any, exceed the actual cost as determined under that Explanation, so much of the excess as does not exceed the difference between the actual cost so determined and the written down value shall be chargeable to income-tax as income of the busi- 30 ness or profession of such previous year.

Explanation.—Where the moneys payable in respect of the building, machinery, plant or furniture referred to in this sub-section become due in a previous year in which the business or profession for the purpose of which the building, machinery, plant or furniture was being used is no longer in existence, the provisions of this sub-section shall apply as if the business or profession is in existence in that previous year.

without having been used for other purposes, and the proceeds of

⁽³⁾ Where an asset representing expenditure of a capital nature on scientific research within the meaning of clause (iv) of sub-40 section (1) of section 35, read with clause (4) of section 43, is sold,

the sale together with the total amount of the deductions made under clause (i) of sub-section (2) of section 35 exceed the amount of the capital expenditure, the excess or the amount of the deductions so made, whichever is the less, shall be chargeable to income-tax s as income of the business or profession of the previous year in which the sale took place.

Explanation.—Where the moneys payable in respect asset referred to in this sub-section become due in a previous year in which the business is no longer in existence, the provisions of to this sub-section shall apply as if the business is in existence in that previous vear.

(4) Where a deduction has been allowed in respect of a bad debt or part of debt under the provisions of clause (vii) of sub-section (1) of section 36, then, if the amount subsequently recovered on any 15 such debt or part is greater than the difference between the debt or part of debt and the amount so allowed, the excess shall be deemed to be profits and gains of business or profession, and accordingly chargeable to income-tax as the income of the previous year in which it is recovered, whether the business or profession in respect 20 of which the deduction has been allowed is in existence in that year or not.

Explanation.—The expression "moneys payable" in sub-section (2) and the expression "sold" in sub-sections (2) and (3) have the same meanings as in sub-section (1) of section 32.

(5) Where the business or profession referred to in this section is no longer in existence and there is income chargeable to tax under sub-section (1), sub-section (2), sub-section (3) or sub-section (4) in respect of that business or profession, any loss. not being a loss sustained in speculation business or under head "Capital gains", which arose in that business or profession during the previous year in which it ceased to exist and which could not be set off against any other income of that previous year shall, so far as may be, be set off against the income chargeable to tax under the sub-sections aforesaid.

^{42.} For the purpose of computing the profits or gains of any busi- Special proness consisting of the prospecting for or extraction or production of vision mineral oils in relation to which the Central Government has entered in the case into an agreement with any person for the association or participation of business for prospectin such business of the Central Government (which agreement has ing, etc., for 40 been laid on the Table of each House of Parliament), there shall be mineral oil.

fnade in lieu of, or in addition to, the allowances admissible under this Act, such allowances as are specified in the agreement in relation—

(a) to expenditure by way of infructuous or abortive exploration expenses in respect of any area surrendered prior to the beginning of commercial production by the assessee;

5

15

11 of 1922.

- (b) after the beginning of commercial production, to expenditure incurred by the assessee, whether before or after such commercial production, in respect of drilling or exploration activities or services or in respect of physical assets used in that connection, except assets on which allowance for depreciation is admissible 10 under section 32; and
- (c) to the depletion of mineral oil in the mining area in respect of the assessment year relevant to the previous year in which commercial production is begun and for such succeeding year or years as may be specified in the agreement;

and such allowances shall be computed and made in the manner specified in the agreement, the other provisions of this Act being deemed for this purpose to have been modified to the extent necessary to give effect to the terms of the agreement.

Definitions of certain terms relevant to income from profits and gains of business or profession.

- 43. In sections 28 to 41 and in this section, unless the context other- 20 wise requires—
 - (1) "actual cost" means the actual cost of the assets to the assessee, reduced by that portion of the cost thereof, if any, as has been met directly or indirectly by any other person or authority.

Explanation 1.—Where an asset is used in the business after it ceases to be used for scientific research related to that business and a deduction has to be made under clause (i), clause (ii) or clause (iii) of sub-section (1) of section 32 in respect of that asset, the actual cost of the asset to the assessee shall be the actual cost to the assessee as reduced by the amount of any deduction allowed under clause (iv) of sub-section (1) of section 35 or under any corresponding provision of the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922.

Explanation 2.—Where an asset is acquired by the assessee by way of gift or inheritance, the actual cost of the asset to the assessee shall be the written down value thereof as in the case of the previous owner for the previous year in which the asset is so acquired or the market value thereof on the date of such acquisition, whichever is the less.

Explanation 3.—Where, before the date of acquisition by the assessee, the assets were at any time used by any other person for the purposes of his business or profession and the Income-tax Officer is satisfied that the main purpose of the transfer of such assets, directly or indirectly to the assessee, was the reduction of a liability to income-tax (by claiming depreciation with reference to an enhanced cost), the actual cost to the assessee shall be such an amount as the Income-tax Officer may, with the previous approval of the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner, determine having regard to all the circumstances of the case.

Explanation 4.—Where assets which had once belonged to the assessee and had been used by him for the purposes of his business or profession and thereafter ceased to be his property by reason of transfer or otherwise, are re-acquired by him, the actual cost to the assessee shall be the actual cost to him when he first acquired the assets less the depreciation actually allowed to him under this Act or under the corresponding provisions of the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922, diminished by any loss deducted, or as the case may be, increased by any profit assessed, under the provisions of clause (iii) of sub-section (1) of section 32 or sub-section (2) of section 41 of this Act or under the corresponding provisions of the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922, or the actual price for which the asset is re-acquired by him, whichever is the less.

. 25

5

Oī

15

20

Explanation 5.—Where a building previously the property of the assessee is brought into use for the purpose of the business or profession after the 28th day of February 1946, the actual cost to the assessee shall be the actual cost of the building to the assessee, as reduced by an amount equal to the depreciation calculated at the rate in force on that date that would have been allowable had the building been used for the aforesaid purposes since the date of its acquisition by the assessee.

Explanation 6.—When any capital asset is transferred by a company to its subsidiary company, then, if the conditions of clause (iv) of section 47 are satisfied, the actual cost of the transferred capital asset to the subsidiary company shall be taken to be the same as it would have been if the parent company had continued to hold the capital asset for the purposes of its business;

40

35

(2) "paid" means actually paid or incurred according to the method of accounting upon the basis of which the profits or gains

11 **0**1 1**92**2.

11 of 1023.

are computed under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession";

(3) "plant" includes ships, vehicles, books, scientific apparatus and surgical equipment used for the purposes of the business or profession;

5

- (4) (i) "scientific research" means any activities in the fields of natural or applied science for the extension of knowledge;
- (ii) references to expenditure incurred on scientific research include all expenditure incurred for the prosecution, or the provision of facilities for the prosecution, of scientific research, 10 but do not include any expenditure incurred in the acquisition of rights in, or arising out of, scientific research;
- (iii) references to scientific research related to a business or class of business include—
 - (a) any scientific research which may lead to or facilitate 15 an extension of that business or, as the case may be, all businesses of that class;
 - (b) any scientific research of a medical nature which has a special relation to the welfare of workers employed in that business or, as the case may be, all businesses of that class; 20
- (5) "speculative transaction" means a transaction in which a contract for the purchase or sale of any commodity, including stocks and shares, is periodically or ultimately settled otherwise than by the actual delivery or transfer of the commodity or scrips;

Provided that for the purposes of this clause-

- (a) a contract in respect of raw materials or merchandise entered into by a person in the course of his manufacturing or merchanting business to guard against loss through future price fluctuations in respect of his contracts for actual deli- 30 very of goods manufactured by him or merchandise sold by him; or
- (b) a contract in respect of stocks and shares entered into by a dealer or investor therein to guard against loss in his holdings of stocks and shares through price fluctuations; 35 or

(c) a contract entered into by a member of a forward market or a stock exchange in the course of any transaction in the nature of jobbing or arbitrage to guard against loss which may arise in the ordinary course of his business as such member:

shall not be deemed to be a speculative transaction;

(6) "written down value" means—

- (a) in the case of assets acquired in the previous year, the actual cost to the assessee;
- (b) in the case of assets acquired before the previous year, the actual cost to the assessee less all depreciation actually allowed to him under this Act, or under the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922 or any Act repealed by that Act, or under any executive orders issued when the Indian Incometax Act, 1886 was in force.

Explanation 1.—When in a case of succession in business or profession, an assessment is made on the successor under sub-section (2) of section 170 the written down value of any asset shall be the amount which would have been taken as its written down value if the assessment had been made directly on the person succeeded to.

Explanation 2.—When any capital asset is transferred by a company to its subsidiary company, then, if the conditions of clause (iv) of section 47 are satisfied, the written down value of the transferred capital asset to the subsidiary company shall be taken to be the same as it would have been if the parent company had continued to hold the capital asset for the purposes of its business.

Explanation 3.—Any allowance in respect of any depreciation carried forward under sub-section (2) of section 32 shall be deemed to be depreciation "actually allowed".

44. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the provisions of this Act relating to the computation of income chargeable Insurance under the head "Interest on securities", "Income from house property", business. 35 "Capital gains" or "Income from other sources", or in section 199 or in sections 28 to 43, the profits and gains of any business of insurance, including any such business carried on by a mutual insurance 660 (B) L.S.—14.

17 of 1933.

2 of 1886.

25

30

20

5

company or by a co-operative society, shall be computed in accordance with the rules contained in the First Schedule.

E.—Capital gains

Capital gains.

45. Any profits or gains arising from the transfer of a capital asset effected in the previous year shall, save as otherwise provided in 5 sections 53 and 54, be chargeable to income-tax under the head "Capital gains", and shall be deemed to be the income of the previous year in which the transfer took place.

Capital gains on disdation.

- 46. (1) Notwithstanding anything contained in section 45, where tribution of the assets of a company are distributed to its shareholders on its 10 liquidation, such distribution shall not be regarded as a transfer by nies in liqui- the company for the purposes of section 45.
 - (2) Where a shareholder on the liquidation of a company receives any money or other assets from the company, he shall be chargeable to income-tax under the head "Capital gains", in respect 15 of the money so received or the market value of the other assets on the date of distribution, as reduced by the amount assessed as dividend within the meaning of sub-clause (c) of clause (22) of section 2 and the sum so arrived at shall be deemed to be the full value of the consideration for the purposes of section 48.

Transactions mot regarded as transfer.

- 47. Nothing contained in section 45 shall apply to the following transfers: ---
 - (i) any distribution of capital assets on the total or partial partition of a Hindu undivided family;
 - (ii) any distribution of capital assets on the dissolution of a 25 firm, body of individuals or other association of persons;
 - (iii) any transfer of a capital asset under a gift or will or an irrevocable trust;
 - (iv) any transfer of a capital asset by a company to its subsidiary company, if-30
 - (a) the parent company or its nominees hold the whole of the share capital of the subsidiary company, and
 - (b) the subsidiary company is an Indian company. * *

- 48. The income chargeable under the head "Capital gains" shall be Mode computed by deducting from the full value of the consideration re-computation ceived or accruing as a result of the transfer of the capital asset the tions. following amounts, namely:-
- (i) expenditure incurred wholly * and exclusively 5 connection with such transfer:
 - (ii) the cost of acquisition of the capital asset and the cost of any improvement thereto.
 - 49. Where the capital asset became the property of the assessee- Cost

reference to acquisition.

- (i) on any distribution of assets on the total or partial parti-certain tion of a Hindu undivided family:
 - (ii) under a gift or will;
 - (iii) (a) by succession, inheritance or devolution, or
 - (b) on any distribution of assets on the dissolution of a firm, body of individuals or other association of persons, or
 - (c) on any distribution of assets on the liquidation of a company, or
 - (d) under a transfer to a revocable or an irrevocable trust.
- 20 the cost of acquisition of the asset shall be deemed to be the cost for which the previous owner of the property acquired it, as increased by the cost of any improvement of the assets incurred or borne by the previous owner or the assessee, as the case may be.
- 50. Where the capital asset is an asset in respect of which a deduc- Special pro-25 tion on account of depreciation has been obtained by the assessee in computing any previous year either under this Act or under the Indian Income- cost tax Act, 1922, or any Act repealed by that Act, or under executive in the case of orders issued when the Indian Income-tax Act, 1886, was in force, the depreciable provisions of sections 48 and 49 shall be subject to the following modi-30 fications: -

- (1) The written down value, as defined in clause (6) section 43 of the asset, as adjusted, shall be taken as the cost of acquisition of the asset.
- (2) Where under any provision of section 49, read with subsection (2) of section 55, the fair market value of the asset on the 35 1st day of January, 1954, is to be taken into account at the option of the assessee, then, the cost of acquisition of the asset shall, at the option of the assessee, be the fair market value of the asset

II of 1922. 2 of 1886.

10

i 5

on the said date, as reduced by the amount of depreciation, if any, allowed to the assessee after the said date, and as adjusted

Advance money r ceived.

51. Where any capital asset was on any previous occasion the subject of negotiations for its transfer, any advance or other money received and retained by the assessee in respect of such negotiations shall be deducted from the cost for which the asset was acquired or the written down value or the fair market value, as the case may be, in computing the cost of acquisition.

Consideration for transfer in cases of under-state-ment.

52. Where the person who acquires a capital asset from an assessee for is directly or indirectly connected with the assessee and the Income-of tax Officer has reason to believe that the transfer was effected with the object of avoidance or reduction of the liability of the assessee under section 45, the full value of the consideration for the transfer shall, with the previous approval of the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner, be taken to be the fair market value of the capital asset 15 on the date of the transfer.

Capital gains exempt from tax. C

53. Notwithstanding anything contained in section 45, where a capital gain arises from the transfer of one or more capital assets, being buildings or lands appurtenant thereto, the income of which is chargeable under the head "Income from house property", and 20 the full aggregate value of the consideration for which the transfer is made does not exceed twenty-five thousand rupees, the capital gain shall not be included in the total income of the assessee:

Provided that this section shall not apply in any case where the 25 aggregate of the fair market values of all capital assets, being buildings or lands appurtenant thereto the income of which is chargeable under the head "Income from house property" owned by the assessee immediately before the transfer aforesaid is made, exceeds the sum of rupees fifty thousand.

Profit on sale of property used for residences.

asset to which the provisions of section 53 are not applicable, being buildings or lands appurtenant thereto the income of which is chargeable under the head "Income from house property", which in the two years immediately preceding the date on which the transfer took place, was being used by the assessee or a parent of his mainly 35 for the purposes of his own or the parent's own residence, and the assessee has within a period of one year before or after that date purchased, or has within a period of two years after that date constructed, a house property for the purposes of his own residence, then, instead of the capital gain being charged to incometax as income of the previous year in which the transfer took place, it shall

10.000 10.000

Ś

15

20

25

30

35

be dealt with in accordance with the following provisions of this seetion, that is to say.—

- (i) if the amount of the capital gain is greater than the cost of the new asset, the difference between the amount of the capital gain and the cost of the new asset shall be charged under section 45 as income of the previous year; or
- (ii) if the amount of the capital gain is equal to or less than the cost of the new asset, the capital gain shall not be charged. under section 45.
- 10 55. (1) For the purposes of sections 48, 49 and 50,—
 - (a) "adjusted", in relation to written down value or fair ments' market value, means diminished by any loss deducted or increas- and "cost of ed by any profit assessed, under the provisions of clause (iii) of sub-section (1) of section 32 or sub-section (2) of section 41, as the case may be, the computation for this purpose being made with reference to the period commencing from the 1st day of January, 1954, in cases to which clause (2) of section 50 applies;
 - (b) "cost of any improvements", in relation to a capital asset,-
 - (i) where the capital asset became the property of the previous owner or the assessee before the 1st day of January, 1954, and the fair market value of the asset on that day is taken as the cost of acquisition at the option of the assessee, means all expenditure of a capital nature incurred in making any additions or alterations to the capital asset on or after the said date by the previous owner or the assessee, and
 - (ii) in any other case, means all expenditure of a capital nature incurred in making any additions or alterations to the capital asset by the assessee after it became his property, and, where the capital asset became the property of the assessee by any of the modes specified in section 49, by the previous owner.

but does not include any expenditure which is deductible in computing the income chargeable under the head "Interest on securities", "Income from house property", "Profits and gains of business or profession", or "Income from other sources", and the expression "improvements" shall be construed accordingly.

Meaning of 'adjusted' "cost of improve-

- (2) For the purposes of sections 48 and 49, "cost of acquisition", in relation to a capital asset.—
 - (i) where the capital asset became the property of the assessee before the 1st day of January, 1954, means the cost of acquisition of the asset to the assessee or the fair market value of the asset on the 1st day of January, 1954, at the option of the assessee;
 - (ii) where the capital asset became the property of the assessee by any of the modes specified in section 49, and the capital asset became the property of the previous owner before the 10 1st day of January, 1954, means the cost of the capital asset to the previous owner or the fair market value of the asset on the 1st day of January, 1954, at the option of the assessee;
 - (iii) where the capital asset became the property of the assessee on the distribution of the capital assets of a company on 15 its liquidation and the assessee has been assessed to income-tax under the head "Capital gains" in respect of that asset under section 46, means the fair market value of the asset on the date of distribution.
- (3) Where the cost for which the previous owner acquired the 20 property cannot be ascertained, the cost of acquisition to the previous owner means the fair market value on the date on which the capital asset became the property of the previous owner.

F.—Income from other sources

- Income from other the total income under this Act shall be chargeable to income-tax under the head "Income from other sources", if it is not chargeable to income-tax under the head any of the heads specified in section 14, items A to E.
 - (2) In particular, and without prejudice to the generality of the ³⁰ provisions of sub-section (1), the following income shall be chargeable to income-tax under the head "Income from other sources", namely:—

(i) dividends;

5

10

- (ii) income from machinery, plant or furniture belonging to the assessee and let on hire, if the income is not chargeable to income-tax under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession";
- (iii) where an assessee lets on hire machinery, plant or furniture belonging to him and also buildings, and the letting of the buildings is inseparable from the letting of the said machinery, plant or furniture, the income from such letting, if it is not chargeable to income-tax under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession".
- 57. The income chargeable under the head "Income from other Deductions, sources" shall be computed after making the following deductions, namely:—
- (i) in the case of dividends, any reasonable sum paid by way of commission or remuneration to a banker or any other person for the purpose of realising such dividend on behalf of the assessee:
 - (ii) in the case of income of the nature referred to in clauses (ii) and (iii) of sub-section (2) of section 56, deductions, so far as may be, in accordance with the provisions of sub-clause (ii) of clause (a) and clause (c) of section 30, section 31, and sub-sections (1) and (2) of section 32 and subject to the provisions of sections 34 and 38;
- 25 (iii) any other expenditure (not being in the nature of capital expenditure) laid out or expended wholly * and exclusively for the purpose of making or earning such income.
- 58. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in section Amounts not 57, the following amounts shall not be deductible in computing the 30 income chargeable under the head "Income from other sources", namely:—
 - (a) in the case of any assessee—
 - (i) any personal expenses of the assessee;
- (ii) any interest chargeable under this Act which is payable outside India (not being interest on a loan issued for public subscription before the 1st day of April. 1938) on which tax has not been paid or deducted under Chapter XVII-B and in respect of which there is no person in India who may be treated as an agent under section 163;

- (iii) any payment which is chargeable under the head "Salaries", if it is payable outside India, unless tax has been paid thereon or deducted therefrom under Chapter XVII-B;
- (b) in the case of a company, any expenditure or allowance of the nature referred to in clause (c) of section 40, notwith-5 standing that the amount thereof is included in the total income of any person referred to in sub-clause (i) of clause (c) of section 40.

Profits chargeable to tax.

- 59. (1) The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 41 shall apply, so far as may be, in computing the income of an assessee 10 under section 56, as they apply in computing the income of an assessee under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession".
- (2) When any buildings, machinery, plant or furniture to which clauses (ii) and (iii) of sub-section (2) of section 56 apply are sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed, the provisions of sub-section 15 (2) of section 41 shall apply, so far as may be, in computing the income of an assessee under section 56 as they apply in computing the income of an assessee under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession".

Explanation.—For the purpose of this section, the expression 20 "sold" shall have the same meaning as in sub-section (1) of section **32**.

CHAPTER V

INCOME OF OTHER PERSONS, INCLUDED IN ASSESSEE'S TOTAL INCOME

Transfer of income is no transfer of assets.

60. All income arising to any person by virtue of a transfer whe- 25 where there revocable or not and whether effected before or after the commencement of this Act shall, where there is no transfer of the assets from which the income arises, be chargeable to income-tax as the income of the transferor and shall be included in his total income.

Revocable transfer assets.

61. All income arising to any person by virtue of a revocable 30 transfer of assets shall be chargeable to income-tax as the income of the transferor and shall be included in his total income.

Transfer irrevocable for a specified period.

- 62. (1) The provisions of section 61 shall not apply to any income arising to any person by virtue of a transfer-
 - (i) by way of trust which is not revocable during the life- 35 time of the beneficiary, and, in the case of any other transfer, which is not revocable during the lifetime of the transferee; or

(ii) made before the first day of April. 1961 which is not revocable for a period exceeding six years:

Provided that the transferor derives no direct or indirect benefit from such income in either case.

- (2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (1), all income arising to any person by virtue of any such transfer shall be chargeable to income-tax as the income of the transferor as and when the power to revoke the transfer arises, and shall then be included in his total income.
- "Transfer" 63. For the purposes of sections 60, 61 and 62 and of this section,— and "revoc-10 able trans-fer" defined.
 - (a) a transfer shall be deemed to be revocable if—
 - (i) it contains any provision for the re-transfer directly or indirectly of the whole or any part of the income or assets to the transferor, or
- (ii) it, in any way, gives the transferor a right to reas-15 sume power directly or indirectly over the whole or any part of the income or assets;
 - (b) "transfer" includes any settlement, trust, covenant, agreement or arrangement.
- 64. In computing the total income of any individual, there shall individual to 20 be included all such income as arises directly or indirectly—

Income include come spouse,

- (i) to the spouse of such individual from the membership minor child, of the spouse in a firm carrying on a business in which such individual is a partner:
- (ii) to a minor child of such individual from the admission 25 of the minor to the benefits of partnership in a firm in which such individual is a partner;
- (iii) subject to the provisions of clause (i) of section 27, to the spouse of such individual from assets transferred directly or indirectly to the spouse by such individual otherwise than for 30 adequate consideration or in connection with an agreement to live apart;
- 660 (B) L.S.—15.

(iv) subject to the provisions of clause (i) of section 27, to a minor child, not being a married daughter of such individual, from assets transferred directly or indirectly to the minor child by such individual otherwise than for adequate consideration; and

(v) to any person or association of persons from assets transferred otherwise than for adequate consideration to the person or association of persons by such individual, to the extent to which the income from such assets is for the immediate or deferred benefit of his or her spouse or minor child (not being 10 a married daughter) or both.

Explanation.—For the purpose of clause (i), the individual in computing whose total income the income referred to in that clause is to be included shall be the husband or wife whose total income (excluding the income referred to in that clause) is greater; and, for 15 the purpose of clause (ii), where both the parents are members of the firm in which the minor child is a partner, the income of the minor child from the partnership shall be included in the income of that parent whose total income (excluding the income referred to in that clause) is greater; and where any such income is once included in the total income of either spouse or parent, any such income arising in any succeeding year shall not be included in the total income of the other spouse or parent unless the Income-tax Officer is satisfied, after giving that spouse or parent an opportunity of being heard, that it is necessary so to do.

25

5

Liability of person in respect of income included in the income of another person.

of in or in clause (i) of section 27, the income from any asset or from or in clause (i) of section 27, the income from any asset or from membership in a firm of a person other than the assessee is included in the total income of the assessee, the person in whose name such asset stands or who is a member of the firm shall, notwith standing anything to the contrary contained in any other law for the time being in force, be liable, on the service of a notice of demand by the Income-tax Officer in this behalf, to pay that portion of the tax levied on the assessee which is attributable to the income so included, and the provisions of Chapter XVII-D shall, so far as 35 may be, apply accordingly:

Provided that where any such asset is held jointly by more than one person, they shall be jointly and severally liable to pay the tax which is attributable to the income from the assets so included.

CHAPTER VI

AGGREGATION OF INCOME AND SET OFF OR CARRY FORWARD OF LOSS

Aggregation of Income

- 66. In computing the total income of an assessee, there shall be Total included all income on which no income-tax is payable under Chap-income. ter VII and any amount in respect of which the assessee is entitled to a deduction from the amount of income-tax on his total income with which he is chargeable for any assessment year in accordance with, and to the extent provided in, sections 87 and 88.
- of. (1) In computing the total income of an assessee who is a Method of computing a partner of a firm, whether the net result of the computation of total partner's income of the firm is a profit or a loss, his share (whether a net share in the profit or a net loss) shall be computed as follows:—
- (a) any interest, salary, commission or other remuneration
 paid to any partner in respect of the previous year shall be
 deducted from the total income of the firm, and the balance
 ascertained and apportioned among the partners;
 - (b) where the amount apportioned to the partner under clause (a) is a profit, any salary, interest, commission or other remuneration paid to the partner by the firm in respect of the previous year shall be added to that amount, and the result shall be treated as the partner's share in the income of the firm;

20

- (c) where the amount apportioned to the partner under clause (a) is a loss, any salary, interest, commission or other remuneration paid to the partner by the firm in respect of the previous year shall be adjusted against that amount, and the result shall be treated as the partner's share in the income of the firm.
- (2) The share of a partner in the income or loss of the firm, as 30 computed under sub-section (1) shall, for the purposes of assessment, be apportioned under the various heads of income in the same manner in which the income or loss of the firm has been determined under each head of income.
- (3) Any interest paid by a partner on capital borrowed by him 35 for the purposes of investment in the firm shall, in computing his

income chargeable under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession" in respect of his share in the income of the firm, be deducted from the share. *

(4) If the share of a partner in the income of a registered firm or a firm treated as registered in accordance with the provisions of 5 clause (b) of section 183, as computed under this section, is a loss, such loss may be set off, or carried forward and set off, in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter.

Explanation.—In this section, "paid" has the same meaning as is assigned to it in clause (2) of section 43. 10

Cash cred ta.

68. Where any sum is found credited in the books of an assessee maintained for any previous year, and the assessee offers no explanation about the nature and source thereof or the explanation offered by him is not, in the opinion of the Income-tax Officer. satisfactory, the sum so credited may be charged to income-tax as Is the income of the assessee of that previous year.

Unexplained investments.

69. Where in the financial year immediately preceding the assessment year the assessee has made investments which are not recorded in the books of account, if any, maintained by him for any source of income, and the assessee offers no explanation about the nature 20 and source of the investments or the explanation offered by him is not, in the opinion of the Income-tax Officer, satisfactory, the value of the investments may be deemed to be the income of the assessee of such financial year.

Set off, or carry forward and set off

25

Set off of loss from source the head of in-

70. Save as otherwise provided in this Act, where the net result ag- for any assessment year in respect of any source falling under any ainst income head of income is a loss, the assessee shall be entitled to have the from another source under amount of such loss set off against his income from any other source same under the same head.

30

Set off of loss from one income from another.

come.

71. Where in respect of any assessment year the net result of head against the computation under any of the heads of income mentioned in section 14 other than "Capital gains" is a loss to the assessee, the assessee shall, subject to the other provisions of this Chapter, be entitled to have the amount of such loss set off against his income 35 assessable for that assessment year under any other head:

Provided that, where the total income includes any income assessable under the head "Capital gains", the loss computed under any other head of income, if the assessee so desires, shall not be set off against the income under the head "Capital gains" but shall be set 5 off against his income assessable under any other head of income.

72. (1) Where for any assessment year the net result of the Carry computation under the head "Profits and gains of business or profes- off of business or profession" is a loss to the assessee, not being a loss sustained in a specu-ness osses lation business, and such loss cannot be wholly set off in accord-10 ance with the provisions of section 71, so much of the loss as is not so set off or the whole loss, where the assessee had no income under any other head except "Capital gains", shall, subject to the other provisions of this Chapter, be carried forward to the following assessment year, and

(i) it shall be set off against the profits and gains, if any, 15 of any business or profession carried on by him and assessable for that assessment vear:

2C

Provided that the business or profession for which the loss was originally computed continued to be carried on by him in the previous year relevant for that assessment year; and

- (ii) if the loss cannot be wholly so set off, the amount of loss not so set off shall be carried forward to the following assessment year and so on.
- (2) Where any allowance or part thereof is, under sub-section 25 (2) of section 32 or sub-section (4) of section 35, to be carried forward, effect shall first be given to the provisions of this section.
 - (3) No loss shall be carried forward under this section for more than eight assessment years immediately succeeding the assessment year for which the loss was first computed.
- 73. (1) Any loss, computed in respect of a speculation business Losses carried on by the assessee, shall not be set off except against profits speculation business, and gains, if any, of another speculation business.
- (2) Where for any assessment year any loss computed in respect of a speculation business has not been wholly set off under sub-25 section (1), so much of the loss as is not so set off or the whole loss where the assessee had no income from any other speculation business, shall, subject to the other provisions of this Chapter, be carried forward to the following assessment year, and-

- (i) it shall be set off against the profits and gains, if any, of any speculation business carried on by him assessable for that assessment year; and
- (ii) if the loss cannot be wholly so set off, the amount of loss not so set off shall be carried forward to the following 5 assessment year and so on.
- (3) In respect of allowance on account of depreciation or capital expenditure on scientific research, the provisions of sub-section (2) of section 72 shall apply in relation to speculation business as they apply in relation to any other business.
- (4) No loss shall be carried forward under this section for more than eight assessment years immediately succeeding the assessment year for which the loss was first computed.

Losses under the head "Capital sains".

74. (1) Where in respect of any assessment year the net result of the computation under the head "Capital gains" is a loss to the 15 assessee, such loss snall, subject to the other provisions of this Chapter, be carried forward to the following assessment year and set off against capital gains assessable for that assessment year, and if it cannot be so set off, the amount thereof not so set off shall be carried forward to the following assessment year and so on:

Provided that where the loss computed in respect of any assessee, not being a company, for any assessment year does not exceed five thousand rupees, it shall not be carried forward under this subsection.

(2) No loss shall be carried forward under sub-section (1) for 25 more than eight assessment years immediately succeeding the assessment year for which the loss was first computed.

Losees of registered firms

- 75. (1) Where the assessee is a registered firm, any loss which cannot be set off against any other income of the firm shall be apportioned between the partners of the firm, and they alone shall be en-30 titled to have the amount of the loss set off and carried forward for set off under sections 70, 71, 72, 73 and 74.
- (2) Nothing contained in sub-section (1) of section 72, sub-section (2) of section 73 or sub-section (1) of section 74 shall entitle any assessee, being a registered firm, to have its loss carried for- 35 ward and set off under the provisions of the aforesaid sections.

40

Losses of 76. In the case of an unregistered firm assessed under the proviunregistered firms assessions of clause (b) of section 183 in respect of any assessment year, ed as registered firms its losses for that assessment year shall be dealt with as if it were a registered firm.

77. (1) Where the assessee is an unregistered firm which has not Louis been assessed as a registered firm under the provisions of clause (b) unregistered firms or their of section 183, any loss of the firm shall be set off or carried forward partners. and set off only against the income of the firm.

(2) Where the assessee is a partner of an unregistered firm * * * * which has not been assessed as a registered firm under the provisions of clause (b) of section 183 and his share in the income of the firm is a loss, then, whether the firm has already been assessed or not-

10

15

35

40

- (a) such loss shall not be set off under the provisions of section 70, section 71, or sub-section (1) of section 73; *
- (b) nothing contained in sub-section (1) of section 72 or sub-section (2) of section 73 or sub-section (1) of section 74 shall entitle the assessee to have such loss carried forward and set off against his own income.
- 78. (1) Where a change has occurred in the constitution of a firm, ward and set nothing in this Chapter shall entitle the firm to have carried forward off of losses and set off so much of the loss proportionate to the share of a retired change in or deceased partner computed in accordance with section 67 as ex- constitution 20 ceeds his share of profits, if any, of the previous year in the firm, or of succession. entitle any partner to the benefit of any portion of the said loss which is not apportionable to him under section 67.

- (2) Where any person carrying on any business or profession has been succeeded in such capacity by another person otherwise than by as inheritance, nothing in this Chapter shall entitle any person other than the person incurring the loss to have it carried forward and set off against his income.
- 79. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Chapter, where ward and set a change in shareholding has taken place in a previous year in the off of losses 30 case of a company, not being a company in which the public are substantially interested, no loss incurred in any year prior to the previous panies. year shall be carried forward and set off against the income of the previous year unless-

Carry certain com-

- (a) on the last day of the previous year the shares of the company carrying not less than fifty-one per cent. of the voting power were beneficially held by persons who beneficially held shares of the company carrying not less than fifty-one per cent. of the voting power on the last day of the year or years in which the loss was incurred; or
 - (b) the Income-tax Officer is satisfied that the change in the

shareholding was not effected with a view to avoiding or reducing any liability to tax.

Submission of return for losses.

80. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Chapter, no loss which has not been determined in pursuance of a return filed under section 139, shall be carried forward and set off under sub-section (1) of section 72 or sub-section (2) of section 73 or sub-section (1) of section 74.

CHAPTER VII

INCOMES FORMING PART OF TOTAL INCOME ON WHICH NO INCOME-TAX IS

PAYABLE

O

30

Income of co-operative societies.

- 81. Income-tax shall not be payable by a co-operative society—
- (i) in respect of the profits and gains of business carried on by it, if it is—
 - (a) a society engaged in carrying on the business of banking or providing credit facilities to its members; or
 - (b) a society engaged in a cottage industry; or
 - (c) a society engaged in the marketing of the agricultural produce of its members; or
 - (d) a society engaged in the purchase of agricultural implements, seeds, livestock or other articles intended for agriculture for the purpose of supplying them to its members; or
 - (e) a society engaged in the processing without the aid of power of the agricultural produce of its members; or
 - (f) a primary society engaged in supplying milk raised by its members to a federal milk co-operative society: 25

Provided that, in the case of a co-operative society which is also engaged in activities other than those mentioned in this clause, nothing contained herein shall apply to that part of its profits and gains as is attributable to such activities and as exceeds fifteen thousand rupees;

(ii) in respect of so much of the profits and gains of business carried on by it as does not exceed fifteen thousand rupees, if it is a co-operative society other than a co-operative society referred to in clause (i);

10

- (iii) in respect of any interest and dividends derived from its investments with any other co-operative society;
- (iv) in respect of any income derived from the letting of godowns or warehouses for storage, processing or facilitating the marketing of commodities:
- (v) in respect of any interest on securities chargeable under section 18 or any income from property chargeable under section 22, where the total income of the co-operative society does not exceed twenty thousand rupees and the society is not a housing society or an urban consumer's society or a society carrying on transport business or a society engaged in the performance of any manufacturing operations with the aid of power:

Provided that nothing contained in this section shall apply to a co-15 operative society carrying on insurance business in respect of the profits and gains of that business computed in accordance with section 44.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, "an urban consumer's co-operative society" means a society for the benefit of the consumers within the limits of a municipal corporation, municipality, 20 municipal committee, notified area committee, town area or cantonment.

82. Income-tax shall not be payable by an assessee, who is a Dividends member of a co-operative society in respect of any dividends received from by him from the society.

83. Income-tax shall not be payable by an assessee, which is an Income authority constituted under any law for the time being in force for marketing the marketing of commodities, in respect of any income derived from the letting of godowns or warehouses for storage, processing or facilitating the marketing of commodities.

84. (1) Save as otherwise hereinafter provided, income-tax shall income 30 not be payable by an assessee on so much of the profits or gains blished derived from any industrial undertaking or hotel to which this section dustrial applies as do not exceed six per cent. per annum on the capital em-undertakings ployed in the undertaking or hotel, computed in the prescribed 35 manner.

- (2) This section applies to any industrial undertaking which fulfils all the following conditions, namely:-
 - (i) it is not formed by the splitting up or the reconstruction of a business already in existence:
- (ii) it is not formed by the transfer to a new business of a 40 building, machinery or plant previously used for any purpose; 660 (B) L.S.-16.

- (iii) it has begun or begins to manufacture or produce articles in any part of India at any time within a period of eighteen years from the 1st day of April, 1948, or such further period as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, specify with reference to any particular industrial undertaking; 5
- (iv) it employs ten or more workers in a manufacturing process carried on with the aid of power, or employs twenty or more workers in a manufacturing process carried on without the aid of power.

(3) This section applies to any hotel which-

.....

- (a) starts functioning on or after the first day of April, 1961, and is not formed by the splitting up, or the reconstruction of, business already in existence or by the transfer to a new business of building, machinery or plant previously used for any purpose;
- (b) is owned and run by a company registered in India with a paid-up capital of not less than five hundred thousand rupees;
 - (c) is run in premises which are owned by the company;
- (d) has such number and types of guest rooms and provides such amenities as may be prescribed, having regard to the popu-20 lation and the tourist importance of the place in which the hotel is located; and
- (e) is for the time being approved for the purposes of this sub-section by the Central Government.

Explanation.—Where any building, machinery or plant or any 25 part thereof previously used for any purpose is transferred to a new business and the total value of the building, machinery or plant or part so transferred does not exceed twenty per cent. of the total value of the building, machinery or plant used in the business, then, for the purposes of clause (ii) 30 of sub-section (2) and clause (a) of sub-section (3), the industrial undertaking or hotel to which the transfer has been made shall be deemed to have complied with the condition specified therein and the total value of the building, machinery or plant or part so transferred shall not be taken into account in computing the capital em-35 ployed in the industrial undertaking or hotel.

(4) The Central Government may, after making such inquiry as it may think fit, direct, by notification in the Official Gazette, that the exemption conferred by this section shall not apply to any class of industrial undertakings with effect from such date as it may 40 specify in the notification.

- (5) The profits or gains of an industrial undertaking or hotel te which this section applies shall be computed in accordance with the provisions contained in Chapter IV-D.
- (6) Nothing in this section shall affect the application of the pro-5 visions contained in Chapter XI-D in relation to the profits or gains of an industrial undertaking or hotel to which this section applies.
 - (7) The provisions of this section shall, in relation to an industrial undertaking, apply to the assessment—
- (i) for the assessment year relevant to the previous year in which the undertaking begins to manufacture or produce arti-10 cles, and
 - (ii) where the assessee is a co-operative society, for the six assessment years immediately succeeding, and where the assessee is any other person, for the four assessment years immediately succeeding.
 - (8) The provisions of this section shall, in relation to a hotel, apply to the assessment for the financial year next following the previous year in which the hotel starts functioning and for the four assessments immediately succeeding.

15

85. Subject to any rules that may be made by the Board in this Dividend behalf, income-tax shall not be payable by a shareholder in respect industrial of so much of any dividend paid or deemed to be paid to him by an undertaking industrial undertaking or a hotel to which section 84 applies as is or hotel. attributable to that part of the profits or gains on which income-tax 25 is not payable under section 84.

- 86. Income-tax shall not be payable by an assessee in respect of Other inthe following-
 - (i) the interest due on any security of the Central Government issued or declared to be income-tax free;
- (ii) the interest due on any security of a State Government 30 issued income-tax free, the income-tax whereon is payable by the State Government:

- (iii) if the assessee is a partner of an unregistered firm, any portion of the assessee's share in the profits and gains of the firm computed in the manner laid down in section 67 on which incometax has already been paid by the firm;
- (iv) if the assessee is a partner of a registered firm, 5 the amount which represents the difference between—
 - (a) the assessee's share in the total income of the firm, and
 - (b) his share in such total income as reduced by the income-tax, if any, payable by the firm,

the shares in either case being computed in the manner laid down in section 67; and

(v) if the assessee is a member of an association of persons, or a body of individuals other than a Hindu undivided family, a company or a firm, any portion of the amount which he is entitled 15 to receive from the association or body on which income-tax has already been paid by the association or body.

CHAPTER VIII

REBATES AND RELIEFS

A.—Rebate of income-tax

20

25

19 of 1925.

Rebate on life insurance premia, annuities and contributions to provident funds, etc.

į

- 87. (1) Subject to the provisions of this section, the assessee shall be entitled to a deduction, from the amount of income-tax on his total income with which he is chargeable for any assessment year, of an amount equal to the income-tax calculated at the average rate of income-tax on the following sums, namely:—
 - (a) where the assessee is an individual, any sums paid in the previous year by the assessee out of his income chargeable to tax—
 - (i) to effect or to keep in force an insurance on the life of the assessee or on the life of the wife or husband of the 30 assessee; or
 - (ii) to effect or to keep in force a contract for a deferred annuity on the life of the assessee or on the life of the wife or husband of the assessee; or
 - (iii) as a contribution to any provident fund to which the 35 Provident Funds Act, 1925 applies;
 - (b) where the assessee is a Hindu undivided family, any sums paid in the previous year by the assessee out of its * in-

come chargeable to tax, to effect or to keep in force an insurance on the life of any male member of the family or of the wife of any such member;

(c) any sum deducted in the previous year from the salary payable by on on behalf of the Government to any individual, being a sum deducted in accordance with the conditions of his service, for the purpose of securing to him a deferred annuity or making provision for his wife or children, in so far as the sum so deducted does not exceed one-fifth of the salary;

5

35

- (d) if the assessee is an employee participating in a recognised provident fund, his own contributions to his individual account in the fund in the previous year, to the extent provided in rule 7 of Part A of the Fourth Schedule;
- (e) if the assessee is an employee participating in an approved superannuation fund, any sum paid in the previous year by him by way of contribution towards the superannuation fund.
- (2) The provisions of clauses (a) and (b) of sub-section (1) shall apply only to so much of any premium or other payment made on a policy other than a contract for a deferred annuity as is not in excess of ten per cent. of the actual capital sum assured.

Explanation.—In calculating any such capital sum, no account shall be taken—

- (i) of the value of any premiums agreed to be returned, or
- 25 (ii) of any benefit by way of bonus or otherwise over and above the sum actually assured, which is to be or may be received under the policy by any person.
 - (3) The aggregate of the sums in respect of which a deduction of income-tax is allowed under sub-section (1) shall not exceed—
- 30 (i) in the case of an individual being an author, playwright, artist, musician or actor, such percentage of his total income or such amount as may be prescribed;
 - (ii) in the case of any other individual, twenty-five per cent. of the total income or eight thousand rupees, whichever is less:
 - (iii) in the case of a Hindu undivided family, twenty-five per cent. of its total income or sixteen thousand rupees, whichever is less.

Donations for charitable purposes,

- 88. (1) Subject to the provisions of this section, the assessee shall be entitled to a deduction from the amount of income-tax on his total income with which he is chargeable for any assessment year of an amount equal to the income-tax calculated at the average rate of income-tax on any sums paid by him in the previous year as donations to any institution or fund to which this section applies or in respect of any sums paid by him on or after the 1st day of April, 1960, as donations to Government or to any local authority to be utilised for any charitable purpose.
- (2) No deduction shall be made under sub-section (1) if the 10 aggregate of the sums paid as aforesaid by the assessee is less than two hundred and fifty rupees.
- (3) No deduction shall be made under sub-section (1) in respect of any sums paid in excess of seven and a half per cent. of the assessee's total income as reduced by any portion thereof on which 15 income-tax is not payable under any provision of this Act and by any amount in respect of which a deduction of income-tax has been granted under any other provision of this Chapter, or one hundred and fifty thousand rupees, whichever is less.
- (4) The amount of income-tax deductible under this section, to- 20 gether with the amount of super-tax deductible under section 100 shall not in any case exceed half the aggregate of the donations in respect of which the deduction is allowed under this section.
- (5) This section applies only to donations to an institution or fund established in India for a charitable purpose which fulfils the 25 following conditions, namely:—
 - (i) if the institution or fund derives any income, such income would not be liable to inclusion in its total income under the provisions of sections 11 and 12 or clause (22) of section 10;
 - (ii) the instrument under which the institution or fund is 3° constituted does not, or the rules governing the institution or the fund, do not contain any provision for the transfer or application at any time of the whole or any part of the income or assets of the institution or fund for any purpose other than a charitable purpose;
 - (iii) the institution or fund is not expressed to be for the benefit of any particular race, religious community or caste:
 - (iv) the institution or fund maintains regular accounts of its receipts and expenditure; and
 - (v) the institution or fund is either constituted as a public 40 charitable trust or is registered under the Societies Registration Act, 1860, or under any law corresponding to that Act in force in

1 of 1956.

5

any part of India or under section 25 of the Companies Act. 1956. or is a university established by law, or is any other educational institution recognised by the Government or by a university established by law, or affiliated to any university established by law or is an institution financed wholly or in part by the Government or a local authority.

Explanation 1.—An institution or fund established for the benefit of scheduled castes, backward classes, scheduled tribes or of women and children shall not be deemed to be an institution or fund expres-10 sed to be for the benefit of a race, religious community or caste within the meaning of clause (iii) of this sub-section.

Explanation 2.—For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that a deduction to which the assessee is entitled in respect of any donation made to an institution or fund to which sub-section 15 applies shall not be affected merely by reason of the fact that subsequent to the donation any part of the income of the institution or fund has become chargeable to tax due to non-compliance with any of the provisions of section 11.

B.—Relief for income-tax

89. (1) Where, by reason of any portion of an assessee's salary Relief when 20 being paid in arrears or in advance or by reason of his having receiv- salary, etc. is ed in any one financial year salary for more than twelve months or a arrears payment which under the provisions of

clause in advance.

- (3) of section 17 is a profit in lieu of salary, his income is assessed 25 at a rate higher than that at which it would otherwise have been assessed, the Commissioner may, on an application made in this behalf by the assessee, grant such relief as he considers appropriate.
- (2) Where, by reason of any portion of income from interest on securities being received in arrears, an assessee's total income is asses-30 sed at a rate higher than that at which it would otherwise have been assessed, the Commissioner may, on an application made in this behalf by the assessee, grant such relief as he considers appropriate.

CHAPTER IX

DOUBLE TAXATION RELIEF

35

90. The Central Government may enter into an agreement—

(a) with the Government of any country outside India for countries. the granting of relief in respect of income on which have been

Agreement with foreign paid both income-tax (including super-tax) under this Act and income-tax in that country, or

(b) with the Government of any country outside India for the avoidance of double taxation of income under this Act and under the corresponding law in force in that country;

and may, by notification in the Official Gazette, make such provisions as may be necessary for implementing the agreement.

Countries with which no agreement exists.

- 91. (1) If any person who is resident in India in any previous year proves that, in respect of his income which accrued or arose during that previous year outside India (and which is not deemed 10 to accrue or arise in India), he has paid in any country with which there is no agreement under section 90 for the relief or avoidance of double taxation, income-tax, by deduction or otherwise, under the law in force in that country, he shall be entitled to the deduction from the Indian income-tax payable by him of a sum calculated 15 on such doubly taxed income at the Indian rate of tax or the rate of tax of the said country, whichever is the lower, or at the Indian rate of tax if both the rates are equal.
- (2) If any person who is resident in India in any previous year proves that in respect of his income which accrued or arose to him 20 during that previous year in Pakistan he has paid in that country, by deduction or otherwise, tax payable to the Government under any law for the time being in force in that country relating to taxation of agricultural income, he shall be entitled to a deduction from the Indian income-tax payable by him—
 - (a) of the amount of the tax paid in Pakistan under any law aforesaid on such income which is liable to tax under this Act also; or
 - (b) of a sum calculated on that income at the Indian rate of tax;

30

whichever is less.

(3) If any non-resident person is assessed on his share in the income of a registered firm assessed as resident in India in any previous year and such share includes any income accruing or arising outside India during that previous year (and which is not deemed 35 to accrue or arise in India) in a country with which there is no agreement under section 90 for the relief or avoidance of double taxation and he proves that he has paid income-tax by deduction or otherwise under the law in force in that country in respect of the income so included he shall be entitled to a deduction from the 40 Indian income-tax payable by him of a sum calculated on such doub-

ly taxed income so included at the Indian rate of tax or the rate of tax of the said country, whichever is the lower, or at the Indian rate of tax if both the rates are equal.

Explanation.—In this section.—

5

10

15

20

25

- (i) the expression "Indian income-tax" means income-tax and super-tax charged in accordance with the provisions of this Act:
- (ii) the expression "Indian rate of tax" means the rate determined by dividing the amount of Indian income-tax after deduction of any relief due under the provisions of this Act but before deduction of any relief due under this section, by the total income:
- (iii) expression "rate of tax of the said country" means income-tax and super-tax actually paid in the said country in accordance with the corresponding laws in force in the said country after deduction of all relief due, but before deduction of any relief due in the said country in respect of double taxation, divided by the whole amount of the income as assessed in the said country.
- (iv) the expression "income-tax" in relation to any country includes any excess profits tax or business profits tax charged on the profits by the Government of any part of that country or a local authority in that country.

CHAPTER X

SPECIAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO AVOIDANCE OF TAX

92. Where a business is carried on between a resident and a non-Income from resident and it appears to the Income-tax Officer that, owing to with nonthe close connection between them, the course of business is so residents, arranged that the business transacted between them produces to the od in certain 30 resident either no profits or less than the ordinary profits which cases. might be expected to arise in that business, the Income-tax Officer shall determine the amount of profits which may reasonably be deemed to have been derived therefrom and include such amount in the total income of the resident.

93. (1) Where there is a transfer of assets by virtue or in con- Avoidance sequence whereof, either alone or in conjunction with associated tax by tranoperations, any income becomes payable to a non-resident, the fol-sanctions relowing provisions shall apply—

suiting in transfer of income to non-residents.

(a) where any person has, by means of any such transfer, either alone or in conjunction with associated operations, acquired any rights by virtue of which he has, within the meaning of this section, power to enjoy, whether forthwith or in the future, any income of a non-resident person which, if it were 5 income of the first-mentioned person, would be chargeable to income-tax, that income shall, whether it would or would not have been chargeable to income-tax apart from the provisions of this section, be deemed to be income of the first-mentioned person for all the purposes of this Act;

10

(b) where, whether before or after any such transfer, any such first mentioned person receives or is entitled to receive any capital sum the payment whereof is in any way connected with the transfer or any associated operations, then any income which, by virtue or in consequence of the transfer, either alone 15 or in conjunction with associated operations, has become the income of a non-resident shall, whether it would or would not have been chargeable to income-tax apart from the provisions of this section, be deemed to be the income of the first mentioned person for all the purposes of this Act.

Explanation.—The provisions of this sub-section shall apply also in relation to transfers of assets and associated operations carried out before the commencement of this Act.

- (2) Where any person has been charged to income-tax on any income deemed to be his under the provisions of this section and 25 that income is subsequently received by him, whether as income or in any other form, it shall not again be deemed to form part of his income for the purposes of this Act.
- (3) The provisions of this section shall not apply if the first mentioned person in sub-section (1) shows to the satisfaction of 30 the Income-tax Officer that-
 - (a) neither the transfer nor any associated operation had for its purpose or for one of its purposes the avoidance of liability to taxation; or
 - (b) the transfer and all associated operations were bona 35 fide commercial transactions and were not designed purpose of avoiding liability to taxation.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section,—

(a) references to assets representing any assets, income or accumulations of income include references to shares in or 40 obligation of any company to which, or obligation of any other person to whom, those assets, that income or those accumulations are or have been transferred:

(b) any body corporate incorporated outside India shall be treated as if it were a non-resident;

10

15

20

25

30

- (c) a person shall be deemed to have power to enjoy the income of a non-resident if—
 - (i) the income is in fact so dealt with by any person as to be calculated at some point of time and, whether in the form of income or not, to enure for the benefit of the first-mentioned person in sub-section (1), or
 - (ii) the receipt or accrual of the income operates to increase the value to such first-mentioned person of any assets held by him or for his benefit, or
 - (iii) such first-mentioned person receives or is entitled to receive at any time any benefit provided or to be provided out of that income or out of moneys which are or will be available for the purpose by reason of the effect or successive effects of the associated operations on that income and assets which represent that income, or
 - (iv) such first-mentioned person has power by means of the exercise of any power of appointment or power of revocation or otherwise to obtain for himself, whether with or without the consent of any other person, the beneficial enjoyment of the income, or
 - (v) such first-mentioned person is able, in any manner whatsoever and whether directly or indirectly, to control the application of the income;
- (d) in determining whether a person has power to enjoy income, regard shall be had to the substantial result and effect of the transfer and any associated operations, and all benefits which may at any time accrue to such person as a result of the transfer and any associated operations shall be taken into account irrespective of the nature or form of the benefits.
- 35 (4) (a) "assets" includes property or rights of any kind and "transfer" in relation to rights includes the creation of those rights;
 - (b) "associated operation", in relation to any transfer, means an operation of any kind effected by any person in relation to—
 - (i) any of the assets transferred, or

- (ii) any assets representing, whether directly or indirectly, any of the assets transferred, or
 - (iii) the income arising from any such assets, or
- (iv) any assets representing, whether directly or indirectly, the accumulations of income arising from any such assets;
- (c) "benefit" includes a payment of any kind;
- (d) "capital sum" means-
- (i) any sum paid or payable by way of a loan or repayment of a loan; and
- (ii) any other sum paid or payable otherwise than as income, 10 being a sum which is not paid or payable for full consideration in money or money's worth.

Avoidance of tax by certain transactions in securities.

94. (1) Where the owner of any securities (in this sub-section and in sub-section (2) referred to as "the owner") sells or transfers those securities, and buys back or re-acquires the securities, then, if the re- 15 sult of the transaction is that any interest becoming payable in respect of the securities is receivable otherwise than by the owner, the interest payable as aforesaid shall, whether it would or would not have been chargeable to income-tax apart from the provisions of this sub-section, be deemed, for all the purposes of this Act, to be income of the owner 20 and not to be the income of any other person.

Explanation.—The references in this sub-section to buying back or re-acquiring the securities shall be deemed to include references to buying or acquiring similar securities, so however, that where similar securities are bought or acquired, the owner shall be under no greater 25 liability to income-tax than he would have been under if the original securities had been bought back or re-acquired.

- (2) Where any person has had at any time during any previous year any beneficial interest in any securities, and the result of any transaction relating to such securities or the income thereof is that, 30 in respect of such securities within such year, either no income is received by him or the income received by him is less than the sum to which the income would have amounted if the income from such securities had accrued from day to day and been apportioned accordingly, then the income from such securities for such year shall be deemed to be the income of such person.
- (3) The provisions of sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) shall not apply if the owner, or the person who has had a beneficial interest

in the securities, as the case may be, proves to the satisfaction of the Income-tax Officer—

- (a) that there has been no avoidance of income-tax, or
- (b) that the avoidance of income-tax was exceptional and not systematic and that there was not in his case in any of the three preceding years any avoidance of income-tax by a transaction of the nature referred to in sub-section (1) or sub-section (2).
- (4) Where any person carrying on a business which consists wholly or partly in dealing in securities buys or acquires any securities and sells back or re-transfers the securities, then, if the result of the transaction is that interest becoming payable in respect of the securities is receivable by him, no account shall be taken of the transaction in computing for any of the purposes of this Act the profits arising from or loss sustained in the business.
 - (5) Sub-section (4) shall have effect, subject to any necessary modifications, as if references to selling back or re-transferring the securities included references to selling or transferring similar securities.
- 20 (6) The Income-tax Officer may, by notice in writing, require any person to furnish him within such time as he may direct (not being less than twenty-eight days), in respect of all securities of which such person was the owner or in which he had a beneficial interest at any time during the period specified in the notice, such particulars 25 as he considers necessary for the purposes of this section and for the purpose of discovering whether income-tax has been borne in respect of the interest on all those securities.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section,—

(a) "interest" includes a dividend;

50

35

- (b) "securities" includes stocks and shares;
- (c) securities shall be deemed to be similar if they entitle their holders to the same rights against the same persons as to capital and interest and the same remedies for the enforcement of those rights, notwithstanding any difference in the total nominal amounts of the respective securities or in the form in which they are held or in the manner in which they can be transferred.

CHAPTER XI

SUPER-TAX

A.—General

Charge super-tax.

95. (1) In addition to the income-tax charged for any assessment year, and save as otherwise provided in this Act, there shall be 5 charged for that assessment year in respect of the total income of the previous year or previous years, as the case may be, of every person, not being a registered firm, an additional duty of income-tax (in this Act referred to as super-tax) at the rate or rates laid down for that assessment year by any Central Act:

Provided that, where by virtue of any provision of this Act supertax is to be charged in respect of the income of a period other than the previous year, super-tax shall be charged accordingly.

10

- (2) In respect of income chargeable under sub-section (1), supertax shall be deducted at the source or paid in advance, where it is so 15 deductible or payable under any provision of this Act.
- (3) In the case of a registered firm, or an unregistered firm which has been assessed in the manner applicable to a registered firm under the provisions of clause (b) of section 183, super-tax shall be payable by each partner of the firm individually on his share in the income 20 of the firm and not by the firm itself.

Total income for super-tex.

96. Subject to the provisions of this Chapter, the total income of any person shall, for the purposes of super-tax, be the total income as assessed for the purposes of income-tax, and where an assessment of total income has become final and conclusive for the purposes of 25 income-tax for any assessment year, the assessment shall also be final and conclusive for the purposes of super-tax for the same assessment year.

Applicability of Act to super-tax.

- 97. (1) All the provisions of this Act relating to the charge, assessment, collection and recovery of income-tax shall apply, so far as 30 may be and save as otherwise provided, to the charge, assessment. collection and recovery of super-tax.
- (2) Save as expressly provided in any other section in this Chapter, the provisions of section 4, *** section 181 and sub-section (1) of section 191 and of Chapters VII and VIII and rules 7 and 8 of 35 Part A of the Fourth Schedule and rule 3 (c) ** of the First Schedule shall not apply to the charge, assessment, collection and recovery of super-tax.

98. Without prejudice to the generality of the provisions of sec- Avoidance tion 96, the Explanation to sub-section (1) of section 94, sub-sec- of super-tax. tions (2), (3) and (6) of that section and section 270 shall apply in relation to super-tax as they apply in relation to income-tax, with 5 the modification that references therein to income-tax shall be construed as references to super-tax.

B.—Incomes forming part of total income on which no super-tax is payable

99. (1) Super-tax shall not be payable by an assessee in respect Incomes not 10 of the following amounts which are included in his total income—

chargeable to super-tax.

- (i) if the assessee is a partner of an unregistered firm, any portion of the assessee's share in the profits and gains of the firm computed in the manner laid down in section 67 on which super-tax has already been paid by the firm;
- 15 (ii) if the assessee is a member of an association of persons or any other body of individuals, any portion of the amount which he is entitled to receive from the association or body, on which super-tax has already been paid by the association or body. as the case may be;
 - (iii) any dividends received by the assessee from a cooperative society as a member thereof;
 - (iv) if the assessee is a company, any dividend received by it from an Indian company, subject to the provisions contained in the Fifth Schedule.

(v) where the assessee is a co-operative society, any income in respect whereof no income-tax is payable by it by virtue of the provisions of section 81.

(2) Super-tax shall not be payable by an assessee which is an authority constituted under any law for the time being in force for the marketing of commodities on any income derived from the letting of godowns or warehouses for storage, processing or facilitating the marketing of commodities.

C.—Rebate of super-tax

100. (1) Where under the provisions of section 88, an assessee Donations is entitled to a deduction of income-tax in respect of any sum paid for charitable as donation, he shall also be entitled, subject to the provisions of sub-section (4) of that section, to a deduction, from the amount of

35

20

25

super-tax with which he is chargeable on his total income, of an amount equal to the super-tax calculated at the average rate of super-tax on such sum.

(2) The provisions of this section do not apply to a company.

Newly established industrial undertakings or hotels.

101. (1) The assessee shall be entitled to a deduction from the 5 amount of super-tax with which he is chargeable on his total income, of an amount equal to the super-tax, calculated at the average rate of super-tax, on profits or gains derived from an industrial undertaking or hotel in cases where and to the extent to which income-tax is not payable on such profits or gains under section 84.

10

35

(2) Subject to any rules that may be made by the Board in this behalf, a shareholder shall be entitled to a deduction, from the amount of super-tax with which he is chargeable on his total income. of an amount equal to the super-tax, calculated at the average rate of super-tax, on so much of any dividend paid or deemed to be paid 15 to him by an industrial undertaking or hotel as is attributable to that part of the profits or gains on which it is entitled to a deduction of super-tax under this section.

Share from registered firm.

102. Where the assessee is a partner of a registered firm, he shall be entitled to a deduction, from the amount of super-tax with 20 which he is chargeable on his total income, of an amount equal to the super-tax calculated at the average rate of super-tax on the following sum, that is to say-

the amount which represents the difference between-

- (i) the assessee's share in the total income of the firm, 25 has
- (ii) his share in the total income of the firm as reduced by the income-tax, if any, payable by the firm, at the rate of income-tax applicable to its total income, on the amount income from all sources other than from any 30 of its business carried on by it

the shares in either case being computed in the manner laid down in section 67.

Relief for salary, etc., received in arrear, etc.

- 103. The provisions of section 89 apply in relation to super-tax as they apply in relation to income-tax.
 - D.—Additional super-tax on undistributed profits

Super-tax on 104. (1) Subject to the provisions of sub-section (2) undistributed income of sections 105, 106 and 107, where the Income-tax Officer is satisfied certain come that in respect of any previous year the profits and gains distribupanies. ted as dividends by any company within the twelve months imme- 40 diately following the expiry of that previous year are less than the statutory percentage of the distributable income of the company of that previous year, the Income-tax Officer shall make an order in writing that the company shall, apart from the sum determined as payable by it on the basis of the assessment under section 143 or section 144, be liable to pay super-tax at the rate of—

- (a) fifty per cent., in the case of an investment company, and
- (b) thirty-seven per cent. in the case of any other company, on the distributable income as reduced by—
 - (i) the amount of dividends actually distributed, and
 - (ii) any expenditure actually incurred bona fide for the purposes of the business, but not deducted in computing the income chargeable under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession" being—
 - (a) a bonus or gratuity paid to an employee,
 - (b) legal charges,
 - (c) any such expenditure as is referred to in clause(c) of section 40,
- 20 (d) any expenditure claimed as a revenue expenditure but not allowed to be deducted as such and not resulting in the creation of an asset or enhancement in the value of an existing asset.
- (2) The Income-tax Officer shall not make an order under sub-25 section (1) if he is satisfied—
 - (i) that, having regard to the losses incurred by the company in earlier years or to the smallness of the profits made in the previous year, the payment of a dividend or a larger dividend than that declared would be unreasonable; or
- 30 (ii) that the payment of a dividend or a larger dividend than that declared would not have resulted in a benefit to the revenue; or
- (iii) that at least seventy-five per cent. of the share capital of the company is throughout the previous year beneficially held by an institution or fund established in India for a charitable purpose the income from dividend whereof is exempt under section 11 * *.

15

Special provisions for certain companies.

- 105. (1) No order under section 104 shall be made,—
 - (i) in the case of an investment company which has distributed not less than eighty per cent. of its distributable income:
 - (ii) in the case of any other company whose distribution 5 falls short of the statutory percentage by not more than ten per cent, of its distributable income; or
 - (iii) in any case where according to the return made by a company under section 139 it has distributed not less than the statutory percentage of its distributable income, but in the 10 assessment made by the Income-tax Officer under section 143 or section 144 a higher total income is arrived at and the difference in the total income does not arise out of the application of the proviso to sub-section (1) of section 145 or sub-section (2) of section 145 or section 144 or the omission by the company to 15 disclose its income fully and truly: or
 - (iv) in the case of a company where a re-assessment \mathbf{b} made under the provisions of clause (b) of section 147 and the sum distributed as dividends falls short of the statutory percentage of the distributable income determined on the basis of the 20 re-assessment:

unless the company, on receipt of a notice from the Income-tax Officer that he proposes to make such an order, fails to make within three months of the receipt of such notice, a further distribution of its profits and gains so that the total distribution made is not less 25 than the statutory percentage of the distributable income.

(2) Any further distribution made under sub-section (1) shall not be taken into account in deciding whether the provisions of section 104 apply in respect of the previous year in which the further distribution is made.

30

Period of limitation for making section 104.

106. No order under section 104 shall be made after the expiry of four years from the end of the assessment year relevant to the previorders under ous year referred to in sub-section (1) of that section or after the expiry of one year from the end of the financial year in which the assessment or re-assessment of the profits and gains of the previous 25 year aforesaid is made, whichever is later.

Approval of Inspecting Assistant Commissioner for orders under

107. No order shall be made by the Income-tax Officer under section 104 unless the previous approval of the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner has been obtained, and the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner shall not give his approval to any order proposed to be 40 section 104. made by the Income-tax Officer until he has given the company concerned an opportunity of being heard.

108. Nothing contained in section 104 shall apply—

(a) to any company in which the public are substantially which public interested; or

Savings for company in which public are substantially interested.

(b) to a subsidiary company of such company if the whole of the share capital of such subsidiary company has been held by the parent company or by its nominees throughout the previous year.

109. For the purposes of sections 104 and 105,-

(i) "distributable income" means the total income of a com-come", "In-pany as reduced by—

"Distributable income", "Investment
company"
and "statutory percentage"
defined.

- (a) the amount of income-tax and super-tax payable by and "state to to tory per-the company in respect of its total income, but excluding the centage" amount of any super-tax payable under section 104:
- (b) the amount of any other tax levied under any law for the time being in force on the company by the Government or by a local authority in excess of the amount, if any, which has been allowed in computing the total income;
- (c) any sum in respect of which a deduction of incometax is allowed under the provisions of section 88;
 - (d) losses under the head "Capital gains";
- (e) income arising outside India in a country the laws of which prohibit or restrict the remittance of money to India:

Provided that, when the prohibition or restriction is subsequently removed, any reduction allowed under this provision shall be deemed to be a part of the distributable income of the previous year in which the prohibition or restriction is removed;

- (f) in the case of a banking company, the amount actually transferred to a reserve fund under section 17 of the Banking Companies Act, 1949.
- (ii) "investment company" means a company whose pusiness consists wholly or mainly in the dealing in or holding of investments;

20

15

5

10

25

30

10 of 1949.

(iii) "statutory percentage" means,— (1) in the case of an investment company90%		
(2) in the case of an Indian company whose business consists wholly in the manufacture or processing of goods or in mining or in the generation or distribution of electricity or any other form of power	5	
(3) in the case of an Indian company, a part only of whose business consists in any of the activities specified in the preceding clause—		
(a) in relation to the said part of the company's business	10	
(1) if it is a company which satisfies the conditions specified in sub-clause (a) of clause (4) 90%	15	
(2) in any other case	2 0	
(4) in the case of any other company not referred to in the preceding clauses,—	25	
(a) where the accumulated profits and reserves (including depreciation reserves and any amounts capitalised from the earlier reserves) representing accumulations of past profits which have not been the subject of an order under section 104 or the corresponding provision of the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922 exceed—	-	11 of ,1922.
either		

I. the aggregate of-

- (i) the paid-up capital of the company exclusive of the capital, if any, created out of its 35 profits and gains which have not been the subject of an order under section 104, and
- (ii) any loan capital which is the property of the shareholders;

II, the value of the fixed assets as shown in the books of the company, whichever of these is greater.....90% (b) where sub-clause (a) does not apply.....65%.

CHAPTER XII

5

15

DETERMINATION OF TAX IN CERTAIN SPECIAL CASES

110. Where there is included in the total income of an assessee any Determinaincome on which no income-tax or, as the case may be, no super-tax where total 10 is payable under the provisions of this Act, the assessee shall be income entitled to a deduction-

tion of tax includes income on which no tax is payable.

- (a) from the amount of income-tax with which he chargeable on his total income, of an amount equal to the incometax calculated at the average rate of income-tax on the amount on which no income-tax is payable, and
- (b) from the amount of super-tax with which he is chargeable on his total income, of an amount equal to the super-tax calculated at the average rate of super-tax on the amount on which no super-tax is payable.
- 111. (1) Where the accumulated balance due to an employee Tax on 20 participating in a recognised provident fund is included in his total accumulated balance of income, owing to the provisions of rule 8 of Part A of the Fourth recognised Schedule not being applicable, the Income-tax Officer shall calculate provident fund. the total of the various sums of income-tax and super-tax in accord-25 ance with the provisions of sub-rule (1) of rule 9 thereof.

- (2) Where the accumulated balance due to an employee participating in a recognised provident fund which is not included in his total income under the provisions of rule 8 of Part A of the Fourth Schedule becomes payable, super-tax shall be calculated in the man-30 ner provided in sub-rule (2) of rule 9 thereof.
- 112. Where the total income of an assessee, not being a company, Tax on comincludes any compensation or other payment which is chargeable as pensation. the profits and gains of business or profession in accordance with the provisions of clause (ii) of section 28, the tax payable by him on his 35 total income shall be-

(i) the income-tax payable on the total income as reduced by the amount of such compensation or other payment and of the capital gains, if any;

- (ii) the super-tax payable on the total income as reduced by the amount of such compensation or other payment and of capital gains, if any;
- (iii) the tax on such compensation or other payment equal to the amount which bears to the income-tax and super-tax 5 which would have been payable on the total income as reduced by the amount of capital gains, if any, and two-thirds of the amount of such inclusion, the same proportion as the whole amount of such compensation or other payment bears to such reduced total income; and
- (iv) the tax on capital gains, if any, computed in accordance with the provisions of clause (b) of section 114.

Tax in the case of non-resident.

- 113. (1) Where a person is a non-resident and is not a company, the tax payable by him or on his behalf, on his total income shall be an amount equal to—
 - (a) the income-tax which would be payable on his total income at the maximum rate, plus
 - (b) either the super-tax which would be payable on his total income at the rate of nineteen per cent. or the super-tax which would be payable on his total income if it were the total 20 income of a resident, whichever is greater.
- (2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (1), where a citizen of India, not resident in India, is in receipt of salary from the Government for rendering service outside India, the tax payable by him on his total income for the assessment years com-25 mencing with the assessment year 1960-61 shall be determined with reference to his total world income in the manner specified in sub-section * * (4).
- (3) Any non-resident, other than a company, may, on or before the 30th day of June of the assessment year in which he first becomes 30 assessable as a non-resident, by notice in writing to the Income-tax Officer, declare (such declaration being final and being applicable to all assessments thereafter) that the tax payable by him or on his behalf on his total income shall be determined with reference to his total world income, and thereupon, notwithstanding the provisions of sub-section (1), such tax shall be determined in accordance with sub-section (4).
- (4) Where under the provisions of sub-section (3) any non-resident has exercised his option to be taxed with reference to his total world income, the tax payable by him or on his behalf shall be the

tax payable on his total income as if it were the total income of a resident or an amount bearing to the total amount of tax which would have been payable on his total world income had it been his total income the same proportion as the total income bears to the 5 total world income, whichever is greater.

- (5) Where any person referred to in sub-section (1) satisfies the Income-tax Officer that he was prevented by sufficient cause from making the declaration referred to in sub-section (3) or in any similar provision of the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922, on the first 10 occasion on which he became assessable as a non-resident under this Act or the said Act, as the case may be, and his failure to make such declaration has not resulted in reducing his liability to tax for any year, the Income-tax Officer may, with the previous approval of the _ Inspecting Assistant Commissioner, allow such person to make the 15 declaration at any time after the expiry of the period specified, and such declaration shall have effect in relation to the assessment for the year in which the declaration is made (if such assessment had not been completed before such declaration), any assessment pending on the date of such declaration and all assessments for subsequent assessment years.
 - 114. Where the total income of an assessee, not being a company, Tax on includes any income chargeable under the head "Capital gains", the capital gains in cases of tax payable by him on his total income shall be-

- (a) the amount of income-tax and super-tax payable on the companies. total income as reduced by the amount of such inclusion and by the amount of compensation or other payment, if any, referred to in clause (ii) of section 28, had the total income so reduced been his total income, plus
- (b) the tax on the whole amount of such inclusion equal to the amount which bears to the income-tax which would have been payable on the total income as reduced by two-thirds of such inclusion and by the amount of compensation or other payment aforesaid, if any, the same proportion as the whole amount of such inclusion bears to such reduced total income:

Provided that-

25

30

35

40

- (i) where the total income does not exceed the sum of ten thousand rupees, the amount payable under clause (b) shall be nil; and
- (ii) in no case shall the amount payable under clause (b) exceed one-half of the amount, if any, by which the

income chargeable under the head "Capital gains" exceeds the sum of five thousand rupees, plus

(c) the tax on such compensation or other payment aforesaid, if any, computed in accordance with the provisions of clause (iii) of section 112.

5

15

Tax on capital gains in case of companies.

- 115. Where the total income of a company includes any income chargeable under the head "Capital gains", the tax payable by it shall be—
 - (a) the amount of income-tax with which it is chargeable on its total income, plus
 - (b) the amount of super-tax equal to the aggregate of the tax calculated at the rate of ten per cent. on the amount of capital gains which is included and at the rate applicable to the company on its total income as reduced by the amount of the capital gains, had such reduced income been its total income

CHAPTER XIII

INCOME-TAX AUTHORITIES

A.—Appointment and control

Income-tax authorities.

- 116. There shall be the following classes of Income-tax authorities for the purposes of this Act, namely:—
 - (a) the Central Board of Revenue.
 - (b) Directors of Inspection,
 - (c) Commissioners of Income-tax.
 - (d) Assistant Commissioners of Income-tax, who may be either Appellate Assistant Commissioners of Income-tax or 25 Inspecting Assistant Commissioners of Income-tax.
 - (e) Income-tax Officers, and
 - (f) Inspectors of Income-tax.

Appointment of Income-tax authorities. 117. (1) The Central Government may appoint as many Directors of Inspection, Commissioners of Income-tax, Appellate or Inspecting Assistant Commissioners of Income-tax and Income-tax Officers of Class I Service, as it thinks fit.

- (2) The Commissioner may, subject to the rules and orders of the Central Government regulating the conditions of service of persons in public services and posts, appoint as many Income-tax Officers of Class II Service and as many Inspectors of Income-tax as 5 may be sanctioned by the Central Government.
- (3) Subject to the rules and orders of the Central Government regulating the conditions of service of persons in public services and posts, an Income-tax authority may appoint such executive or ministerial staff as may be necessary to assist it in the execution of its functions.
 - 118. (1) Inspecting Assistant Commissioners shall be subordinate Control of to the Commissioner within whose jurisdiction they perform their authorities, functions, and also to the Director of Inspection.
- (2) Income-tax Officers shall be subordinate to the Commissioner 15 and the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner within whose jurisdiction they perform their functions and also to the Director of Inspection.
- (3) Inspectors of Income-tax shall be subordinate to the Incometax Officer or other Income-tax authority under whom they are appointed to work and to any other Income-tax authority to whom the said officer or other authority is subordinate.

Explanation.—For the purposes of sub-section (1), "Director of Inspection" does not include a Deputy Director of Inspection or an Assistant Director of Inspection; and for the purposes of sub-section 25 (2), "Director of Inspection" does not include an Assistant Director of Inspection.

119. (1) All officers and persons employed in the execution of Instructions this Act shall observe and follow the orders, instructions and direc- to suborditions of the Board:

nate authorities.

Provided that no such orders, instructions or directions shall be given so as to interfere with the discretion of the Appellate Assistant Commissioner in the exercise of his appellate functions.

(2) Every Income-tax Officer employed in the execution of this Act shall observe and follow such instructions as may be issued to him for his guidance by the Director of Inspection or by the Commissioner or by the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner within whose jurisdiction he performs his functions.

B.—Jurisdiction

120. Directors of Inspection shall perform such functions of any Jurisdiction 40 other Income-tax authority as may be assigned to them by the of Directors Board.

660 (B) L.H.—19.

Jurisdiction of Commissioners.

- 121. (1) Commissioners shall perform their functions in respect of such areas or of such persons or classes of persons or of such incomes or classes of income or of such cases or classes of cases as the Board may direct.
- (2) Where any directions issued under sub-section (1) have 5 assigned to two or more Commissioners, the same area or the same persons or classes of persons or the same incomes or classes of income or the same cases or classes of cases, they shall have concurrent jurisdiction, subject to any orders which the Board may make for the distribution and allocation of the work to be performed.

Jurisdiction of Appellate Assistant Commissioners.

- 122. (1) Appellate Assistant Commissioners shall perform their functions in respect of such areas or of such persons or classes of persons or of such incomes or classes of income as the Board may direct.
- (2) Where any directions issued under sub-section (1) have 15 assigned to two or more Appellate Assistant Commissioners, the same area or the same persons or classes of persons or the same incomes or classes of income, they shall perform their functions in accordance with any orders which the Board may make for the distribution and allocation of the work to be performed.

Jurisdiction of Inspecting Assistant Commissioners.

- 123. (1) Inspecting Assistant Commissioners shall perform their functions in respect of such areas or of such persons or classes of persons or of such incomes or classes of income as the Commissioner may direct.
- (2) Where any directions issued under sub-section (1) have 25 assigned to two or more Inspecting Assistant Commissioners, the same area or the same persons or classes of persons or the same incomes or classes of income, they shall perform their functions in accordance with any orders which the Commissioner may make for the distribution and allocation of the work to be performed.

Jurisdiction
of Income-

- 124. (1) Income-tax Officers shall perform their functions in respect of such areas or of such persons or classes of persons or of such incomes or classes of income as the Commissioner may direct.
- (2) Where any directions issued under sub-section (1) have assigned to two or more Income-tax Officers, the same area or the 35 same persons or classes of persons or the same incomes or classes of income, they shall perform their functions in accordance with any orders which the Commissioner may make for the distribution and allocation of the work to be performed.
- (3) Within the limits of the area assigned to him, the Income-tax 40 Officer shall have jurisdiction—

- (a) in respect of any person carrying on a business or profession, if the place at which he carries on his business or profession is situate within the area, or where his business or profession is carried on in more places than one, if the principal place of his business or profession is situate within the area, and
- (b) in respect of any other person residing within the area.
- (4) Where a question arises under this section as to whether an Income-tax Officer has jurisdiction to assess any person, the question 10 shall be determined by the Commissioner; or where the question is one relating to areas within the jurisdiction of different Commissioners, by the Commissioners concerned or if they are not in agreement, by the Board.

- (5) No person shall be entitled to call in question the jurisdiction 15 of an Income-tax Officer-
 - (a) after the expiry of one month from the date on which he has made a return under sub-section (1) of section 139 or after the completion of the assessment, whichever is earlier:
- (b) where he has made no such return, after the expiry of the time allowed by the notice under sub-section (2) of section 20 139 or under section 148 for the making of the return.
- (6) Subject to the provisions of sub-section (5), where an assessee calls in question the jurisdiction of an Income-tax Officer, then, the Income-tax Officer shall, if not satisfied with the correctness of the 25 claim, refer the matter for determination under sub-section (4) before assessment is made.
- (7) Notwithstanding anything contained in this section, every Income-tax Officer shall have all the powers conferred by or under this Act on an Income-tax Officer in respect of any income accruing 30 or arising or received within the area for which he is appointed.
- 125. (1) The Commissioner may, by general or special order in Powers of Commiswriting, direct that the powers conferred on the Income-tax Officer sioner resand the Appellate Assistant Commissioner by or under this Act, shall, pecting in respect of any specified case or classes of cases or of any specified cases or 35 persons or classes of persons, be exercised by the Inspecting Assistant persons. Commissioner and the Commissioner respectively.

(2) Where an order under sub-section (1) is issued, then for the purposes of any case or person in respect of which any such order applies, references in this Act or in any rule made hereunder to the 40 Income-tax Officer and the Appellate Assistant Commissioner shall

be deemed to be references to the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner and the Commissioner respectively.

- (3) For the purposes of any case or person in respect of which or whom an order under sub-section (1) applies—
 - (a) any provision of this Act requiring an approval or sanction of the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner shall not apply;
 - (b) any appeal which would otherwise have lain to the Appellate Assistant Commissioner shall lie to the Commissioner:
 - (c) any appeal which would have lain from an order of the ¹⁰ Appellate Assistant Commissioner to the Appellate Tribunal shall lie from the order of the Commissioner.

Powers of Board respecting specified area, classes of persons or incomes.

126. Notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing sections, the Board may, by notification in the Official Gazette, empower Commissioners, Appellate Assistant Commissioners, Inspecting 15 Assistant Commissioners and Income-tax Officers to perform such functions in respect of such area or of such classes of persons or of such classes of income as may be specified in the notification, and thereupon the functions so specified shall cease to be performed in respect of the area or classes of persons or classes of income by the 20 other authorities under section 121, section 122, section 123 or section 124.

Transfer of cases from one Incometax Officer to another.

127. (1) The Commissioner may, after giving the assessee a reasonable opportunity of being heard in the matter, wherever it is possible to do so, and after recording his reasons for doing so, 25 transfer any case from one Income-tax Officer subordinate to him to another also subordinate to him, and the Board may similarly transfer any case from one Income-tax Officer to another:

Provided that nothing in this sub-section shall be deemed to require any such opportunity to be given where the transfer is from 30 one Income-tax Officer to another whose offices are situate in the same city, locality or place.

(2) The transfer of a case under sub-section (1) may be made at any stage of the proceedings, and shall not render necessary the re-issue of any notice already issued by the Income-tax Officer 35 from whom the case is transferred.

Explanation.—In this section and in sections 121 and 125, the word "case", in relation to any person whose name is specified in any order or direction issued thereunder, means all proceedings under this Act in respect of any year which may be pending on the 40

date of such order or direction or which may have been completed on or before such date, and includes also all proceedings under this Act which may be commenced after the date of such order or direction in respect of any year.

128. Inspectors of Income-tax shall perform such functions in the Functions of execution of this Act as are assigned to them by the Income-tax Inspectors of Income-tax. Officer or other Income-tax authority under whom they are appointed to work.

129. Whenever in respect of any proceeding under this Act an Change of 10 Income-tax authority ceases to exercise jurisdiction and is succeeded of an office. by another who has and exercises jurisdiction, the Income-tax authority so succeeding may continue the proceeding from the stage at which the proceeding was left by his predecessor:

Provided that the assessee concerned may demand that before 15 the proceeding is so continued the previous proceeding or any part thereof be re-opened or that before any order of assessment is passed against him, he be re-heard.

130. For the purposes of sections 253, 254, 256, 263 and 264, the Authority Commissioner referred to therein shall, in relation to an assessee, competent to take or 20 be the Commissioner having for the time being jurisdiction over continue the assessee.

certain proceedings.

C.—Powers

131. (1) The Income-tax Officer, Appellate Assistant Commis-Power sioner and Commissioner shall, for the purposes of this Act, have regarding discovery, 25 the same powers as are vested in a court under the Code of Civil production Procedure, 1908, when trying a suit in respect of the following mat-of evidence, etc. ters, namely:-

- (a) discovery and inspection;
- (b) enforcing the attendance of any person, including any officer of a banking company and examining him on oath; 30
 - (c) compelling the production of books of account and other documents: and
 - (d) issuing commissions.
- (2) Without prejudice to the provisions of any other law for the 35 time being in force, where a person to whom a summons is issued either to attend to give evidence or produce books of account or other documents at a certain place and time, intentionally omits to attend or produce the books of account or documents at the place or time, the income-tax authority may impose upon him such fine not

5 of 1908.

exceeding five hundred rupees as it thinks fit, and the fine so levied may be recovered in the manner provided in Chapter XVII-D.

(3) Subject to any rules made in this behalf, any authority referred to in sub-section (1) may impound and retain in its custody for such period as it thinks fit any books of account or other documents produced before it in any proceeding under this Act:

Provided that an Income-tax Officer shall not-

- (a) impound any books of account or other documents without recording his reasons for so doing, or
- (b) retain in his custody any such books or documents for 10 a period exceeding fifteen days (exclusive of holidays) without obtaining the approval of the Commissioner therefor.

Powers of search and seizure.

- 132. (1) Subject to any rules made in this behalf, any Incometax Officer specially authorised by the Commissioner in this behalf 15 may,—
 - (i) enter and search any building or place where he has reason to believe that any books of account or other documents which in his opinion will be useful for, or relevant to, any proceeding under this Act, may be found, and examine them, if 20 found;
 - (ii) seize any such books of account or other documents;***

25

35

- (iii) place marks of identification on any such books of account or other documents or make or cause to be made extracts or copies therefrom;
- (iv) make a note or an inventory of any articles or things found in the course of any search under this section which in his opinion will be useful for, or relevant to, any proceeding under this Act.
- (2) The provisions of the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1898, 30 5 of 1898. relating to searches shall apply, so far as may be, to searches under this section.

Power to call for information.

- 133. The Income-tax Officer, the Appellate Assistant Commissioner or the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner may, for the purposes of this Act,—
 - (1) require any firm to furnish him with a return of the names and addresses of the partners of the firm and their respective shares;

- (2) require any Hindu undivided family to furnish him with a return of the names and addresses of the manager and the members of the family:
- (3) require any person whom he has reason to believe to be a trustee, guardian or agent, to furnish him with a return of the names of the persons for or of whom he is trustee, guardian or agent, and of their addresses:

10

15

20

25

30

- (4) require any assessee to furnish a statement of the names and addresses of all persons to whom he has paid in any previous year rent, interest, commission, royalty or brokerage. or any annuity, not being any annuity taxable under the head "Salaries" amounting to more than four hundred rupees, together with particulars of all such payments made:
- (5) require any dealer, broker or agent or any person concerned in the management of a stock or commodity Exchange to furnish a statement of the names and addresses of all persons to whom he or the Exchange has paid any sum in connection with the transfer, whether by way of sale, exchange or otherwise, of assets, or on whose behalf or from whom he or the Exchange has received any such sum, together with particulars of all such payments and receipts;
- (6) require any person, including a banking company any officer thereof, to furnish information in relation to such points or matters, or to furnish statements of accounts and affairs verified in the manner specified by the Income-tax Officer. the Appellate Assistant Commissioner or the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner, giving information in relation to such points or matters as, in the opinion of the Income-tax Officer, the Appellate Assistant Commissioner or the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner, will be useful for, or relevant to, any proceeding under this Act.

134. The Income-tax Officer, the Appellate Assistant Commissioner Power to or the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner, or any person subordinate inspect to him authorised in writing in this behalf by the Income-tax Officer, companies. 35 the Appellate Assistant Commissioner or the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner, may inspect, and if necessary, take copies, or cause copies to be taken, of any register of the members, debenture holders or mortgagees of any company or of any entry in such register.

Power of Director of Inspection. Commissioner and Inspecting Assistant Commissioner.

135. The Director of Inspection, the Commissioner and the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner shall be competent to make any enquiry under this Act, and for this purpose shall have all the powers that an Income-tax Officer has under this Act in relation to the making of enquiries.

Proceedings be judicial

136. Any proceeding under this Act before an Income-tax autho-Income-tax rity shall be deemed to be a judicial proceeding within the meaning authorities to of sections 193 and 228 and for the purposes of section 196 of the proceedings. Indian Penal Code.

45 of 1860.

D.—Disclosure of information

TO

5

Disclosure of information prohibited.

137. (1) All particulars contained in any statement made, return furnished or accounts or documents produced under the provisions of this Act, or in any evidence given, or affidavit or deposition made in the course of any proceedings under this Act, other than proceedings under Chapter XXII, or in any record of any assessment pro- 15 ceeding, or any proceeding relating to recovery of a demand, prepared for the purposes of this Act, shall be treated as confidential. and notwithstanding anything contained in the Indian Evidence Act. 1872, no court shall, save as provided in this Act, be entitled to require any public servant to produce before it any such return. 20 accounts, documents or record or any part of any such record, or to give evidence before it in respect thereof.

1 of 1872.

- (2) No public servant shall disclose any particulars contained in any such statement, return, accounts, documents, evidence, affidavit. deposition or record.
 - (3) Nothing in this section shall apply to the disclosure—
 - (i) of any such particulars for the purposes of a prosecution for any offence under the Indian Penal Code in respect of any such statement, return, accounts, documents, evidence, affidavit or deposition, or for the purposes of a prosecution for any 30 offence under this Act: or

45 of 1860.

25

- (ii) of any such particulars to any person acting in the execution of this Act, where it is necessary or desirable to disclose the same to him for the purposes of this Act; or
- (iii) of any such particulars, where the disclosure is 35 occasioned by the lawful employment under this Act of any process for the service of any notice or the recovery of any demand; or
- (iv) of any such particulars to a civil court in any suit or proceeding to which the Government or any Income-tax autho- 40

rity is a party, which relates to any matter arising out of any proceeding under this Act or under any other law for the time being in force authorising any Income-tax authority to exercise any powers thereunder; or

- (v) of any such particulars to the Comptroller and Auditor-General of India for the purpose of enabling him to discharge his functions under the Constitution; or
 - (vi) of any such particulars to any officer appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor-General of India or the Board to audit income-tax receipts or refunds; or
 - (vii) of any such particulars, relevant to any inquiry into the conduct of an official of the Income-tax Department, to any person appointed Commissioner under the Public Servants (Inquiries) Act, 1850, or to an officer otherwise appointed to hold such inquiry, or to a Public Service Commission established under the Constitution, when exercising its functions in relation to any matter arising out of any such inquiry, or to a court in connection with the prosecution arising out of any such inquiry; or
 - (viii) with the previous permission of the Central Government, of any such particulars as may be required by any Commission of Inquiry appointed by the Central Government under the Commissions of Inquiry Act, 1952, or by any authority to which the provisions of that Act have been made applicable by the Central Government, for the purpose of any inquiry by such Commission or authority; or
 - (ix) of any such particulars relevant to any inquiry into a charge of misconduct in connection with income-tax proceedings against a legal practitioner or chartered accountant, to the authority empowered to take disciplinary action against members of the profession to which he belongs; or
 - (x) of any such particulars by any public servant, where the disclosure is occasioned by the lawful exercise by him of his powers under the Indian Stamp Act, 1899, to impound an insufficiently stamped document; or
 - (xi) of such facts, to an authorised officer of the Government of any country outside India for the granting of relief in respect of or avoidance of double taxation as may be necessary for the purpose of enabling such relief or a refund under section 90 to be given or such avoidance under that section to be made effective; or

660 (B) L.S.-20.

ťΟ

5

15

20

60 **of** 1952.

25

30

35

40

2 of 1899.

(xii) of such facts, to an officer of a State Government authorised in this behalf as may be necessary for the purpose of enabling that Government to levy or realise any tax imposed by it; or

(xiii) of such facts, to an officer of the Central Government authorised in this behalf as may be necessary for the purpose of enabling that Government to levy or realise any tax imposed by it; or

(xiv) of such facts, to any authority exercising powers under the Sea Customs Act, 1878, or any Central Act imposing a duty of excise as may be necessary for enabling it duly to exercise such powers; or

8 of 1878.

(xv) of such facts, to any person charged by law with the duty of inquiring into the qualifications of electors as may be necessary to establish whether a person is or is not entitled to 15 be entered on an electoral roll; or

(xvi) of so much of such particulars, to the appropriate authority, as may be necessary to establish whether a person has or has not been assessed to income-tax in any particular year or years, where under the provisions of any law for the time being in force such fact is required to be established; or

(xvii) of such particulars to the Reserve Bank of India as are required by that Bank to enable it to compile financial statistics of international investment and balance of payments; or

25

(xviii) of such information as may be required by any officer or department of the Central Government or of a State Government for the purpose of investigation into the conduct and affairs of any public servant or to a court in connection with any prosecution of the public servant arising out of any such investigation; or

31 of1950.

35

(xix) of any such particulars to the Custodian of Evacuee Property appointed under the Administration of Evacuee Property Act, 1950, for the purpose of enabling him to discharge the duties imposed upon him by or under the said Act; or

7 of 1947.

(xx) of any such particulars as may be required by any order made under sub-section (2) of section 19 of the Foreign Exchange Regulation Act, 1947, or for the purposes of any proceeding or of a prosecution for an offence under section 23 of that Act; or

(xxi) of so much of such particulars to any person as is evidence of the fact that any property does not belong to the assessee but belongs to such person:

Provided that the assessee had, prior to such disclosure, been examined by the Income-tax Officer in respect of his right to such property.

- (4) Nothing in this section shall apply to the production by a public servant before a court of any document, declaration or affidavit filed, or the record of any statement or deposition made in a reproceeding under section 171 or sections 184 to 186 or to the giving of evidence by a public servant in respect thereof.
- (5) Nothing in this section shall be construed as prohibiting the voluntary disclosure of any particulars referred to in sub-section
 (1) by the person by whom the statement was made, the return
 Is furnished, the accounts or documents produced, the evidence given or the affidavit or deposition made, as the case may be.

Explanation.—In sub-sections (1), (2) and (4), "public servant" means any public servant employed in the execution of this Act.

138. Where a person makes an application to the Commissioner Disclosure of in the prescribed form and pays the prescribed fee for information respecting as to the amount of tax determined as payable by any assessee in tax payable, respect of any assessment made either under this Act or the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922, on or after the 1st day of April 1960, the Commissioner may, notwithstanding anything contained in section 137, 25 if he is satisfied that there are no circumstances justifying its refusal, furnish or cause to be furnished the information asked for.

11 of 1922.

CHAPTER XIV

PROCEDURE FOR ASSESSMENT

- any other person in respect of which he is assessable under this Act income.

 during the previous year exceeded the maximum amount which is not chargeable to income-tax, shall furnish a return of his income or the income of such other person during the previous year in the prescribed form and verified in the prescribed manner and setting.

 35 forth such other particulars as may be prescribed—
 - (a) in the case of every person whose total income, or the total income of any other person in respect of which he is assessable under this Act, includes any income from business or profession, before the expiry of six months from the end of the

previous year or where there is more than one previous year; from the end of the previous year which expired last before the commencement of the assessment year, or before the 30th day of June of the assessment year, whichever is later;

(b) in the case of every other person, before the 30th day 5 of June of the assessment year:

Provided that, on an application made in the prescribed manner, the Income-tax Officer may, in his discretion, extend the date for furnishing the return * * * *—

- (i) in the case of any person whose total income includes any 10 income from business or profession the previous year in respect of which expired on or before the 31st day of December of the year immediately preceding the assessment year, and in the case of any person referred to in clause (b), up to a period not extending beyond the 30th day of September of the assessment year 15 without charging any interest;
- (ii) in the case of any person whose total income includes any income from business or profession the previous year in respect of which expired after the 31st day of December of the year immediately preceding the assessment year, up to the 31st day 20 of December of the assessment year without charging any interest; and
- (iii) up to any period falling beyond the dates mentioned in clauses (i) and (ii), in which case, interest at six per cent. per annum shall be payable from the 1st day of October or the 1st 25 day of January, as the case may be, of the assessment year to the date of the furnishing of the return—
 - (a) in the case of a registered firm or an unregistered firm which has been assessed under clause (b) of section 183, on the amount of tax which would have been payable 30 if the firm had been assessed as an unregistered firm; and
 - (b) in any other case, on the amount of tax payable on the total income as finally assessed, reduced by the advance tax, if any, paid.
- (2) In the case of any person who, in the Income-tax Officer's 35 opinion, is assessable under this Act, whether on his own total income or on the total income of any other person during the previous year, the Income-tax Officer may, before the end of the relevant assessment year, serve a notice upon him requiring him to furnish, with-

in thirty days from the date of service of the notice, a return of his income or the income of such other person during the previous year, in the prescribed form and verified in the prescribed manner and setting forth such other particulars as may be prescribed:

- Provided that on an application made in the prescribed manner the Income-tax Officer may, in his discretion, extend the date for the furnishing of the return, and when the date for furnishing the return, whether fixed originally or on extension, falls beyond the 30th day of September or, as the case may be, the 31st day of December of the assessment year, the provisions of sub-clause (iii) of the proviso to sub-section (1) shall apply.
- (3) If any person who has not been served with a notice under sub-section (2), has sustained a loss in any previous year under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession" or under the head "Capital gains" and claims that the loss or any part thereof should be carried forward under sub-section (1) of section 72 or sub-section (2) of section 73, or sub-section (1) of section 74, he may furnish, within the time allowed under sub-section (1), a return of loss in the prescribed form and verified in the prescribed manner and containing such other particulars as may be prescribed, and all the provisions of this Act shall apply as if it were a return under sub-section (1).
- (4) Any person who has not furnished a return within the time allowed to him under sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) may before the assessment is made furnish the return ******** for any previous year at any time before the end of four assessment years from the end of the assessment year to which the return relates, and the provisions of sub-clause (iii) of the proviso to sub-section (1) shall apply in every such case.
- 30 (5) If any person having furnished a return under sub-section (1) or sub-section (2), discovers any omission or any wrong statement therein, he may furnish a revised return at any time before the assessment is made.
- (6) The prescribed form of the returns referred to in sub-sections (1), (2) and (3) shall, in the case of an assessee engaged in business or profession, require him to furnish particulars of the location and style of the principal place where he carries on the business or profession and all the branches thereof, the names and addresses of his partners, if any, in such business or profession and if he is a member of an association or body of individuals, the names of the

other members of the association or the body and the extent of the share of the assessee and the shares of all such partners or the members, as the case may be, in the profits of the business or profession and any branches thereof.

(7) No return under sub-section (1) need be furnished by any 5 person for any previous year if he has already furnished a return of income for such year in accordance with the provisions of subsection (2).

Return by whom to be signed.

140. The return under section 139 shall be signed and verified—

- (a) in the case of an individual, by the individual himself; where the individual is absent from India, by the individual concerned or by some person duly authorised by him in this behalf; and where the individual is mentally incapacitated from attending to his affairs, by his guardian or by any other person competent to act on his behalf;
- (b) in the case of a Hindu undivided family, by the Karta, and, where the Karta is absent from India or is mentally incapacitated from attending to his affairs, by any other adult member of such family;
- (c) in the case of a company or local authority, by the 20 principal officer thereof;
- (d) in the case of a firm, by any partner thereof, not being a minor;
- (e) in the case of any other association, by any member of the association or the principal efficer thereof; and
- (f) in the case of any other person, by that person or by some person competent to act on his behalf.

Provisional assessment.

- 141. (1) The Income-tax Officer may, at any time after the receipt of a return made under section 139, proceed to make, in a summary manner, a provisional assessment of the tax payable by the assessee, 30 on the basis of his return and the accounts and documents, if any, accompanying it.
- (2) In making any assessment under this section due effect shall be given to—
 - (a) the allowance referred to in sub-section (2) of section 35 32; and
 - (b) any loss carried forward under sub-section (1) of section 72 or sub-section (2) of section 73 or sub-section (1) of section 74.

- (3) A partner of a firm may be assessed under sub-section (1) in respect of his share in the income of the firm, if its return has been received, even if the return of the partner himself has not been received.
- (4) A firm may be assessed under sub-section (1) as an unregistered firm, except in the following cases, where it shall be assessed as a registered firm-

10

- (a) where the firm was assessed as a registered firm for the latest assessment year for which its assessment has been completed, and it has before the expiry of the period laid down in Chapter XVI-B filed its application for registration or declaration under sub-section (7) of section 184 for the assessment year for which the provisional assessment is to be made:
- (b) where no regular assessment has been made on the firm for any assessment year preceding the assessment year for which 15 the provisional assessment is to be made, and the firm has, before the expiry of the period laid down in Chapter XVI-B filed its application for registration, or declaration as aforesaid, for the assessment year for which the provisional assessment is to be made. 20
- (5) After a regular assessment has been made, any amount paid or deemed to have been paid towards the provisional assessment made under sub-section (1) shall be deemed to have been paid towards the regular assessment; and where the amount paid or deemed to have been paid towards the provisional assessment exceeds the amount 25 payable under the regular assessment, the excess shall be refunded to the assessee.
- (6) Nothing done or suffered by reason or in consequence of any provisional assessment made under this section shall prejudice the 30 determination, on the merits, of any issue which may arise in the course of the regular assessment.
 - (7) There shall be no right of appeal against a provisional assessment made under sub-section (1).
- 142. (1) For the purpose of making an assessment under this Act, Engulry 35 the Income-tax Officer may serve on any person who has made a before return under section 139 or upon whom a notice has been served under sub-section (2) of section 139 (whether a return has been made or not) a notice requiring him, on a date to be therein specified,-

(i) to produce, or cause to be produced, such accounts or 40 documents as the Income-tax Officer may require, or

(ii) to furnish in writing and verified in the prescribed manner information in such form and on such points or matters (including a statement of all assets and liabilities of the assesses, whether included in the accounts or not) as the Income-tax Officer may require:

Provided that-

(a) the previous approval of the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner shall be obtained before requiring the assessee to furnish a statement of all assets and liabilities not included in the accounts:

10

20

- (b) the Income-tax Officer shall not require the production of any accounts relating to a period more than three years prior to the previous year.
- (2) For the purpose of obtaining full information in respect of the income or loss of any person, the Income-tax Officer may make such 15 enquiry as he considers necessary.
- (3) The assessee shall, except where the assessment is made under section 144, be given an opportunity of being heard in respect of any material gathered on the basis of any enquiry under sub-section (2) and proposed to be utilised for the purpose of the assessment.

Assessment.

- 143. (1) Where a return has been made under section 139 and the Income-tax Officer is satisfied without requiring the presence of the assessee or the production by him of any evidence that the return is correct and complete, he shall assess the total income or loss of the assessee, and shall determine the sum payable by him or refundable 25 to him on the basis of such return.
- (2) Where a return has been made under section 139 but the Income-tax Officer is not satisfied without requiring the presence of the assessee or the production of evidence that the return is correct 30 and complete, he shall serve on the assessee a notice requiring him, on a date to be therein specified, either to attend at the Income-tax Officer's office or to produce, or to cause to be there produced, any evidence on which the assessee may rely in support of the return.
- (3) On the day specified in the notice issued under sub-section (2), 35 or as soon afterwards as may be, the Income-tax Officer, after hearing such evidence as the assessee may produce and such other evidence as the Income-tax Officer may require on specified points, and after taking into account all relevant material which the Income-tax Officer has gathered, shall, by an order in writing, assess the total income or loss of the assessee, and determine the sum payable by him or refundable to him on the basis of such assessment.

144. If any person-

5

Bust judgment assess-

- (a) fails to make the return required by any notice given ment. under sub-section (2) of section 139 and has not made a return or a revised return under sub-section (4) or sub-section (5) of that section, or
- (b) fails to comply with all the terms of a notice issued under sub-section (1) of section 142, or (
- (c) having made a return, fails to comply with all the terms of a notice issued under sub-section (2) of section 143,
- 10 the Income-tax Officer, after taking into account all relevant material which the Income-tax Officer has gathered, shall make the assessment of the total income or loss to the best of his judgment and determine the sum payable by the assessee or refundable to the assessee on the basis of such assessment.
- 145. (1) Income chargeable under the head "Profits and gains of Method of business or profession" or "Income from other sources" shall be computed in accordance with the method of accounting regularly employed by the assessee:

Provided that in any case where the accounts are correct and 20 complete to the satisfaction of the Income-tax Officer but the method employed is such that, in the opinion of the Income-tax Officer, the income cannot properly be deduced therefrom, then the computation 'shall be made upon such basis and in such manner as the Income-tax Officer may determine.

- 25 (2) Where the Income-tax Officer is not satisfied about the correctness or the completeness of the accounts of the assessee, or where no method of accounting has been regularly employed by the assessee, the Income-tax Officer may make an assessment in the manner provided in section 144.
- 146. Where an assessee assessed under section 144 makes an Reopening application to the Income-tax Officer, within one month from the date of assessof service of a notice of demand issued in consequence of the assess- instance of ment, for the cancellation of the assessment on the ground-

the assessee.

- (i) that he was prevented by sufficient cause from making the return required under sub-section (2) of section 139, or 35
 - (ii) that he did not receive the notice issued under sub-section (1) of section 142 or sub-section (2) of section 143, or
- (iii) that he had not a reasonable opportunity to comply, or was prevented by sufficient cause from complying, with the terms of any notice referred to in clause (ii), 40

the Income-tax Officer shall, if satisfied about the existence of such ground, cancel the assessment and proceed to make a fresh assessment in accordance with the provisions of section 143 or 144.

Income escaping assessment.

147. If-

- (a) the Income-tax Officer has reason to believe that, by 5 reason of the omission or failure on the part of an assessee to make a return * * under section 139 for any assessment year to the Income-tax Officer * * * or to disclose fully and truly all material facts necessary for his assessment for that year, income chargeable to tax has escaped assessment for that year, or
- (b) notwithstanding that there has been no omission or failure as mentioned in clause (a) on the part of the assessee, the Income-tax Officer has in consequence of information in his possession reason to believe that income chargeable to tax has 15 escaped assessment for any assessment year,

he may, subject to the provisions of sections 148 to 153 assess or reassess such income or recompute the loss or the depreciation allowance, as the case may be, for the assessment year concerned (hereafter in sections 148 to 153 referred to as the relevant assess-20 ment year).

Explanation 1.—For the purposes of this section, the following shall also be deemed to be cases where income chargeable to tax has escaped assessment, namely:—

- (a) where income chargeable to tax has been under-25 assessed; or
- (b) where such income has been assessed at too low a rate; or
- (c) where such income has been made the subject of excessive relief under this Act or under the Indian Income-tax 30 Act, 1922; or

II of 1923.

(d) where excessive loss or depreciation allowance has been computed.

Explanation 2.—Production before the Income-tax Officer of account books or other evidence from which material evidence 35 could with due diligence have been discovered by the Income-tax Officer will not necessarily amount to disclosure within the meaning of this section.

148. (1) Before making the assessment, reassessment or recom- Issue of putation under section 147, the Income-tax Officer shall serve on the income has assessee a notice containing all or any of the requirements which escaped may be included in a notice under sub-section (2) of section 139; and assessment. 5 the provisions of this Act shall, so far as may be, apply accordingly as if the notice were a notice issued under that sub-section.

- (2) The Income-tax Officer shall, before issuing any notice under this section, record his reasons for doing so.
 - 149. (1) No notice under section 148 shall be issued.

10

15

Time limit for notice.

- (a) in cases falling under clause (a) of section 147-
- (i) for the relevant assessment year, if eight years have elapsed from the end of that year, unless the case falls under sub-clause (ii) **:
- (ii) for the relevant assessment year, where eight years. but not more than sixteen years, have elapsed from the end of that year, unless the income chargeable to tax which has escaped assessment amounts to or is likely to amount to rupees fifty thousand or more for that year;
- (b) in cases falling under clause (b) of section 147, at any 20 time after the expiry of four years from the end of the relevant assessment vear.
 - (2) The provisions of sub-section (1) as to the issue of notice shall be subject to the provisions of ** section 151.
- (3) If the person on whom a notice under section 148 is to be serv-25 ed is a person treated as the agent of a non-resident under section 163 and the assessment, reassessment or recomputation to be made in pursuance of the notice is to be made on him as the agent of such nonresident, the notice shall not be issued after the expiry of a period of two years from the end of the relevant assessment year.
- 150. (1) Notwithstanding anything contained in section 149, the Provision for 30 notice under section 148 may be issued at any time for the purpose assessment is of making an assessment or reassessment or recomputation in in pursuance consequence of or to give effect to any finding or direction containof an order on appeal, ed in an order passed by any authority in any proceeding under etc. 35 this Act by way of appeal, reference or revision.

(2) The provisions of sub-section (1) shall not apply in any case where any such assessment, reassessment or recomputation as is referred to in that sub-section relates to an assessment year in respect of which an assessment, re-assessment or re-computation could 40 not have been made at the time the order which was the subjectmatter of the appeal, reference or revision, as the case may be, was made by reason of any other provision limiting the time within which any action for assessment, reassessment or recomputation may be taken.

Sanction for issue of notice.

- 151. (1) No notice shall be issued under section 148 after the expiry of eight years from the end of the relevant assessment year, 5 unless the Board is satisfied on the reasons recorded by the Incometax Officer that it is a fit case for the issue of such notice.
- (2) No notice shall be issued under section 148 after the expiry of four years from the end of the relevant assessment year, unless the Commissioner is satisfied on the reasons recorded by the Incometax Officer that it is a fit case for the issue of such notice.

Other provisions.

152. (1) In an assessment, reassessment or recomputation made under section 147, the tax shall be chargeable at the rate or rates at which it would have been charged had the income not escaped assessment.

15

(2) Where an assessment is reopened in circumstances falling under clause (b) of section 147, the assessee may, if he has not impugned any part of the original assessment order for that year either under sections 246 to 248 or under section 264, claim that the proceedings under section 147 shall be dropped on his showing that 20 he had been assessed on an amount or to a sum not lower than what he would be rightly liable for even if the income alleged to have escaped assessment had been taken into account, or the assessment or computation had been properly made:

Provided that in so doing he shall not be entitled to reopen ²⁵ matters concluded by an order under section 154, 155, 260. 262 or 263.

Time limit for completion of assessments and reassessments.

- 153. (1) No order of assessment shall be made under section 143 or section 144 at any time after—
 - (a) the expiry of four years from the end of the assessment year in which the income was first assessable; or
 - (b) the expiry of eight years from the end of the assessment year in which the income was first assessable, in a case falling within clause (c) of sub-section (1) of section 271; or
 - (c) the expiry of one year from the date of the filing of a return or a revised return under sub-section (4) or sub-section 35 (5) of section 139.

(0) 01 200001 10

- whichever is latest.
- (2) No order of assessment, reassessment or recomputation shall be made under section 147—
 - (a) where the assessment, reassessment or recomputation is 40 to be made under clause (a) of that section, after the expiry of

four years from the end of the assessment year in which the notice under section 148 was served;

- (b) where the assessment, reassessment or recomputation is to be made under clause (b) of that section, after—
 - (i) the expiry of four years from the end of the assessment year in which the income was first assessable, or
 - (ii) the expiry of one year from the date of service of the notice under section 148,

whichever is later.

5

- 10 (3) The provisions of sub-sections (1) and (2) shall not apply to the following classes of assessments, reassessments and recomputations which may be completed at any time—
 - (i) where a fresh assessment is made under section 146;
- (ii) where the assessment, reassessment or recomputation is made on the assessee or any person in consequence of or to give effect to any finding or direction contained in an order under section 250, 254, **, 260, 262, 263 or 264;
- (iii) where in the case of a firm, an assessment is made on a partner of the firm in consequence of an assessment made on the firm under section 147.

Explanation 1.—In computing the period of limitation for the purposes of this section, the time taken in reopening the whole or any part of the proceeding or in giving an opportunity to the assessee to be reheard under the proviso to section 129 or any period during 25 which the assessment proceeding is stayed by an order or injunction of any court, shall be excluded.

Explanation 2.—Where, by an order under section 250, 254, **, 260, 262, 263 or 264, any income is excluded from the total income of the assessee for an assessment year, then, 30 an assessment of such income for another assessment year shall, for the purposes of section 150 and this section, be deemed to be one made in consequence of or to give effect to any finding or direction contained in the said order.

Explanation 3.—Where, by an order under section 250, 35.254, **, 260, 262, 263 or 264, any income is excluded from the total income of one person and held to be the income of another person, then, an assessment of such income on such other person shall, for the purposes of section 150 and this section, be deemed to be one made in consequence of or to give effect to any

finding or direction contained in the said order, provided such other person was given an opportunity of being heard before the said order was passed.

Rectification of mistake.

- 154. (1) With a view to rectifying any mistake apparent from the record—
 - (a) the Income-tax Officer may amend any order of assessment or of refund or any other order passed by him;

5

15

- (b) the Appellate Assistant Commissioner may amend any order passed by him in appeal under section 250;
- (c) the Commissioner may amend any order passed by him 10 in revision under section 263 or section 264.
- (2) Subject to the other provisions of this section, the authority concerned—
 - (a) may make an amendment under sub-section (1) of its own motion, and
 - (b) shall make such amendment for rectifying any such mistake which has been brought to its notice by the assessee, and where the authority concerned is the Appellate Assistant Commissioner, by the Income-tax Officer also.
- (3) An amendment, which has the effect of enhancing an assess-20 ment or reducing a refund or otherwise increasing the liability of the assessee, shall not be made under this section unless the authority concerned has given notice to the assessee of its intention so to do and has allowed the assessee a reasonable opportunity of being heard.
- (4) Where an amendment is made under this section, an order 25 shall be passed in writing by the Income-tax authority concerned.
- (5) Subject to the provisions of section 241, where any such amendment has the effect of reducing the assessment, the Incometax Officer shall make any refund which may be due to such assessee.
- (6) Where any such amendment has the effect of enhancing the 30 assessment or reducing a refund already made, the Income-tax Officer shall serve on the assessee a notice of demand in the prescribed form specifying the sum payable, and such notice of demand shall be deemed to be issued under section 156 and the provisions of this Act shall apply accordingly.
- (7) Save as otherwise provided in section 155 or sub-section (4) of section 186 no amendment under this section shall be made after the expiry of four years from the date of the order sought to be amended.

- 155. (1) Where in respect of any completed assessment of a part-other ameni-ner in a firm it is found—

 ments.
 - (a) on the assessment or reassessment of the firm, or
- (b) on any reduction or enhancement made in the income of the firm under this section, section 154, section 250, section 254, section 260, section 262, section 263 or section 264.

that the share of the partner in the income of the firm has not been included in the assessment of the partner or, if included, is not correct, the Income-tax Officer may amend the order of assessment to of the partner with a view to the inclusion of the share in the assessment or the correction thereof, as the case may be; and the provisions of section 154 shall, so far as may be, apply thereto, the period of four years specified in sub-section (7) of that section being reckoned from the date of the final order passed in the case of the firm.

- (2) Where in respect of any completed assessment of a member of an association of persons or of a body of individuals it is found—
 - (a) on the assessment or reassessment of the association or body, or
- (b) on any reduction or enhancement made in the income of the association or body under this section, section 154, section 250, section 254, section 260, section 262, section 263 or section 264,

that the share of the member in the income of the association or body, as the case may be, has not been included in the assessment of 25 the member or, if included, is not correct, the Income-tax Officer may amend the order of assessment of the member with a view to the inclusion of the share in the assessment or the correction thereof, as the case may be; and the provisions of section 154 shall, so far as may be, apply thereto, the period of four years specified in sub-section (7) of that section being reckoned from the date of the final order passed in the case of the association or body, as the case may be.

(3) Where the excess profits tax or the business profits tax payable by an assessee has been modified in appeal, revision or any other proceeding, or where any excess profits tax has been assessed after the completion of the corresponding assessment for income-tax and in consequence thereof, it is necessary to amend the total income of the assessee chargeable to income-tax, the Income-tax Officer may make the necessary amendment and the provisions of section 154 shall, so far as may be, apply thereto, the period of four years specified in sub-section (7) of that section being reckoned from the date of the order making or modifying the assessment of such excess profits tax or business profits tax, as the case may be.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this sub-section, where the assessee is a firm, the provisions of sub-section (1) shall also apply as they apply to the amendment of the assessment of the partners of the firm.

- (4) Where as a result of proceedings initiated under section 147. 5 a loss or depreciation has been recomputed and in consequence thereof it is necessary to recompute the total income of the assessee for the succeeding year or years to which the loss or depreciation allowance has been carried forward and set off under the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 72, or sub-section (2) of section 73, or 10 sub-section (1) of section 74, the Income-tax Officer may proceed to recompute the total income in respect of such year or years and make the necessary amendment; and the provisions of section 154 shall, so far as may be. apply thereto, the period of four years specified in sub-section (7) of that section being reckoned from the 15 date of the order passed under section 147.
- (5) Where an allowance by way of development rebate has been made wholly or partly to an assessee in respect of a ship, machinery or plant installed after the 31st day of December, 1957, in any assessment year under section 33 or under the corresponding provisions of 20 the Indian Income Tax Act, 1922, and subsequently—

II of 1922.

(i) at any time before the expiry of eight years from the end of the previous year in which the ship was acquired or the machinery or plant was installed, the ship, machinery or plant is sold or otherwise transferred by the assessee to any person other 25 than the Government, a local authority, a corporation established by a Central, State or Provincial Act or a Government company as defined in section 617 of the Companies Act, 1956, or in connection with any amalgamation or succession referred to in subsection (3) or sub-section (4) of section 33; or

1 of 1956.

30

- (ii) at any time before the expiry of the eight years referred to in sub-section (3) of section 34, the assessee utilises the amount credited to the reserve account under clause (a) of that sub-section-
 - (a) for distribution by way of dividends or profits; or
 - (b) for remittance outside India as profits or for the creation of any asset outside India; or
 - (c) for any other purpose which is not a purpose of the business of the undertaking;

the development rebate originally allowed shall be deemed to have 40 been wrongly allowed, and the Income-tax Officer may, notwithstanding anything contained in this Act, recompute the total income of the

assessee for the relevant previous year and make the necessary amendment; and the provisions of section 154 shall, so far as may be, apply thereto, the period of four years specified in sub-section (7) of that section being reckoned from the end of the previous year 5 in which the sale or transfer took place or the money was so utilised.

- (6) Where any such debt or part of debt as is referred to in clause (vii) of sub-section (1) of section 36 is written off as irrecoverable in the accounts of the assessee for a previous year and the Income-tax Officer is satisfied that such debt or part thereof became a bad debt in an earlier previous year not falling beyond a period of four previous years immediately preceding the previous year in which the debt or part is written off, the Income-tax Officer may, notwithstanding anything contained in this Act, allow 15 such debt or part as a deduction for such earlier previous year, if the assessee accepts such a finding of the Income-tax Officer, and recompute the total income of the assessee for such earlier previous year and make the necessary amendment; and the provisions of section 154 shall, so far as may be, apply thereto, the period of four 20 years specified in sub-section (7) of that section being reckoned from the end of the financial year in which the assessment relating to the previous year in which the debt is written off is made.
- (7) Where as a result of any proceeding under this Act, in the assessment for any year of a company in whose case an order under section 104 has been made for that year, it is necessary to recompute the distributable income of that company, the Income-tax Officer may proceed to recompute the distributable income and determine the supertax payable on the basis of such recomputation and make the necessary amendment, and the provisions of section 154 shall, so far as may be, apply thereto, the period of four years specified in sub-section (7) of that section being reckoned from the date of the final order passed in the case of the company in respect of that proceeding.
- (8) Where in the assessment for any year a capital gain arising from the transfer of any such capital asset as is referred to in section 54 is charged to tax and within a period of one year after the date of the transfer the assessee purchases, or within two years from that date constructs, a house property for the purpose of his own residence, the Income-tax Officer shall amend the order of assessment so as to exclude the amount of the capital gain not chargeable to tax under the provosions of section 54 and the provisions of section 154 shall, so far as may be, apply thereto, the period 660 (B) L.S.—22.

of four years specified in sub-section (7) of that section being reckoned from the date of the assessment.

Notice of demand.

156. When any tax, interest, penalty, fine or any other sum is payable in consequence of any order passed under this Act, the Income-tax Officer shall serve upon the assessee a notice of demand in 5 the prescribed form specifying the sum so payable.

Intimation of loss.

157. When, in the course of the assessment of the total income of any assessee, it is established that a loss has taken place which the assessee is entitled to have carried forward and set off under the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 72, sub-section (2) of section 73 or sub-section (1) of section 74, the Income-tax Officer shall notify to the assessee by an order in writing the amount of the loss as computed by him for the purposes of sub-section (1) of section 72, sub-section (2) of section 73 or sub-section (1) of section 74.

Intimation of assessment of firm.

158. Whenever a registered firm is assessed, or an unregistered 15 firm is assessed under the provisions of clause (b) of section 183, the Income-tax Officer shall notify to the firm by an order in writing the amount of its total income assessed and the apportionment thereof between the several partners.

CHAPTER XV

20

LIABILITY IN SPECIAL CASES

A.—Legal representatives

Legal representatives.

- 159. (1) Where a person dies, his legal representative shall be liable to pay any sum which the deceased would have been liable to pay if he had not died, in the like manner and to the same extent as 25 the deceased.
- (2) For the purpose of making an assessment (including an assessment, reassessment or recomputation under section 147) of the income of the deceased and for the purpose of levying any sum in the hands of the legal representative in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (1),—
 - (a) any proceeding taken against the deceased before his death shall be deemed to have been taken against the legal repre-

sentative and may be continued against the legal representative from the stage at which it stood on the date of the death of the deceased;

(b) any proceeding which could have been taken against the deceased if he had survived, may be taken against the legal representative; and

5

25

- (c) all the provisions of this Act shall apply accordingly.
- (3) The legal representative of the deceased shall, for the purposes of this Act, be deemed to be an assessee.
- (4) Every legal representative shall be personally liable for any tax payable by him in his capacity as legal representative if, while his liability for tax remains undischarged, he creates a charge on or disposes of or parts with any assets of the estate of the deceased, which are in, or may come into, his possession, but such liability shall be limited to the value of the asset so charged, disposed of or parted with.
- (5) The provisions of sub-section (2) of section 161, section 162 and section 167, shall, so far as may be and to the extent to which they are not inconsistent with the provisions of this section, apply 20 in relation to a legal representative.
 - (6) The liability of a legal representative under this section shall, subject to the provisions of sub-section (4) and sub-section (5), be limited to the extent to which the estate is capable of meeting the liability.
 - B.—Representative assessees—general provisions
 - 160. (1) For the purposes of this Act, "representative assessee" Representative assessee means—
- (i) in respect of the income of a non-resident specified in clause (i) of sub-section (1) of section 9, the agent of the non-resident, including a person who is treated as an agent under section 163;
 - (ii) in respect of the income of a minor, lunatic or idiot, the guardian or manager who is entitled to receive or is in receipt of such income on behalf of such minor, lunatic or idiot;
- 35 (ni) in respect of income which the Court of Wards, the Administrator-General, the Official Trustee or any receiver or

manager (including any person, whatever his designation, who in fact manages property on behalf of another) appointed by or under any order of a court, receives or is entitled to receive, on behalf or for the benefit of any person, such Court of Wards, Administrator-General, Official Trustee, receiver or manager;

(iv) in respect of income which a trustee appointed under a trust declared by a duly executed instrument in writing whether testamentary or otherwise (including any Wakf deed which is valid under the Mussalman Wakf Validating Act, 1913) receives or is entitled to receive on behalf or for the benefit of any per- 10 son, such trustee or trustees.

6 of 1913.

(2) Every representative assessee shall be deemed to be an assessee for the purposes of this Act.

Liability of representa-

- 161. (1) Every representative assessee, as regards the income in representa-five assessee, respect of which he is a representative assessee, shall be subject to 15 the same duties, responsibilities and liabilities as if the income were income received by or accruing to or in favour of him beneficially, and shall be liable to assessment in his own name in respect of that income; but any such assessment shall be deemed to be made upon him in his representative capacity only, and the tax shall, subject to 20 the other provisions contained in this Chapter, be levied upon and recovered from him in like manner and to the same extent as it would be leviable upon and recoverable from the person represented Brand familia by him.
 - (2) Where any person is, in respect of any income, assessable 25 under this Chapter in the capacity of a representative assessee, he shall not, in respect of that income, be assessed under any other provision of this Act.

Right of representativo sosessee to recover taw paid.

- 162. (1) Every representative assessee who, as such, pays any sum under this Act, shall be entitled to recover the sum so paid from the 30 person on whose behalf it is paid, or to retain out of any moneys that may be in his possession or may come to him in his representative capacity, an amount equal to the sum so paid.
- (2) Any representative assessee, or any person who apprehends that he may be assessed as a representative assessee, may retain out 35 of any money payable by him to the person on whose behalf he is liable to pay tax (hereinafter in this section referred to as the principal), a sum equal to his estimated liability under this Chapter, and in the event of any disagreement between the principal and such representative assessee or person as to the amount to be so retained, 40 such representative assessee or person may secure from the Incometax Officer a certificate stating the amount to be so retained pending

final settlement of the liability, and the certificate so obtained shall be his warrant for retaining that amount.

(3) The amount recoverable from such representative assessee or person at the time of final settlement shall not exceed the amount 5 specified in such certificate, except to the extent to which such representative assessee or person may at such time have in his hands additional assets of the principal.

C.—Representative assessees—special cases

- 163. (1) For the purposes of this Act, "agent", in relation to a who may be regarded 10 non-resident, includes any person in Indiaas agent.
 - (a) who is employed by or on behalf of the non-resident; or
 - (b) who has any business connection with the non-resident; or
- (c) from or through whom the non-resident is in receipt of 15 any income, whether directly or indirectly; or
 - (d) who is the trustee of the non-resident:

and includes also any other person who, whether a resident or nonresident, has acquired by means of a transfer, a capital asset in India:

Provided that a broker in India who in respect of any transac-20 tions, does not deal directly with or on behalf of a non-resident principal but deals with or through a non-resident broker shall not be deemed to be an agent under this section in respect of such transactions, if the following conditions are fulfilled, namely:—

- (i) the transactions are carried on in the ordinary course of business through the first-mentioned broker; and 25
 - (ii) the non-resident broker is carrying on such transactions in the ordinary course of his business and not as a principal.
- (2) No person shall be treated as the agent of a non-resident unless he had had an opportunity of being heard by the Income-tax 30 Officer as to his liability to be treated as such.
- 164. Where any income in respect of which the persons mentioned that where in clauses (iii) and (iv) of sub-section (1) of section 160 are liable share of as representative assessees or any part thereof, is not specifically benediciaries unknown. receivable on behalf or for the benefit of any one person, or where 35 the individual shares of the persons on whose behalf or for whose benefit such income or such part thereof is receivable (which persons are hereinafter in this section referred to as the beneficiaries) are indeterminate or unknown, tax shall be charged as if such income or

such part thereof were the total income of an association of persons, or, where such income or such part thereof is actually received by a beneficiary, then at the rate or rates applicable to the total income or total world income of the beneficiary if such course would result in a benefit to the revenue.

Case where part of trust income is chargeable,

165. Where part only of the income of a trust is chargeable under this Act, that proportion only of the income receivable by a beneficiary from the trust which the part so chargeable bears to the whole income of the trust shall be deemed to have been derived from that part.

10

15

25

D.—Representative assessees—miscellaneous provisions

Direct
assessment
or recovery
not barred.

166. Nothing in the foregoing sections in this Chapter shall prevent either the direct assessment of the person on whose behalf or for whose benefit income therein referred to is receivable, or the recovery from such person of the tax payable in respect of such income.

Remedies against property in cases of representative assessees.

167. The Income-tax Officer shall have the same remedies against all property of any kind vested in or under the control or management of any representative assessee as he would have against the property of any person liable to pay any tax, and in as full and ample a manner, whether the demand is raised against the representative 20 assessee or against the beneficiary direct.

E.—Executors

Executors.

- 168. (1) Subject as hereinafter provided, the income of the estate of a deceased person shall be chargeable to tax in the hands of the executor,—
 - (a) if there is only one executor, then, as if the executor were an individual; or
 - (b) if there are more executors than one, then, as if the executors were an association of persons;

and for the purposes of this Act, the executor shall be deemed to be 30 resident or non-resident according as the deceased person was a resident or non-resident during the previous year in which his death took place.

- (2) The assessment of an executor under this section shall be made separately from any assessment that may be made on him in 35 respect of his own income.
- (3) Separate assessments shall be made under this section on the total income of each completed previous year or part thereof as is included in the period from the date of the death to the date of

complete distribution to the beneficiaries of the estate according to their several interests.

(4) In computing the total income of any previous year under this section, any income of the estate of that previous year distri-5 buted to, or applied to the benefit of, any specific legatee of the estate during that previous year shall be excluded; but the income so excluded shall be included in the total income of the previous year of such specific legatee.

Explanation.—In this section, "executor" includes an administrator 10 or other person administering the estate of a deceased person.

169. The provisions of section 162 shall, so far as may be, apply Right of in the case of an executor in respect of tax paid or payable by him recover tax as they apply in the case of a representative assessee.

F.—Succession to business or profession

170. (1) Where a person carrying on any business or profession Succession to business 15 (such person hereinafter in this section being referred to as the otherwise predecessor) has been succeeded therein by any other person (here-than on death. inafter in this section referred to as the successor) who continues to carry on that business or profession,—

- (a) the predecessor shall be assessed in respect of the income 20 of the previous year in which the succession took place up to the date of succession;
 - (b) the successor shall be assessed in respect of the income of the previous year after the date of succession.
- (2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (1), when the predecessor cannot be found, the assessment of the income of the previous year in which the succession took place up to the date of succession and of the previous year preceding that year shall be made on the successor in like manner and to the same extent as it 30 would have been made on the predecessor, and all the provisions of this Act shall, so far as may be, apply accordingly.
- (3) When any sum payable under this section in respect of the income of such business or profession for the previous year in which the succession took place up to the date of succession or for the 35 previous year preceding that year, assessed on the predecessor, cannot be recovered from him, the Income-tax Officer shall record a finding to that effect and the sum payable by the predecessor shall thereafter be payable by and recoverable from the successor, and the successor shall be entitled to recover from the predecessor any sum so paid.

(4) Where any business or profession carried on by a Hindu undivided family is succeeded to, and simultaneously with the succession or after the succession there has been a partition of the joint family property between the members or groups of members, the tax due in respect of the income of the business or profession 5 succeeded to, up to the date of succession, shall be assessed and recovered in the manner provided in section 171, but without prejudice to the provisions of this section.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, "income" includes any gain accruing from the transfer, in any manner whatsoever, of IC the business or profession as a result of the succession.

G.—Partition

Assessment after partition of a Hindu undivided family.

- 171. (1) A Hindu family hitherto assessed as undivided shall be deemed for the purposes of this Act to continue to be a Hindu undivided family, except where and in so far as a finding of partition 15 has been given under this section in respect of the Hindu undivided family.
- (2) Where, at the time of making an assessment under section 143 or section 144, it is claimed by or on behalf of any member of a Hindu family assessed as undivided that a partition, whether total or partial, 20 has taken place among the members of such family, the Income-tax Officer shall make an inquiry thereinto after giving notice of the inquiry to all the members of the family.
- (3) On the completion of the inquiry, the Income-tax Officer shall record a finding as to whether there has been a total or partial 25 partition of the joint family property, and, if there has been such a partition, the date on which it has taken place.
- (4) Where a finding of total or partial partition has been recorded by the Income-tax Officer under this section, and the partition took place during the previous year,—
 - (a) the total income of the joint family in respect of the period up to the date of partition shall be assessed as if no partition had taken place; and
 - (b) each member or group of members shall, in addition to any tax for which he or it may be separately liable and notwith-35 standing anything contained in clause (2) of section 10, be jointly and severally liable for the tax on the income so assessed.
- (5) Where a finding of total or partial partition has been recorded by the Income-tax Officer under this section, and the partition took place after the expiry of the previous year, the total income of the 40

previous year of the joint family shall be assessed as if no partition had taken place; and the provisions of clause (b) of sub-section (4) shall, so far as may be, apply to the case.

- (6) Notwithstanding anything contained in this section, if the 5 Income-tax Officer finds after completion of the assessment of a Hindu undivided family that the family has already effected a partition, whether total or partial, the Income-tax Officer shall proceed to recover the tax from every person who was a member of the family before the partition, and every such person shall be jointly and 10 severally liable for the tax on the income so assessed.
 - (7) For the purposes of this section, the several liability of any member or group of members thereunder shall be computed according to the portion of the joint family property allotted to him or it at the partition, whether total or partial.
- 15 (8) The provisions of this section shall, so far as may be, apply in relation to the levy and collection of any penalty, interest, fine or other sum in respect of any period up to the date of the partition, whether total or partial, of a Hindu undivided family as they apply in relation to the levy and collection of tax in respect of any such 20 period.

Explanation.—In this section,—

25

30

(a) "partition" means—

- (i) where the property admits of a physical division, a physical division of the property, but a physical division of the income without a physical division of the property producing the income shall not be deemed to be a partition; or
 - (ii) where the property does not admit of a physical division, then such division as the property admits of, but a mere severance of status shall not be deemed to be a partition;
- (b) "partial partition" means a partition which is partial as regards the persons constituting the Hindu undivided family, or the properties belonging to the Hindu undivided family, or both.

H.—Profits of non-residents from occasional shipping business

35 172. (1) The provisions of this section shall, notwithstanding Shipping anything contained in the other provisions of this Act, apply for the business of non-purpose of the levy and recovery of tax in the case of any ship, residents. belonging to or chartered by a non-resident, which carries passengers, live-stock, mail or goods shipped at a port in India, unless the 660 (B) L.S.—23.

Income-tax Officer is satisfied that there is an agent of the non-resident from whom the tax will be recoverable under the other provisions of this Act.

- (2) Where such a ship carries passengers, live-stock, mail or goods shipped at a port in India, one-sixth of the amount paid or payable on account of such carriage to the owner or the charterer or to any person on his behalf, whether that amount is paid or payable in or out of India, shall be deemed to be income accruing in India to the owner or charterer on account of such carriage.
- (3) Before the departure from any port in India of any such ¹⁰ ship, the master of the ship shall prepare and furnish to the Income-tax Officer a return of the full amount paid or payable to the owner or charterer or any person on his behalf, on account of the carriage of all passengers, live-stock, mail or goods shipped at that port since the last arrival of the ship thereat:

Provided that where the Income-tax Officer is satisfied that it is not possible for the master of the ship to furnish the return required by this sub-section before the departure of the ship from the port and provided the master of the ship has made satisfactory arrangements for the filing of the return and payment of the tax by any other person 20 on his behalf, the Income-tax Officer may, if the return is filed within thirty days of the departure of the ship, deem the filing of the return by the person so authorised by the master as sufficient compliance with this sub-section.

- (4) On receipt of the return, the Income-tax Officer shall assess 25 the income referred to in sub-section (2) and determine the sum payable as tax thereon at the rate or rates for the time being applicable to the total income of a company which has not made the arrangements referred to in section 194 and such sum shall be payable by the master of the ship.
- (5) For the purpose of determining the tax payable under subsection (4), the Income-tax Officer may call for such accounts or documents as he may require.
- (6) A port clearance shall not be granted to the ship until the Collector of Customs, or other officer duly authorised to grant the 35 same, is satisfied that the tax assessable under this section has been duly paid or that satisfactory arrangements have been made for the payment thereof.

(7) Nothing in this section shall be deemed to prevent the owner or charterer of a ship from claiming before the expiry of the assessment year relevant to the previous year in which the date of departure of the ship from the Indian port falls, that an assessment be made of 5 his total income of the previous year and the tax payable on the basis thereof be determined in accordance with the other provisions of this Act, and if he so claims, any payment made under this section in respect of the passengers, live-stock, mail or goods shipped at Indian ports during that previous year shall be treated as a payment in 10 advance of the tax leviable for that assessment year, and the difference between the sum so paid and the amount of tax found payable by him on such assessment shall be paid by him or refunded to him, as the case may be.

I.—Recovery of tax in respect of non-residents

173. Without prejudice to the provisions of sub-section (1) of sec- Recovery of 15 tion 161 or of section 167, where the person entitled to the income pect of nonreferred to in clause (i) of sub-section (1) of section 9 is a non-resident resident, the tax chargeable thereon, whether in his name or in the assets. name of his agent who is liable as a representative assessee, may be 20 recovered by deduction under any of the provisions of Chapter XVII-B and any arrears of tax may be recovered also in accordance with the provisions of this Act from any assets of the non-resident which are, or may at any time come, within India.

J.—Persons leaving India

25 174. (1) Notwithstanding anything contained in section 4, when Assessment it appears to the Income-tax Officer that any individual may leave of persons leaving India during the current assessment year or shortly after its expiry India. and that he has no present intention of returning to India, the total income of such individual for the period from the expiry of the pre-30 vious year for that assessment year up to the probable date of his departure from India shall be chargeable to tax in that assessment year.

- (2) The total income of each completed previous year or part of any previous year included in such period shall be chargeable to tax 35 at the rate or rates in force in that assessment year, and separate assessments shall be made in respect of each such completed previous year or part of any previous year.
- (3) The Income-tax Officer may estimate the income of such individual for such period or any part thereof, where it cannot be 40 readily determined in the manner provided in this Act.

- (4) For the purpose of making an assessment under sub-section (1), the Income-tax Officer may serve a notice upon such individual requiring him to furnish, within such time, not being less than seven days, as may be specified in the notice, a return in the same form and verified in the same manner as a return under sub-section (2) of section 139, setting forth his total income for each completed previous year comprised in the period referred to in sub-section (1) and his estimated total income for any part of the previous year comprised in that period; and the provisions of this Act shall, so far as may be, and subject to the provisions of this section, apply as if the notice 10 were a notice issued under sub-section (2) of section 139.
- (5) The tax chargeable under this section shall be in addition to the tax, if any, chargeable under any other provision of this Act.
- (6) Where the provisions of sub-section (1) are applicable, any notice issued by the Income-tax Officer under sub-section (2) of 15 section 139 or sub-section (1) of section 148 in respect of any tax chargeable under any other provision of this Act may, notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (2) of section 139 or sub-section (1) of section 148, as the case may be, require the furnishing of the return by such individual within such period, not being less than seven 20 days, as the Income-tax Officer may think proper.

K.—Persons trying to alienate their assets

Assessment of persons likely to transfer property to avoid tax.

175. Notwithstanding anything contained in section 4, if it appears to the Income-tax Officer during any current assessment year that any person is likely to charge, sell, transfer, dispose of or otherwise 25 part with any of his assets with a view to avoiding payment of any liability under the provisions of this Act, the total income of such person for the period from the expiry of the previous year for that assessment year to the date when the Income-tax Officer commences proceedings under this section shall be chargeable to tax in that 30 assessment year, and the provisions of sub-sections (2), (3), (4), (5) and (6) of section 174 shall, so far as may be, apply to any proceedings in the case of any such person as they apply in the case of persons leaving India.

L-Discontinuance of business, or dissolution

35

Discontinued business. 176. (1) Notwithstanding anything contained in section 4, where any business or profession is discontinued in any assessment year, the income of the period from the expiry of the previous year for

that assessment year up to the date of such discontinuance may, at the discretion of the Income-tax Officer, be charged to tax in that assessment year.

- (2) The total income of each * * * completed previous year or 5 part of any previous year included in such period shall be chargeable to tax at the rate or rates in force in that assessment year, and separate assessments shall be made in respect of each such completed previous year or part of any previous year.
- (3) Any person discontinuing any business or profession shall give 10 to the Income-tax Officer notice of such discontinuance within fifteen days thereof.
- (4) Where any profession is discontinued in any year on account of the cessation of the profession by, or the retirement or death of, the person carrying on the profession, any sum received after the discontinuance shall be deemed to be the income of the recipient and charged to tax accordingly in the year of receipt, if such sum would have been included in the total income of the aforesaid person had it been received before such discontinuance.
- (5) Where an assessment is to be made under the provisions of 20 this section, the Income-tax Officer may serve on the person whose income is to be assessed or, in the case of a firm, on any person who was a partner of such firm at the time of its discontinuance or, in the case of a company, on the principal officer thereof, a notice containing all or any of the requirements which may be included in a notice under sub-section (2) of section 139 and the provisions of this Act shall, so far as may be, apply accordingly as if the notice were a notice issued under sub-section (2) of section 139.
 - (6) The tax chargeable under this section shall be in addition to the tax, if any, chargeable under any other provision of this Act.
- (7) Where the provisions of sub-section (1) are applicable, any notice issued by the Income-tax Officer under sub-section (2) of section 139 or sub-section (1) of section 148 in respect of any tax chargeable under any other provisions of this Act may, notwith-standing anything contained in sub-section (2) of section 139 or sub-section (1) of section 148, as the case may be, require the furnishing of the return by the person to whom the aforesaid notices are issued within such period, not being less than seven days, as the Income-tax Officer may think proper.

Association dissolved or business discontinued.

- 177. (1) Where any business or profession carried on by association of persons has been discontinued or where an association of persons is dissolved, the Income-tax Officer shall make an assessment of the total income of the association of persons as if no such discontinuance or dissolution had taken place, and all the provisions 5 of this Act, including the provisions relating to the levy of a penalty or any other sum chargeable under any provision of this Act shall apply, so far as may be, to such assessment.
- (2) Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing subsection, if the Income-tax Officer or the Appellate Assistant Commis- 10 sioner *** in the course of any proceeding under this Act in respect of any such association of persons as is referred to in that sub-section is satisfied that the association of persons wa guilty of any of the acts specified in Chapter XXI, he ** may impose or direct the imposition of a penalty in accordance with the provisions of that Chapter. 15
- (3) Every person who was at the time of such discontinuance or dissolution a member of the association of persons, and the legal representative of any such person who is deceased, shall be jointly and severally liable for the amount of tax, penalty or other sum payable, and all the provisions of this Act, so far as may be, shall 20 apply to any such assessment or imposition of penalty or other sum.
- (4) Where such discontinuance or dissolution takes place after any proceedings in respect of an assessment year have commenced, the proceedings may be continued against the persons referred to in sub-section (3) from the stage at which the proceedings stood 25 at the time of such discontinuance or dissolution, and all the provisions of this Act shall, so far as may be, apply accordingly.
- (5) Nothing in this section shall affect the provisions of subsection (6) of section 159.

Company in liquidation.

178. (1) Every person—

30

- (a) who is the liquidator of any company which is being wound up, whether under the orders of a court or otherwise; or
- (b) who has been appointed the receiver of any assets of a company,

(hereinafter referred to as the liquidator) shall, within thirty 35 days after he has become such liquidator, give notice of his appointment as such to the Income-tax Officer who is entitled to assess the income of the company.

(2) The Income-tax Officer shall, after making such enquiries or calling for such information as he may deem fit, notify to the 40

liquidator within three months from the date on which he receives notice of the appointment of the liquidator the amount which, in the opinion of the Income-tax Officer, would be sufficient to provide for any tax which is then, or is likely thereafter to become, payable 5 by the company.

- (3) On being notified by the Income-tax Officer under subsection (2), the liquidator shall set aside an amount equal to the amount so notified and until he so sets aside such amount, he shall not part with any of the assets of the company or the properties in 10 his hands except for the purpose aforesaid or for making any payment to secured creditors whose debts are entitled under law to priority of payment over debts due to Government on the date of liquidation.
- (4) The liquidator shall, if he has not set aside the amount noti-15 fied under sub-section (2), be personally liable to the extent of that amount for the payment of the tax on behalf of the company.
 - (5) Where there are more liquidators than one, the obligations and liabilities attached to the liquidator under this section shall attach to all the liquidators jointly and severally.
- (6) The provisions of this section shall have effect notwith-20 standing anything to the contrary contained in any other law for the time being in force.

M.—Private company in liquidation

179. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Companies Act, Liability of 1956, when any private company is wound up after the commence- directors of ment of this Act, and any tax assessed on the company, whether private combefore or in the course of or after its liquidation, in respect of any liquidation. income of any previous year cannot be recovered, then, every person who was a director of the private company at any time during the relevant previous year shall be jointly and severally liable for the payment of such tax unless he proves that the non-recovery can not be attributed to any gross neglect, misfeasance or breach of duty on his part in relation to the affairs of the company.

N.—Special provisions for certain kinds of income

180. Where the time taken by the author of a literary or artistic Royalties or work in the making thereof is more than twelve months, the amount fees for literreceived or receivable by him during any previous year

account of any lump sum consideration for the assignment or grant of any of his interests in the copyright of that work or of royalties or copyright fees (whether receivable in lump sum or otherwise), in respect of that work, shall, if he so claims, be allocated for purposes of assessment in such manner and to such period as may be prescribed.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, the expression "author" includes a joint author, and the expression "lump sum", in regard to royalties or copyright fees, includes an advance payment on account of such royalties or copyright fees which is not 10 returnable.

O.—Liability of State Governments

Interest on
tax free
securities of
a State
Government

181. Income-tax shall be payable by a State Government on the interest on any security issued by it tax free.

CHAPTER XVI

15

SPECIAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO FIRMS

A.—Assessment of firms

Assessment of registered firms.

182. (1) Notwithstanding anything contained in sections 143 and and subject to the provisions of sub-section (3), in the case of a registered firm, after assessing the total income of the firm,—

20

- (i) the income-tax payable by the firm itself shall be determined; and
- (ii) the share of each partner in the income of the firm shall be included in his total income and assessed to tax accordingly.

25

- (2) If such share of any partner is a loss it shall be set off against his other income or carried forward and set off in accordance with the provisions of sections 70 to 75.
- (3) When any of the partners of a registered firm is a non-resident, the tax on his share in the income of the firm shall be assessed

on the firm at the rate or rates which would be applicable if it were assessed on him personally, and the tax so assessed shall be paid by the firm.

- (4) A registered firm may retain out of the share of each partner 5 in the income of the firm a sum not exceeding thirty per cent. thereof until such time as the tax which may be levied on the partner in respect of that share is paid by him; and where the tax so levied cannot be recovered from the partner, whether wholly or in part, the firm shall be liable to pay the tax, to the extent of the amount 10 retained or could have been so retained.
 - 183. In the case of an unregistered firm, the Income-tax Officer—Assessment

of unregistered firms.

- (a) may determine the tax payable by the firm itself on the basis of the total income of the firm: or
- (b) if, in his opinion, the aggregate amount of the tax payable by the partners if the firm were treated as a registered firm would be greater than the aggregate amount of the tax which would be payable by the firm under clause (a) and the tax which would be payable by the partners individually, may proceed to make the assessment under clause (ii) of sub-section (1) of section 182 as if the firm were a registered firm; and where the procedure specified in this clause is applied to any unregistered firm, the provisions of sub-sections (2), (3) and (4) of section 182 shall apply thereto as they apply in the case of a registered firm.

15

20

25

B.—Registration of firms

- 184. (1) An application for registration of a firm for the pur-Application poses of this Act may be made to the Income-tax Officer on behalf tration. of any firm if-
 - (i) the partnership is evidenced by an instrument; and
- (ii) the individual shares of the partners are specified in 30 that instrument.
 - (2) Such application may, subject to the provisions of this section, be made either during the existence of the firm or after its dissolution.
- (3) The application shall be made to the Income-tax Officer having 35 jurisdiction to assess the firm, and shall be signed-
 - (a) by all the partners (not being minors) personally; or
 - (b) in the case of a dissolved firm, by all persons (not being minors) who were partners in the firm immediately before its 660 (B) L.S.-24.

dissolution and by the legal representative of any such partner who is deceased.

Explanation.—In the case of any partner who is absent from India or is a lunatic or an idiot, the application may be signed by any person duly authorised by him in this behalf, or, as the case may be, by a person entitled under law to represent him.

(4) The application shall be made before the end of the previous year for the assessment year in respect of which registration is sought:

Provided that the Income-tax Officer may entertain an application made after the end of the previous year, if he is satisfied that the firm was prevented by sufficient cause from making the application before the end of the previous year.

(5) The application shall be accompanied by the original instrument evidencing the partnership, together with a copy thereof:

Provided that if the Income-tax Officer is satisfied that for sufficient reason the original instrument cannot conveniently be produced, he may accept a copy of it certified in writing by all the partners (not being minors), or, where the application is made after the dissolution of the firm, by all the persons referred to in 20 clause (b) of sub-section (3), to be a correct copy, or a certified copy of the instrument; and in such cases the application shall be accompanied by a duplicate copy of the original instrument.

- (6) The application shall be made in the prescribed form and shall contain the prescribed particulars.
- (7) Where registration is granted to any firm for any assessment year, it shall have effect for every subsequent assessment year:

Provided that-

_

- (i) there is no change in the constitution of the firm or the shares of the partners as evidenced by the instrument of 30 partnership on the basis of which the registration was granted; and
- (ii) the firm furnishes, along with its return of income for the assessment year concerned, a declaration to that effect, in the prescribed form and verified in the prescribed manner.
- (8) Where any such change has taken place in the previous year, the firm shall apply for fresh registration for the assessment year concerned in accordance with the provisions of this section

Procedure or 185. (1) On receipt of an application for the registration of a receipt of pplication, firm, the Income-tax Officer shall inquire into the genuineness of 40

25

the firm and its constitution as specified in the instrument of partnership, and-

(a) if he is satisfied that there is or was during the previous year in existence a genuine firm with the constitution so specified, he shall pass an order in writing registering the firm for the assessment year;

5

- (b) if he is not so satisfied, he shall pass an order in writing refusing to register the firm.
- (2) The Income-tax Officer shall not reject an application for 10 registration merely on the ground that the application is not in order, but shall intimate the defect to the firm and give it an opportunity to rectify the defect in the application within a period of one month from the date of such intimation.
- (3) If the defect is not rectified within such time, the Income-tax 15 Officer may reject the application.
- (4) Where a firm is registered for any assessment year, Income-tax Officer shall record a certificate on the instrument of partnership or on the certified copy submitted in lieu of the original instrument, as the case may be, to the effect that the firm has been 20 registered under this Act, for that assessment year; and where a declaration under sub-section (7) of section 184 is furnished by the firm, for the relevant subsequent assessment year.
- (5) Notwithstanding anything contained in this section, where, in respect of any assessment year, there is, on the part of a firm, 25 any such failure as is mentioned in section 144, the Income-tax Officer may refuse to register the firm for the assessment year.
- 186. (1) If, where a firm has been registered, or its registration Cancellation has effect under sub-section (7) of section 184 for an assessment of registrayear, the Income-tax Officer is of opinion that there was during the 30 previous year no genuine firm in existence as registered, he may, after giving the firm a reasonable opportunity of being heard and with the previous approval of the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner, cancel the registration of the firm for that assessment year:

Provided that no such cancellation shall be made after the expiry 35 of eight years from the end of the assessment year in respect of which registration has been granted or has effect.

⁽²⁾ If, where a firm has been registered or its registration has effect under sub-section (7) of section 184 for any assessment year, there is, on the part of the firm, any such failure in respect of the 40 assessment year as is mentioned in section 144, the Income-tax Officer may cancel the registration of the firm for the assessment year, after giving the firm not less than fourteen days' notice inti-

mating his intention to cancel its registration and after giving it a reasonable opportunity of being heard.

- (3) Where the registration of a firm is cancelled for any assessment year, the Income-tax Officer shall amend the assessments of the firm and its partners for that assessment year on the footing 5 that the firm is an unregistered firm.
- (4) The provisions of section 154 shall, so far as may be, apply to the amendments of the assessments of the firm and its partners under sub-section (3) of this section, the period of four years specified in sub-section (7) of that section being reckoned from the date 10 of the order cancelling the registration.
 - C.—Changes in constitution, succession and dissolution

Change in constitution of a firm,

187. (1) Where at the time of making an assessment under section 143 or section 144 it is found that a change has occurred in the constitution of a firm, the assessment shall be made on the firm as 15 constituted at the time of making the assessment:

Provided that-

- (i) the income of the previous year shall, for the purposes of inclusion in the total incomes of the partners, be apportioned between the partners who, in such previous year, were entitled ²⁰ to receive the same; and
- (ii) when the tax assessed upon a partner cannot be recovered from him, it shall be recovered from the firm as constituted at the time of making the assessment.
- (2) For the purposes of this section, there is a change in the 25 constitution of the firm—
 - (a) if one or more of the partners cease to be partners or one or more new partners are admitted, in such circumstances that one or more of the persons who were partners of the firm before the change continue as partner or partners after the 30 change; or
 - (b) where all the partners continue with a change in their respective shares or in the shares of some of them.

Succession of one firm by another; firm. 188. Where a firm carrying on a business or profession is succeeded by another firm, and the case is not one covered by section 35 187, separate assessments shall be made on the predecessor firm and the successor firm in accordance with the provisions of section 170,

Firm dissolved or business discontinued.

189. (1) Where any business or profession carried on by a firm has been discontinued or where a firm is dissolved, the Income-tax Officer shall make an assessment of the total income of the firm 40

as if no such discontinuance or dissolution had taken place, and all the provisions of this Act, including the provisions relating to the levy of a penalty or any other sum chargeable under any provi-. sion of this Act, shall apply, so far as may be, to such assessment.

- (2) Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing sub-5 section, if the Income-tax Officer or the Appellate Assistant Commissioner *** in the course of any proceeding under this Act in respect of any such firm as is referred to in that sub-section is satisfied that the firm was guilty of any of the acts specified in Chapter XXI he ** no may impose or direct the imposition of a penalty in accordance with the provisions of that Chapter.
- (3) Every person who was at the time of such discontinuance or dissolution a partner of the firm, and the legal representative of any such person who is deceased, shall be jointly and severally 15 liable for the amount of tax, penalty or other sum payable, and all the provisions of this Act, so far as may be, shall apply to any such assessment or imposition of penalty or other sum.
- (4) Where such discontinuance or dissolution takes place after any proceedings in respect of an assessment year have commenced, 20 the proceedings may be continued against the persons referred to in sub-section (3) from the stage at which the proceedings stood at the time of such discontinuance or dissolution, and all the provisions of this Act shall, so far as may be, apply accordingly.
- (5) Nothing in this section shall affect the provisions of sub-25 section (6) of section 159.

CHAPTER XVII

COLLECTION AND RECOVERY OF TAX

A.—General

190. (1) Notwithstanding that the regular assessment in respect Deduction at 30 of any income is to be made in a later assessment year, the tax on source and advance such income shall be payable by deduction at source or by advance payment. payment, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter.

- (2) Nothing in this section shall prejudice the charge of tax on 35 such income under the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 4.
- 191. (1) In the case of income in respect of which provision is Direct not made under this Chapter for deducting income-tax at the time payment. of payment, and in any case where income-tax has not been deducted in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter, income-tax shall 40 be payable by the assessee direct.
 - (2) Save as provided in this Chapter, super-tax shall be payable by the assessee direct.

B -Deduction at source

Salary.

- 192. (1) Any person responsible for paying any income chargeable under the head "Salaries" shall, at the time of payment, deduct income-tax and super-tax on the amount payable at the average rate of income-tax and average rate of super-tax respectively computed on the basis of the rates of tax in force for the financial year in which the payment is made, on the estimated income of the assessee under this head for that financial year.
- (2) Any person responsible for paying any income chargeable under the head "Salaries" to a non-resident, not being a citizen of 10 India in receipt of salary from the Government for rendering service outside India, shall, at the time of payment, deduct tax at the rates in force on the estimated income of the assessee under this head for the financial year.
- (3) The person responsible for making the payment referred to in sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) may, at the time of making any deduction, increase or reduce the amount to be deducted under this section for the purpose of adjusting any excess or deficiency arising out of any previous deduction or failure to deduct during the financial year.
- (4) The trustees of a recognised provident fund, or any person authorised by the regulations of the fund to make payment of accumulated balances due to employees, shall, in cases where sub-rule (1) of rule 9 of Part A of the Fourth Schedule applies, at the time an accumulated balance due to an employee is paid, make 25 therefrom the deduction provided in rule 10 of Part A of the Fourth Schedule.
- (5) Where any contribution made by an employer, including interest on such contributions, if any, in an approved superannuation fund is paid to the employee, income-tax and super-tax on the amount so paid shall be deducted by the trustees of the fund to the extent provided in rule 6 of Part B of the Fourth Schedule.
- (6) For the purposes of deduction of tax on salary payable in foreign currency, the value in rupees of such salary shall be calculated at the prescribed rate of exchange.

Explanation.—In sub-section (2), and in sections 193, 194, 195 and 197, the expression "rates in force" means the rate or rates specified for the purpose of deduction by the Finance Act of the year in which such deduction is required to be made.

35

Interest on securities. 193. The person responsible for paying any income chargeable 40 under the head "Interest on securities" shall, at the time of payment, deduct income-tax and super-tax at the rates in force on the amount of the interest payable.

194. The principal officer of an Indian company or a company Dividends. which has made the prescribed arrangements for the declaration and payment of dividends (including dividends on preference shares) within India, shall, before making any payment in cash or before 5 issuing any cheque or warrant in respect of any dividend or before making any distribution or payment to a shareholder, of any dividend within the meaning of sub-clause (a) or sub-clause (b) or *ub-clause (c) or sub-clause (d) or sub-clause (e) of clause (22) of section 2, deduct from the amount of such dividend, income-tax and super-tax at the rates in force:

Provided that where in the case of any shareholder, not being a company, the Income-tax Officer gives a certificate in writing in the prescribed manner that to the best of his belief the total income or the total world income of the shareholder will be less than the minimum liable to income-tax, the person responsible for paying any dividend to the shareholder shall so long as the certificate is in force pay the dividend without any deduction.

195. (1) Any person responsible for paying to a non-resident, Other sums. not being a company, or to a company which is neither an Indian company nor a company which has made the prescribed arrangements for the declaration and payment of dividends within India, any interest, not being "Interest on securities", or any other sum, not being dividends, chargeable under the provisions of this Act, shall, at the time of payment, unless he is himself liable to pay any 25 income-tax and super-tax thereon as an agent, deduct income-tax and super-tax thereon at the rates in force:

Provided that nothing in this sub-section shall apply to any payment made in the course of transactions in respect of which a person responsible for the payment is deemed under the proviso to 30 sub-section (1) of section 163 not to be an agent of the payee.

- (2) Where the person responsible for paying any such sum chargeable under this Act (other than interest including interest on securities, dividend and salary) to a non-resident considers that the whole of such sum would not be income chargeable in the case 35 of the recipient, he may make an application to the Income-tax Officer to determine, by general or special order, the appropriate proportion of such sum so chargeable, and upon such determination, tax shall be deducted under sub-section (1) only on that proportion of the sum which is so chargeable.
 - 196. Notwithstanding anything contained in sections 192 to 195, Interest or no deduction of tax shall be made on any interest or dividend payable dividend payable to to the Government or to the Reserve Bank of India in respect of Government any securities or shares owned by it or in which it has full beneficial or the Reserve interest.

Bank.

Certificate for deduc-

- 197. (1) Where, in the case of any income of any person other tion at lower than a company—
 - (a) income-tax or super-tax is required to be deducted at the time of payment at the rates in force under the provisions of sections 192, 193 and 195,

5

40

(b) being a non-resident, super-tax is required to be deducted at the time of payment at the rates in force under provisions of section 194.

the Income-tax Officer is satisfied that the total income or the total world income of the recipient justifies the deduction of income-tax is or super-tax at any lower rates or no deduction of income-tax or super-tax, as the case may be, the Income-tax Officer shall, on an application made by the assessee in this behalf, give to him such certificate as may be appropriate.

- (2) Where any such certificate is given, the person responsible for 15 paying the income shall, until such certificate is cancelled by the Income-tax Officer, deduct income-tax and super-tax at the rates specified in such certificate or deduct no tax, as the case may be.
- (3) Where the principal officer of a company considers that, by reason of the provisions of sections 84 and 101, no tax will be payable 20 by the recipient on the whole or any portion of the dividend referred to in section 85 and sub-section (2) of section 101, he may, before paying the dividend to the shareholder or issuing any cheque or warrant in respect thereof, make an application to the Income-tax Officer to determine the appropriate proportion of the dividend on 25 which tax is not payable by the recipient under the provisions of sections 85 and 101; and on such determination by the Income-tax Officer no tax shall be deducted on such proportionate amount.

Tax deducted is income received.

198. All sums deducted in accordance with the provisions of sections 192 to 195 shall, for the purpose of computing the income of 30 an assessee, be deemed to be income received.

Credit for tax deducted.

199. Any deduction made in accordance with the provisions of sections 192 to 195 and paid to the Central Government shall be treated as a payment of income-tax or super-tax, as the case may be, on behalf of the person from whose income the deduction was 35 made, or of the owner of the security or of the shareholder, as the case may be, and credit shall be given to him for the amount so deducted on the production of the certificate furnished under section 203 in the assessment, if any, made for the immediately following assessment year under this Act:

Provided that where such person or owner or shareholder is a person whose income is included under the provisions of section 60. section 61, section 64, section 93 or section 94 in the total income of another person, the payment shall be deemed to have been made on behalf of, and the credit shall be given to, such other person:

Provided further that where any security or share in a company is owned jointly by two or more persons not constituting a g partnership, credit in respect of the tax deducted may be given to each such person in the same proportion in which the interest on such security or dividend on such share has been included in his total income.

200. Any person deducting any sum in accordance with the pro- Duy of 10 visions of sections 192 to 195 shall pay within the prescribed time, deducting the sum so deducted to the credit of the Central Government or as two. the Board directs.

261. (1) If any such person and in the cases referred to in section Consequen-194, the principal officer and the company of which he is the princi- cos of failure to deduce of 15 pal officer does not deduct or after deducting fails to pay the tax as pay. required by or under this Act, he or it shall, without prejudice to any other consequences which he or it may incur, be deemed to be an assessee in default in respect of the tax:

Provided that no penalty shall be charged under section 20 from such person, principal officer or company unless the Incometax officer is satisfied that such person or principal officer or company, as the case may be, has wilfully failed to deduct and pay the

- (2) Where the tax has not been paid as aforesaid after it is 25 deducted, it shall be a * * charge upon all the assets of the person, or the company, as the case may be, referred to in sub-section (1).
 - 202. The power to levy tax by deduction under sections 192 to Deduction 195 shall be without prejudice to any other mode of recovery.

only one

263. Every person deducting income-tax or super-tax in accord- Certificate 30 ance with the provisions of sections 192 to 195 shall, at the time of for tax deducted, payment of the sum, or, as the case may be, at the time of issue of a cheque or warrant for payment of any dividend to a shareholder. furnish to the person to whom such payment is made, or the cheque or warrant is issued, a certificate to the effect that income-tax or 35 super-tax has been deducted, and specifying the amount so deducted, the rate at which the tax has been deducted and such other particulars as may be prescribed.

204. For the purposes of sections 192 to 203 and section 285, the Meaning of expression "person responsible for paying" means-

"person responsible

(i) in the case of payments of income chargeable under the for paying". 40 head "Salaries", other than payments by the Central Govern-

999 (B) L.S.-25.

ment or the Government of a State, the employer himself or, if the employer is a company, the company itself, including the principal officer thereof;

- (ii) in the case of payments of income chargeable under the head "Interest on securities", other than payments made by or 5 on behalf of the Central Government or the Government of a State, the local authority, corporation or company, including the principal officer thereof:
- (iii) in the case of payments of any other sum chargeable under the provisions of this Act, * * * * * * * the paver him- 10 self, or, if the payer is a company, the company itself including the principal officer thereof.

Bar against direct demand on R SSC SSCC.

205. Where tax is deductible at the source under sections 192 to 195 the assessee shall not be called upon to pay the tax himself to the extent to which tax has been deducted from that income.

Person paying salary to cribed return.

- **206.** (1) The prescribed person in the case of every office of the furnish pres- Government, the principal officer in the case of every company, the prescribed person in the case of every local authority or other public body or association, and every private employer shall prepare, and within thirty days from the 31st day of March in each year, 20 deliver or cause to be delivered to the Income-tax Officer in the prescribed form and verified in the prescribed manner, a return in writing showing-
 - (a) the name and, so far as it is known, the address of every person who was receiving on the 31st day of March, or 25 has received or to whom was due during the year ending on that date, from the Government, company, authority, association or private employer, as the case may be, any income chargeable under the head "Salaries" of such amount as may be prescribed;
 - (b) the amount of the income so received by or so due to each such person, and the time or times at which the same was paid or due, as the case may be;
 - (c) the amount deducted in respect of income-tax and super-tax from the income of each such person.

35

(2) Where an employer deducts from the emoluments paid to an employee or pays on his behalf any contributions of that employee to an approved superannuation fund, he shall include all such deductions or payments in the return which he is required to furnish under this section. 40

C.—Advance payment of tax

207. (1) Tax shall be payable in advance in accordance with the Advance tax and income provisions of sections 208 to 219 in the case of income other than in-subject to come chargeable under the head * * * * "Capital gains".

advance tax.

- (2) Such income is hereinafter in this Chapter referred to as income subject to advance tax", and such tax is neremaiter in this Chapter referred to as "advance tax".
 - 208. Advance tax shall be payable in the financial year—

10

25

30

35

40

Condition of liability to

- (a) where the total income exclusive of capital gains of pay advance the assessee referred to in sub-clause (i) of clause (a) of section 209 exceeded the maximum amount not chargeable to income-tax in his case by two thousand five hundred rupees; or
- (b) where it is payable by virtue of the provisions of subsection (3) of section 212.
- 209. The amount of advance tax payable by an assessee in the fin-Computation 15 ancial year shall be computed as follows:-

of advance

- (a) (i) his total income of the latest previous year in respect of which he has been assessed by way of regular assessment shall first be ascertained;
- (ii) the amount of capital gains, if any, included in such 20 total income shall be deducted therefrom, and on the balance, income-tax and super-tax shall be calculated at the rates force in the financial year;
 - (iii) the income-tax and super-tax so calculated shall be reduced by the amount of income-tax and super-tax which would be deductible during the said financial year in accordance with the provisions of sections 192 to 195 on any income, included in the said total income:
 - (iv) the net amount of income-tax and super-tax calculated in accordance with sub-clause (iii) shall, subject to the provisions of clauses (b) and (c), be the advance tax payable.
 - (b) in cases where under the provisions of section 113, the tax payable by the assessee is to be determined with reference to his total world income, the advance tax payable by him shall be calculated in the manner laid down in that section.
 - (c) in cases where an estimate is sent by the assessee under sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) or sub-section (3) of section 212, the total income so estimated shall, for the purposes of calculation of tax under this section, be substituted for the total income referred to in clause (a).

Explanation.—If the assessee is a partner of a registered firm and an assessment of the firm has been completed for a previous year later than the latest previous year for which the assessee's assessment has been completed, his share in the income of the firm shall, for the purposes of clauses (a) and (b), be included in his total income on the basis of the said assessment of the firm.

Order by Income-tax Officer. 210. (1) Where a person has been previously assessed by way of regular assessment under this Act or under the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922, the Income-tax Officer may, on or after the 1st day of April in the financial year, by order in writing, require him to pay to the credit of the Central Government advance tax determined in accordance with the provisions of sections 207, 208 and 209.

II of 1922.

- (2) The notice of demand issued under section 156 in pursuance of such order shall specify the instalments in which the advance tax is payable under section 211.
- (3) If, after the making of an order by the Income-tax Officer under this section and before the 15th day of February of the financial year, an assessment of the assessee (or of the registered firm of which he is a partner) is completed in respect of a previous year later than that referred to in the order of the Income-tax Officer, 20 the Income-tax Officer may make an amended order requiring the assessee to pay in one instalment on the specified date, or in equal instalments on the specified dates if more than one, falling after the date of the amended order, the advance tax computed on the revised basis as reduced by the amount, if any, paid in accordance with 25 the original order:

Provided that in every case where an assessment of the assessee (or of the registered firm of which he is a partner) is completed in respect of a previous year later than that referred to in the order of the Income-tax Officer and the advance tax payable on the basis of 30 such assessment is less than the advance tax determined as payable in accordance with the original order under sub-section (1), the Income-tax Officer shall make an amended order determining the advance tax on the revised basis and refund the amount already paid, if any, in excess of the advance tax so determined.

Instalments of advance tax. 211. (1) Subject to the provisions of this section and of section 212, advance tax shall be payable in equal instalments on the 1st day of June, 1st day of September, 1st day of December and 1st day of March in the financial year:

Provided that, where the previous year of the assessee in respect 40 of any source of income ends after the 31st day of December and before the 30th day of April, the advance tax on that source of

income shall, subject as aforesaid, be payable in three equal instalments on the 1st day of September, the 1st day of December and the 15th day of March, respectively.

- (2) If the notice of demand issued under section 156 in pursuance 5 of the order under section 210 is served after any of the dates on which the instalments specified therein are payable, the advance tax shall be payable in equal instalments on each of such of those dates as fall after the date of the service of the notice of demand, or in one sum on the 1st day of March if the notice is served after the 10 1st day of December.
- 212. (1) If any assessee, who is required to pay advance tax by Estimate by an order under section 210, estimates at any time before the last assessee. instalment is due that his * * * * * * income subject to advance tax for the period which would be the previous year for 15 the immediately following assessment year, is less than * * * * the income on which, he is required to pay such tax, * * * * and accordingly wishes to pay an amount less than the amount which he is so required to pay, he may send to the Income-tax Officer—
- (i) an estimate of the total income exclusive of capital gains for that period;
 - (ii) an estimate of the advance tax payable by him calculated in the manner laid down in section 209;

and shall pay such amount as accords with his estimate in equal instalments on such of the dates specified in section 211 as have not 25 expired, or in one sum if only the last of such dates has not expired.

- (2) The assessee may send a revised estimate of the advance tax payable by him before any one of the dates specified in section 211 and adjust any excess or deficiency in respect of any instalment already paid in a subsequent instalment or in subsequent instalments.
- (3) Any person who has not previously been assessed by way of regular assessment under this Act or under the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922, shall, before the 1st day of March in each financial year, if his total income exclusive of capital gains of the period which would be the previous year for the immediately following assessment year is likely to exceed the maximum amount not chargeable to income-tax in his case by two thousand five hundred rupees, send to the Income-tax Officer—
 - (i) an estimate of the total income exclusive of capital gains of the said previous year;

F) of 1012.

(ii) an estimate of the advance tax payable by him calculated in the manner laid down in section 209;

5

and shall pay such amount as accords with his estimate, on such of the dates specified in section 211 as have not expired, by instalments which may be revised according to sub-section (2).

(4) Every estimate under this section shall be sent in the prescribed form and verified in the prescribed manner.

Commission receipts.

213. Where part of the income subject to advance tax consists of any income of the nature of commission which is receivable periodically and is not received or adjusted by the payer in the assessee's 10 account before any of the quarterly instalments of advance tax become due, he may defer payment of advance tax on that part of his income to the date on which such income would be normally received or adjusted, and, if he does so, he shall communicate to the Income-tax Officer the date to which such payment is deferred:

Provided that, if the advance tax of which the payment is deferred is not paid within fifteen days of the date on which such income or part thereof is received or adjusted by the payer in the assessee's account, the advance tax shall be payable with four per cent. simple interest per annum from the date of such receipt or adjustment to 20 the date of payment of the advance tax.

Interest pavable by Government.

- 214. (1) The Central Government shall pay simple interest at four per cent. per annum on the amount by which the aggregate sum of any instalments of advance tax paid during any financial year in which they are payable under sections 207 to 213 exceeds the 25 amount of the tax determined on regular assessment, from the 1st day of April next following the said financial year to the date of the regular assessment for the assessment year immediately following the said financial year, and where any such instalment is paid after the expiry of the financial year during which it is payable by reason of 30 the provisions of section 213, interest as aforesaid shall also be payable on that instalment from the date of its payment to the date of regular assessment.
- (2) On any portion of such amount which is refunded under this Chapter, interest shall be payable only up to the date on which the 35 refund was made.

Interest payable by

215. (1) Where in any financial year an assessee has paid advance tax under section 212 on the basis of his own estimate, and the advance tax so paid is less than seventy-five per cent. of the tax determined on the basis of the regular assessment (reduced by the amount of tax deductible in accordance with the provisions of sections 192 to 195) so far as such tax relates to income subject to advance tax and so far as it is not due to variations in the rates of tax

made by the Finance Act enacted for the year for which the regular assessment is made, simple interest at the rate of four per cent. per annum from the 1st day of April next following the said financial year up to the date of the said regular assessment shall be payable 5 by the assessee upon the amount by which the advance tax so paid falls short of the said seventy-five per cent.

(2) Where provisional assessment is made under section 141—

10

25

35

- (i) interest shall be calculated in accordance with the foregoing provision up to the date on which the tax as provisionally assessed is paid; and
- (ii) thereafter interest shall be calculated at the rate aforesaid on the amount by which the tax as so assessed (in so far as it relates to income subject to advance tax) falls short of the said seventy-five per cent.
- or section 250 or section 254 or section 260 or section 262 or section 264, the amount on which interest was payable under this section has been reduced, the interest shall be reduced accordingly and the excess interest paid, if any, shall be refunded.
- 20 (4) In such cases and under such circumstances as may be prescribed, the Income-tax Officer may reduce or waive the interest payable by the assessee under this section.
 - 216. Where, on making the regular assessment, the Income-tax Interest
 Officer finds that any assessee has—

 payable

Interest
payable by
assessee in
case of under
estimate, etc.

- (a) under sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) or sub-section case of under (3) of section 212 under-estimated the advance tax payable by him and thereby reduced the amount payable in any of the first three instalments; or
- (b) under section 213 wrongly deferred the payment of advance tax on a part of his income;

he may direct that the assessee shall pay simple interest at four per cent per annum—...A

- (i) in the case referred to in clause (a), for the period during which the payment was deficient, on the difference between the amount paid in each such instalment and the amount which should have been paid, having regard to the aggregate advance tax actually paid during the year; and
- (ii) in the case referred to in clause (b), for the period during which the payment of advance tax was so deferred.
- 40 Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, any instalment due before the expiry of six months from the commencement of the previous year in respect of which it is to be paid shall be deemed

to have become due fifteen days after the expiry of the said six months.

Interest payable by assessee when no estimate made.

- 217. (1) Where, on making the regular assessment, the Income-tax Officer finds that no payment of advance tax has been made in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter, simple interest 5 at the rate of four per cent. per annum from the first day of April next following the financial year in which the advance tax was payable in accordance with the said provisions up to the date of the regular assessment shall be payable by the assessee upon the amount by which the advance tax which should have been paid falls short 10 of the seventy-five per cent. referred to in sub-section (1) of section 215.
- (2) The provisions of sub-sections (2), (3) and * * * (4) of section 215 shall apply to interest payable under this section as they apply to interest payable under that section.

15

When
assessee
deemed to be
in default.

- 218. (1) If any assessee does not pay on the specified date any instalment of advance tax that he is required to pay under section 210 and does not, before the date on which any such instalment as is not paid becomes due, send under sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) of section 212 an estimate or a revised estimate of the advance tax 20 payable by him, he shall be deemed to be an assessee in default in respect of such instalment or instalments.
- (2) If any assessee has sent under sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) or sub-section (3) of section 212 an estimate or a revised estimate of the advance tax payable by him, but does not pay any instalment ²⁵ in accordance therewith on the date or dates specified in section 211, he shall be deemed to be an assessee in default in respect of such instalment or instalments:

Provided that the assessee shall not, under sub-section (1) or this sub-section, be deemed to be in default in respect of any amount 30 of which the payment is deferred under section 213 until after the date communicated by him to the Income-tax Officer under that section.

Credit for

219. Any sum, other than a penalty or interest, paid by or recovered from an assessee as advance tax in pursuance of this Chapter 35 shall be treated as a payment of tax in respect of the income of the period which would be the previous year for an assessment for the assessment year next following the financial year in which it was payable, and credit therefor shall be given to the assessee in the regular assessment.

D.—Collection and recovery

220. (1) Any amount, otherwise than by way of advance tax, When tax specified as payable in a notice of demand under section 156 shall when be paid within thirty-five days of the service of the notice at the assesses deemed in s place and to the person mentioned in the notice:

Provided that, where the Income-tax Officer has any reason to believe that it will be detrimental to revenue if the full period of thirty-five days aforesaid is allowed, he may, with the previous approval of the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner, direct that the sum 10 specified in the notice of demand shall be paid within such period being a period less than the period of thirty-five days aforesaid, as may be specified by him in the notice of demand.

- (2) If the amount specified in any notice of demand under section 156 is not paid within the period limited under sub-section (1), 15 the assessee shall be liable to pay simple interest at four per cent. per annum from the day commencing after the end of the period mentioned in sub-section (1).
- (3) Without prejudice to the provisions contained in sub-section (2), on an application made by the assessee before the expiry of 20 the due date under sub-section (1), the Income-tax Officer may extend the time for payment or allow payment by instalments, subject to such conditions as he may think fit to impose in the circumstances of the case.
- (4) If the amount is not paid within the time limited under sub-25 section (1) or extended under sub-section (3), as the case may be, at the place and to the person mentioned in the said notice, the assessee shall be deemed to be in default.
- (5) If, in a case where payment by instalments is allowed under sub-section (3), the assessee commits default in paying any one of 30 the instalments within the time fixed under that sub-section, the assessee shall be deemed to be in default as to the whole of the amount then outstanding, and the other instalment or instalments shall be deemed to have been due on the same date as the instalment actually in default.
- (6) Where an assessee has presented an appeal under section 246 the Income-tax Officer may, in his discretion, and subject to such conditions as he may think fit to impose in the circumstances of the case, treat the assessee as not being in default in respect of the amount in dispute in the appeal, even though the time for payment 40 has expired, as long as such appeal remains undisposed of.
 - (7) Where an assessee has been assessed in respect of income arising outside India in a country the laws of which prohibit or res-660 (B) L.S.-26.

trict the remittance of money to India, the Income-tax Officer shall not treat the assessee as in default in respect of that part of the tax which is due in respect of that amount of his income which, by reason of such prohibition or restriction, cannot be brought into India, and shall continue to treat the assessee as not in default in 5 respect of such part of the tax until the prohibition or restriction is removed.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, income shall be deemed to have been brought into India if it has been utilised or could have been utilised for the purposes of any expenditure actually 10 incurred by the assessee outside India or if the income, whether capitalised or not, has been brought into India in any form.

Penalty payable when tax in default. 221. (1) When an assessee is in default or is deemed to be in default in making a payment of tax, he shall, in addition to the amount of the arrears and the amount of interest payable under sub-section 15. (2) of section 220, be liable to pay by way of penalty, an amount which, in the case of a continuing default, may be increased from time to time, so, however, that the total amount of penalty does not exceed the amount of tax in arrears:

Provided that before levying any such penalty the assessee shall 20 be given a reasonable opportunity of being heard.

(2) Where as a result of any final order the amount of tax, with respect to the default in the payment of which the penalty was levied, has been wholly reduced, the penalty levied shall be cancelled and the amount of penalty paid shall be refunded.

25;

Certificate to Tax Recovery Officer.

- 222. (1) When an assessee is in default or is deemed to be in default in making a payment of tax, the Income-tax Officer may forward to the Tax Recovery Officer a certificate under his signature specifying the amount of arrears due from the assessee, and the Tax Recovery Officer on receipt of such certificate, shall proceed to re-30 cover from such assessee the amount specified therein by one or more of the modes mentioned below, in accordance with the rules laid down in the Second Schedule—
 - (a) attachment and sale of the assessee's movable property;
 - (b) attachment and sale of the assessee's immovable pro- 35 perty;
 - (c) arrest of the assessee and his detention in prison;
 - (d) appointing a receiver for the management of the assessee's movable and immovable properties.

- (2) The Income-tax Officer may issue a certificate under sub-section (1), notwithstanding that proceedings for recovery of the arrears by any other mode have been taken.
- 223. (1) The Income-tax Officer may forward the certificate refer- 1 ax Recov-5 red to in section 222 to—

ery Officer to whom

- (a) the Tax Recovery Officer within whose jurisdiction the certificate is assessee carries on his business or profession or within whose jurisdiction the principal place of his business or profession is situate; or
- 10 (b) the Tax Recovery Officer within whose jurisdiction the assessee resides or any movable or immovable property of the assessee is situate.
- (2) If the Tax Recovery Officer to whom a certificate is sent by an Income-tax Officer is not able to recover the entire amount by the 15 sale of the property, movable and immovable, but has information that the assessee has property in a district within the jurisdiction of another Tax Recovery Officer, he may send the certificate to such other Tax Recovery Officer or to a Tax Recovery Officer within whose jurisdiction the assessee resides, and thereupon that Tax 20 Recovery Officer shall proceed to recover the amount under this Chapter as if the certificate was sent to him by the Income-tax Officer.
- 224. (1) When the Income-tax Officer sends a certificate to a Tax Validity of Recovery Officer under section 222, it shall not be open to the and amend-25 assessee to dispute before the Tax Recovery Officer the correctness ment thereof the assessment, and no objection to the certificate on any ground of. shall be entertained by the Tax Recovery Officer.

- (2) Notwithstanding the issue of a certificate to a Tax Recovery Officer, the Income-tax Officer shall have power to withdraw or cor-30 rect any clerical or arithmetical mistake in the certificate by sending an intimation to the Tax Recovery Officer.
- (3) The Income-tax Officer shall intimate to the Tax Recovery Officer any orders withdrawing or cancelling a certificate or any correction made by him under sub-section (2) of this section or any 35 amendment made under sub-section (4) of section 225.
- 225. (1) Notwithstanding that a certificate has been issued to Stay of prothe Tax Recovery Officer for the recovery of any tax, the Income-ceedings tax Officer may grant time for the payment of the tax, and there-ficate and upon the Tax Recovery Officer shall stay the proceedings until the amendment or withdra-40 expiry of the time so granted.

wal thereof.

(2) Where a certificate for the recovery of tax has been issued, the Income-tax Officer shall keep the Tax Recovery Officer informed of any tax paid or time granted for payment, subsequent to the issue of such certificate.

- (3) Where the order giving rise to a demand of tax for which a certificate for recovery has been issued has been modified in appeal or other proceeding under this Act, and, as a consequence 5 thereof, the demand is reduced but the order is the subject-matter of further proceeding under this Act, the Income-tax Officer shall stay the recovery of such part of the amount of the certificate as pertains to the said reduction for the period for which the appeal or other proceeding remains pending.
- (4) Where a certificate for the recovery of tax has been issued and subsequently the amount of the outstanding demand is reduced as a result of an appeal or other proceeding under this Act, the Income-tax Officer shall, when the order which was the subjectmatter of such appeal or other proceeding has become final and con-15 clusive, amend the certificate or withdraw it, as the case may be.

Other modes

- 226. (1) Notwithstanding the issue of a certificate to the Tax of recovery. Recovery Officer under section 222, the Income-tax Officer may recover the tax by any one or more of the modes provided in this 생기 | [대통포]회장 20 section.
 - (2) If any assessee is in receipt of any income chargeable under the head "Salaries", the Income-tax Officer may require any person paying the same to deduct from any payment subsequent to the date of such requisition any arrears of tax due from such assessee, and such person shall comply with any such requisition and shall pay 25 the sum so deducted to the credit of the Central Government or as the Board directs:

Provided that any part of the salary exempt from attachment in execution of a decree of a civil court under section 60 of the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, shall be exempt from any requisition made 30 5 of 1908. under this sub-section.

- (3) (i) The Income-tax Officer may, at any time or from time to time, by notice in writing require any person from whom money is due or may become due to the assessee or any person who holds or may subsequently hold money for or on account of the assessee, to 35 pay to the Income-tax Officer either forthwith upon the money becoming due or being held or at or within the time specified in the notice (not being before the money becomes due or is held) so much of the money as is sufficient to pay the amount due by the assessee in respect of arrears or the whole of the money when it is equal to 40 or less than that amount.
- (ii) A notice under this sub-section may be issued to any person who holds or may subsequently hold any money for or on account of

the assessee jointly with any other person and for the purposes of this sub-section, the shares of the joint-holders in such account shall be presumed, until the contrary is proved, to be equal.

- (iii) A copy of the notice shall be forwarded to the assessee at his5 last address known to the Income-tax Officer, and in the case of a joint account to all the joint-holders at their last addresses known to the Income-tax Officer.
- (iv) Save as otherwise provided in this sub-section, every person to whom a notice is issued under this sub-section shall be bound to 10 comply with such notice, and, in particular, where any such notice is issued to a post office, banking company or an insurer, it shall not be necessary for any pass book, deposit receipt, policy or any other document to be produced for the purpose of any entry, endorsement or the like being made before payment is made, notwithstanding any 15 rule, practice or requirement to the contrary.
 - (v) Any claim respecting any property in relation to which a notice under this sub-section has been issued arising after the date of the notice shall be void as against any demand contained in the notice.
- (vi) Where a person to whom a notice under this sub-section is sent objects to it by a statement on oath that the sum demanded or any part thereof is not due to the assessee or that he does not hold any money for or on account of the assessee, then, nothing contained in this sub-section shall be deemed to require such person to pay any such sum or part thereof, as the case may be, but if it is discovered that such statement was false in any material particular, such person shall be personally liable to the Income-tax Officer to the extent of his own liability to the assessee on the date of the notice, or to the extent of the assessee's liability for any sum due under this Act, whichever is less.
 - (vii) The Income-tax Officer may, at any time or from time to time, amend or revoke any notice issued under this sub-section or extend the time for making any payment in pursuance of such notice.
- (viii) The Income-tax Officer shall grant a receipt for any amount paid in compliance with a notice issued under this sub-section, and the person so paying shall be fully discharged from his liability to the assessee to the extent of the amount so paid.
- (ix) Any person discharging any liability to the assessee after 40 receipt of a notice under this sub-section shall be personally liable to the Income-tax Officer to the extent of his own liability to the assessee so discharged or to the extent of the assessee's liability for any sum due under this Act, whichever is less.

- (x) If the person to whom a notice under this sub-section is sent fails to make payment in pursuance thereof to the Income-tax Officer. he shall be deemed to be an assessee in default in respect of the amount specified in the notice and further proceedings may be taken against him for the realisation of the amount as if it were an arrear 5 of tax due from him, in the manner provided in sections 222 to 225 and the notice shall have the same effect as an attachment of a debt by the Tax Recovery Officer in exercise of his powers under section 222.
- (4) The Income-tax Officer may apply to the court in whose cus- 10 tody there is money belonging to the assessee for payment to him of the entire amount of such money, or, if it is more than the tax due, an amount sufficient to discharge the tax.
- (5) The Income-tax Officer may, if so authorised by the Commissioner, proceed to recover the tax by distraint and sale of the mova- 15 ble property of the assessee in the manner laid down in the Third Schedule.

Recovery through State

227. If the recovery of tax in any area has been entrusted to a State Government under clause (1) of article 258 of the Constitution, Government the State Government may direct, with respect to that area or any 20 part thereof, that tax shall be recovered therein with, and as an addition to, any municipal tax or local rate, by the same person and in the same manner as the municipal tax or local rate is recovered.

Recovery of Indian tax in Pakistan tax in India.

- 228. (1) The Income-tax Officer may forward a certificate under section 222 to a Collector in Pakistan through the Central Board of ²⁵ and Pakistan Revenue of Pakistan, if the assessee has property in the district of that Collector, and for the purposes of that section, the expression "Tax Recovery Officer" shall include a Collector in Pakistan.
 - (2) Where a Collector in India receives through the Board a certificate under the signature of an Income-tax Officer in Pakistan, the 30 Collector shall proceed to recover the amount specified therein in the manner in which he would proceed to recover the amount specified in a certificate received from an Income-tax Officer in India, and shall remit any sum so recovered by him to the Income-tax Officer in Pakistan, after deducting his expenses in connection with the recovery 35 proceedings.
 - (3) The provisions of this section shall remain in force only so long as there are in force similar provisions in the law of Pakistan for the recovery of tax by a Collector in Pakistan on receipt of a certificate from an Income-tax Officer in India.

229. Any sum imposed by way of interest, fine, penalty, or any Recovery of other sum payable under the provisions of this Act, shall be recover-penalties, able in the manner provided in this Chapter for the recovery of fine, interset arrears of tax.

and other sums.

230. (1) Subject to such exceptions as the Central Government Tax Clearmay, by notification in the Official Gazette, specify in this behalf, no ance Certiperson who is not domiciled in India, or who, even if domiciled in India at the time of his departure, has, in the opinion of an Income-tax authority, no intention of returning to India, shall leave the territory 10 of India by land, sea or air unless he first obtains from such authority as may be appointed by the Central Government in this behalf (here-

15 of 1940. 21 of 1947. 11 of 1922. 27 of 1957. 29 of 1957. 18 of 1958.

inafter in this section referred to as the "competent authority") a certificate stating that he has no liabilities under this Act, the Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940, the Business Profits Tax Act, 1947, the Indian 15 Income-tax Act, 1922, the Wealth Tax Act, 1957, the Expenditure Tax Act, 1957 or the Gift Tax Act, 1958, or that satisfactory arrangements have been made for the payment of all or any of such taxes which are or may become payable by that person:

Provided that in the case of a person not domiciled in India the 20 competent authority may, if it is satisfied that such person intends to return to India, issue an exemption certificate either in respect of a single journey or in respect of all journeys to be undertaken by that person within such period as may be specified in the certificate.

- (2) If the owner or charterer of any ship or aircraft carrying 25 persons from any place in the territory of India to any place outside India allows any person to whom sub-section (1) applies to travel by such ship or aircraft without first satisfying himself that such person is in possession of a certificate as required by that sub-section, he shall be personally liable to pay the whole or any part of the 30 amount of tax, if any, payable by such person as the Income-tax Officer may, having regard to the circumstances of the case, determine.
- (3) In respect of any sum payable by the owner or charterer of any ship or aircraft under sub-section (2), the owner or charterer, 35 as the case may be, shall be deemed to be an assessee in default for such sum, and such sum shall be recoverable from him in the manner provided in this Chapter as if it were an arrear of tax.
 - (4) The Board may make rules for regulating necessary for, or incidental to, the purpose of carrying out the provi-40 sions of this section.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, the expressions "owner" and "charterer" include any representative, agent or employee empowered by the owner or charterer to allow persons to travel by the ship or aircraft.

Period for recovery proceedings.

231. Save in accordance with the provisions of section 173 or sub- 5 commencing section (7) of section 220, no proceedings for the recovery of any sum payable under this Act shall be commenced after the expiration of one year from the last day of the financial year in which the demand is made, or, in the case of a person who is deemed to be an assessee in default under any provision of this Act, after the expiration of one 10 year from the last day of the financial year in which the assessee is deemed to be in default.

> Explanation 1.—The period of one year referred to above shall be reckoned-

- (i) where an assessee has been treated as not being in de- 15 fault under sub-section (6) of section 220, as long as his appeal is undisposed of, from the last day of the financial year in which the appeal is disposed of;
- (ii) where recovery proceedings in any case have been stayed by any order of a court, from the last day of the financial year 20 in which the order is withdrawn:
- (iii) where the date of payment of tax has been extended by an Income-tax authority to another date, from the last day of the financial year in which such other date falls:
- (iv) where the sum payable is allowed to be paid by instal-25 ments, from the last day of the financial year in which the last of such instalments is due.

Explanation 2.—A proceeding for the recovery of any sum shall be deemed to have commenced within the meaning of this section, if some action is taken to recover the whole or any part of the sum 30 within the period hereinbefore referred to.

Recovery by suit or under other law not affected.

- 232. The several modes of recovery specified in this Chapter shall not affect in any way-
 - (a) any other law for the time being in force relating to the recovery of debts due to Government; or 35
 - (b) the right of the Government to institute a suit for the recovery of the arrears due from the assessee;

and it shall be lawful for the Income-tax Officer or the Government. as the case may be, to have recourse to any such law or suit, notwithstanding that the tax due is being recovered from the assessee 40 by any mode specified in this Chapter.

E.—Tax payable under provisional assessment

233. For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that the Recovery of provisions of section 220, except sub-section (6) thereof, and sec-tax payable. tions 221 to 229 apply in relation to any tax payable in pursuance of signal assess-5 a provisional assessment made under section 141 as if it were a ment. regular assessment made under section 143 or 144.

234. Tax paid or deemed to have been paid under the provisions Tax paid by of Chapter XVII-B or Chapter XVII-C in respect of any income advance payprovisionally assessed under section 141 shall be deemed to have been ment. paid towards the provisional assessment.

CHAPTER XVIII

RELIEF RESPECTING TAX ON DIVIDENDS IN CERTAIN CASES

235. Where a company pays to a shareholder any dividend out of Relief to its profits and gains which is assessed to agricultural income-tax by in respect of 15 any State Government, the shareholder shall be entitled to a reduc- agricultural income-tax tion from the tax payable by him under this Act, of a sum equal to— attributable

to dividends.

- (a) that proportion of the agricultural income-tax (including super-tax, if any) paid by the company as the amount of the dividend attributable to the profits of the company assessed to agricultural income-tax bears to its total profits assessed to agricultural income-tax, reduced by the amount of refund, if any, allowed to him by the State Government; or
 - (b) where the shareholder—
 - (i) is not a company, the amount of income-tax (but not super-tax) payable by him under this Act, and
 - (ii) is a company, twenty per cent.,

on that portion of the dividend which is attributable to the profits of the company assessed to agricultural income-tax;

whichever is less.

20

25

236. (1) Where in respect of any previous year relevant to the Relief to assessment year commencing after the 31st day of March, 1960, an company in Indian company or a company which has made the prescribed ar-respect of dividend rangements for the declaration and payment of dividends within paid out of India, pays any dividend wholly or partly out of its profits and gains past taxed 35 actually charged to income-tax for any assessment year ending before the 1st day of April, 1960, and deducts tax therefrom in accordance with the provisions of Chapter XVII-B, credit shall be given to the company against the income-tax, if any, payable by it on the profits and gains of the previous year during which the dividend is paid, of a sum calculated in accordance with the provisions 660 (B) L.S.-27.

of sub-section (2), and, where the amount of credit so calculated exceeds the income-tax payable by the company as aforesaid, the excess shall be refunded.

(2) The amount of income-tax to be given as credit under subsection (1) shall be a sum equal to ten per cent. of so much of the 5 dividends referred to in sub-section (1) as are paid out of the profits and gains actually charged to income-tax for any assessment year ending before the 1st day of April, 1960.

Explanation 1.—For the purposes of this section, the aggregate of the dividends declared by a company in respect of any previous year 10 shall be deemed first to have come out of the distributable income of that previous year and the balance, if any, out of the undistributed part of the distributable income of one or more previous years immediately preceding that previous year as would be just sufficient to cover the amount of such balance and as has not likewise been 15 taken into account for covering such balance of any other previous year.

Explanation 2.—The expression "distributable income of any previous year" shall mean the total income assessed for that year as reduced by—

- (i) the amount of tax payable by the company in respect of the said total income;
- (ii) the amount of any other tax levied under any law for the time being in force on the company by the Government or by a local authority in excess of the amount, if any, which has 25 been allowed in computing the total income;
- (iii) the amount paid to any charitable institution or fund to the extent to which it is exempt from tax under sections 88 and 100; and
- (iv) in the case of a banking company, the amount actually 30 transferred to a reserve fund under section 17 of the Banking Companies Act, 1949,

10 of 1949.

and as increased by-

- (a) any profits and gains or receipts of the company, not included in its total income; and
- (b) any amount attributable to any allowance made in computing the profits and gains of the company for purposes of assessment, which the company has not taken into account in its profit and loss account.

CHAPTER XIX

REFUNDS

- 237. If any person satisfies the Income-tax Officer that 5 amount of tax paid by him or on his behalf or treated as paid by him or on his behalf for any assessment year exceeds the amount with which he is properly chargeable under this Act for that year, he shall be entitled to a refund of the excess.
- 238. (1) Where the income of one person is included under any Person 10 provision of this Act in the total income of any other person, the claim refund latter alone shall be entitled to a refund under this Chapter in in certain respect of such income.

- (2) Where through death, incapacity, insolvency, liquidation or other cause, a person is unable to claim or receive any refund due to him, his legal representative or the trustee or guardian or receiver, as the case may be, shall be entitled to claim or receive such refund for the benefit of such person or his estate.
 - 239. (1) Every claim for refund under this Chapter shall be made Form of in the prescribed form and verified in the prescribed manner.

claim for refund and limitation.

- (2) No such claim shall be allowed, unless it is made within 20 four years from the last day of the assessment year in which the income in respect of which the claim is made was assessable.
- 240. Where, as a result of any order passed in appeal or other Refund on proceeding under this Act, refund of any amount becomes due to appeal, etc. the assessee, the Income-tax Officer shall, except as otherwise pro-25 vided in this Act, refund the amount to the assessee without his having to make any claim in that behalf.

241. Where an order giving rise to a refund is the subject- Power to matter of an appeal or further proceeding or where any other proceeding under this Act is pending, and the Income-tax Officer is of certain cases. the opinion that the grant of the refund is likely to adversely affect the revenue, the Income-tax Officer may, with the previous approval of the Commissioner, withhold the refund till such time as the Commissioner may determine.

- 242. In a claim under this Chapter, it shall not be open to the Correctness 35 assessee to question the correctness of any assessment or other mat- of assesster decided which has become final and conclusive or ask for a re-be questionview of the same, and the assessee shall not be entitled to any ed. relief on such claim except refund of tax wrongly paid or paid in
- 243. (1) If within a period of six months from the date on which Interest on a claim for refund is made under this Chapter, the Income-tax refunds.

Officer does not grant the refund, the Central Government shall pay the claimant simple interest at four per cent. per annum on the amount directed to be refunded from the date immediately following the expiry of the period of six months aforesaid to the date of the order granting the refund.

Explanation.—If the delay in granting the refund within the period of six months aforesaid is attributable to the assessee, whether wholly or in part, the period of the delay attributable to him shall be excluded from the period for which interest is payable.

(2) Where any question arises as to the period to be excluded for the purposes of calculation of interest under the provisions of this section, such question shall be determined by the Commissioner whose decision shall be final.

Interest on refund where no claim is needed.

- 244. (1) Where a refund is due to the assessee in pursuance of an order referred to in section 240 and the Income-tax Officer does 15 not grant the refund within a period of six months from the date of such order, the Central Government shall pay to the assessee simple interest at four per cent. per annum on the amount of refund due from the date immediately following the expiry of the period of six months aforesaid to the date on which the refund is granted.
- (2) Where a refund is withheld under the provisions of section 241, the Central Government shall pay interest at the aforesaid rate on the amount of refund ultimately determined to be due as a result of the appeal or further proceeding for the period commencing after the expiry of six months from the date of the order referred 25 to in section 241 to the date the refund is granted.

Set off of refunds against tax remaining payable. 245. Where under any of the provisions of this Act, a refund is found to be due to any person, the Income-tax Officer, Appellate Assistant Commissioner or Commissioner as the case may be, may, in lieu of payment of the refund, set off the amount to be refunded 30 or any part of that amount, against the sum, if any, remaining payable under this Act by the person to whom the refund is due, after giving an intimation in writing to such person of the action proposed to be taken under this section.

CHAPTER XX

APPEALS AND REVISION

A.—Appeals to the Appellate Assistant Commissioner

Appealable orders.

- 246. Any assessee aggrieved by any of the following orders of an Income-tax Officer may appeal to the Appellate Assistant Commissioner against such order—
 - (a) an order against the assessee, being a company, under section 104;

- (b) an order imposing a fine under sub-section (2) of section 131;
- (c) an order against the assessee, where the assessee denies his liability to be assessed under this Act or any order of assessment under sub-section (3) of section 143 or section 144, where the assessee objects to the amount of income assessed, or to the amount of tax determined, or to the amount of loss computed, or to the status under which he is assessed;
- (d) an order under section 146 refusing to reopen an assessment made under section 144;
- (e) an order of assessment, re-assessment or re-computation under section 147 or section 150;
- (f) an order under section 154 or section 155 having the effect of enhancing the assessment or reducing a refund or an order refusing to allow the claim made by the assessee under either of the said sections:
- (g) an order made under section 163 treating the assessee as the agent of a non-resident:
- (h) an order under sub-section (2) or sub-section (3) of section 170;
 - (i) an order under section 171;

5

10

15

20

25

- (j) an order refusing to register a firm under clause (b) of sub-section (1) or under sub-section (5) of section 185;
- (k) an order cancelling the registration of a firm under subsection (1) or under sub-section (2) of section 186;
 - (l) an order under section 201;
 - (m) an order under section 216;
 - (n) an order under section 237;
 - (o) an order imposing a penalty under-
 - (i) section 221, or
 - (ii) section 270, or
 - (iii) section 271, or
 - (iv) section 272, or

(v) section 273:

.

Explanation.—"Status" means the category under which the assessee is assessed * * * * * * as "individual", "Hindu undivided family" and so on.

5

35

Appeal by partn r.

247. Where the partners of a firm are individually assessable on their shares in the total income of the firm, any such partner may appeal to the Appellate Assistant Commissioner against any order of an Income-tax Officer determining the amount of the total income or the loss of the firm or the apportionment thereof between 10 the several partners, but he cannot agitate such matters in any appeal preferred against an order of assessment determining his own total income or loss.

Appeal by person denying liability to deduct tax.

248. Any person having in accordance with the provisions of sections 195 and 200 deducted and paid tax in respect of any sum 15 chargeable under this Act, other than interest * * * *, who denies his liability to make such deduction, may appeal to the Appellate Assistant Commissioner to be declared not liable to make such deduction.

Form of appeal and limitation.

- 249. (1) Every appeal under this Chapter shall be in the pres- 20 cribed form and shall be verified in the prescribed manner.
- (2) The appeal shall be presented within thirty days of the following date, that is to say,—
 - (a) where the appeal relates to any tax deducted under sub-section (1) of section 195, the date of payment of the tax, 25 or
 - (b) where the appeal relates to any assessment or penalty, the date of service of the notice of demand relating to the assessment or penalty, or
 - (c) in any other case, the date on which intimation of the 30 order sought to be appealed against is given.
- (3) The Appellate Assistant Commissioner may admit an appeal after the expiration of the said period if he is satisfied that the appellant had sufficient cause for not presenting it within that period.

Procedure in appeal. 250. (1) The Appellate Assistant Commissioner shall fix a day and place for the hearing of the appeal, and shall give notice of the

same to the appellant and to the Income-tax Officer against whose order the appeal is preferred.

- (2) The following shall have the right to be heard at the hearing of the appeal—
- 5 (a) the appellant, either in person or by an authorised representative;
 - (b) the Income-tax Officer, either in person or by a representative.
- (3) The Appellate Assistant Commissioner shall have the power to adjourn the hearing of the appeal from time to time.
 - (4) The Appellate Assistant Commissioner may, before disposing of any appeal, make such further inquiry as he thinks fit, or may direct the Income-tax Officer to make further inquiry and report the result of the same to the Appellate Assistant Commissioner.
- of an appeal, allow the appellant to go into any ground of appeal not specified in the grounds of appeal, if the Appellate Assistant Commissioner is satisfied that the omission of that ground from the form of appeal was not wilful or unreasonable.
- 20 (6) The order of the Appellate Assistant Commissioner disposing of the appeal shall be in writing and shall state the points for determination, the decision thereon and the reason for the decision. * * * * * * * * *
- (7) On the disposal of the appeal, the Appellate Assistant Com25 missioner shall communicate the order passed by him to the assessee
 and to the Commissioner.
 - 251. (1) In disposing of an appeal, the Appellate Assistant Compowers of the Appellate Compowers o

30

35

40

Powers of the Appellate Assistant Commissioner.

- (a) in an appeal against an order of assessment, he may confirm, reduce, enhance or annul the assessment; or he may set aside the assessment and refer the case back to the Incometax Officer for making a fresh assessment in accordance with the directions given by the Appellate Assistant Commissioner and after making such further inquiry as may be necessary, and the Incometax Officer shall thereupon proceed to make such fresh assessment and determine, where necessary, the amount of tax payable on the basis of such fresh assessment;
 - (b) in an appeal against an order imposing a penalty, he may confirm or cancel such order or vary it so as either to enhance or to reduce the penalty;

Procedure of Appellate Tribunal.

- 255. (1) The powers and functions of the Appellate Tribunal may be exercised and discharged by Benches constituted by the President of the Appellate Tribunal from among the members thereof.
- (2) Subject to the provisions contained in sub-section (3), a 5 Bench shall consist of one judicial member and one accountant member.
- (3) The President or any other member of the Appellate Tribunal authorised in this behalf by the Central Government may, sitting singly, dispose of any case which has been allotted to the ¹⁰ Bench of which he is a member and which pertains to an assessee whose total income as computed by the Income-tax Officer in the case does not exceed twenty-five thousand rupees, and the President may, for the disposal of any particular case, constitute a special Bench consisting of three or more members, one of whom shall necessarily be a judicial member and one an accountant member.
- (4) If the members of a Bench differ in opinion on any point, the point shall be decided according to the opinion of the majority, if there is a majority, but if the members are equally divided, they shall state the point or points on which they differ, and the case 20 shall be referred by the President of the Appellate Tribunal for hearing on such point or points by one or more of the other members of the Appellate Tribunal, and such point or points shall be decided according to the opinion of the majority of the members of the Appellate Tribunal who have heard the case, including those 25 who first heard it.
- (5) Subject to the provisions of this Act, the Appellate Tribunal shall have power to regulate its own procedure and the procedure of Benches thereof in all matters arising out of the exercise of its powers or of the discharge of its functions, including the places at 30 which the Benches shall hold their sittings.
- (6) The Appellate Tribunal shall, for the purpose of discharging its functions, have all the powers which are vested in the Incometax authorities referred to in section 131, and any proceeding before the Appellate Tribunal shall be deemed to be a judicial proceeding 35 within the meaning of sections 193 and 228 and for the purpose of section 196 of the Indian Penal Code and the Appellate Tribunal shall be deemed to be a civil court for all the purposes of section 195 and Chapter XXXV of the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1898.

45 of 1860.

5 of 1898.

40

C.—Reference to High Court

256. (1) The assessee or the Commissioner may, within sixty days of the date upon which he is served with notice of an order

Statement of case to the High Court.

under section 254, by application in the prescribed form, accompanied where the application is made by the assessee by a fee of rupees one hundred, require the Appellate Tribunal to refer to the High Court any question of law arising out of such order and, subject to the other provisions contained in this section, the Appellate Tribunal shall, within one hundred and twenty days of the receipt of such application, draw up a statement of the case and refer it to the High Court:

Provided that the Appellate Tribunal may, if it is satisfied that 10 the applicant was prevented by sufficient cause from presenting the application within the period hereinbefore specified, allow it to be presented within a further period not exceeding thirty days.

- (2) If, on an application made under sub-section (1), the Appellate Tribunal refuses to state the case on the ground that 15 no question of law arises, the assessee or the Commissioner, as the case may be, may, within six months from the date on which he is served with notice of such refusal, apply to the High Court, and the High Court may, if it is not satisfied with the correctness of the decision of the Appellate Tribunal, require the Appellate 20 Tribunal to state the case and to refer it, and on receipt of any such requisition, the Appellate Tribunal shall state the case and refer it accordingly.
- (3) Where in the exercise of its powers under sub-section (2), the Appellate Tribunal refuses to state a case which it has been 25 required by the assessee to state, the assessee may, within thirty days from the date on which he receives notice of such refusal, withdraw his application, and, if he does so, the fee paid shall be refunded.
- 257. If, on an application made under section 256 the Appellate Statement 30 Tribunal is of the opinion that, on account of a conflict in the of cases to decisions of High Courts in respect of any particular question of Court in * * * it is expedient that a reference should be made certain direct to the Supreme Court, the Appellate Tribunal may draw up a statement of the case and refer it through its President direct to 35 the Supreme Court.

258. If the High Court or the Supreme Court is not satisfied Power of that the statements in a case referred to it are sufficient to enable it or Supreme to determine the questions raised thereby, the Court may refer the Court to case back to the Appellate Tribunal for the purpose of making such require statement 40 additions thereto or alterations therein as it may direct in that to be behalf.

umended.

Case before High Court to be heard by not less than two judges.

- 259. (1) When any case has been referred to the High Court under section 256, it shall be heard by a Bench of not less than two judges of the High Court, and shall be decided in accordance with the opinion of such judges or of the majority, if any, of such judges.
- (2) Where there is no such majority, the judges shall state the point of law upon which they differ, and the case shall then be heard upon that point only by one or more of the other judges of the High Court, and such point shall be decided according to the opinion of the majority of the judges who have heard the case 10 including those who first heard it.

Decision of High Court or Supreme case stated.

- 260. (1) The High Court or the Supreme Court upon hearing any such case shall decide the questions of law raised therein, and Court on the shall deliver its judgment thereon containing the grounds on which such decision is founded, and a copy of the judgment shall be sent 15 under the seal of the Court and the signature of the Registrar to the Appellate Tribunal which shall pass such orders as are necessary to dispose of the case conformably to such judgment.
 - (2) The costs of any reference to the High Court Supreme Court which shall not include the fee for making the refer-20 ence shall be in the discretion of the Court.

D.—Appeals to the Supreme Court

Appeal to Supreme Court.

261. An appeal shall lie to the Supreme Court from any judgment of the High Court delivered on a reference made under section 256 in any case which the High Court certifies to be a fit 25 one for appeal to the Supreme Court.

Hearing before Supreme Court.

262. (1) The provisions of the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, relating to appeals to the Supreme Court shall, so far as may be, apply in the case of appeals under section 261 as they apply in the case of appeals from decrees of a High Court:

5 of 100%

Provided that nothing in this section shall be deemed to affect the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 260 or section 265.

- (2) The costs of the appeal shall be in the discretion of the Supreme Court.
- (3) Where the judgment of the High Court is varied or reversed 35 in the appeal, effect shall be given to the order of the Supreme Court in the manner provided in section 260 in the case of a judgment of the High Court.

E.—Revision by the Commissioner

263. (1) The Commissioner may call for and examine the Revision of orders preceded of any proceeding under this Act, and if he considers that judicial to any order passed therein by the Income-tax Officer is erroneous in revenue. 5 so far as it is prejudicial to the interests of the revenue, he may, after giving the assessee an opportunity of being heard and after making or causing to be made such inquiry as he deems necessary, pass such order thereon as the circumstances of the case justify. including an order enhancing or modifying the assessment, 10 cancelling the assessment and directing a fresh assessment.

- (2) No order shall be made under sub-section (1)—
- (a) to revise an order of reassessment made under section 147, or
- (b) after the expiry of two years from the date of the order sought to be revised. 15
- (3) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (2), an order in revision under this section may be passed at any time in the case of an order which has been passed in consequence of, or to give effect to, any finding or direction contained in an order 20 of the Appellate Tribunal, the High Court or the Supreme Court.

Explanation.—In computing the period of limitation for the purposes of sub-section (2), the time taken in giving an opportunity to the assessee to be re-heard under the proviso to section 129 and any period during which any proceeding under this section is 25 stayed by an order or injunction of any court shall be excluded.

264. (1) In the case of any order other than an order to which Revision section 263 applies passed by an authority subordinate to him, the of other orders. Commissioner may, either of his own motion or on an application by the assessee for revision, call for the record of any proceeding 30 under this Act in which any such order has been passed and may make such inquiry or cause such inquiry to be made and, subject to the provisions of this Act, may pass such order thereon, being an order prejudicial to the assessee, as he thinks fit.

- (2) The Commissioner shall not of his own motion revise any 35 order under this section if the order has been made more than one year previously.
- (3) In the case of an application for revision under this section by the assessee, the application must be made within one year from the date on which the order in question was communicated to him 40 or the date on which he otherwise came to know of it, whichever is earlier:

Provided that the Commissioner may, if he is satisfied that the assessee was prevented by sufficient cause from making the application within that period, admit an application made after the expiry of that period.

- (4) The Commissioner shall not revise any order under this 5 section in the following cases—
 - (a) where an appeal against the order lies to the Appellate Assistant Commissioner or to the Appellate Tribunal but has not been made and the time within which such appeal may be made has not expired, or, in the case of an appeal to the 10 Appellate Tribunal, the assessee has not waived his right of appeal; or
 - (b) where the order is pending on an appeal before the Appellate Assistant Commissioner; or
 - (c) where the order has been made the subject of an 15 appeal to the Appellate Tribunal.
- (5) Every application by an assessee for revision under this section shall be accompanied by a fee of twenty-five rupees.

Explanation 1—An order by the Commissioner declining to interfere shall, for the purposes of this section, be deemed not to ²⁰ be an order prejudicial to the assessee.

Explanation 2.—For the purposes of this section, the Appellate Assistant Commissioner shall be deemed to be an authority subordinate to the Commissioner.

F.—General

25

Tax to be paid notwithstanding reference, etc. 265. Notwithstanding that a reference has been made to the High Court or the Supreme Court or an appeal has been preferred to the Supreme Court, tax shall be payable in accordance with the assessment made in the case.

Execution for costs awarded by Supreme Court. 266. The High Court may, on petition made for the execution of ³⁰ the order of the Supreme Court in respect of any costs awarded thereby, transmit the order for execution to any court subordinate to the High Court.

Amendment of assess—ment on appeal.

267. Where as the result of an appeal under section 246 or section 253, any change is made in the assessment of a firm or body 35 of individuals or an association of persons or a new assessment of a firm or a body of individuals or an association of persons is ordered to be made, the Appellate Assistant Commissioner or the Appellate

Tribunal, as the case may be, shall pass an order authorising the Income-tax Officer either to amend the assessment made on any partner of the firm or any member of the body or association or make a fresh assessment on any partner of the firm or on any mem-⁵ ber of the body or association.

268. In computing the period of limitation prescribed for an Exclusion appeal or an application under this Act, the day on which the order taken for complained of was served and, if the assessee was not furnished copy. with a copy of the order when the notice of the order was served 10 upon him, the time requisite for obtaining a copy of such order, shall be excluded.

269. In this Chapter.—

Definition of "High

"High Court" means,-

- (i) in relation to any State, the High Court for that State:
- (ii) in relation to the Union territories of Delhi and Himachal Pradesh, the High Court of Punjab;
- (iii) in relation to the Union territories of Manipur and Tripura, the High Court of Assam:
- (iv) in relation to the Union territory of the Andaman and Nicobar islands, the High Court at Calcutta; and
- (v) in relation to the Union territory of the Laccadive. Minicoy and Amindivi islands, the High Court of Kerala.

CHAPTER XXI

PENALTIES IMPOSABLE

270. If any person without reasonable excuse fails to comply with Failure to a notice issued under sub-section (6) of section 94, the Income-tax furnish information Officer may direct that such person shall pay by way of penalty a regarding sum not exceeding five hundred rupees and by way of further penalty securities, 30 a like amount for every day after the infliction of such penalty during which the failure continues.

271. (1) If the Income-tax Officer or the Appellate Assistant Com-Failure to missioner * * * in the course of any proceedings under this turns, Act, is satisfied that any person—

comply with notices, concealment

(a) has without reasonable cause failed to furnish the return of income, etc. of his total income which he was required to furnish under sub-section (1) of section 139 or by notice given under sub-

35

15

20

- section (2) of section 139 or section 148 or has without reasonable cause failed to furnish it within the time allowed and in the manner required by sub-section (1) of section 139 or by such notice, as the case may be, or
- (b) has without reasonable cause failed to comply with a 5 notice under sub-section (1) of section 142 or sub-section (2) of section 143, or
- (c) has concealed the particulars of his income or deliberately furnished inaccurate particulars of such income,
- he * * may direct that such person shall pay by way of penalty;—
 - (i) in the cases referred to in clause (a), in addition to the amount of the tax, if any, payable by him, a sum equal to two per cent. of the tax for every month during which the default continued, but not exceeding in the aggregate fifty per cent. of the tax:
 - (ii) in the cases referred to in clause (b), in addition to any tax payable by him, a sum which shall not be less than ten per cent. but which shall not exceed fifty per cent. of the amount of the tax, if any, which would have been avoided if the income returned by such person had been accepted as the correct 20 income:

- (iii) in the cases referred to in clause (c), in addition to any tax payable by him, a sum which shall not be less than twenty per cent. but which shall not exceed one and a half times the amount of the tax, if any, which would have been avoided 25 if the income as returned by such person had been accepted as the correct income.
- (2) When the person liable to penalty is a registered firm or an unregistered firm which has been assessed under clause (b) of section 183, then, notwithstanding anything contained in the other provisions of this Act, the penalty imposable under sub-section (1) shall be the same amount as would be imposable on that firm if that firm were an unregistered firm.
 - (3) Notwithstanding anything contained in this section,—
 - (a) no penalty for failure to furnish the return of his total 35 income under sub-section (1) of section 139 shall be imposed under sub-section (1) on an assessee whose total income does not exceed the maximum amount not chargeable to tax in his case by one thousand five hundred rupees;

المن بمسلمية المسرق

- (b) where a person has failed to comply with a notice under sub-section (2) of section 139 or section 148 and proves that he has no income liable to tax, the penalty imposable under subsection (1) shall not exceed twenty-five rupees;
- (c) no penalty shall be imposed under sub-section (1) upon 15 any person assessable under clause (i) of sub-section (1) of section 160, read with section 161, as the agent of a non-resident for failure to furnish the return under sub-section (1) of section 139.
- 10 (4) If the Income-tax Officer or the Appellate Assistant Commissioner * * * * in the course of any proceedings under this Act, is satisfied that the profits of a registered firm have been distributed otherwise than in accordance with the shares of the partners as shown in the instrument of partnership on the basis of which the 15 firm has been registered under this Act, and that any partner has thereby returned his income below its real amount, he * * may direct that such partner shall, in addition to the tax, if any, payable by him, pay by way of penalty a sum not exceeding one and a half times the amount of tax which has been avoided, or would have been 20 avoided if the income returned by such partner had been accepted as his correct income; and no refund or other adjustment shall be claimable by any other partner by reason of such direction.
- 272. Where any person fails to give the notice of discontinuance Falure to of his business or profession as required by sub-section (3) of section give notice 25 176, the Income-tax Officer may direct that a sum shall be recovered nuance. from him by way of penalty which shall not be less than ten per cent. of the tax but which shall not exceed the amount of tax subsequently assessed on him in respect of any income of the business or profession up to the date of its discontinuance.

- 273. If the Income-tax Officer, in the course of any proceedings in False esticonnection with the regular assessment, is satisfied that any asses- mate of or failure to see-pay advance
 - (a) has furnished under section 212 an estimate of the advance tax payable by him which he knew or had reason to believe to be untrue, or
 - (b) has without reasonable cause failed to furnish an estimate of the advance tax payable by him in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (3) of section 212,

660 (B) L.S.-29.

he may direct that such person shall, in addition to the amount of tax, if any, payable by him, pay by way of penalty a sum-

- (i) which, in the case referred to in clause (a), shall not be less than ten per cent. but shall not exceed one and a half times the amount by which the tax actually paid during the financial 5 year immediately preceding the assessment year under the provisions of Chapter XVII-C falls short of—
 - (1) seventy-five per cent. of the tax determined on regular assessment, as modified under the provisions of section 215, or
 - (2) where a notice under section 210 was issued to the assessee, the amount payable thereunder.

whichever is less; and

(ii) which, in the case referred to in clause (b), shall not be less than ten per cent. but shall not exceed one and a half 15 times the amount on which interest is payable under section 217.

Procedure.

- 274. (1) No order imposing a penalty under this Chapter shall be made unless the assessee has been heard, or has been given a reasonable opportunity of being heard.
- (2) Notwithstanding anything contained in clause (iii) of sub-20 section (1) of section 271, if in a case falling under clause (c) of that sub-section, the minimum penalty imposable exceeds a sum of rupees one thousand, the Income-tax Officer shall refer the case to the Inspecting Assistant Commissioner who shall, for the purpose, have all the powers conferred under this Chapter for the imposition 25 of penalty.
- (3) An Appellate Assistant Commissioner * * * * * on making an order under this Chapter imposing a penalty, shall forthwith send a copy of the same to the Income-tax Officer.

30

Bar of limitation for imposing penalties. 275. No order imposing a penalty under this Chapter shall be passed after the expiration of two years from the date of the completion of the proceedings in the course of which the proceedings for the imposition of penalty have been commenced.

Explanation.—In computing the period of limitation for the 35 purpose of this section, the time taken in giving an opportunity to the assessee to be re-heard under the proviso to section 129 and any period during which a proceeding under this Chapter for the levy of

penalty is stayed by an order or injunction of any court shall be excluded.

CHAPTER XXII

OFFENCES AND PROSECUTIONS

5 276. If a person fails without reasonable cause or excuse—

. 19

10

15

(a) to grant inspection or allow copies to be taken accordance with the provisions of section 134;

Failure to make payin ments or deliver returns or statemets

- (b) to furnish in due time any of the returns or statements or allow mentioned in section 133, sub-section (2) of section 139, section 206, section 285 or section 286;
- (c) to produce, or cause to be produced, on or before the date mentioned in any notice under sub-section (1) of section 142, such accounts and documents as are referred to in notice:
- (d) to deduct and pay tax as required by the provisions of Chapter XVII-B or under sub-section (2) of section 226; or
- (e) to furnish a certificate required by section 203. he shall be punishable with fine which may extend to ten rupees for every day during which the default continues.
- 277. If a person makes a statement in any verification under this False state-Act or under any rule made thereunder, or delivers an account or ment in statement which is false, and which he either knows or believes to be false, or does not believe to be true, he shall be punishable with simple imprisonment which may extend to six months, or with fine 25 which may extend to one thousand rupees, or with both.
- 278. If a person abets or induces in any manner another person to Abetment make and deliver an account, statement or declaration relating to of false return, etc. any income chargeable to tax which is false and which he either knows to be false or does not believe to be true, he shall be punisha-30 ble with simple imprisonment which may extend to six months or with fine which may extend to one thousand rupees or with both.
 - 279. (1) A person shall not be proceeded against for an offence under section 276 or section 277 or section 278 except at the instance to be at of the Commissioner.

instance of Commissioner.

3 6 (2) The Commissioner may either before or after the institution of proceedings compound any such offence.

Disclosure of particulars by public Servants.

- 280. (1) If a public servant discloses any particulars, the disclosure of which is prohibited by section 137, he shall be punishable with imprisonment which may extend to six months, and shall also be liable to fine.
- (2) No prosecution shall be instituted under this section except 5 with the previous sanction of the Central Government.

CHAPTER XXIII

MISCELLANEOUS

Transfers to

281. Where, during the pendency of any proceeding under this defraud re-venue void. Act, any assessee creates a charge on or parts with the possession by 10 way of sale, mortgage, exchange or any other mode of transfer whatsoever, of any of his assets in favour of any other person with the intention to defraud the revenue, such charge or transfer shall be void as against any claim in respect of any tax or any other sum payable by the assessee as a result of the completion of the said 15 proceeding:

> Provided that such charge or transfer shall not be void if made for valuable consideration and without notice of the pendency of the proceeding under this Act.

Service of notice generally.

282. (1) A notice or requisition under this Act may be served on 20 the person therein named either by post or as if it were a summons issued by a court under the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908.

5 of 1908.

- (2) Any such notice or requisition may be addressed—
 - (a) in the case of a firm or a Hindu undivided family, to any member of the firm or to the manager or any adult member 25 of the family;
 - (b) in the case of a local authority or company, to the principal officer thereof;
 - (c) in the case of any other association or body of individuals, to the principal officer or any member thereof: 30
 - (d) in the case of any other person (not being an individual), to the person who manages or controls his affairs.

Service of notice when family is disrupted or firm, etc. is dissolved.

283. (1) After a finding of total partition has been recorded by the Income-tax Officer under section 171 in respect of any Hindu family, notices under this Act in respect of the income of the Hindu 35 family shall be served on the person who was the last manager of the Hindu family, or, if such person is dead, then on all adults who were members of the Hindu family immediately before the partition.

- (2) Where a firm or other association of persons is dissolved. notices under this Act in respect of the income of the firm or association may be served on any person who was a partner (not being a minor) or member of the association, as the case may be, imme-5 diately before its dissolution.
- 284. Where an assessment is to be made under section 176, the Service of Income-tax Officer may serve on the person whose income is to be case of disassessed, or, in the case of a firm or an association of persons, on any continued person who was a member of such firm or association at the time of to its discontinuance or, in the case of a company, on the principal officer thereof, a notice containing all or any of the requirements which may be included in a notice under sub-section (2) of section 139, and the provisions of this Act shall, so far as may be, apply accordingly as if the notice were a notice issued under that section.

285. The person responsible for paying any interest, not being Information "Interest on securities", shall, on or before the fifteenth day of June responsible in each year, furnish to the Income-tax Officer having jurisdiction for paying to assess him, a return in the prescribed form and verified in the prescribed manner of the names and addresses of all persons to 20 whom during the previous financial year he has paid interest or aggregate interest exceeding such amount, not being less than four hundred rupees, as may be prescribed in this behalf, together with the amount paid to each such person.

286. The principal officer of every company which is an Indian Information 25 company or a company which has made such * * * arrangements by companies respectas may be prescribed for the declaration and payment of dividends ing share-holders to in India shall, on or before the fifteenth day of June in each year, whom divifurnish to the prescribed officer a return in the prescribed form and dends have verified in the prescribed manner of the names and of the addresses. 30 as entered in the register of shareholders maintained by the company. of the shareholders to whom a dividend or aggregate exceeding such amount as may be prescribed in this behalf has or have been distributed during the preceding year and of the amount

287. (1) The Central Government shall cause to be published, Publication by notification in the Official Gazette, the names and such other of information respect-· particulars as may be relevant, of-

so distributed to each shareholder.

40

ing penalties in certain

(a) persons on each of whom a penalty amounting to not cases. less than five thousand rupees or such lesser amount as may be fixed by the Central Government, by notification in the Official Gazette, has been imposed under clause (c) of sub-section (1) of section 271, and

- (b) persons who have been convicted as a result of any proceedings under section 217 or under any provision of the Indian Penal Code for any offence connected with any proceedings under this Act.
 - 45 of 1860.
- (2) If in the interests of revenue the Central Government 5 considers it necessary so to do, it may also cause to be published, by notification in the Official Gazette, the names and such other particulars as may be relevant of-
 - (a) persons on each of whom a penalty has been imposed under clause (a) or clause (b) of sub-section (1) of section 10 271; or
 - (b) persons on each of whom a penalty of an amount not exceeding the amount referred to in clause (a) of sub-section (1) has been imposed under clause (c) of sub-section (1) of section 271; or
 - (c) persons who have been convicted as a result of any proceedings under any provision of this Act other than section 277.
 - (3) No publication under this section shall be made—.
 - (i) in the case of an assessee mentioned in clause (a) of 20 sub-section (1) or in clause (a) or clause (b) of sub-section (2) who has presented an appeal under section 246 or under clause (b) of sub-section (1) of section 253 against the order imposing the penalty, until the appeal is disposed of by the Appellate Assistant Commissioner, or, in the case of an appeal filed under 25 clause (b) of sub-section (1) of section 253, by the Appellate

Tribunal:

- (ii) in the case of an assessee mentioned in clause (b) of sub-section (1) or clause (c) of sub-section (2), until the time for appealing has expired without an appeal having been 30 presented, or the appeal, if presented, has been disposed of.
- (4) Notwithstanding anything contained in this section, the Central Government may refrain from publishing the name of any. person if it is satisfied that in the interests of revenue it is necessary so to do, and where the Central Government refrains publishing the name of any person, the reason for not publishing the name shall be recorded in writing.
- (5) Every notification issued under this section shall be laid before Parliament as soon as may be after it is made.
- (6) The provisions of this section shall have effect notwith-40 standing anything to the contrary contained in sections 137 and 280.

11 of 1922.

(7) The provisions of this section shall have effect in relation to penalties imposed after the 1st day of April, 1960, under the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922, or to proceedings for any offence initiated after the said date under that Act as they have effect in 5 relation to penalties imposed or proceedings initiated under Act with the modification that references in this section to provision of this Act shall be construed as references to the corresponding provision of that Act.

Explanation.—In the case of a firm, company or other associa-10 tion of persons, the names of the partners of the firm, directors, managing agents, secretaries and treasurers, or managers of the company, or the members of the association, as the case may be, may also be published if, in the opinion of the Central Government. the circumstances of the case justify it.

288. (1) Any assessee who is entitled or required to attend Appearance before any Income-tax authority or the Appellate Tribunal connection with any proceeding under this Act otherwise than when sentative. required under section 131 to attend personally for examination on oath or affirmation, may, subject to the other provisions of this 20 section, attend by an authorised representative.

- (2) For the purposes of this section, "authorised representative" means a person authorised by the assessee in writing to appear on his behalf, being-
- (i) a person related to the assessee in any manner, or a 25 person regularly employed by the assessee; or
 - (ii) any officer of a Scheduled Bank with which the assessee maintains a current account or has other regular dealings; or
- (iii) any legal practitioner who is entitled to practise in any civil court in India; or 30
 - (iv) an accountant; or
 - (v) any other person who, immediately before the commencement of this Act, was an Income-tax practitioner within the meaning of clause (iv) of sub-section (2) of section 61 of the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922, and was actually practising as such.

11 of 1922.

Explanation.—In this section, "accountant" means a chartered accountant within the meaning of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, and includes, in relation to any State, any person who by 38 of 1949. 40 virtue of the provisions of sub-section (2) of section 226 of the Companies Act, 1956, is entitled to be appointed to act as an auditor 1 of 1956. of companies registered in that State.

(3) Notwithstanding anything contained in this section, if the authorised representative is a person formerly employed as an Income-tax authrity, not below the rank of Income-tax Officer, and has retired or resigned from such employment after having served for not less than three years in any capacity under this Act 5 or under the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922, from the date of his first employment as such, he shall not be entitled to represent any assessee for a period of two years from the date of his retirement or resignation, as the case may be.

II of 1922.

IO

(4) No person-

£

- (a) who has been dismissed or removed from Government service after the 1st day of April, 1938; or
- (b) who has been convicted of an offence connected with any income-tax proceeding or on whom a penalty has been imposed under this Act * * * * other than a penalty imposed 15 on him under clauses (i) and (ii) of sub-section (1) of section 271; or
- (c) who has become an insolvent, shall be qualified to represent an assessee under sub-section (1), for all times in the case of a person referred to in sub-clause (a), for such time as the Commissioner may by order determine in the case of a person referred to in sub-clause (b), and for the period during which the insolvency continues in the case of a person referred to in sub-clause (c).

(5) If any person—

•

- (a) who is a legal practitioner or an accountant is found guilty of misconduct in his professional capacity by any authority entitled to institute disciplinary proceedings against him, an order passed by that authority shall have effect in relation to his right to attend before an income-tax authority as it 30 has in relation to his right to practise as a legal practitioner or accountant, as the case may be;
- (b) who is not a legal practitioner or an accountant, is found guilty of misconduct in connection with any income-tax proceedings by the prescribed authority, the prescribed authority may direct that he shall thenceforth be disqualified to represent an assessee under sub-section (1).
- (6) Any order or direction under clause (b) of sub-section (4) or clause (b) of sub-section (5) shall be subject to the following conditions, namely,—

- (a) no such order or direction shall be made in respect of any person unless he has been given a reasonable opportunity of being heard;
- (b) any person against whom any such order or direction is made may, within one month of the making of the order or direction, appeal to the Board to have the order or direction cancelled; and
- (c) no such order or direction shall take effect until the expiration of one month from the making thereof, or, where an appeal has been preferred, until the disposal of the appeal.
- (7) A person disqualified to represent an assessee by virtue of the provisions of sub-section (3) of section 61 of the Indian Incometax Act, 1922 shall be disqualified to represent an assessee under sub-section (1).
- 5 289. A receipt shall be given for any money paid or recovered Receipt to under this Act.
- 290. Every person deducting, retaining, or paying any tax in Indemnity. pursuance of this Act in respect of income belonging to another person is hereby indemnified for the deduction, retention, or payment thereof.
- 291. (1) The Central Government may, if it is of opinion (the reasons for such opinion being recorded in writing) that with a view to obtaining the evidence of any person appearing to have been directly or indirectly concerned in or privy to the concealment of income or to the evasion of payment of tax on income, tender to such person immunity from prosecution for any offence under this Act or under the Indian Penal Code or under any other Central Act for the time being in force and also from the imposition of any penalty under this Act on condition of his making a full and true disclosure of the whole circumstances relating to the concealment of income or evasion of payment of tax on income.
- (2) A tender of immunity made to, and accepted by, the person concerned, shall, to the extent to which the immunity extends, render him immune from prosecution for any offence in respect of which 35 the tender was made or from the imposition of any penalty under this Act.
- (3) If it appears to the Central Government that any person to whom immunity has been tendered under this section has not complied with the condition on which the tender was made or is 40 wilfully concealing anything or is giving false evidence, the Central Government may record a finding to that effect, and thereupon the immunity shall be deemed to have been withdrawn, and any such 660 (B) L.S.—30.

II of 1**9**22.

5

10

45 of 1860.

person may be tried for the offence in respect of which the tender of immunity was made or for any other offence of which he appears to have been guilty in connection with the same matter and shall also become liable to the imposition of any penalty under this Act to which he would otherwise have been liable.

Cognisance of offences.

292. No court inferior to that of a presidency magistrate or a magistrate of the first class shall try any offence under this Act.

Bar of suits in civil courts. 293. No suit shall be brought in any civil court to set aside or modify any assessment order made under this Act, and no prosecution, suit or other proceeding shall lie against any officer of the ¹⁰ Government for anything in good faith done or intended to be done under this Act.

Act to have effect pending legislative provision for charge of tax.

294. If on the 1st day of April in any assessment year provision has not yet been made by a Central Act for the charging of incometax or super-tax for that assessment year, this Act shall nevertheless 15 have effect until such provision is so made as if the provision in force in the preceding assessment year or the provision proposed in the Bill then before Parliament, whichever is more favourable to the assessee, were actually in force.

Power to make rules.

- 295. (1) The Board may, subject to the control of the Central Covernment, by notification in the Gazette of India, make rules for the whole or any part of India for carrying out the purposes of this Act.
- (2) In particular, and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing power, such rules may provide for all or any of the follow- 25 ing matters—
 - (a) the ascertainment and determination of any class of income:
 - (b) the manner in which and the procedure by which the income shall be arrived at in the case of—
 - (i) income derived in part from agriculture and in part from business;
 - (ii) persons residing outside India;
 - (c) the determination of the value of any perquisite chargeable to tax under this Act in such manner and on such basis as 35 appears to the Board to be proper and reasonable;
 - (d) the percentage on the written down value which may be allowed as depreciation in respect of buildings, machinery, plant or furniture;
 - (e) the percentage or the amount to be prescribed under 40 clause (i) if sub-section (3) of section 87;

- (f) the manner in which and the period to which any such income as is referred to in section 180 may be allocated;
- (g) the authority to be prescribed for any of the purposes of this \overline{Act} ;
- (h) the procedure for giving effect to the terms of any agreement for the granting of relief in respect of double taxation or for the avoidance of double taxation which may be entered into by the Central Government under this Act:

5

10

15

20

25

- (i) the form and manner in which any application, claim, return or information may be made or furnished and the fees that may be levied in respect of any application or claim;
- (j) the manner in which any document required to be filed under this Act may be verified;
 - (k) the procedure to be followed on applications for refunds:
- (l) the regulation of any matter for which provision is made in section 230:
- (m) the form and manner in which any appeal or cross objection may be filed under this Act and the fee payable in respect thereof;
- (n) the maintenance of a register of persons other than legal practitioners or accountants as defined in sub-section (2) of section 288 practising before income-tax authorities and for the constitution of and the procedure to be followed by the authority referred to in sub-section (5) of that section:
- (o) the issue of certificate verifying the payment of tax by assessees:
- (p) any other matter which by this Act is to be, or may be, prescribed;
- (3) In cases coming under clause (b) of sub-section (2), where the income liable to tax cannot be definitely ascertained, or can be ascertained only with an amount of trouble and expense to the assessee which in the opinion of the Board is unreasonable, the rules made under this section may—
- (a) prescribe methods by which an estimate of such income may be made; and
 - (b) in cases coming under sub-clause (i) of clause (b) of sub-section (2) specify the proportion of the income which shall be deemed to be income liable to tax;

and an assessment based on such estimate or proportion shall be 40 deemed to be duly made in accordance with the provisions of this Act.

Rules to be placed before Parliament.

296. The Central Government shall cause every rule made under placed before ParliaHouse of Parliament while it is in session for a total period of thirty days, which may be comprised in one session or in two successive sessions, and, if before the expiry of the session in which it is so laid or the session immediately following, both Houses agree in making any modification in the rule or both Houses agree that the rule should not be made, that rule shall thereafter have effect, only in such modified form or be of no effect, as the case may be, so however that any such modification or annulment shall be without prejudice to the validity of anything previously done under that rule.

Repeals and savings.

297. (1) The Indian Income-tax Act, 1922, is hereby repealed.

II of 1922.

(2) Notwithstanding the repeal of the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922 (hereinafter referred to as the repealed Act).—

11 of 1922.

- (a) where a return of income has been filed before the 15 commencement of this Act by any person for any assessment year, proceedings for the assessment of that person for that year may be taken and continued as if this Act had not been passed;
- (b) where a return of income is filed after the commencement of this Act otherwise than in pursuance of a notice under 20 section 34 of the repealed Act by any person for the assessment year ending on the 31st day of March, 1962, or any earlier year, the assessment of that person for that year shall be made in accordance with the procedure specified in this Act;
- (c) any proceeding pending on the commencement of this 25 Act before any income-tax authority, the appellate tribunal or any court, by way of appeal, reference or revision, shall be continued and disposed of as if this Act had not been passed;
- (d) where in respect of any assessment year after the year ending on the 31st day of March, 1940,—
 - (i) a notice under section 34 of the repealed Act had been issued before the commencement of this Act, the proceedings in pursuance of such notice may be continued and disposed of as if this Act had not been passed;
 - (ii) any income chargeable to tax had escaped assess-35 ment within the meaning of that expression in section 147 and no proceedings under section 34 of the repealed Act in respect of any such income are pending at the commencement of this Act, a notice under section 148 may.

subject to the provisions contained in section 149 or section 150, be issued with respect to that assessment year and all the provisions of this Act shall apply accordingly:

(e) section 23A of the repealed Act shall continue to have effect in relation to the assessment of any company or its shareholders for the assessment year ending on the 31st day of March, 1962, or any earlier year, and the provisions of the repealed Act shall apply to all matters arising out of such assessment as fully and effectually as if this Act had not been passed;

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

- (f) any proceeding for the imposition of a penalty in respect of any assessment completed * * * before the 1st day of April, 1962, may be initiated and any such penalty may be imposed as if this Act had not been passed;
- (g) any proceeding for the imposition of a penalty in respect of any assessment for the year ending on the 31st day of March, 1962, or any earlier year, which is completed on or after the 1st day of April, 1962, may be initiated and any such penalty may be imposed under this Act;
- (h) any election or declaration made or option exercised by an assessee under any provision of the repealed Act and in force immediately before the commencement of this Act shall be deemed to have been an election or declaration made or option exercised under the corresponding provision of this Act;
- (i) where, in respect of any assessment completed before the commencement of this Act, a refund falls due after such commencement or default is made after such commencement in the payment of any sum due under such completed assessment, the provisions of this Act relating to interest payable by the Central Government on refunds and interest payable by the assessee for default shall apply;
- (j) any sum payable by way of income-tax, super-tax, interest, penalty or otherwise under the repealed Act may be recovered under this Act, but without prejudice to any action already taken for the recovery of such sum under the repealed Act;
- (k) any agreement entered into, appointment made, approval given, recognition granted, direction, instruction, notification, order or rule issued under any provision of the repealed Act shall, so far as it is not inconsistent with the corresponding provision of this Act, be deemed to have been entered into,

made, granted, given or issued under the corresponding provision aforesaid and shall continue in force accordingly;

- (1) any notification issued under sub-section (1) of section 60 of the repealed Act and in force immediately before the commencement of this Act shall, to the extent to which provision has not been made under this Act, continue in force until rescinded by the Central Government;
- (m) where the period prescribed for any application. appeal, reference or revision under the repealed Act had expired on or before the commencement of this Act, nothing in this Act shall be construed as enabling any such application, appeal, reference or revision to be made under this Act by reason only of the fact that a longer period therefor is prescribed or provision is made for extension of time in suitable cases by the appropriate authority.

Power to remove difficulties.

298. (1) If any difficulty arises in giving effect to the provisions of this Act the Central Government may, by general or special order, do anything not inconsistent with such provisions which appears to it to be necessary or expedient for the purpose of removing the difficulty.

20

25

(2) In particular, and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing power, any such order may provide for the adaptations or modifications subject to which the repealed Act shall apply in relation to the assessments for the assessment year ending on the 31st day of March, 1962, or any earlier year.

THE FIRST SCHEDULE

INSURANCE BUSINESS

(See section 44)

A.—Life insurance business

1. In the case of a person who carries on or at any time in the Profits previous year carried on life insurance business, the profits gains of such person from that business shall be computed separately business to from his profits and gains from any other business.

and of life inseparately.

2. (1) The profits and gains of life insurance business shall be Computation 10 taken to be the greater of the following-

4 of 1938.

15

20

30

life insurance busi -

- (a) the gross external incomings of the previous year from ness. that business, less the management expenses of that year;
- (b) the annual average of the surplus arrived at by adjusting the surplus or deficit disclosed by the actuarial valuation made in accordance with the Insurance Act, 1938, in respect of the last inter-valuation period ending before the commencement of the assessment year, so as to exclude from it any surplus or deficit included therein which was made in any earlier inter-valuation period and any expenditure or allowance which is not deductible under the provisions of sections 30 to 43 in computing income chargeable under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession".
- (2) The amount to be allowed as management expenses under sub-rule (1) shall not exceed the aggregate of the following:—
- (a) 74 per cent. of the premiums received during the previ-25 ous year in respect of single premium life insurance policies;
 - (b) in respect of the first year's premiums received in respect of other life insurance policies for which the number of annual premiums payable is less than twelve, or for which the number of years during which premiums are payable is less than twelve, for each such premium or each such year 71 per cent. of such first year's premiums received during the previous vear:
- (c) 90 per cent. of the first year's premiums received during the previous year in respect of all other life insurance policies; 35

(d) in respect of all renewal premiums received during the previous year, an amount calculated at such percentage thereof as is permissible under sub-section (2) of section 40B of the Insurance Act, 1938, as reduced by any expenditure or allowance which is not deductible under sections 30 to 43 in 5 computing income chargeable under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession".

4 of 1938. 📆

Deductions.

- 3. In computing the surplus for the purpose of rule 2,-
- (a) four-fifths of the amounts paid to or reserved for or expended on behalf of policy-holders shall be allowed as a deduc- 10 tion:

Provided that if any amount so reserved for policy-holders ceases to be so reserved, and is not paid to or expended on behalf of policy-holders, that proportion of such amount (one-half or four-fifths, as the case may be) if it has been previously 15 allowed as a deduction under this Act or under the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922, shall be treated as part of the surplus for the period in which the said amount ceased to be so reserved;

11 of 1922.

(b) any amount either written off or reserved in the accounts or through the actuarial valuation balance sheet to meet depreciation of or loss on the realisation of investments shall be allowed as a deduction, and any sums taken credit for in the accounts or actuarial valuation balance sheet on account of appreciation of or gains on the realisation of investments shall be included in the surplus:

25

Provided that if upon investigation it appears to the Incometax Officer after consultation with the Controller of Insurance that having due regard to the necessity for making reasonable provision for bonuses to participating policy-holders and for contingencies, the rate of interest or other factor employed in determining the liability in respect of outstanding policies is materially inconsistent with the valuation of investments so as artificially to reduce the surplus, such adjustment shall be made to the allowance for depreciation or to the amount to be included in the surplus in respect of appreciation of such investments as shall increase the surplus for the purposes of these provisions to a figure which is fair and just:

(c) interest received during the inter-valuation period in respect of any securities of the Central Government which have been issued or declared to be income-tax free, shall not be 40 excluded, but no income-tax shall be payable on the annual average of the amount of such interest.

4. Where for any year an assessment of the profits of life insu- Adjustment rance business is made in accordance with the annual average of a of tax paid by deduction surplus disclosed by a valuation for an inter-valuation period exceed- at source. ing twelve months, then, in computing the income-tax payable for 5 that year, credit shall not be given in accordance with section 199 for the income-tax paid in the previous year, but credit shall be given for the annual average of the income-tax paid by deduction at source from interest on securities or otherwise during such period.

B.—Other insurance business

5. The profits and gains of any business of insurance other than Computation life insurance shall be taken to be the balance of the profits disclosed gains of other by the annual accounts, copies of which are required under the In-insurance surance Act, 1938, to be furnished to the Controller of Insurance. subject to the following adjustments:—

- 4 of 1938.
- (a) subject to the other provisions of this rule, any expendi-15 ture or allowance which is not admissible under the provisions of sections 30 to 43 in computing the profits and gains of a business shall be added back:
- (b) any amount either written off or reserved in the accounts to meet depreciation of or loss on the realisation of 20 investments shall be allowed as a deduction, and any sums taken credit for in the accounts on account of appreciation of or gains on the realisation of investments shall be treated as part of the profits and gains:
- Provided that the Income-tax Officer is satisfied about the 25 reasonableness of the amount written off or reserved in the accounts, as the case may be, to meet depreciation of or loss on the realisation of investments.
- (c) such amount carried over to a reserve for unexpired risks as may be prescribed in this behalf shall be allowed as a 30 deduction.

C.—Other provisions

6. (1) The profits and gains of the branches in India of a person Profits and not resident in India and carrying on any business of insurance, may, gains of 35 in the absence of more reliable data, be deemed to be that proporperson. tion of the world income of such person which corresponds to the proportion which his premium income derived from India bears to his total premium income.

(2) For the purposes of this rule, the world income in relation 40 to life insurance business of a person not resident in India shall be 660 (B) LS-31.

computed in the manner laid down in this Act for the computation of the profits and gains of life insurance business carried on in India.

Interpreta-

- 7. (1) For the purposes of these rules—
- (i) "gross external incomings" means the full amount of incomings from interest, dividends, fines and fees and all other 5 incomings from whatever source derived (except premiums received from policy-holders and interest and dividends on any annuity fund), and includes also profits from reversions and on the sale or the granting of annuities, but excludes profits on the realisation of investments:

Provided that incomings, including the annual value of the property occupied by the assessee, which but for the provisions of section 44 would have been assessable under the head "Income from house property", shall be computed in the manner applicable to income chargeable under that head, and that there shall 15 be allowed from such gross incomings such deductions as are permissible in respect of income chargeable under that head;

- (ii) "investments" includes securities, stocks and shares;
- (iii) "management expenses" means the full amount of expenses (including commissions) incurred exclusively in the 20 management of the business of life insurance, and in the case of a company carrying on other classes of business as well as the business of life insurance, in addition thereto a fair proportion of the expenses incurred in the general management of the whole business. Bonuses or other sums paid to or reserved on behalf 25 of policy-holders, depreciation of, and losses on the realisation of investments, and any expenditure or allowance other than expenditure or allowance which may under the provisions of sections 30 to 43 be allowed for in computing the profits and gains of a business, are not management expenses for the purposes of 30 these rules;
- (iv) "life insurance business" means life insurance business as defined in clause (11) of section 2 of the Insurance Act. 1938:

4 of 1938.

- (v) "rule" means a rule contained in this Schedule.
- (2) References in these rules to the Insurance Act, 1938, or any 35 4 of 1938. provision thereof, shall, in relation to the Life Insurance Corporation of India, be construed as references to that Act or provision as read with section 43 of the Life Insurance Corporation Act, 1956.

THE SECOND SCHEDULE

PROCEDURE FOR RECOVERY OF TAX

[See section 222]

PART I

5

General provisions

1. In this Schedule, unless the context otherwise requires,—

Definitions.

- (a) "certificate" means a certificate received by the Tax Recovery Officer from the Income-tax Officer for the recovery of arrears under this Schedule;
- (b) "defaulter" means the assessee mentioned in the certificate;
 - (c) "execution", in relation to a certificate, means recovery of arrears in pursuance of the certificate;
 - (d) "movable property" includes growing crops;
- (e) "officer" means a person authorised to make an attachment or sale under this Schedule;
 - (f) "rule" means a rule contained in this Schedule; and
 - (g) "share in a Corporation" includes stock, debenturestock, debentures or bonds.
- 20 2. When a certificate has been received by the Tax Recovery Officer Issue of from the Income-tax Officer for the recovery of arrears under this notice. Schedule, the Tax Recovery Officer shall cause to be served upon the defaulter a notice requiring the defaulter to pay the amount specified in the certificate within fifteen days from the date of 25 service of the notice and intimating that in default steps would be taken to realise the amount under this Schedule.
 - 3. No step in execution of a certificate shall be taken until the when certiperiod of fifteen days has elapsed since the date of the service of the ficate may be executed.

 notice required by the preceding rule:
- Provided that, if the Tax Recovery Officer is satisfied that the defaulter is likely to conceal, remove or dispose of the whole or any part of such of his movable property as would be liable to attachment in execution of a decree of a civil court and that the realisation of the amount of the certificate would in consequence be delayed 35 or obstructed, he may at any time direct, for reasons to be recorded in writing, an attachment of the whole or any part of such property:

Provided further that if the defaulter whose property has been so attached furnishes security to the satisfaction of the Tax Recovery Officer, such attachment shall be cancelled from the date on which such security is accepted by the Tax Recovery Officer.

Mode of re-

- 4. If the amount mentioned in the notice is not paid within the 5 time specified therein or within such further time as the Tax Recovery Officer may grant in his discretion, the Tax Recovery Officer shall proceed to realise the amount by one or more of the following modes:—
 - (a) by attachment and sale of the defaulter's movable 10 property;
 - (b) by attachment and sale of the defaulter's immovable property;
 - (c) by arrest of the defaulter and his detention in prison;
 - (d) by appointing a receiver for the management of the ¹⁵ defaulter's movable and immovable properties.

Interest, costs and charges recoverable.

- 5. There shall be recoverable, in the proceedings in execution of every certificate,—
 - (a) such interest upon the amount of tax or penalty or other sum to which the certificate relates as is payable in ac-20 cordance with sub-section (2) of section 220, and
 - (b) all charges incurred in respect of-
 - (i) the service of notice upon the defaulter to pay the arrears, and of warrants and other processes, and
 - (ii) all other proceedings taken for realising the arrears. 25

Purchaser's title.

- 6. (1) Where property is sold in execution of a certificate, there shall vest in the purchaser merely the right, title and interest of the defaulter at the time of the sale, even though the property itself be specified.
- (2) Where immovable property is sold in execution of a certi-30 ficate, and such sale has become absolute, the purchaser's right, title and interest shall be deemed to have vested in him from the time when the property is sold, and not from the time when the sale becomes absolute.

7. (1) No suit shall be maintained against any person claiming Suit against title under a purchase certified by the Tax Recovery Officer in the not main manner laid down in this Schedule, on the ground that the purchase tainable on was made on behalf of the plaintiff or on behalf of some one through purchase 5 whom the plaintiff claims.

being made on behalf of

- (2) Nothing in this section shall bar a suit to obtain a declara- plaintiff. tion that the name of any purchaser certified as aforesaid was inserted in the certificate fraudulently or without the consent of the real purchaser, or interfere with the right of a third person to pro-10 ceed against that property, though ostensibly sold to the certified purchaser, on the ground that it is liable to satisfy a claim of such third person against the real owner.
- 8. (1) Whenever assets are realised, by sale or otherwise in exe- Disposal of cution of a certificate, they shall be disposed of in the following execution. 15 manner:-
 - (a) there shall first be paid to the Income-tax Officer the costs incurred by him;
 - (b) there shall, in the next place, be paid to the Income-tax Officer the amount due under the certificate in execution of which the assets were realized:

20

25

- (c) if there remains a balance after these sums have been paid, there shall be paid to the Income-tax Officer therefrom any other amount recoverable under the procedure provided by this Act which may be due upon the date upon which the assets were realised; and
- (d) the balance (if any) remaining after the payment of the amount (if any) referred to in clause (c) shall be paid to the defaulter.
- (2) If the defaulter disputes any claim made by the Income-tax 30 Officer to receive any amount referred to in clause (c), the Tax Recovery Officer shall determine the dispute.
- 9. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Act, every ques- General bar tion arising between the Income-tax Officer and the defaulter or to jurisdictheir representatives, relating to the execution, discharge or satis- courts, save 35 faction of a certificate duly filed under this Act, or relating to the where fraud alleged. confirmation or setting aside by an order under this Act of a sale held in execution of such certificate, shall be determined, not by suit, but by order of the Tax Recovery Officer before whom such question arises:

Provided that a suit may be brought in a civil court in respect of 40 any such question upon the ground of fraud.

Property exempt from attachment.

10. (1) All such property as is by the Code of Civil Procedure 1908, exempted from attachment and sale in execution of a decree of a civil court shall be exempt from attachment and sale under this Schedule.

5 of 1908.

(2) The Tax Recovery Officer's decision as to what property is 5 so entitled to exemption shall be conclusive.

Investigation by Tax Recevery Offi-'cer.

11. (1) Where any claim is preferred to, or any objection is made to the attachment or sale of, any property in execution of a certificate, on the ground that such property is not liable to such attachment or sale, the Tax Recovery Officer shall proceed to investigate the claim 10 or objection:

Provided that no such investigation shall be made where the Tax Recovery Officer considers that the claim or objection was designedly or unnecessarily delayed.

- (2) Where the property to which the claim or objection applies 15 has been advertised for sale, the Tax Recovery Officer ordering the sale may postpone it pending the investigation of the claim or objection, upon such terms as to security or otherwise as the Tax Recovery Officer shall deem fit.
 - (3) The claimant or objector must adduce evidence to show that— 20
 - (a) (in the case of immovable property) at the date of the service of the notice issued under this Schedule to pay the arrears, or
 - (b) (in the case of movable property) at the date of the attachment,

he had some interest in, or was possessed of, the property in question.

(4) Where, upon the said investigation, the Tax Recovery Officer is satisfied that, for the reason stated in the claim or objection, such property was not, at the said date, in the possession of the defaulter 3° or of some person in trust for him or in the occupancy of a tenant or other person paying rent to him, or that, being in the possession of the defaulter at the said date, it was so in his possession, not on his own account or as his own property, but on account of or in trust for some other person, or partly on his own account and partly on 35 account of some other person, the Tax Recovery Officer shall make an order releasing the property, wholly or to such extent as he thinks fit, from attachment or sale.

- (5) Where the Tax Recovery Officer is satisfied that the property was, at the said date, in the possession of the defaulter as his own property and not on account of any other person, or was in the possession of some other person in trust for him, or in the occupancy of a tenant or other person paying rent to him, the Tax Recovery Officer shall disallow the claim.
- (6) Where a claim or an objection is preferred, the party against whom an order is made may institute a suit in a civil court to establish the right which he claims to the property in dispute; but, subjo ject to the result of such suit (if any), the order of the Tax Recovery Officer shall be conclusive.

12. Where-

15

Removal of attachment

- (a) the amount due, with costs and all charges and expenses on satisfaction or canresulting from the attachment of any property or incurred in cellation of order to hold a sale, are paid to the Tax Recovery Officer, or
 - (b) the certificate is cancelled,

the attachment shall be deemed to be withdrawn and, in the case of immovable property, the withdrawal shall, if the defaulter so desires, be proclaimed at his expense, and a copy of the proclama-20 tion shall be affixed in the manner provided by this Schedule for a proclamation of sale of immovable property.

13. The attachment and sale of movable property and the attach- Officer enment and sale of immovable property may be made by such persons titled to attach and as the Tax Recovery Officer may from time to time direct.

14. Any deficiency of price which may happen on a resale by Defaulting reason of the purchaser's default, and all expenses attending such purchaser resale, shall be certified to the Tax Recovery Officer by the officer answerable for loss on holding the sale, and shall, at the instance of either the Income-tax resale. Officer or the defaulter, be recoverable from the defaulting purchaser 30 under the procedure provided by this Schedule:

Provided that no such application shall be entertained unless filed within fifteen days from the date of resale.

15. (1) The Tax Recovery Officer may, in his discretion, adjourn Adjournany sale hereunder to a specified day and hour; and the officer con-ment or stoppage of 35 ducting any such sale may, in his discretion, adjourn the sale, record-sale. ing his reasons for such adjournment:

Provided that, where the sale is made in, or within the precincts of, the office of the Tax Recovery Officer, no such adjournment shall be made without the leave of the Tax Recovery Officer.

- (2) Where a sale of immovable property is adjourned under subrule (1) for a longer period than one calendar month, a fresh proclamation of sale under this Schedule shall be made unless the defaulter consents to waive it.
- (3) Every sale shall be stopped if, before the lot is knocked down, 5 the arrears and costs (including the costs of the sale) are tendered to the officer conducting the sale, or proof is given to his satisfaction that the amount of such arrears and costs has been paid to the Tax Recovery Officer who ordered the sale.

Private alienation to be void in certain cases.

- 16. (1) Where a notice has been served on a defaulter under rule 10 2. the defaulter or his representative in interest shall not be competent to mortgage, charge, lease or otherwise deal with any property belonging to him except with the permission of the Tax Recovery Officer, nor shall any civil court issue any process against such property in execution of a decree for the payment of money. 15
- (2) Where an attachment has been made under this Schedule. any private transfer or delivery of the property attached or of any interest therein and any payment to the defaulter of any debt, dividend or other monies contrary to such attachment, shall be void as against all claims enforceable under the attachment. 20

Prohibition against bidchase by Officer.

17. No officer or other person having any duty to perform in conding or pur nection with any sale under this Schedule shall, either directly or indirectly, bid for, acquire or attempt to acquire any interest in the property sold.

Prohibition against sale on holidays.

18. No sale under this Schedule shall take place on a Sunday 25 or other general holiday recognised by the State Government or on any day which has been notified by the State Government to be a local holiday for the area in which the sale is to take place.

Assistance by police.

19. Any officer authorised to attach or sell any property or to arrest the defaulter or charged with any duty to be performed under 30 this Schedule, may apply to the officer-in-charge of the nearest police station for such assistance as may be necessary in the discharge of his duties, and the authority to whom such application is made shall depute a sufficient number of police officers for furnishing such assistance. 35

PART II

Attachment and sale of movable property

Attachment

Warrant

20. Except as otherwise provided in this Schedule, when any movable property is to be attached, the officer shall be furnished by the 40 Tax Recovery Officer (or other officer empowered by him in that behalf) a warrant in writing and signed with his name specifying the name of the defaulter and the amount to be realised.

21. The officer shall cause a copy of the warrant to be served on the defaulter.

copy of warrant.

22. If, after service of the copy of the warrant, the amount is not Attachment. paid forthwith, the officer shall proceed to attach the movable pro-5 perty of the defaulter.

23. Where the property to be attached is movable property (other Property in than agricultural produce) in the possession of the defaulter, the defaulter's attachment shall be made by actual seizure, and the officer shall keep the property in his own custody or the custody of one of his sub-10 ordinates and shall be responsible for due custody thereof:

Provided that when the property seized is subject to speedy and natural decay or when the expense of keeping it in custody is likely to exceed its value, the officer may sell it at once.

- 24. Where the property to be attached is agricultural produce, Agricultural 15 the attachment shall be made by affixing a copy of the warrant of produce. attachment-
 - (a) where such produce is growing crop,—on the land on which such crop has grown, or
 - (b) where such produce has been cut or gathered,—on the threshing floor or place for treading out grain or the like, or fodder-stack, on or in which it is deposited,

and another copy on the outer door or on some other conspicuous part of the house in which the defaulter ordinarily resides, or with the leave of the Tax Recovery Officer, on the outer door or on some 25 other conspicuous part of the house in which he carries on business or personally works for gain, or in which he is known to have last resided or carried on business or personally worked for gain. The produce shall, thereupon, be deemed to have passed into the possession of the Tax Recovery Officer.

E 25. (1) Where agricultural produce is attached, the Tax Recovery Provisions as Officer shall make such arrangements for the custody, watching, tend- to agricultuing, cutting and gathering thereof as he may deem sufficient; and under atthe Income-tax Officer shall bear such sum as the Tax Recovery tachment. Officer shall require in order to defray the cost of such arrangements.

(2) Subject to such conditions as may be imposed by the Tax Recovery Officer in this behalf, either in the order of attachment or in any subsequent order, the defaulter may tend, cut, gather and store the produce and do any other act necessary for maturing or preserving it; and, if the defaulter fails to do all or any of such acts, 40 any person appointed by the Tax Recovery Officer in this behalf may, subject to the like conditions, do all or any of such acts, and

20

the costs incurred by such person shall be recoverable from the defaulter as if they were included in the certificate.

- (3) Agricultural produce attached as a growing crop shall not be deemed to have ceased to be under attachment or to require reattachment merely because it has been severed from the soil.
- (4) Where an order for the attachment of a growing crop has been made at a considerable time before the crop is likely to be fit to be cut or gathered, the Tax Recovery Officer may suspend the execution of the order for such time as he thinks fit, and may, in his discretion, make a further order prohibiting the removal of the crop 10 pending the execution of the order of attachment.
- (5) A growing crop which from its nature does not admit of being stored shall not be attached under this rule at any time less than twenty days before the time at which it is likely to be fit to be cut or gathered.

Debts and shares, etc.

- 26. (1) In the case of—
 - (a) a debt not secured by a negotiable instrument,
 - (b) a share in a corporation, or
- (c) other movable property not in the possession of the defaulter except property deposited in, or in the custody of, any court.

15

the attachment shall be made by a written order prohibiting,—

- (i) in the case of the debt—the creditor from recovering the debt and the debtor from making payment thereof until the further order of the Tax Recovery Officer; 25
- (ii) in the case of the share—the person in whose name the share may be standing from transferring the same or receiving any dividend thereon;
- (iii) in the case of the other movable property (except as aforesaid)—the person in possession of the same from giving it 30 over to the defaulter.
- (2) A copy of such order shall be affixed on some conspicuous part of the office of the Tax Recovery Officer, and another copy shall be sent, in the case of the debt, to the debtor, in the case of the share, to the proper officer of the corporation, and in the case of the other 35 movable property (except as aforesaid), to the person in possession of the same.
- (3) A debtor prohibited under clause (i) of sub-rule (1) may pay the amount of his debt to the Tax Recovery Officer, and such

payment shall discharge him as effectually as payment to the party entitled to receive the same.

27. (1) The attachment of a decree of a civil court for the pay- Attachment ment of money or for sale in enforcement of a mortgage or charge of decree. shall be made by the issue to the civil court of a notice requesting the civil court to stay the execution of the decree unless and until-

- (i) the Tax Recovery Officer cancels the notice, or
- (ii) the Income-tax Officer or the defaulter applies to the court receiving such notice to execute the decree.
- (2) Where a civil court receives an application under clause (ii) of sub-rule (1), it shall, on the application of the Income-tax Officer or the defaulter and subject to the provisions of the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, proceed to execute the attached decree and apply the net proceeds in satisfaction of the certificate.
- (3) The Income-tax Officer shall be deemed to be the represen-15 tative of the holder of the attached decree, and to be entitled to execute such attached decree in any manner lawful for the holder thereof.
- 28. Where the property to be attached consists of the share or Share in 20 interest of the defaulter in movable property belonging to him movable and another as co-owners, the attachment shall be made by a notice property. to the defaulter prohibiting him from transferring the share or interest or charging it in any way.

29. Attachment of the salary or allowances of servants of the Salary of 25 Government or a local authority may be made in the manner pro-Government vided by rule 48 of Order 21 of the First Schedule to the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 and the provisions of the said rule shall, for the purposes of this rule, apply subject to such modifications as may be necessary.

5 of 1908.

5 of 1908.

30. Where the property is a negotiable instrument not deposited Attachment in a court nor in the custody of a public officer, the attachment shall of negotiable instruments. be made by actual seizure, and the instrument shall be brought before the Tax Recovery Officer and held subject to his orders.

31. Where the property to be attached is in the custody of any Attachment 35 court or public officer, the attachment shall be made by a notice to of property of in custody of such court or officer, requesting that such property, and any interest court or or dividend becoming payable thereon, may be held subject to the public officer. further orders of the Tax Recovery Officer by whom the notice is issued:

Provided that, where such property is in the custody of a court, 40 any question of title or priority arising between the Income-tax

Officer and any other person, not being the defaulter, claiming to be interested in such property by virtue of any assignment, attachment or otherwise, shall be determined by such court.

Attachment of partnership property.

- 32. (1) Where the property to be attached consists of an interest of the defaulter, being a partner, in the partnership property, the 5 Tax Recovery Officer may make an order charging the share of such partner in the partnership property and profits with payment of the amount due under the certificate, and may, by the same or subsequent order, appoint a receiver of the share of such partner in the profits, whether already declared or accruing and of any other 10 money which may become due to him in respect of the partnership, and direct accounts and enquiries and make an order for the sale of such interest or such other order as the circumstances of the case may require.
- (2) The other persons shall be at liberty at any time to redeem 15 the interest charged or, in the case of a sale being directed, to purchase the same.

Inventory.

33. In the case of attachment of movable property by actual seizure, the officer shall, after attachment of the property, prepare an inventory of all the property attached, specifying in it the place 20 where it is lodged or kept, and shall forward the same to the Tax Recovery Officer and a copy of the inventory shall be delivered by the officer to the defaulter.

Attachment not to be excessive.

34. The attachment by seizure shall not be excessive, that is to say, the property attached shall be as nearly as possible proportionate 25 to the amount specified in the warrant.

Seizure between sunrise and sun set. 35. Attachment by seizure shall be made after sun-rise and before sun-set and not otherwise.

Sun set.

Power to break open doors etc.

36. The officer may break open any inner or outer door or window of any building and enter any building in order to seize any 30 movable property if the officer has reasonable grounds to believe that such building contains movable property liable to seizure under the warrant and the officer has notified his authority and intention of breaking open if admission is not given. He shall, however, give all reasonable opportunity to women to withdraw.

Sale

Sale.

37. The Tax Recovery Officer may direct that any movable property attached under this Schedule or such portion thereof as may seem necessary to satisfy the certificate shall be sold.

38. When any sale of movable property is ordered by the Tax Issue of pro-Recovery Officer, the Tax Recovery Officer shall issue a proclama-clamation. tion, in the language of the district, of the intended sale, specifying the time and place of sale and whether the sale is subject to confirmation or not.

- 39. (1) Such proclamation shall be made by beat of drum or Froclamation other customary mode,—
 - (a) in the case of property attached by actual seizure—
- (i) in the village in which the property was seized, or, if the property was seized in a town or city, then, in the locality in which it was seized; and

10

- (ii) at such other places as the Tax Recovery Officer may direct:
- (b) in the case of property attached otherwise than by actual seizure in such places, if any, as the Tax Recovery Officer may direct.
 - (2) A copy of the proclamation shall also be affixed in a conspicuous part of the office of the Tax Recovery Officer.
- 40. Except where the property is subject to speedy and natural Sale after decay or when the expense of keeping it in custody is likely to exceed its value, no sale of movable property under this Schedule shall, without the consent in writing of the defaulter, take place until after the expiry of at least fifteen days calculated from the date on which a copy of the sale-proclamation was affixed in the office of the Tax Recovery Officer.

41. (1) Where the property to be sold is agricultural produce, the Sale of sale shall be held,—

Sale of agricultural produce.

- (a) if such produce is a growing crop—on or near the land on which such crop has grown, or
- 30 (b) if such produce has been cut or gathered—at or near the threshing-floor or place for treading out grain or the like, or fodder-stack, on or in which it is deposited:

Provided that the Tax Recovery Officer may direct the sale to be held at the nearest place of public resort, if he is of opinion that the 35 produce is thereby likely to sell to greater advantage.

- (2) Where, on the produce being put up for sale,—
- (a) a fair price, in the estimation of the person holding the sale, is not offered for it, and

(b) the owner of the produce, or a person authorised to act on his behalf, applies to have the sale postponed till the next day or, if a market is held at the place of sale, the next market day,

the sale shall be postponed accordingly, and shall be then completed, 5 whatever price may be offered for the produce.

Special provisions relating to growing crops.

- 42. (1) Where the property to be sold is a growing crop and the crop from its nature admits of being stored but has not yet been stored, the day of the sale shall be so fixed as to admit of the crop being made ready for storing before the arrival of such day, and the 10 sale shall not be held until the crop has been cut or gathered and is ready for storing.
- (2) Where the crop from its nature does not admit of being stored or can be sold to a greater advantage in an unripe stage (e.g. as green wheat), it may be sold before it is cut and gathered, and the 15 purchaser shall be entitled to enter on the land, and to do all that is necessary for the purpose of tending or cutting or gathering the crop.

Sale to be by auction.

43. The property shall be sold by public auction in one or more lots as the officer may consider advisable, and if the amount to be ²⁰ realised by sale is satisfied by the sale of a portion of the property, the sale shall be immediately stopped with respect to the remainder of the lots.

Sale by public auction.

- 44. (1) Where movable property is sold by public auction, the price of each lot shall be paid at the time of sale or as soon after as 25 the officer holding the sale directs and in default of payment, the property shall forthwith be resold.
- (2) On payment of the purchase-money, the officer holding the sale shall grant a certificate specifying the property purchased, the price paid and the name of the purchaser, and the sale shall become 30 absolute.
- (3) Where the movable property to be sold is a share in goods belonging to the defaulter and a co-owner, and two or more persons, of whom one is such co-owner, respectively bid the same sum for such property or for any lot, the bidding shall be deemed to be the 35 bidding of the co-owner.

Irregularity not to vitiate sale, but any person injured may suc. 45. No irregularity in publishing or conducting the sale of movable property shall vitiate the sale, but any person sustaining substantial injury by reason of such irregularity at the hand of any other person may institute a suit in a civil court against him for 40

compensation, or (if such other person is the purchaser) for the recovery of the specific property and for compensation in default of such recovery.

46. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Schedule, where Negotiable 5 the property to be sold is a negotiable instrument or a share in a and shares in corporation, the Tax Recovery Officer may, instead of directing the a corporation. sale to be made by public auction, authorise the sale of such instrument or share through a broker.

47. Where the property attached is current coin or currency notes, Order for 10 the Tax Recovery Officer may, at any time during the continuance of coin or of the attachment, direct that such coin or notes, or a part thereof currency sufficient to satisfy the certificate, be paid over to the Income-tax Income-tax Officer.

PART III

Attachment and sale of immovable property

Attachment

15

48. Attachment of the immovable property of the defaulter shall Attachbe made by an order prohibiting the defaulter from transferring or ment. charging the property in any way and prohibiting all persons from ²⁰ taking any benefit under such transfer or charge.

49. A copy of the order of attachment shall be served on the Service of defaulter.

notice of attachment.

- 50. The order of attachment shall be proclaimed at some place on Proclamaor adjacent to the property attached by beat of drum or other cus-25 tomary mode, and a copy of the order shall be affixed on a conspicuous part of the property and on the notice board of the office of the Tax Recovery Officer.
- 51. Where any immovable property is attached under this Sche- Attachdule, the attachment shall relate back to, and take effect from, the ment to relate back 30 date on which the notice to pay the arrears, issued under this from the Schedule, was served upon the defaulter.

date of service of notice.

Sale

52. (1) The Tax Recovery Officer may direct that any immovable Sale and property which has been attached, or such portion thereof as may proclamation of sale. 35 seem necessary to satisfy the certificate, shall be sold.

(2) Where any immovable property is ordered to be sold, the Tax Recovery Officer shall cause a proclamation of the intended sale to be made in the language of the district.

Contents of proclamation.

- 53. A proclamation of sale of immovable property shall be drawn up after notice to the defaulter, and shall state the time and place of sale, and shall specify, as fairly and accurately as possible,—
 - (a) the property to be sold;
 - (b) the revenue, if any, assessed upon the property or any 5 part thereof;
 - (c) the amount for the recovery of which the sale is ordered; and
 - (d) any other thing which the Tax Recovery Officer considers it material for a purchaser to know, in order to judge the ¹⁰ nature and value of the property.

Mode of making pro-

- 54. (1) Every proclamation for the sale of immovable property shall be made at some place on or near such property by beat of drum or other customary mode, and a copy of the proclamation shall be affixed on a conspicuous part of the property and also upon 15 a conspicuous part of the office of the Tax Recovery Officer.
- (2) Where the Tax Recovery Officer so directs, such proclamation shall also be published in the Official Gazette or in a local newspaper, or in both; and the cost of such publication shall be deemed to be costs of the sale.

20

40

(3) Where the property is divided into lots for the purpose of being sold separately, it shall not be necessary to make a separate proclamation for each lot, unless proper notice of the sale cannot, in the opinion of the Tax Recovery Officer, otherwise be given.

Time of sale.

55. No sale of immovable property under this Schedule shall, 25 without the consent in writing of the defaulter, take place until after the expiration of at least thirty days calculated from the date on which a copy of the proclamation of sale has been affixed on the property or in the office of the Tax Recovery Officer, whichever is later.

Sale to be by auction. 56. The sale shall be by public auction to the highest bidder and shall be subject to confirmation by the Tax Recovery Officer.

Deposit by purchaser and resale in default.

- 57. (1) On every sale of immovable property, the person declared to be the purchaser shall pay, immediately after such declaration, a deposit of twenty-five per cent. on the amount of his purchase money, 35 to the officer conducting the sale; and, in default of such deposit, the property shall forthwith be re-sold.
- (2) The full amount of purchase money payable shall be paid by the purchaser to the Tax Recovery Officer on or before the fifteenth day from the date of the sale of the property.

58. In default of payment within the period mentioned in the procedure in preceding rule, the deposit may, if the Tax Recovery Officer thinks default of fit, after defraying the expenses of the sale, be forfeited to the Government, and the property shall be re-sold, and the defaulting 5 purchaser shall forfeit all claims to the property or to any part of the sum for which it may subsequently be sold.

59. All persons bidding at the sale shall be required to declare Authority if they are bidding on their own behalf or on behalf of their principals. In the latter case, they shall be required to deposit their 10 authority, and in default their bids shall be rejected.

60. (1) Where immovable property has been sold in execution Application of a certificate, the defaulter, or any person whose interests are sale of imaffected by the sale, may, at any time within thirty days from the movable predate of the sale, apply to the Tax Recovery Officer to set aside the deposit. 15 sale, on his depositing-

- (a) for payment to the Income-tax Officer, the specified in the proclamation of sale as that for the recovery of which the sale was ordered, with interest thereon at the rate of six per cent. per annum, calculated from the date of the proclamation of sale to the date when the deposit is made; and
- (b) for payment to the purchaser, as penalty, a sum equal to five per cent. of the purchase-money, but not less than one rupee. 7.0
- (2) Where a person makes an application under rule 61 for 25 setting aside the sale of his immovable property, he shall not, unless he withdraws that application, be entitled to make or prosecute an application under this rule.
- 61. Where immovable property has been sold in execution of a Application certificate, the Income-tax Officer, the defaulter, or any person whose sale of 30 interests are affected by the sale, may, at any time within thirty days immovable from the date of the sale, apply to the Tax Recovery Officer to set ground of aside the sale of the immovable property on the ground that notice non-service was not served on the defaulter to pay the arrears as required by irregularity. this Schedule or on the ground of a material irregularity in publishing as or conducting the sale:

Provided that-

الراعاتين

20

(a) no sale shall be set aside on any such ground unless the Tax Recovery Officer is satisfied that the applicant has sustained 660 (B) L.S.-33.

substantial injury by reason of the non-service or irregularity; and

(b) an application made by a defaulter under this rule shall be disallowed unless the applicant deposits the amount recoverable from him in execution of the certificate.

5

Setting aside sale where no salcable interest.

62. At any time within thirty days of the sale, the purchaser may defaulter has apply to the Tax Recovery Officer to set aside the sale on the ground that the defaulter had no saleable interest in the property sold.

Confirmation of sale.

- 63. (1) Where no application is made for setting aside the sale under the foregoing rules or where such an application is made and 10 disallowed by the Tax Recovery Officer, the Tax Recovery Officer shall (if the full amount of the purchase-money has been paid) make an order confirming the sale, and, thereupon, the sale shall become absolute.
- (2) Where such application is made and allowed, and where, in 15 the case of an application made to set aside the sale on deposit of the amount and penalty and charges, the deposit is made within thirty days from the date of the sale, the Tax Recovery Officer shall make an order setting aside the sale:

Provided that no order shall be made unless notice of the appli- 20 cation has been given to the persons affected thereby.

Return of purchase money in certain cases.

64. Where a sale of immovable property is set aside, any money paid or deposited by the purchaser on account of the purchase, together with the penalty, if any, deposited for payment to the purchaser, and such interest as the Tax Recovery Officer may allow, 25 shall be paid to the purchaser.

Sale certificate.

- 65. (1) Where a sale of immovable property has become absolute, the Tax Recovery Officer shall grant a certificate property sold, and the name of the person who at the time of sale is declared to be the purchaser.
- (2) Such certificate shall state the date on which the sale became absolute.

Postponement of sale to enable defaulter to raise amount due under certificate.

66. (1) Where an order for the sale of immovable property has been made, if the defaulter can satisfy the Tax Recovery Officer that there is reason to believe that the amount of the certificate may be 35 raised by the mortgage or lease or private sale of such property, or some part thereof, or of any other immovable property of the defaulter, the Tax Recovery Officer may, on his application, postpone the sale of the property comprised in the order for sale, on such terms and for such period as he thinks proper, to enable him to raise the 40 amount.

- (2) In such case, the Tax Recovery Officer shall grant a certificate to the defaulter, authorising him, within a period to be mentioned therein, and notwithstanding anything contained in this Schedule, to make the proposed mortgage, lease or sale:
- 5 Provided that all moneys payable under such mortgage, lease or sale shall be paid, not to the defaulter, but to the Tax Recovery Officer:

Provided also that no mortgage, lease or sale under this rule shall become absolute until it has been confirmed by the Tax Recovery 10 Officer.

- 67. Every re-sale of immovable property, in default of payment Fresh proof the purchase-money within the period allowed for such payment, before reshall be made after the issue of a fresh proclamation in the manner sale. and for the period hereinbefore provided for the sale.
- 15 68. Where the property sold is a share of undivided immovable Bid of coproperty, and two or more persons, of whom one is a co-sharer, res- have preferpectively bid the same sum for such property or for any lot, the bid ence. shall be deemed to be the bid of the co-sharer.

PART IV

Appointment of receiver

20

- 69. (1) Where the property of a defaulter consists of a business, Appointment of receiver the Tax Recovery Officer may attach the business and appoint a for business. person as receiver to manage the business.
- (2) Attachment of a business under this rule shall be made by an 25 order prohibiting the defaulter from transferring or charging the business in any way and prohibiting all persons from taking any benefit under such transfer or charge, and intimating that the business has been attached under this rule. A copy of the order of attachment shall be served on the defaulter, and another copy shall 20 be affixed on a conspicuous part of the premises in which the business is carried on and on the notice board of the office of the Tax Recovery Officer.
- 70. Where immovable property is attached, the Tax Recovery Appointment Officer may, instead of directing a sale of the property, appoint a of receiver 35 person as receiver to manage such property.
- 71. (1) Where any business or other property is attached and power of taken under management under the foregoing rules, the receiver receiver. shall, subject to the control of the Tax Recovery Officer, have such powers as may be necessary for the proper management of the pro-40 perty and the realisation of the profits, or rents and profits, thereof.

for immovable pro-

(2) The profits, or rents and profits, of such business or other property, shall, after defraying the expenses of management, be adjusted towards discharge of the arrears, and the balance, if any, shell be paid to the defaulter.

Withdrawal of management. 72. The attachment and management under the foregoing rules may be withdrawn at any time at the discretion of the Tax Recovery Officer, or if the arrears are discharged by receipt of such profits and rents or are otherwise paid.

PART V

Arrest and detention of the defaulter

10

Notice to show cause.

- 73. (1) No order for the arrest and detention in civil prison of a defaulter shall be made unless the Tax Recovery Officer has issued and served a notice upon the defaulter calling upon him to appear before him on the date specified in the notice and to show cause why he should not be committed to the civil prison, and unless the 15 Tax Recovery Officer for reasons recorded in writing, is satisfied—
 - (a) that the defaulter, with the object or effect of obstructing the execution of the certificate, has, after the receipt of the certificate in the office of the Tax Recovery Officer, dishonestly transferred, concealed, or removed any part of his property, or 20
 - (b) that the defaulter has, or has had since the receipt of the certificate in the office of the Tax Recovery Officer, the means to pay the arrears or some substantial part thereof and refuses or neglects or has refused or neglected to pay the same.
- (2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-rule (1), a 25 warrant for the arrest of the defaulter may be issued by the Tax Recovery Officer if the Tax Recovery Officer is satisfied, by affidavit or otherwise, that with the object or effect of delaying the execution of the certificate, the defaulter is likely to abscond or leave the local limits of the jurisdiction of the Tax Recovery Officer.
- (3) Where appearance is not made in obedience to a notice issued and served under sub-rule (1), the Tax Recovery Officer may issue a warrant for the arrest of the defaulter.
- (4) Every person arrested in pursuance of a warrant of arrest under sub-rule (2) or sub-rule (3) shall be brought before the Tax 35 Recovery Officer as soon as practicable and in any event within twenty-four hours of his arrest (exclusive of the time required for the journey):

Provided that, if the defaulter pays the amount entered in the warrant of arrest as due and the costs of the arrest to the officer 40 arresting him, such officer shall at once release him.

- 74. When a defaulter appears before the Tax Recovery Officer in Hearing. obedience to a notice to show cause or is brought before the Tax Recovery Officer under rule 73, the Tax Recovery Officer shall proceed to hear the Income-tax Officer and take all such evidence as 5 may be produced by him in support of execution by arrest, and shall then give the defaulter an opportunity of showing cause why he should not be committed to the civil prison.
- 75. Pending the conclusion of the inquiry, the Tax Recovery Custody Officer may, in his discretion, order the defaulter to be detained in pending 10 the custody of such officer as the Tax Recovery Officer may think fit or release him on his furnishing security to the satisfaction of the Tax Recovery Officer for his appearance when required.
- 76. (1) Upon the conclusion of the inquiry, the Tax Recovery Order of de-Officer may make an order for the detention of the defaulter in the tention. 15 civil prison and shall in that event cause him to be arrested if he is not already under arrest:

Provided that in order to give the defaulter an opportunity of satisfying the arrears, the Tax Recovery Officer may, before making the order of detention, leave the defaulter in the custody of the officer 20 arresting him or of any other officer for a specified period not exceeding 15 days, or release him on his furnishing security to the satisfaction of the Tax Recovery Officer for his appearance at the expiration of the specified period if the arrears are not so satisfied.

- (2) When the Tax Recovery Officer does not make an order of 25 detention under sub-rule (1) he shall, if the defaulter is under arrest, direct his release.
 - 77. (1) Every person detained in the civil prison in execution Detention of a certificate may be so detained,-

in and release from

- (a) where the certificate is for a demand of an amount prison. exceeding two hundred and fifty rupees-for a period of six months, and
 - (b) in any other case—for a period of six weeks:

30

35

Provided that he shall be released from such detention-

- (i) on the amount mentioned in the warrant for his detention being paid to the officer-in-charge of the civil prison, or
 - (ii) on the request of the Income-tax Officer who has issued the certificate or of the Tax Recovery Officer on any ground other than the grounds mentioned in rules 78 and 79:

Provided that where he is to be released on the request of the Income-tax Officer, he shall not so be released without the order of the Tax Recovery Officer.

(2) A defaulter released from detention under this rule shall not, merely by reason of his release, be discharged from his liability 5 for the arrears; but he shall not be liable to be re-arrested under the certificate in execution of which he was detained in the civil prison.

Release.

- 78. (1) The Tax Recovery Officer may order the release of a defaulter who has been arrested in execution of a certificate upon 10 being satisfied that he has disclosed the whole of his property and has placed it at the disposal of the Tax Recovery Officer and that he has not committed any act of bad faith.
- (2) If the Tax Recovery Officer has ground for believing the disclosure made by a defaulter under sub-rule (1) to have been 15 untrue, he may order the re-arrest of the defaulter in execution of the certificate, but the period of his detention in the civil prison shall not in the aggregate exceed that authorised by rule 77.

Release on ground of illness.

- 79. (1) At any time after a warrant for the arrest of a defaulter has been issued, the Tax Recovery Officer may cancel it on the 20 ground of his serious illness.
- (2) Where a defaulter has been arrested, the Tax Recovery Officer may release him if, in the opinion of the Tax Recovery Officer, he is not in a fit state of health to be detained in the civil prison.
- (3) Where a defaulter has been committed to the civil prison, he may be released therefrom by the Tax Recovery Officer on the ground of the existence of any infectious or contagious disease, or on the ground of his suffering from any serious illness.

25

35

(4) A defaulter released under this rule may be re-arrested, but 30 the period of his detention in the civil prison shall not in the aggregate exceed that authorised by rule 77.

Entry inte dwelling house.

- 80. For the purpose of making an arrest under this Schedule-
- (a) no dwelling house shall be entered after sun-set and before sun-rise;
- (b) no outer door of a dwelling house shall be broken open unless such dwelling house or a portion thereof is in the occupancy of the defaulter and he or other occupant of the house refuses or in any way prevents access thereto; but, when the person executing any such warrant has duly gained access

to any dwelling house, he may break open the door of any room or apartment if he has reason to believe that the defaulter is likely to be found there;

- (c) no room, which is in the actual occupancy of a woman who, according to the customs of the country, does not appear in public, shall be entered into unless the officer authorised to make the arrest has given notice to her that she is at liberty to withdraw and has given her reasonable time and facility for withdrawing.
- 10 81. The Tax Recovery Officer shall not order the arrest and Prohibition against arrest of women or minors etc.
 - (a) a woman, or
 - (b) any person who, in his opinion, is a minor or of unsound mind.

15

PART VI

Miscellaneous

82. Every Tax Recovery Officer or other officer acting under this Officers deemed to Schedule shall, in the discharge of his functions under this Schedule, be acting be deemed to be acting judicially within the meaning of the Judicial judicially. Officer's Protection Act, 1850.

18 of 185●.

- 83. Every Tax Recovery Officer or other officer acting under the Power to provisions of this Schedule shall have the powers of a civil court evidence. while trying a suit for the purpose of receiving evidence, administering oaths, enforcing the attendance of witnesses and compelling the 25 production of documents.
 - 84. No certificate shall cease to be in force by reason of the death Continuance of the defaulter.
- 85. If at any time after the issue of the certificate by the Incometax Officer to the Tax Recovery Officer the defaulter dies, the on death of defaulter.

 30 proceedings under this Schedule (except arrest and detention) may be continued against the legal representative of the defaulter, and the provisions of this Schedule shall apply as if the legal representative were the defaulter.
- 86. (1) An appeal from any original order passed by the Tax Appeals.

 35 Recovery Officer under this Schedule, not being an order which is conclusive, shall lie to the revenue authority to which appeals ordinarily lie against the orders of a Collector under the law relating to land revenue of the State concerned.

- (2) Every appeal under this rule must be presented within thirty days from the date of the order appealed against.
- (3) Pending the decision of any appeal, execution of the certificate may be stayed if the appellate authority so directs, but not otherwise.

Review.

87. Any order passed under this Schedule may, after notice to 5 all persons interested, be reviewed by the officer who made the order, or by his successor in office, on account of any mistake apparent from the record.

Recovery

88. Where any person has under this Schedule become surety for from surety. the amount due by the defaulter, he may be proceeded against under 10 this Schedule as if he were the defaulter.

Penalties.

89. Whoever fraudulently removes, conceals, transfers or delivers to any person any property or any interest therein, intending thereby to prevent that property or interest therein, from being taken in execution of a certificate, shall be deemed to have committed an 15 offence punishable under section 206 of the Indian Penal Code. . 45 of 1860.

Subsistence allowance.

- 90. (1) When a defaulter is arrested or detained in the civil prison, the sum payable for the subsistence of the defaulter from the time of arrest until he is released shall be borne by the Income-tax Officer. 20
- (2) Such sum shall be calculated on the scale fixed by the State Government for the subsistence of judgment-debtors arrested in execution of a decree of a civil court.
- (3) Sums payable under this rule shall be deemed to be costs in the proceeding: 25

Provided that the defaulter shall not be detained in the civil prison or arrested on account of any sum so payable.

Forms.

91. The Board may prescribe the form to be used for any order. notice, warrant, or certificate to be issued under this Schedule.

Power to make rules.

- 92. (1) The Board may make rules, consistent with the provisions 30 of this Act, regulating the procedure to be followed by Tax Recovery Officers and other officers acting under this Schedule.
- (2) In particular, and without prejudice to the generality of the power conferred by sub-rule (1), such rules may provide for all or any of the following matters, namely:-35
 - (a) the area within which Tax Recovery Officers may exercise jurisdiction:

- (b) the manner in which any property sold under this Schedule may be delivered;
- (c) the execution of a document or the endorsement of a negotiable instrument or a share in a corporation, by or on behalf of the Tax Recovery Officer, where such execution or endorsement is required to transfer such negotiable instrument or share to a person who has purchased it under a sale under this Schedule;
- (d) the procedure for dealing with resistance or obstruction offered by any person to a purchaser of any immovable property sold under this Schedule, in obtaining possession of the property;
- (e) the fees to be charged for any process issued under this Schedule;
- (f) the scale of charges to be recovered in respect of any other proceeding taken under this Schedule;
 - (g) recovery of poundage fee;
 - (h) the maintenance and custody, while under attachment, of livestock or other movable property, the fees to be charged for such maintenance and custody, the sale of such livestock or property, and the disposal of proceeds of such sale;
 - (i) the mode of attachment of business.
- 93. Nothing in this Schedule shall affect any provision of this Saving re-Act whereunder the tax is a first charge upon any asset.

THE THIRD SCHEDULE

PROCEDURE FOR DISTRAINT BY INCOME-TAX OFFICER

[See section 226 (5)]

Where any distraint and sale of movable property are to be Distraint effected by any Income-tax Officer authorised for the purpose, such and sale. distraint and sale shall be made, as far as may be, in the same 30 manner as attachment and sale of any movable property attachable by actual seizure, and the provisions of the Second Schedule relating to attachment and sale shall, so far as may be, apply in respect of such distraint and sale.

5

10

15

20

25

THE FOURTH SCHEDULE

PART A

Recognised provident funds

[See sections 2(38), 10(12), 25, 36 (1) (iv), 87(1) (d), 111, 192 (4)]

Application of Part,

1. This Part shall not apply to any provident fund to which the 5 Provident Funds Act, 1925, applies. 19 of 1925.

Definitions

- 2. In this Part, unless the context otherwise requires,—
- (a) "employer" means any person who maintains a provident fund for the benefit of his or its employees, being—
 - (i) a Hindu undivided family, company, firm or other 10 association of persons, or
 - (ii) an individual engaged in a business or profession the profits and gains whereof are assessable to income-tax under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession";

- (b) "employee" means an employee participating in a provident fund, but does not include a personal or domestic servant;
- (c) "contribution" means any sum credited by or on behalf of any employee out of his salary, or by an employer out of his own monies, to the individual account of an employee, but does 20 not include any sum credited as interest;
- (d) "balance to the credit of an employee" means the total amount to the credit of his individual account in a provident fund at any time;
- (e) "annual accretion" in relation to the balance to the credit 25 of an employee, means the increase to such balance in any year, arising from contributions and interest;
- (f) "accumulated balance due to an employee" means the balance to his credit, or such portion thereof as may be claimable by him under the regulations of the fund, on the day he ceases to 30 be an employee of the employer maintaining the fund;
- (g) "regulations of a fund" means the special body of regulations governing the constitution and administration of a particular provident fund; and

- (h) "salary" includes dearness allowance, if the terms of employment so provide, but excludes all other allowances and perquisites.
- 3. (1) The Commissioner may accord recognition to any provident According 5 fund which, in his opinion, satisfies the conditions prescribed in rule drawal of re-4 and the rules made by the Board in this behalf, and may, at any cognition. time, withdraw such recognition if, in his opinion, the provident fund contravenes any of those conditions.

- (2) An order according recognition shall take effect on such date 10 as the Commissioner may fix in accordance with any rules the Board may make in this behalf, such date not being later than the last day of the financial year in which the order is made.
 - (3) An order withdrawing recognition shall take effect from the date on which it is made.
- (4) An order according recognition to a provident fund shall not, 15 unless the Commissioner otherwise directs, be affected by the fact that the fund is subsequently amalgamated with another provident fund on the occurrence of an amalgamation of the undertakings in connection with which the two funds are maintained, or that it subsequently 20 absorbs the whole or a part of another provident fund belonging to an undertaking which is wholly or in part transferred to or merged in the undertaking of the employer maintaining the first-mentioned fund.
- 4. In order that a provident fund may receive and retain recogni- Conditions 25 tion, it shall, subject to the provisions of rule 5, satisfy the conditions to be satisset out below and any other conditions which the Board may, by rules, cognised specify-

30

35

40

provident funds.

- (a) all employees shall be employed in India, or shall be employed by an employer whose principal place of business is in India:
 - (b) the contributions of an employee in any year shall be a definite proportion of his salary for that year, and shall be deducted by the employer from the employee's salary in that proportion, at each periodical payment of such salary in that year, and credited to the employee's individual account in the fund:
 - (c) the contributions of an employer to the account of an employee in any year shall not exceed the amount of the contributions of the employee in that year, and shall be credited to the employee's individual account at intervals not exceeding one year;

- (d) the fund shall be vested in two or more trustees or in the Official Trustee under a trust which shall not be revocable, save with the consent of all the beneficiaries:
- (e) the fund shall consist of contributions as above specified, received by the trustees, of accumulations thereof, and of interest 5 credited in respect of such contributions and accumulations, and of securities purchased therewith and of any capital gains arising from the transfer of capital assets of the fund, and of no other sums:
- (f) the employer shall not be entitled to recover any sum ¹⁰ whatsoever from the fund, save in cases where the employee is dismissed for misconduct or voluntarily leaves his employment otherwise than on account of ill-health or other unavoidable cause before the expiration of the term of service specified in this behalf in one regulations of the fund:

 15

Provided that in such cases the recoveries made by the employer shall be limited to the contributions made by him to the individual account of the employee, and to interest credited in respect of such contributions in accordance with the regulations of the fund and the accumulations thereof:

- (g) the accumulated balance due to an employee shall be payable on the day he ceases to be an employee of the employer maintaining the fund:
- (h) save as provided in clause (g) or in accordance with such conditions and restrictions as the Board may, by rules, 25 specify, no portion of the balance to the credit of an employee shall be payable to him.

Relaxation of conditions.

- 5. (1) Notwithstanding anything contained in clause (a) of rule 4 the Commissioner may, if he thinks fit, and subject to such conditions, if any, as he thinks proper to attach to the recognition, accord recog-30 nition to a fund maintained by an employer whose principal place of business is not in India, provided the proportion of employees employed outside India does not exceed ten per cent.
- (2) Notwithstanding anything contained in clause (b) of rule 4, an employee who retains his employment while serving in the armed 35 forces of the Union or when taken into or employed in the national service under any law for the time being in force, may, whether he receives from the employer any salary or not, contribute to the fund during his service in the armed forces of the Union or while so taken into or employed in the national service a sum not exceeding the 4° amount he would have contributed had he continued to serve the employer.

- (3) Notwithstanding anything contained in clause (e) or clause (a) of rule 4.—
 - (a) at the request made in writing by the employee who ceases to be an employee of the employer maintaining the fund. the trustees of the fund may consent to retain the whole or any part of the accumulated balance due to the employee to be drawn by him at any time on demand:

5

10

15

20

35

40

- (b) where the accumulated balance due to an employee who nas ceased to be an employee is retained in the fund in accordance with the preceding clause, the fund may consist also of interest in respect of such accumulated balance. .
- (4) Subject to any rules which the Board may make in this behalf, the Commissioner may, in respect of any particular fund, relax the provisions of clause (c) of rule 4,-
 - (a) so as to permit the payment of larger contributions by an employer to the individual accounts of employees whose salaries do not in each case exceed five hundred rupees per mensem; and
- (b) so as to permit the crediting by employers to the individual accounts of employees of periodical bonuses or other contributions of a contingent nature, where the calculation and payment of such bonuses or other contributions is provided for on definite principles by the regulations of the fund.
- (5) Notwithstanding anything contained in clause (h) of rule 4, in 25 order to enable an employee to pay the amount of tax assessed on his total income as determined under sub-rule (4) of rule 11, he shall be entitled to withdraw from the balance to his credit in the recognised provident fund a sum not exceeding the difference between such amount and the amount to which he would have been assessed if the 30 transferred balance referred to in sub-rule (2) of rule 11 had not been included in his total income.
 - 6. That portion of the annual accretion in any previous year to the Employer's balance at the credit of an employee participating in a recognised pro- tributions, vident fund as consists of-

(a) contributions made by the employer in excess of ten per be income cent. of the salary of the employee, and

(b) interest credited on the balance to the credit employee in so far as it exceeds one-third of the salary of the employee or is allowed at a rate exceeding such rate as may be fixed by the Central Government in this behalf by notification in the Official Gazette,

when deemed to received by employee.

shall be deemed to have been received by the employee in that previous year and shall be included in his total income for that previous year, and shall be liable to income-tax and super-tax.

Exemption for emplovee's contributions.

7. An employee participating in a recognised provident fund shall be entitled to a deduction from the amount of income-tax on his total income with which he is chargeable for any assessment year, of an amount equal to the income-tax calculated at the average rate of income-tax on his own contributions to his individual account in the fund in the previous year, in so far as the aggregate of such contributions does not exceed one-fifth of his salary in that previous year or to eight thousand rupees, whichever is less.

Exclusion from total income of accumuinted balance.

- 8. The accumulated balance due and becoming payable to an employee participating in a recognised provident fund shall be excluded from the computation of his total income-
 - (i) if he has rendered continuous service with his employer 15 for a period of five years or more, or
 - (ii) if, though he has not rendered such continuous service, the service has been terminated by reason of the employee's illhealth, or by the contraction or discontinuance of the employer's business or other cause beyond the control of the employee. 20

Tax on accumulated balance.

- 9. (1) Where the accumulated balance due to an employee participating in a recognised provident fund is included in his total income owing to the provisions of rule 8 not being applicable, the Income-tax Officer shall calculate the total of the various sums of income-tax and super-tax which would have been payable by the employee in respect 25 of his total income for each of the years concerned if the fund had not been a recognised provident fund, and the amount by which such total exceeds the total of all sums paid by or on behalf of such employee by way of tax for such years shall be payable by the employee in addition to any other income-tax and super-tax for which he may be 30 liable for the previous year in which the accumulated balance due to him becomes payable.
- (2) Where the accumulated balance due to an employee participating in a recognised provident fund which is not included in his total income under the provisions of rule 8 becomes payable, an amount 35 equal to the aggregate of the amounts of super-tax on annual accretions that would have been payable under section 58E of the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922, for any assessment year up to and including the assessment year 1932-1933, if the Indian Income-tax (Second Amendment) Act, 1933, had come into force on the 15th day of March, 1930, 40 18 of 1933. shall be payable by the employee in addition to any other tax payable by him for the previous year in which such balance becomes payable.

11 of 1922.

10. The trustees of a recognised provident fund, or any person au- Deduction at thorised by the regulations of the fund to make payment of accumusource of tax
payable on lated balances due to employees, shall, in cases where sub-rule (1) accumulated of rule 9 applies, at the time an accumulated balance due to an em-5 ployee is paid, deduct therefrom the amount payable under that rule and all the provisions of Chapter XVII-B shall apply as if the accumulated balance were income chargeable under the head "Salaries".

11. (1) Where recognition is accorded to a provident fund with ex- Treatment isting balances, an account shall be made of the fund up to the day of balance in each provided the day of balance in the day newly recognized the day newly recognized the day of balance in the day 10 immediately preceding the day on which the recognition takes effect, nised provishowing the balance to the credit of each employee on such day, and dent fund. containing such further particulars as the Board may prescribe.

- (2) The account shall also show in respect of the balance to the credit of each employee the amount thereof which is to be transferred 15 to that employee's account in the recognised provident fund, and such amount (hereinafter called his transferred balance) shall be shown as the balance to his credit in the recognised provident fund on the date on which the recognition of the fund takes effect, and sub-rule (4) of this rule and sub-rule (5) of rule 5 shall apply thereto.
- (3) Any portion of the balance to the credit of an employee in the 20 existing fund which is not transferred to the recognised fund shall be excluded from the accounts of the recognised fund and shall be liable to income-tax and super-tax in accordance with the provisions of this Act. other than this Part.
- (4) Subject to such rules as the Board may make in this behalf, 25 the Income-tax Officer shall make a calculation of the aggregate of all sums comprised in a transferred balance which would have been liable to income-tax if this Part had been in force from the date of the institution of the fund, without regard to any tax which 30 may have been paid on any sum, and such aggregate (if any) shall be deemed to be income received by the employee in the previous year in which the recognition of the fund takes effect and shall be included in the employee's total income for that previous year, and, for the purposes of assessment, the remainder of the transferred 35 balance shall be disregarded, but no other exemption or relief, by way of refund or otherwise, shall be granted in respect of any sum comprised in such transferred balance:

Provided that, in cases of serious accounting difficulty, the Commissioner may, subject to the said rules, make a summary calculation 40 of such aggregate.

(5) Nothing in this rule shall affect the rights of the persons administering an unrecognised provident fund or dealing with it, or

with the balance to the credit of any individual employee, before recognition is accorded, in any manner which may be lawful.

Accounts of recognised provident funds.

- 12. (1) The accounts of a recognised provident fund shall be maintained by the trustees of the fund and shall be in such form and for such periods, and shall contain such particulars, as the Board may 5 prescribe.
- (2) The accounts shall be open to inspection at all reasonable times by Income-tax authorities, and the trustees shall furnish to the Income-tax Officer such abstracts thereof as the Board may prescribe.

Appeals.

- 13. (1) An employer objecting to an order of the Commissioner 10 refusing to recognise or an order withdrawing recognition from a provident fund may appeal, within sixty days of such order, to the Board.
- (2) The appeal shall be in such form and shall be verified in such manner and shall be subject to the payment of such fee as the Board may prescribe.

Treatment
of fund
transferred
by employer
t o trustee.

- 14. (1) Where an employer, who maintains a provident fund (whether recognised or not) for the benefit of his employees and has not transferred the fund or any portion of it, transfers such fund or portion to trustees in trust for the employees participating in the fund, 20 the amount so transferred shall be deemed to be of the nature of capital expenditure.
- (2) When an employee participating in such fund is paid the accumulated balance due to him therefrom, any portion of such balance as represents his share in the amount so transferred to the trustees 25 (without addition of interest, and exclusive of the employee's contributions and interest thereon) shall, if the employer has made effective arrangements to secure that tax shall be deducted at source from the amount of such share when paid to the employee, be deemed to be an expenditure by the employer within the meaning of section 37, 30 incurred in the previous year in which the accumulated balance due to the employee is paid.

Provisions relating to rules.

- 15. (1) In addition to any power conferred by this Part, the Board may make rules—
 - (a) prescribing the statements and other information to be 35 submitted along with an application for recognition;
 - (b) limiting the contributions to a recognised provident fund by employees of a company who are shareholders in the company;
 - (c) providing for the assessment by way of penalty of any 40 consideration received by an employee for an assignment of, or

creation of a charge upon, his beneficial interest in a recognised provident fund:

- (d) determining the extent to and the manner in which exemption from payment of income-tax and super-tax may be granted in respect of contributions and interest credited to the individual accounts of employees in a provident fund from which recognition has been withdrawn; and
- (e) generally, to carry out the purposes of this Part and to secure such further control over the recognition of provident funds and the administration of recognised provident funds as it may deem requisite.
- (2) All rules made under this Part shall be subject to the provisions of section 296.

PART B

15

5

10

Approved superannuation funds

[See sections 2(6), 10(13), 10 (25 (iii), 36(1) (iv),
$$87(1)(e)$$
, 192 (5), 206 (2)]

- 1. In this Part, unless the context otherwise requires, "employer", "employee", "contribution" and "salary" have, in relation to superannuation funds, the meanings assigned to those expressions in rule 2 of Part A in relation to provident funds.
- 2. (1) The Commissioner may accord approval to any superannuation fund or any part of a superannuation fund which, in his opinion, Approval complies with the requirements of rule 3, and may at any time with-and with-drawal of draw such approval, if in his opinion, the circumstances of the fund approval or part cease to warrant the continuance of the approval.
- (2) The Commissioner shall communicate in writing to the trustees of the fund the grant of approval with the date on which the approval is to take effect, and, where the approval is granted subject 30 to conditions, those conditions.
 - (3) The Commissioner shall communicate in writing to the trustees of the fund any withdrawal of approval with the reasons for such withdrawal and the date on which the withdrawal is to take effect.
- (4) The Commissioner shall neither refuse nor withdraw approval 35 to any superannuation fund or any part of a superannuation fund unless he has given the trustees of that fund a reasonable opportunity of being heard in the matter.

660 (B) LS-35.

Conditions for approval.

- 3. In order that a superannuation fund may receive and retain approval, it shall satisfy the conditions set out below and any other conditions which the Board may, by rules, prescribe—
 - (a) the fund shall be a fund established under an irrevocable trust in connection with a trade or undertaking carried on in 5 India, and not less than ninety per cent. of the employees shall be employed in India;
 - (b) the fund shall have for its sole purpose the provision of annuities for employees in the trade or undertaking on their retirement at or after a specified age or on their becoming in- 10 capacitated prior to such retirement, or for the widows, children or dependants of persons who are or have been such employees on the death of those persons;
 - (c) the employer in the trade or undertaking shall be a contributor to the fund: and

15

(d) all annuities, pensions and other benefits granted from the fund shall be payable only in India.

Application

- 4. (1) An application for approval of a superannuation fund or part for approval. of a superannuation fund shall be made in writing by the trustees of the fund to the Income-tax Officer by whom the employer is asses-20 sable, and shall be accompanied by a copy of the instrument under which the fund is established and by two copies of the rules and of the accounts of the fund for the last year for which such accounts have been made up, but the Commissioner may require such further information to be supplied as he thinks proper. 25
 - (2) If any alteration in the rules, constitution, objects or conditions of the fund is made at any time after the date of the application for approval, the trustees of the fund shall forthwith communicate such alteration to the Income-tax Officer mentioned in sub-rule (1), and in default of such communication any approval given shall, 30 unless the Commissioner otherwise orders, be deemed to have been withdrawn from the date on which the alteration took effect.

Centributions by employer, when deemed to be income of employer.

Deduction of tax on contribution paid to an empleyec.

- 5. Where any contributions by an employer (including the interest thereon, if any) are repaid to the employer, the amount so repaid shall be deemed for the purpose of income-tax and super-tax to be the 35 income of the employer of the previous year in which it is so repaid.
- 6. Where any contributions made by an employer, including interest on contributions, if any, are paid to an employee during his life-time, income-tax and super-tax on the amounts so paid shall be deducted at the average rate of income-tax and super-tax at which 40 the employee was liable to income-tax and super-tax during the

preceding three years or during the period, if less than three years, when he was a member of the fund, and shall be paid trustees to the credit of the Central Government within the prescribed time and in such manner as the Board may direct.

7. Where an employer deducts from the emoluments paid to an Deduction employee or pays on his behalf any contributions of that employee to from pay of and contrian approved superannuation fund, he shall include all such deductions butions on or payments in the return which he is required to furnish under sub-behalf of employee section (1) of section 206.

to be included in return.

- 8. (1) An employer objecting to an order of the Commissioner Appeals. refusing to accord approval to a superannuation fund or an order withdrawing such approval may appeal, within sixty days of such order, to the Board.
- (2) The appeal shall be in such form and shall be verified in such 15 manner and shall be subject to the payment of such fee as may be prescribed.
- 9. If a fund or a part of a fund for any reason ceases to be an Liability of approved superannuation fund, the trustees of the fund shall never-trustees on theless remain liable to tax on any sum paid on account of returned approval. 20 contributions (including interest on contributions, if any), in so far as the sum so paid is in respect of contributions made before the fund or part of the fund ceased to be an approved superannuation fund under the provisions of this Part.

10. The trustees of an approved superannuation fund and any em-Particulars 25 ployer who contributes to an approved superannuation fund shall, nished in when required by notice from the Income-tax Officer, within such respect of period, not being less than twenty-one days from the date of the tion funds, 1 notice, as may be specified in the notice, furnish such return, statement, particulars or information, as the Income-tax Officer may re-30 quire.

- 11. (1) In addition to any power conferred by this Part, the Board Provision relating to may make rulesrules.
 - (a) prescribing the statements and other information to be submitted along with an application for approval;
 - (b) prescribing the returns, statements, particulars, or information which the Income-tax Officer may require from the trustees of an approved superannuation fund or from the employer:
 - (c) limiting the ordinary annual contribution and any other contributions to an approved superannuation fund by an emplo-

40 yer:

- (d) providing for the assessment by way of penalty of any consideration received by an employee for an assignment of, or creation of a charge upon, his beneficial interest in an approved superannuation fund;
- (e) determining the extent to, and the manner in, which exemption from payment of income-tax and super-tax may be granted in respect of any payment made from a superannuation fund from which approval has been withdrawn:
- (f) providing for the withdrawal of approval in the case of a fund which ceases to satisfy the requirements of this Part or of 10 the rules made thereunder; and
- (g) generally, to carry out the purposes of this Part and to secure such further control over the approval of superannuation funds and the administration of approved superannuation funds as it may deem requisite.
- (2) All rules made under this part shall be subject to the provisions of section 296.

PART C

Approved gratuity funds

15

Definitions.

1. In this Part, unless the context otherwise requires, "employer", "employee", "contribution" and "salary" have, in relation to gratuity funds, the meanings assigned to those expressions in rule 2 of Part A in relation to provident funds.

Appreval drawal of approval.

- 2. (1) The Commissioner may accord approval to any gratuity 25 fund which, in his opinion, complies with the requirements of rule 3 and may at any time withdraw such approval if, in his opinion, the circumstances of the fund cease to warrant the continuance of the approval.
- (2) The Commissioner shall communicate in writing to the 30 trustees of the fund the grant of approval with the date on which the approval is to take effect, and where the approval is granted subject to conditions, those conditions.
- (3) The Commissioner shall communicate in writing to the trustees of the fund any withdrawal of approval with the reasons 35 for such withdrawal and the date on which the withdrawal is to take effect.

- (4) The Commissioner shall neither refuse nor withdraw approval to any gratuity fund unless he has given the trustees of that fund a reasonable opportunity of being heard in the matter.
- 3. In order that a gratuity fund may receive and retain approval, Conditions it shall satisfy the conditions set out below and any other conditions for approval. which the Board may, by rules, prescribe—
 - (a) the fund shall be a fund established under an irrevocable trust in connection with a trade or undertaking carried on in India, and not less than ninety per cent. of the employees shall be employed in India;

TO

- (b) the fund shall have for its sole purpose the provision of a gratuity to employees in the trade or undertaking on their retirement at or after a specified age or on their becoming incapacitated prior to such retirement or on termination of their employment after a minimum period of service specified in the rules of the fund or to the widows, children or dependents of such employees on their death;
- (c) the employer in the trade or undertaking shall be a contributor to the fund; and
- 20 (d) all benefits granted by the fund shall be payable only in India.
- 4. (1) An application for approval of a gratuity fund shall be Application made in writing by the trustees of the fund to the Income-tax for approval.

 Officer by whom the employer is assessable and shall be accompanied by a copy of the instrument under which the fund is established and by two copies of the rules and of the accounts of the fund for the last three years for which such accounts have been made up, but the Commissioner may require such further information to be supplied as he thinks proper.
- (2) If any alteration in the rules, constitution, objects or conditions of the fund is made at any time after the date of the application for approval, the trustees of the fund shall forthwith communicate such alterations to the Income-tax Officer mentioned in sub-rule (1), and in default of such communication, any approval given shall, unless the Commissioner otherwise orders, be deemed to have been withdrawn from the date on which the alteration took effect.
- 5. Where any gratuity is paid to an employee during his life-time, Gratuity the gratuity shall be treated as salary paid to the employee for the be salary.

 40 purposes of this Act.

Liability of trustees on Cessation.

6. If a gratuity fund for any reason ceases to be an approved gratuity fund, the trustees of the fund shall nevertheless remain of approval. liable to tax on any gratuity paid to any employee.

Contributions by employer, when deemed to be income

7. Where any contributions by an employer (including the interest thereon, if any) are repaid to the employer, the amount so repaid 5 shall be deemed for the purposes of income-tax and super-tax to be the income of the employer of the previous year in which they of employer, are so repaid.

Appeals.

- 8. (1) An employer objecting to an order of the Commissioner refusing to accord approval to a gratuity fund or an order with-10 drawing such approval may appeal, within sixty days of such order, to the Board.
- (2) The appeal shall be in such form and shall be verified in such manner and shall be subject to the payment of such fee as may be prescribed. 15

Provisions relating to rules.

- 9. (1) In addition to any power conferred in this part, the Board may make rules-
 - (a) prescribing the statements and other information to be submitted along with an application for approval;
 - (b) limiting the ordinary annual and other contributions 20 of an employer to the fund:
 - (c) providing for the assessment by way of penalty any consideration received by an employee for an assignment of, or the creation of a charge upon, his beneficial interest an approved gratuity fund; 25
 - (d) providing for the withdrawal of the approval in the case of a fund which ceases to satisfy the requirements of this Part or the rules made thereunder; and
 - (e) generally, to carry out the purposes of this Part and to secure such further control over the approval of gratuity 30 funds and the administration of gratuity funds as it may deem requisite.
- (2) All rules made under this Part shall be subject to the provisions of section 296.

THE FIFTH SCHEDULE

Exemption from Super-tax in respect of certain dividends

[See section 99(1)(iv)]

- 1. Super-tax shall not be payable by a company in respect of any 5 dividend which is assessable for the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1962, and for the subsequent assessment years, and which is declared—
 - (a) by an Indian company formed and registered after the 31st day of March, 1952, and before the 1st day of April, 1967, where—

10

15

- (1) the Central Government is satisfied that the Indian company is wholly or mainly engaged in an industry for the manufacture or production of any one or more of the articles specified in any of the items in Part A of this Schedule; and
- (2) the income of the Indian company would have been exempt under the provisions of section 84, if the provisions of that section had been applicable thereto; or
- (b) by an Indian company formed and registered after the 31st day of March, 1961, and before the 1st day of April, 1967, where—
 - (1) the Central Government is satisfied that the Indian company is wholly or mainly engaged in an industry for the manufacture or production of any one or more of the articles specified in any of the items in Part B of this Schedule; and
 - (2) the income of the Indian company would have been exempt under the provisions of section 84, if the provisions of that section had been applicable thereto.
- 2. Super-tax shall not be payable by a company in respect of any 30 dividend which is assessable for the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1962, and for the subsequent assessment years and which is payable to it in respect of any fresh capital raised by an Indian company by public subscription—
- (a) after the 28th day of February, 1953, and before the 1st day of April, 1967, for the purpose of increasing the production of, or starting a separate unit for the manufacture or production of, any one or more of the articles specified in any of the items in Part A of this Schedule; and

- (b) after the 31st day of March, 1961 and before the 1st day of April, 1967, for the purpose of increasing the production of, or starting a separate unit for the manufacture or production of, any one or more of the articles specified in any of the items in Part B of this Schedule.
- 3. Where by any Act any of the items in Part A or Part B of this Schedule is repealed, then, notwithstanding such repeal, any exemption conferred by rule 1 or rule 2 shall continue to be available for the dividends declared by any Indian company engaged in any industry referred to in the item so repealed—
 - (i) in the cases referred to in rule 1, so long as such dividends relate to the previous year in which the Indian company is incorporated and the nine previous years immediately succeeding;
 - (ii) in the cases referred to in rule 2, so long as such divi- 15 dends relate to the previous year in which the fresh capital was raised and the nine previous years immediately succeeding; and
 - (iii) in the case of an Indian company which is wholly or mainly engaged in, or, as the case may be, which runs a separate unit for the manufacture or production of articles specified in 20 any item so repealed and also in any item which continues to be in force, the exemption from super-tax referred to in rule 1 or rule 2 in respect of such part of the dividends declared by the Indian company in respect of any previous year later than the nine previous years referred to in clause (i) or clause (ii) as is 25 attributable to the profits and gains derived from the manufacture or production of any article specified in the item so repealed shall lapse.

PART A

1. Coal including coke and other derivatives;

- 2. Iron and Steel (metal), ferro-alloys and special steels;
- 3. Motor and aviation fuel, kerosene, crude oils and synthetic oils (not being oil exploration);
 - 4. Chemicals (other than fertilisers) of the following types:
 - (a) Inorganic heavy chemicals;
 - (b) Organic heavy chemicals;

30

- (c) Fine chemicals (including photographic chemicals);
- (d) Synthetic rubber;
- (e) Man-made fibres, other than viscose rayon;
- (f) Coke oven by-products;
- (g) Coal-tar distillation products like napthalene, anthracene and the like;
 - (h) Explosives, including gun-powder and safety fuses;
 - 5. Inorganic, organic and mixed fertilisers;
- 6. Industrial machinery of the following types (including gear to wheels and parts thereof, boilers and steam generating plants):—
 - A. Major items of specialised equipment used in specific industries:
 - (i) Textile machinery (such as frames, carding machines, powerlooms and the like) including textile accessories;
 - (ii) Jute machinery;
 - (iii) Rayon machinery;
 - (iv) Sugar machinery;
 - (v) Tea machinery;
 - (vi) Mining machinery;
 - (vii) Metallurgical machinery;
- (viii) Cement machinery;

5

30

- (ix) Chemical machinery;
- (x) Pharmaceuticals machinery;
- (xi) Paper machinery;
- B. General items of machinery used in several industries, such as the equipment required for various 'unit processes':
 - (i) Size reduction equipment—crushers, ball mills and the like:
 - (ii) Conveying equipment—bucket elevators, skip hoists, cranes, derricks and the like;
 - (iii) Size separation units—screens, classifiers and the like;
 - (iv) Mixers and reactors—kneading mills, turbo mixers and the like;
 - (v) Filtration equipment—filter presses, rotary filters and the like;
 - (vi) Centrifugal machines;
 - (vii) Evaporators;
 - 660 (B) L.S.-36.

(viii) Distillation equipment;	
(ix) Crystallisers;	
(x) Driers;	
(xi) Power driven pumps—reciprocating, centrifugal and the	;
like;	5
(xii) Air and gas compressors and vacuum pipes (excluding electrical furnaces);	,
(xiii) Refrigeration plants for industrial use;	
 (xiv) Fire fighting equipment and appliances including fire engines; 	10
C. Other items of industrial Machinery:	10
(i) Ball, roller and tapered bearings;	
(ii) Speed reduction units;	
(iii) Grinding wheels and abrasives.	
7. Machinery and equipment for the generation, transmission and	
distribution of electric energy;	15
8. Non-ferrous metals including alloys;	
9. Paper including newsprint and paper board;	
10. Internal combustion engines;	
14. Power-driven pumps;	20
12. Automobiles;	
13. Tractors;	
14. Cement;	
15. Electric Motors;	
16. Locomotives;	25
17. Rolling Stock;	
18. Machine Tools;	
19. Agriculture Implements;	
20. Ferro-manganese;	
21. Dye-stuffs;	30
22. Refractories; and	• •
23. Steel pipes and spun iron pipes.	

PART B

- 1. Steel castings;
- 2. Steel forgings provided the undertaking is equipped with forges of two-ton hammer and above:
- 5 3. Pulp machinery;
 - 4. Pulp for paper and artificial fibres;
 - 5. Dies and jigs;
 - 6. Precision tools:
 - 7. Industrial Instruments:
- (i) Water meters, steam meters and electricity meters:
 - (ii) Indicating, recording and regulating devices for pressure, temperature, rate of flow, weights and levels.
 - 8. Scientific Instruments;
 - 9. Sealed compressor units for the refrigeration industry;
 - 10. Earth-moving equipment;
 - 11. Boilers;

- 12. Electrical Railway Signalling Equipment;
- 13. Printing Machinery;
- 14. Organic intermediates for dyestuffs, drugs and plastics; and
- 20 15. Component parts of each of the articles mentioned in items numbers 6, 7, 10, 12 and 13 of Part A and items numbers 10 and 11 of Part B, that is to say, such parts as are essential for the working of the machinery referred to in the items aforesaid and have been given for that purpose some special shape or quality which would not be essential for their use for any other purpose and are in complete finished form and ready for fitment.

APPENDIX I

(Vide para 2 of the Report)

Motion in the Lok Sabha for reference of the Bill to a Select Committee

"That the Bill to consolidate and amend the law relating to income-tax and super-tax be referred to a Select Committee consisting of 30 members, namely:—

- 1. Shri K. R. Achar
- 2. Shri P. Subbish Ambalam
- 3. Shri Amjad Ali
- 4. Shri Premji R. Assar
- 5. Shri Bahadur Singh
- 6. Shri Prafulla Chandra Borooah
- 7. Shri D. R. Chavan
- 8. Shri Shree Narayan Das
- 9. Shri Mulchand Dube
- 10. Shri M. L. Dwivedi
- 11. Shri D. A. Katti
- 12. Shri P. Kunhan
- 13. Shri Bhausaheb Raosaheb Mahagaonkar
- 14. Shri Mathew Maniyangadan
- 15. Shri M. R. Masani
- 16. Shri T. C. N. Menon
- 17. Shri Radheshyam Ramkumar Morarka
- 18. Shri Narendrabhai Nathwani
- 19. Shri C. D. Pande
- 20. Shri Naval Prabhakar
- 21. Shri Ram Shankar Lal

- 22. Shri Shivram Rango Rane
- 23. Shri Jaganatha Rao
- 24. Shri K. V. Ramakrishna Reddy
- 25. Shri Asoke K. Sen
- 26. Shri Laisram Achaw Singh
- 27. Dr. Ram Subhag Singh
- 28. Shrimati Tarkeshwari Sinha
- 29. Shri Radhelal Vyas, and
- 30. Shri Morarji Desai.

with instructions to report by the last day of the first week of the next session".

APPENDIX II

(Vide para 5 of the Report)

Statement showing particulars of memoranda/representations etc. received by the Select Committee and the action taken thereon

Sl. No.	Nature of docume	ent	From whom received	Action taken
I	Memorandum	•	Bar Association (Income-Tax), New Delhi	Circulated to Members and evidence of the Asso- ciation taken on he 19th June, 1961.
2	Memorandum	•	The Indian Merchants' Chamber, Bombay	Circulated to Members an evidence of the Chamber taken on the 19th June 1961.
3	Memorandum	•	All India Sindwork Merchants' Association, Bombay.	Circulated to Members and evidence of the Asso- ciation taken on the 20th June, 1961.
4	Memorandum	•	Indian Chamber of Commerce, Calcutta	Circulated to Members and evidence of the Chamber taken on the 20th June, 1961.
5	- Memorandum	•	Tata Industries (Private) Limited, Bombay	Girculated to Members and evidence of the Company taken on the 21st June, 1961.
6	Memorandum	•	The Central Council of Indian Associations (Jinja, Uganda and British East Africa)	Circulated to Members and evidence of the Associations taken on the 21st June and 17th July, 1961.
7	Memorandum	•	The Associated Chambers of Commerce of India, Calcutta	Circulated to Members and evidence of the Chambers taken on the 21st June, 1961.
8	Memorandum ?	•	The Tax-Payers' Association of of India, Ltd., Bombay	Circulated to Members and evidence of the Asso- ciation taken on the 22nd June, 1961.
9	Memorandum	•	Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry, New Delhi.	Circulated to Members and evidence of the Federation taken on the 22nd June, 1961.
10	Memorandum	•	Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, New Delhi .	Circulated to Members and evidence of the Institute taken on the 23rd June, 1961.

Sl. No.	Nature of docume	ent	From whom received	Action taken
11	Memorandum	•	National Chamber of In justries and Commerce, U. P., Agra	Circulated to Members and evidence of the Chamber taken on the 23rd June, 1961.
12	Memorandum	•	Indian Federation of Working Journalists, New Delhi	Circulated to Members and evidence of the Pe- deration taken on the 23rd June, 1961.
13	Memorandum	٠	The All-India Manufacturers' Organisation, Bombay	Circulated to Members and evidence of the Asso- ciation taken on the 23rd June, 1961.
14	Representation	•	Income Tax Practitioners' Association, Amritsar	Circulated to Members.
15	Memorandum	•	The Madura-Ramnad Chamber of Commerce, Madurai .	Do.
16	Memorandum	•	Madhya-Pradesh Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Lashkar, Gwalior	Do.
17	Memorandum	•	Shri H.M. Desai and 94 other Officers of the Scindia Steam Navigation Company Limited and Associated Companies, Bombay	Do.
18	Memorandum	•	Scindia Employees' Union, Bombay	Do.
19	Memorandum	٠.	The Great Bastern Shipping Employees, and Mogul Line Staff Union, Bombay	Do.
20	Memorandum	•	Mackinnon Employees Union, Bombay	Do.
21	Memorandum	•	The Surat City and District Mus- lim Wakf Association, Surat	Do.
<u>.</u> 22	Memorandum	•	Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Limited, Calcutta.	Do.
2	3 Memorandum	•	The Ahmedabad Share & Stock Brokers' Association, Ahmeda- bad	
2	4 Memorandum	•	Shri Nooruddin Ahmed and 4 others, Delhi	Do.
2	Memorandum		Shri A. N. Shah, Bombay .	Do.
 2(. =		Shri K.S. Nurundappa Raichur.	Do.
2			Singh and Bagadthey, Calcutta.	
2			Shri K.V.R. Hanumantha Rao	Do.
			Shri K. Chakrapani Rao, Kham- mam	

Sl. No.	Nature of documen	t	From whom received	Action taken
29	Representation .		Shri V. R. Nadkarni, Bombay .	Circulated to Members.
30	Memorandum	•	The Mysore Chamber of Commerce, Bangalore.	Do.
31	Memorandum	•	Porbandar Chamber of Com- merce, Porbandar	Do.
32	Memorandum	•	The Southern India Chamber of Commere, Madras.	Do.
33	Memorandum	•	Income-tax & Sales-tax Practi- tioners Association, Hyderabad	Do.
34	Memorandum	•	Shri Rajendra R. Raya, Rajkot .	Do.
35	Memorandum	•	Federation of Andhra Pradesh Chambers of Commerce and Industry, Hyderabad	Do.
36	Memorandum	•	The Bharat Line Shore Staff Union, Bombay	Do.
37	M:morandum	•	The Bihar Chamber of Commerce Patna	Do.
38	Memorandum		Lodha and Company, Calcutta	Do.
39	Memorandum	•	All India Importers' Association, Bombay	Do.
40	Memorandum	•	Income Tax Bar Association, Jammu	Do.
41	Memorandum	•	J. N. Sharma and Company, Kanpur	Do.
42	Memorandum	:	Gujarat Vepari Mahamandal, Ahmedabad	Do.
43	Memorandum		Shri R. L. Khosla, Amritsar .	Do.
44	Memorandum	•	Income-tax Practitioners' Asso- ciation, Ahmedabad	Do.
45	Memorandum	•	The Indian National Steamship Owners' Association, Bombay	Do.
4 6	Memorandum	•	Bengal National Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Cal- cutta	Do.
47	Memorandum	•	fron, Steel and Hardware Mer- chants' Chamber of India, Bombay	Do.
48	Memorandum		The Ahmedabad Millowners' Association, Ahmedabad	Do.
49	Memorandum		The Society of Auditors, Madras	Do.
50	Memorandum		Shri B. D. Gargieya, Beawar .	Do.
51	Memorandum		Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited,	Do.
52	Memorandum		New Delhi. Shri Kumud Basu, Calcutta .	F.∕. Do.

SI. No.	Nature of docume	ent	From whom received	Action taken
53	Memorandum	•	The Sales-Tax Bar Association (Regd.), Delhi	Circulated to Members.
54	M∍morandum	•	The Society of Chartered Accountants of Andhra Pradesh, Hyderabad	Do.
55	Memorandum	•	Delhi Hindustani Merchantile Association (Regd.), Delhi	Do.
56	Memorandum		Indian Banks' Association, Bomba	y Do.
57	Memorandum	•	The Company Law Association of India, Bombay	Do.
58	Memorandum	•	Bharat Chamber of Commerce, Calcutta	Do.
59	Memorandum	•	Bombay Chartered Accountants' Society, Bombay	Do.
60	Memorandum		Shri S. Sri Kantaiya, Bangalore	Do.
61	Memorandum		Shri S. Srinivasan, Bombay .	Do.
62	Memorandum	•	The Maritime Union of India, Bombay	Do.
63	Memorandum	•	Junior Chamber of Commerce Bombay	Do.
64	Memorandum	•	All-India Exporters' Chamber, Bombay	Do.
. 6 <u>5</u>	Memorandum	•	The Surat Chamber of Commerce, Surat	Do.
66	Memorandum	•	The Negapatam Chamber of Commerce, Nagapattinam	Do.
67	Memorandum	•	Radhasoami Satsang Sabha, Dayalbagh, Agra	Do.
68	Memorandum	•	Standing Committee of Public Trusts of Bombay, Bombay	Do.
69	Memorandum	•	The Junagadh Chamber of Com- merce, Junagadh	Do.
70	Memorandum	•	The Calcutta Exchange Banks' Association Calcutta	Do.
71	Representation	•	Shri C. P. Shah, Bombay	Placed in the Parliament Library and Members informed.
72	Representation		Shri Daulat Singh Aurangabad	Do.
73	D		Trustees of Gopiram Ruiya Ramgarhwalla Trust, Bombay	Do.
74	Representation	•	Walaiti Lal Kohli and Company, New Delhi	Do.
75	Representation	•	Shri R. H. Shah, Surat	Do ,

S1. No.	Nature of document		From whom received	Action taken
76	Telegram	•	Sindhi Merchants' Association of of Ceylon, Colombo	Placed in the Parliament Library and Members informed.
77	Telegram		Indian Association, Nakuru	Do.
78	Representation		Members, Chamber of Commerce Jinja (Uganda)	Do.
79	Telegram	•	Indian Merchants' Chamber, Kampala (Uganda)	Do.
80	Telegram	•	Central Council of Indian Association in Uganda, Kampala.	Do.
81	Telegram	•	Sindhi Merchants' Association, Singapore	Do.
82	Representation		Federation of Chambers of Cammerce, Nairobi	Do.
83	Telegram	•	Ghana Indian Merchants Association, Accra	Do.
84	Memorandum	•	The Delhi Colth and General Mills Company Limited, Delhi.	Do.
85	Memorandum		The Indian Cotton Mill's Federation, Bombay.	Do.
86	Memorandum	•	The Bombay Shroffs Associa- rion, Bombay.	Do.
87	Memorandum	•	The Asok Textiles Limited, Coimbatore.	Do.
88	Memorandum		Shri Swarup Narain Khanna, Amritsar.	Do.
89	Memorandum	•	The Indian Insurance Companies' Association, Bombay	Do.
90	Memorandum	•	The Mysore Government Certifled Auditors' [Association, Bangalore.	Do.
91	Representation		Shri R. K. Vahi, Amritsar	Do.
92	Memorandum	•	B. K. Shroff and Company, Calcutta.	Do.
93	Memorandum	•	The Sorath Chamber of Commerce, Veraval	Do.
94	Representation		Shri H. S. Purandare, Bombay	Do.
95	Representation	•	Shri Kattana Raman Kutti Nair, Ottapalam.	Do.
96	Memorandum	•	Raj K. Tandon and Company, Delhi	- Do.
97	Memorandum		Shri R. Ganesan, New Delhi	Do.
98	Representation	•	Patel, Shah and Joshi, Kampala (Uganda)	Do.

51. No.	Nature of document	From whom received	Action taken
99	Representation	. Town Welfare Association, Karaikudi	Placed in the Parliament Library and Members informed.
100	Representation	. The Indian Chamber of Com- merce, Singapore.	Do.
101	Representation	. The Virudhunagar Chamber or Commerce, Virudhunagar	Do.
102	Representation	. Shri Mertia Sumer Mai, Jodh- pur	Do.
103	Representation	. The Indian Association, Mwanza	Do.
104	Representation	. Mwanza Chamber of Com- merce, Mwanza	Do.
105	Telegram	. Chamber of Commerce, Zanzibar	•
106	Telegram	. Asian Association, Daressa- laam	Р о.
107	Telegram	. Indian Association, Nairobi .	Do.
108	Representation	. The Daressalaam Merchants' Chamber, Daressalaam	Do.
109	Representation	. The Anjar Merchants' Association, Anjar	Do,
110	Telegram	. Indian Association, Toror .	Do.
III	Telegram	. Mbale Chamber of Commerce, Mbale	Do.
113	Telegram	. Indian National Association, Zanzibar	Do.
113	Telegram	. Tanga Province Chamber of Commerce and Agriculture, Tanga	Do.
114	Representation	. V. K. Jhalani and Company, Ratlam	Do.
115	Representation	. Shri Bhola Nath Saraf, Bhagal- pur City	Do.
116	Representation	. Servants of India Society,	Do.
117	Representation	. Shri A. C. Sampath Iyengar, Calcutta	Do.

APPENDIX III

(Vide para 6 of the Report)

List of Association who gave evidence before the Select Committee.

Serial No.	Name of the Association	Date on which evi- dence was taken		
ı	Bar Association (Income-tax), New Delhi	19-6-61		
2	The Indian Merchants' Chamber, Bombay	19-6-61		
3	All India Sindwork Merchants' Association Bombay .	20-6-61		
4	Indian Chamber of Commerce, Calcutta	20-6-61		
5	Tata Industries (Private) Limited, Bombay	21-6-61		
6	The Central Council of Indian Associations (Jinja, Uganda and British East Africa)	21-6-61 . and 17-7-61		
7	The Associated Chambers of Commerce of India, Calcutta	21-6-61		
8	The Tax-Payers' Association of India, Ltd., Bombay	22-6-61		
9	Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry New Delhi	, 22-6-61		
10	Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, New Delhi	23-6-61		
11	National Chamber of Industries and Commerce, U.P., Agra	23-6-61		
12	Indian Federation of Working Journalists, New Delhi .	23-6-61		
13	The All-India Manufacturers' Organisation, Bombay .	23-6-61		

APPENDIX IV

MINUTES OF THE SITTINGS OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON THE INCOME-TAX BILL, 1961.

I :

First Sitting

The Committee met from 15.00 hours to 15:15 hours on Thursday, the 4th May, 1961.

PRESENT

Shri Jaganatha Rao-in the Chair.

Members

- 2. Shri P. Subbiah Ambalam
- 3. Shri Amjad Ali
- 4. Shri Premji R. Assar
- 5. Shri Prafulla Chandra Borooah
- 6. Shri D. R. Chavan
- 7. Shri D. A. Katti
- 8. Shri P. Kunhan
- 9. Shri Bhausaheb Raosaheb Mahagaonkar
- 10. Shri Mathew Maniyangadan
- 11. Shri T. C. N. Menon
- 12. Shri Radheshyam Ramkumar Morarka
- 13. Shri C. D. Pande
- 14. Shri Naval Prabhakar
- 15. Shri Shivram Rango Rane
- 16. Shri K. V. Ramakrishna Reddy
- 17. Dr. Ram Subhag Singh
- 18. Shrimati Tarkeshwari Sinha
- 19. Shri Morarji Desai.

DRAFTSMAN

Shri G. R. Rajagopaul, Special Secretary, Ministry of Law and Member, Law Commission of India.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRIES AND OTHER OFFICERS Shri V. V. Chari, Senior Member, Central Board of Revenue.

SECRETARIAT

Shri A. L. Rai—Deputy Secretary.

- 2. The Committee considered whether any evidence should be taken by them and whether it was necessary to issue a press communique advising associations and individuals desirous of presenting their suggestions or views before the Committee in respect of the Bill to submit written memoranda thereon.
- 3. It was decided that a press communique might be issued advising associations, public bodies and individuals who are desirous of presenting their suggestions or views or giving evidence before the Committee in respect of the Bill to send written memoranda thereon to the Lok Sabha-Secretariat by the 25th May, 1961.
- 4. The Committee authorised the Chairman to decide after examining the memoranda as to which of the associations or public bodies might be called upon to give oral evidence before the Committee.
- 5. The Committee decided to sit from the 12th June, 1961, onwards for hearing evidence.
- 6. The Committee further decided to hold their subsequent sittings from the 4th July, 1961, for clause by clause consideration of the Bill.
- 7. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 08.00 hours on Monday, the 12th June, 1961.

Second Sitting

The Committee met from 08.05 hours to 13.16 hours on Monday, the 19th June, 1961.

PRESENT

Shri Mulchand Dube-Chairman

MEMBERS

- 2. Shri K. R. Achar
- 3. Shri P. Subbiah Ambalam
- 4. Shri mjad Ali
- 5. Shri Premji R. Assar
- 6. Shri Bahadur Singh
- 7. Shri Prafulla Chandra Borooah
- 8. Shri M. L. Dwivedi
- 9. Shri Bhausaheb Raosaheb Mahagaonkar
- 10. Shri Mathew Maniyangadan
- 11. Shri Radheshyam Ramkumar Morarka
- 12. Shri Narendrabhai Nathwani
- 13. Shri C. D. Pande
- 14. Shri Naval Prabhakar
- 15. Shri Ram Shanker Lal
- 16. Shri Shivram Rango Rane
- 17. Shri Jaganatha Rao
- 18. Shri K. V. Ramakrishna Reddy
- 19. Shri Laisram Achaw Singh.
- 20. Dr. Ram Subhag Singh
- 21. Shrimati Tarkeshwari Sinha
- 22. Shri Radhelal Vyas
- 23. Shri Morarji Desai

DRAFTSMAN

Shri V. N. Bhatia, Additional Draftsman, Ministry of Law.

REPRESENTATIVES OF MINISTRIES AND OTHER OFFICERS

- Shri V. T. Dehejia, Secretary, Ministry of Finance. (Deptt. of Revenue).
- Shri V. V. Chari, Senior Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri J. P. Singh, Member, CBR.
- Shri I. P. Gupta, Deputy Secretary (Deptt. of Revenue) Ministry of Finance.

SECRETARIAT

Shri A. L. Rai—Deputy Secretary.

WITNESSES

- P. Bar Association (Income-tax) New Delhi.
 - 1. Shri R. K. Gauba
 - 2. Shri J. P. Gupta
 - . 3. Shri P. L. Juneja
- II. The Indian Merchants' Chamber, Bombay.
 - 1. Shri Vallabhdas V. Mariwalla
 - 2. Shri Pravinchandra V. Gandhi
 - 3. Shri M. A. Master
 - 4. Shri G. P. Kapadia
 - 5. Shri C. L. Gheevala
 - 6. Shri S. K. Aiyar
- 2. The Committee heard the evidence given by the representatives of the two associations named above.
 - 3. A verbatim record of the evidence given was taken down.
- 4. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 08.00 hours on Tuesday, the 20th June, 1961.

Ш

Third Sitting

The Committee met from 08.00 hours to 11.47 hours on Tuesday, the 20th June, 1961.

PRESENT

Shri Mulchand Dube—Chairman

MEMBERS

- 2. Shri K. R. Achar
- 3. Shri P. Subbiah Ambalam
- 4. Shri Amjad Ali
- 5. Shri Premji R. Assar
- 6. Shri Bahadur Singh
- 7. Shri Prafulla Chandra Borooah
- 8. Shri M. L. Dwivedi
- 9. Shri D. A. Katti
- 10. Shri Bhausaheb Raosaheb Mahagaonkar
- 11. Shri Mathew Maniyangadan
- 12. Shri Radheshyam Ramkumar Morarka
- 13. Shri Narendrabhai Nathwani
- 14. Shri C. D. Pande
- 15. Shri Naval Prabhakar
- 16. Shri Ram Shanker Lal
- 17. Shri Shivram Rango Rane
- 18. Shri Jaganatha Rao
- 19. Shri K. V. Ramakrishna Reddy
- 20. Shri Laisram Achaw Singh
- 21. Dr. Ram Subhag Singh
- 22. Shrimati Tarkeshwari Sinha
- 23. Shri Radhelal Vyas
- 24. Shri Morarji Desai

DRAFTSMAN

Shri V. N. Bhatia, Additional Draftsman, Ministry of Law.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRIES AND OTHER OFFICERS

- Shri V. T. Dehejia, Secretary, Ministry of Finance (Deptt. of Revenue).
- Shri V. V. Chari, Senior Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri I. P. Gupta, Deputy Secretary, Ministry of Finance (Department of Revenue).

SECRETARIAT

Shri A. L. Rai—Deputy Secretary

WITNESSES

- I. All India Sindwork Merchants' Association, Bombay.
 - 1. Shri B. P. Khaitan
 - 2. Shri Gobindram Hassaram
 - 3. Shri Jhamatmal T. Wadhwani
- II. Indian Chamber of Commerce, Calcutta.
 - 1. Shri B. P. Khaitan
 - 2. Shri R. Singhi
 - 3. Shri A. L. Goenka
 - 4. Shri S. K. Ayyer
 - 5. Shri B. Kalyanasundaram
- 2. At the outset the Committee considered their future programme of work. They decided that after the hearing of evidence they should adjourn and sit again from the 10th July, 1961 onwards to consider the clauses of the Bill.
- 3. The Chairman suggested that notices of amendments, if any, should be sent to the Lok Sabha Secretariat by the 4th July, 1961.
- 4. The Committee heard the evidence given by the representatives of the two associations named above.
 - 5. A verbatim record of the evidence given was taken down.
- 6. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 08.00 hours on Wednesday, the 21st June, 1961.

IV

Fourth Sitting

The Committee met from 08.03 hours to 11.43 hours on Wednesday, the 21st June, 1961.

PRESENT

Shri Mulchand Dube—Chairman.

MEMBERS

- 2. Shri K. R. Achar
- 3. Shri P. Subbiah Ambalam
- 4. Shri Amjad Ali
- 5. Shri Premji R. Assar
- 6. Shri Bahadur Singh
- 7. Shri Prafulla Chandra Borooah
- 8. Shri ...Shree Narayan Das
 - 9. Shri M. L. Dwivedi
- 10. Shri D. A. Katti
- 11. Shri Bhausaheb Raosaheb Mahagaonkar
- 12. Shri Mathew Maniyangadan
- 13. Shri Radheshyam Ramkumar Morarka
- 14. Shri Narendrabhai Nathwani
- 15. Shri C. D. Pande
- 16. Shri Naval Prabhakar
- 17. Shri Ram Shanker Lal
- 18. Shri Jaganatha Rao
- 19. Shri K. V. Ramakrishna Reddy
- 20. Shri Laisram Achaw Singh
- 21. Dr. Ram Subhag Singh
- 22. Shrimati Tarkeshwari Sinha
- 23. Shri Radhelal Vyas
- 24. Shri Morarji Desai

Draftsman

Shri V. N. Bhatia, Additional Draftsman, Ministry of Law.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRIES AND OTHER OFFICERS

- Shri V. T. Dehejia, Secretary, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.
- Shri V. V. Chari, Senior Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri J. P. Singh, Member, CBR.
- Shri I. P. Gupta, Deputy Secretary, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.

SECRETARIAT

Shri A. L. Rai-Deputy Secretary.

WITNESSES

I. Tata Industries (Private) Limited, Bombay.

Shri N. A. Palkhivala

- II. The Central Council of Indian Associations (Jinja, Uganda and British East Africa).
 - 1. Shri N. A. Palkhivala
 - 2. Shri C. D. Dupelia
- III. The Associated Chambers of Commerce of India, Calcutta.
 - 1. Mr. A. M. S. Fergie
 - 2. Mr. J. Anderson
 - 3. Mr. G. E. Solomon
- 2. The Committee heard the evidence given by the representatives of the associations named above.
 - 3. A verbatim record of the evidence was taken down.
- 4. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 08.00 hours on Thursday, the 22nd June, 1961.

Fifth Sitting

The Committee met from 08.00 hours to 12.04 hours on Thursday, the 22nd June, 1961.

PRESENT

Shri Mulchand Dube-Chairman.

Part 10

MEMBERS

- 2. Shri K. R. Achar
- 3. Shri P. Subbiah Ambalam
- 4. Shri Amjad Ali
- 5. Shri Premji R. Assar
- 6. Shri Bahadur Singh
- 7. Shri Prafulla Chandra Borooah
- 8. Shri Shree Narayan Das
- 9. Shri M. L. Dwivedi
- 10. Shri P. Kunhan
- 11. Shri Bhausaheb Raosaheb Mahagaonkar
- 12. Shri Mathew Maniyangadan
- 13. Shri T. C. N. Menon
- 14. Shri Radheshyam Ramkumar Morarka
- 15. Shri Narendrabhai Nathwani
- 16. Shri C. D. Pande
- 17. Shri Naval Prabhakar
- 18. Shri Jaganatha Rao
- 19. Shri K. V. Ramakrishna Reddy
- 20. Shri Laisram Achaw Singh
- 21. Shri Radhelal Vyas
- 22. Shri Morarji Desai

DRAFTSMAN

Shri V. N. Bhatia, Additional Draftsman, Ministry of Law.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRIES AND OTHER OFFICERS

- Shri V. T. Dehejia, Secretary, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.
- Shri V. V. Chari, Senior Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri J. P. Singh, Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri I. P. Gupta, Deputy Secretary, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.

SECRETARIAT

Shri A. L. Rai—Deputy Secretary.

WITNESSES

- 1. The Tax-Payers' Association of India, Ltd., Bombay.
 - 1. Shri V. D. Muzumdar
 - 2. Shri B. C. Shah
- II. Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry,
 New Delhi.

1.

- 1. Lala Karamchand Thapar
- 2. Shri Shriyans Prasad Jain
- 3. Shr B. P. Poddar
- 4. Shri K. N. Mukerjee
- 5. Shri J. J. Ashar
- 6. Shri H. D. Varma
- 7. Shri G. L. Bansal
- 8. Shri B. K. Madan
- 2. The Committee heard the evidence given by the representatives of the associations named above.
 - 3. A verbatim record of the evidence was taken down.
- 4. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 08.00 hours on Friday, the 23rd June, 1961.

Sixth Sitting

The Committee met from 08.04 hours to 11.12 hours and again from 11.50 hours to 12.15 hours on Friday, the 23rd June, 1961.

PRESENT

Shri Mulchand Dube—Chairman.

MEMBERS

- 2. Shri K. R. Achar
- 3. Shri P. Subbiah Ambalam
- 4. Shri Amjad Ali
- 5. Shri Premji R. Assar
- 6. Shri Bahadur Singh
- 7. Shri Prafulla Chandra Borooah
- 8. Shri Shree Narayan Das
- 9. Shri M. L. Dwivedi
- 10. Shri D. A. Katti
- 11. Shri P. Kunhan
- 12. Shri Bhausaheb Raosaheb Mahagaonkar
- 13. Shri Mathew Maniyangadan
- 14. Shri T. C. N. Menon
- 15. Shri Radheshyam Ramkumar Morarka
- 16. Shri Narendrabhai Nathwani
- 17. Shri Naval Prabhakar
- 18. Shri Ram Shanker Lal
- 19. Shri Jaganatha Rao
- 20. Shri K. V. Ramakrishna Reddy
- 21. Shri Asoke K. Sen
- 22. Shri Laisram Achaw Singh
- 23. Shrimati Tarkeshwari Sinha
- 24. Shri Radhelal Vyas
- 25. Shri Morarji Desai

DRAFTSMAN

Shri V. N. Bhatia, Additional Draftsman, Ministry of Law.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRIES AND OTHER OFFICERS

- Shri V. T. Dehejia, Secretary, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.
- Shri V. V. Chari, Senior Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri J. P. Singh, Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri I. P. Gupta, Deputy Secretary, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.

SECRETARIAT

Shri A. L. Rai-Deputy Secretary.

WITNESSES

- I. Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, New Delhi
 - 1. Shri S. N. Desai
 - 2. Shri S. Ghose

4

- 3. Shri B. R. Malhotra
- II. National Chamber of Industries and Commerce, U.P., Agra

٠.

1

- 1. Shri Niranjan Lal Poddar
- 2. Shri Phul Chand Gupta
- 3. Shri Babu Lal Goyal
- III. Indian Federation of Working Journalists, New Delhi
 - 1. Shri C. Raghavan.
- IV. The All-India Manufacturers' Organisation, Bombay.
 - 1. Shri Murrarji J. Vaidya 🦑
 - 2. Shri S. M. Dahanukar
- 2. The Committee heard the evidence given by the representatives of the associations named above.
 - 3. A verbatim record of the evidence was taken down.
- 4. The Committee decided that the clauses which on the basis of evidence taken by them appeared to be controversial might be taken up before clause by clause consideration of the Bill is taken up.
- 5. The Committee desired that a list of such clauses and notes thereon might be circulated to the members.
- 6. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 08.00 hours on Monday, the 10th July, 1961.

Seventh Sitting

The Committee met from 08.11 hours to 11.58 hours on Monday, the 10th July, 1961.

PRESENT

Shri Jaganatha Rao-in the Chair.

MEMBERS

- 2. Shri K. R. Achar
- 3. Shri P. Subbiah Ambalam
- 4. Shri Amjad Ali
- 5. Shri Premji R. Assar
- 6. Shri Bahadur Singh
- 7. Shri Prafulla Chandra Borooah
- 8. Shri M. L. Dwivedi
- 9. Shri D. A. Katti
- 10. Shri P. Kunhan
- 11. Shri Mathew Maniyangadan
- 12. Shri M. R. Masani
- 13. Shri Radheshyam Ramkumar Morarka
- 14. Shri Narendrabhai Nathwani
- 15. Shri C. D. Pande
- 16. Shri Naval Prabhakar
- 17. Shri Ram Shanker Lal
- 18. Shri Shivram Rango Rane
- 19. Shri K. V. Ramakrishna Reddy

e. .

- 20. Dr. Ram Subhag Singh
- 21. Shri Radhelal Vyas
- 22. Shri Morarji Desai.

DRAFTSMAN

Shri G. R. Rajagopaul, Special Secretary, Ministry of Law and Member, Law Commission of India.

ì

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRIES AND OTHER OFFICERS

- Shri V. T. Dehejia, Secretary, Department of Revenue.

 Ministry of Finance.
- Shri V. V. Chari, Senior Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri I. P. Gupta, Deputy Secretary, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.

SECRETARIAT

Shri A. L. Rai-Deputy Secretary.

- 2. In the absence of Shri Mulchand Dube, Chairman of the Select Committee, Shri Jaganatha Rao was elected Chairman for the sitting.
- 3. The Committee took up discussion on the controversial clauses (vide para 4 of the Minutes of the Sixth Sitting).
- 4. Clause 2(18) (b).—The Committee decided that the expression "if it is a public company as defined in the Companies Act, 1956" may be substituted by the words "if it is not a private company as defined in the Indian Companies Act, 1956".

The Committee further decided that the expression "(not including a company in which the provisions of section 104 apply)" may be substituted by the words "(not being a director or a company to which this clause does not apply)".

The Committee directed the draftsman to examine whether the words "the said shares were at any time during the relevant previous year the subject of dealing in any recognised stock exchange in India" in item (ii) were redundant and if so further directed to submit a revised draft of the sub-clause in the light of the discussion in the Committee.

Clause 2(22) (e).—The Committee felt that a loan mentioned in this item might be treated as dividend only if the shareholder receiving it has a substantial interest in the company as defined in item 2(32), that is, if he possesses shares entitled to not less than 20 per cent. of the voting power.

The draftman was directed to submit a revised draft of the item accordingly.

5. Clause 6.—The Committee thought that even if a person becomes resident according to the definition in the Bill, he should be

taxed as if he was a non-resident if his stay in India during the period of five years preceding the relevant year is less than 500 days. Such a person should further be given the option either to be taxed at a flat rate of 49 per cent (which is the rate prescribed for non-residents under the existing law) or at his choice, at the rate applicable to his world income.

In the case of foreign technicians, whose contracts are approved by the Government of India and who get the benefit of exemption of salaries earned in India, it should be provided that their foreign income would not be taken into consideration during the period for which the exemption is given.

The draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

6. Clause 10.—As regards exemption of gratuities other than those already covered by the existing law the Committee decided that a sum equal to half a month's salary per year of service subject to a maximum of Rs. 24,000 or 15 months' pay, whichever is less, should be exempted. The balance, if any, should be the subject matter of relief under clause 89(1).

Interest on approved foreign loans given to an industrial undertaking in India is exempted if the proceeds of the loans are utilized for purchasing capital plant or machinery abroad for the undertaking. The Committee felt that this exemption should be extended to the interest on loans for the purchase of raw materials abroad.

The draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

7. Clause 17(1) (v).—The Committee felt that the words "by way of loan or otherwise" might lead to an assumption that loans like those for the purchase of a conveyance or a house are to be taxed as salary in the year in which they are taken. The Committee, therefore, decided to omit these words.

The draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

- 8. Clause 33(3).—The Committee decided as follows:—
 - (a) The condition that all shareholders immediately before the amalgamation should become shareholders of the amalgamated company may be changed so that even if the number of such shareholders fell short by 10 per cent., the benefit of development rebate available before the amalgamation will not lapse.

- (a) If a 100 per cent subsidiary company is merged in its parent company, the benefit of development rebate available to the subsidiary company should not lapse.
- (c) The definition of amalgamation should be changed so as to cover amalgamation of two or more companies.

Clause 33(4).—The Committee thought that the benefit of development rebate should be available to a company whether private or public on conversion from a firm if all the shareholders were partners in that firm immediately before succession.

The draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

9. Clause 36(1) (vii) and 36(2).—The Committee felt that the use of the word "doubtful" is not necessary. A debt is bad if the whole of it is estimated to be irrecoverable. It is classified as doubtful if only a part of it is estimated to be recoverable. The expression "or part thereof" appearing after the word "debt" covers the case of a debt which is doubtful.

The draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

10. Clause 40(a) (ii).—The Committee were of the view that all cesses should be allowed as business expenses. For this purpose, the word "cess" occurring in the item should be omitted.

The draftsman was directed to recast the item accordingly.

11. Clause 41.—The Committee decided that where the business or profession referred to in sub-clauses (1), (2), (3) and (4) is no longer in existence, such part of the loss, if any, which arose in that business or profession during the previous year in which it ceased to exist as could not be set-off against any other income of that previous year shall, so far as may be, set-off against the income chargeable to tax under the sub-sections aforesaid and only the balance, if any, of such incomes shall be liable to tax.

The draftsman was directed to make necessary provision in the clause accordingly.

- 12. Clause 54.—The capital gains arising on the sale of property used for residences is not to be subjected to tax if a new property is purchased for a sum exceeding the amount of such capital gains within a period of one year before or after the date of sale. The Committee felt—
 - (a) that the above concession should be available even in a case where a new building is not purchased but is constructed by the assessee.

- (b) in a case where a fresh building is constructed instead of being purchased, the time-limit for the construction should be extended to two years after the date of sale.
- (c) assessment to capital gains should be made in the usual manner and if subsequently a property is either purchased or constructed within the time-limit, the assessment should be revised in order to allow the benefit of concession mentioned above. If the assessment for the relevant year is made only after the acquisition of the new property either by purchase or construction, the concession available should be taken into consideration in making the assessment.
- (d) in giving this concession, the assessee need not be asked to exercise a choice. It should be given in every case to which it applies.

The draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

13. Clause 64(i) and (ii).—The Committee felt that in order to remove doubts it should be clarified that the incomes of the spouses should be clubbed with the one of the two who has larger income (exclusive of the share income from the firm). Likewise, the income of a minor child should be clubbed with that of the parent who has the larger income of the two (exclusive of the income from the partnership).

The draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

14. Clause 79.—The Committee thought that the provisions of the clause should be applied only when the shares of the company which has incurred loss are acquired by new shareholders with the object of getting the benefit of those losses and thus avoiding taxation liability.

Further discussion on the clause was held over.

15. Clause 84(2) (ii).—The Committee was of the view that where a minor part of the assets of a new industrial undertaking consisted of second-hand items, the benefit to tax holiday should not be denied in toto but that in computing the capital employed the value of the old assets should be excluded. This part should not exceed 20 per cent of the total capital.

The draftsman was asked to recast the clause accordingly.

Clause 84(4).—In regard to this sub-clause the Committee felt that it should apply to a class of undertakings who should be given 660 (B) L.S.—40.

a hearing according to prescribed rules before exemption is with-drawn.

The draftsman was directed to submit a revised draft of the clause in the light of the discussion in the Committee.

16. Clause 87(1) (a) .—The Committee felt that the item as drafted may create some difficulty because at the time of payment of premia it could not relate to the "total income" as such total income is computed only after the close of the relevant previous year. In order to get over this difficulty the expression "total income" may be substituted by the words "income chargeable to income-tax".

The draftsman was directed to recast the item accordingly.

- 17. Clause 109.—The Committee decided that the following further deductions may be made in computing the distributable income:—
 - (a) Losses in "capital gains" which are not allowed to be setoff against general business income.
 - (b) Income arising outside India the remittance of which into India is prohibited, provided that when subsequently the restrictions on remittance are removed the amount so deducted shall be added in computing the distributable income of the year in which the restrictions are removed.

The draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

18. Clause 113 (3) and (5).—Under sub-clause (3) a non-resident is required to file his declaration before the 30th June of the assessment year in which he first becomes assessable. Occasions arise where a person hitherto resident becomes non-resident. In such a case, the option cannot be obviously exercised before the 30th June of the year in which he first became assessable because as a resident he would already have been assessed. The Committee, therefore, concluded that the expression "in which he first becomes assessable" should be substituted by the words "in which he first becomes assessable as a non-resident".

Under sub-clause (5) a belated declaration is permitted if the assessee was prevented by sufficient cause from not making it within the prescribed time provided that the omission to make such a declaration has not resulted in reducing his liability to tax. However, when this belated declaration is made, the benefit of the declaration is given only for the assessment year in which the declaration is

made and for subsequent assessment years. The Committee felt that this benefit should be given in respect of pending assessments for the years in which the assessee was a non-resident. Further, the expression "on the first occasion on which he became assessable" may as suggested in the preceding para be substituted by the words "on the first occasion on which he became assessable as a non-resident".

19. Clause 139.—The Committee was of the view that the last day upto which an Income-tax Officer may extend the time for filing return without being liable to interest should be six months subject to an extension upto 31st December in the case of those whose previous year ends during the period January to March.

The draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

20. Clause 147.—In respect of assessment of escaped incomes the Committee thought that assessment for any year falling within the 8—16 year range should not be reopened unless the escapement for that particular year is Rs. 50,000 or more; and no reassessment should be made beyond 16 years.

The draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

- 21. Clause 178.—The Committee felt that the clause should be amended to make the following position clear:—
 - (a) When an Income-tax Officer receives intimation of a company going into liquidation, he should within three months intimate to the liquidator the amount of tax that is estimated to be due on the assessments already completed and on the assessments yet to be completed on the incomes of the period prior to the date of liquidation.
 - (b) On receipt of this intimation, the liquidator should set aside the amount intimated by the Income-tax Officer, for the purpose of making payment to the Income-tax Department. However, this should not debar him from making payments to secured creditors in so far as they have a priority over the Income-tax Department, in respect of the assessments for the pre-liquidation period.
 - (c) For the income earned after the date of liquidation, the liquidator should from time to time submit the returns and pay the taxes due on assessments. These taxes for the post-liquidation period will have priority over all other debts.

The draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

22. Clause 179.—The Committee thought that loss arising out of malfeasance, misfeasance and negligence of directors should only be brought within the scope of the clause. This should not be given retrospective effect.

The draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

23. Clause 288.—The Committee felt that the disqualification need be made only in cases where the offences relate to concealment and abetment and not where penalities are imposed for late submission of returns.

The draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

- 24. The Committee decided to take up clause by clause consideration of the Bill at their next sitting to be held on the 11th July, 1961.
- 25. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 08.00 hours on Tuesday, the 11th July, 1961.

VIII

Eighth Sitting

The Committee met from 08.04 hours to 12.55 hours on Tuesday, the 11th July, 1961.

PRESENT

- 1. Shri K. R. Achar
- 2. Shri P. Subbiah Ambalam
- 3. Shri Amjad Ali
- 4. Shri Premji R. Assar
- 5. Shri Bahadur Singh
- 6. Shri Prafulla Chandra Borooah
- 7. Shri Shree Narayan Das
- 8. Shri M. L. Dwivedi
- 9. Shri Mathew Maniyangadan
- 10. Shri M. R. Masani
- 11. Shri Radheshyam Ramkumar Morarka
- 12. Shri Narendrabhai Nathwani
- 13. Shri C. D. Pande (in the Chair from 08.04 hours to 11.20 hours).
- 14. Shri Naval Prabhakar
- 15. Shri Ram Shanker Lal
- 16. Shri Shivram Rango Rane
- 17. Shri Jaganatha Rao (in the Chair from 11.20 hours to 12.55 hours)
- 18. Shri K. V. Ramakrishna Reddy
- 19. Shri Laisram Achaw Singh
- 20. Shri Radhelal Vyas
- 21. Shri Morarji Desai.

DRAFTSMAN

Shri G. R. Rajagopaul, Special Secretary, Ministry of Law and Member, Law Commission of India.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRIES AND OTHER OFFICERS

- Shri V. T. Dehejia, Secretary, Deptt. of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.
- Shri V. V. Chari, Senior Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri J. P. Singh, Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri I. P. Gupta, Deputy Secretary, Deptt. of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.

SECRETARIAT

Shri A. L. Rai-Deputy Secretary.

- 2. The Committee took up clause by clause consideration of the Bill.
- 3. Clause 2.—(Vide para 4 of the Minutes of the Seventh Sitting). The following further amendments were accepted:—

Page 3, line 31,

after "utility" insert "other than the furtherance of an undertaking for commercial profit".

Page 9, line 9,

after "any" insert "Gazetted".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 4. Clauses 3 and 4.—These clauses were adopted without any amendment
- 5. Clause 5.—The Committee directed the Draftsman to clarify that the same income is not to be taxed again in the same form.
 - . Subject to this the clause was adopted.
- 6. Clause 6.—(Vide para 5 of the Minutes of the Seventh Sitting). The Committee desired that the category 'not ordinary resident' as defined in the existing Income-tax Act should be restored but the liability should be that of a non-resident.

The Draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

The clause as amended was adopted.

7. Clauses 7 and 8.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.

8. Clause 9.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 13.

for lines 36—38, substitute—

"(iii) income chargeable under the head 'salaries' payable by the Government to a citizen of India for service outside India;"

The clause as amended was adopted.

9. Clause 10.—(Vide para 6 of the Minutes of the Seventh Sitting). The following further amendments were accepted:—

Page 14, line 38,

for "to his home town or village" substitute "to home district".

Page 16, line 17,

after "Central Government" insert "(which tax in the case of an employer being a company may be paid by the employer, notwithstanding anything contained in section 200 of the Companies Act, 1956)".

Page 18, line 29,

after "machinery" insert "or raw materials".

The Draftsman was asked to provide for exemption of foreign experts who came to India with the permission of the Central Government, for a period of six months.

Subject to above, the clause as amended was adopted.

10. Clauses 11—13.—The Committee discussed these clauses simultaneously and felt that trusts which declare their intention of accumulating funds for a specific purpose should be exempted upto 25% of their total annual income

It should not apply to the following two categories of trusts:-

- (a) where the trust is a small trust with an income of less than 10,000 rupees per year and which specifies the object for which the accumulation is to be made, and
- (b) in a bigger trust where such trust specifies the object and accumulates the money for specific limited period of years, not exceeding ten years and invests the money in Government securities. The period of ten years could be further extended by the Central Government.

The Committee further felt that income of future trusts expressed for the benefit of any community should not be exempted.

The Committee further thought that the word 'relative' in clause 13 should also include sister's son and brother's son.

The Draftsman was directed to submit a revised draft of the clauses in the light of the discussion in the Committee.

- 11. Clauses 14—16.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
- 12. Clauses 18-22.—These clauses were adopted without amendment
 - 13. Clause 23.—The following amendments were accepted:—Page 26.
 - (i) line 28,

 after "whose annual value" insert "as so determined".
 - (ii) lines 31-32,
 after "whose annual value" insert "as so determined".

Page 27,

for lines 1-2, substitute—

"Provided that where the sum so arrived at exceeds ten per cent of the total income of the owner, the excess shall be disregarded."

The clause as amended was adopted.

14. Clause 24.—In respect of deductions from income from house property the Committee felt that the actual amount spent on repairs to buildings built earlier than 1950 should be allowed upto 1|5 of the annual value of the property and for other buildings whatever is spent up to 1|6 of their annual value.

The Draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

- 15. Clauses 25-26—These clauses were adopted without any amendment.
 - 16. Clause 27.—The following amendments were accepted:—

Page 29,

- (i) for lines 6-9, substitute-
 - "(i) an individual who transfers otherwise than for adequate consideration any house property to his or her

spouse, not being a transfer in connection with an agreement to live or to a minor, child not being a married daughter, shall be deemed to be the owner of the House property so transferred".

(ii) line 14, omit "built by the society".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 17. Clause 28.—The clause was adopted without amendment.
- 18. Clause 29.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 30, lines 19-20,

for "in the manner specified" substitute "in accordance with the provisions contained".

The clause as amended was adopted.

19. Clause 30.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 30, line 21,

for "rent" substitute "rent, rates, taxes".

The clause as amended was adopted.

 Clause 31.—The following amendment was accepted:— Page 30, line 34,

after "in respect of" insert "repair and insurance of".

The clause as amended was adopted.

21. Clause 32.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 31,—

for lines 29-37, substitute-

"(iv) in the case of any building which has been newly erected after the 31st day of March, 1961, where the building is used solely for the purpose of residence of persons employed in the business and drawing a remuneration not exceeding two hundred rupees per mensem, or where such building is used solely or mainly for the welfare of such persons as a hospital school, canteen, library, recreational centre shelter, rest-room or lunch room, a sum equal to twenty per cent of the actual cost of the building to the assessee in respect of the previous year of erection of the building; but any such sum shall not be deductible in

determining the written down value for the purposes of this clause."

The clause as amended was adopted.

22. Clause 33.—(Vide para 8 of the Minutes of the Seventh Sitting). The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 34, line 38.

after "firm" insert "immediately".

Further discussion on the clause was held over.

- 23. Clause 34.—The following amendments were accepted:—Page 35,
 - (i) after line 14, insert—
 - "Explanation.—Where a capital asset is transferred by a company to a subsidiary company, then, if the conditions of clause (iv) of section 47 are satisfied, in determining the aggregate of all deductions in respect of depreciation under this clause, account shall also be taken of the deductions in respect of depreciation allowed in the case of the company from whom the asset has been transferred".
 - (ii) line 25, for "ten years" substitute "eight years".
 - (iii) line 38,

after "under section 33" insert "or under the corresponding provision of the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922."

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 24. Clause 35.—The clause was adopted without amendment.
- 25. Clause 37.—The following amendments were accepted:—Page 40,
 - (i) line 16, omit "necessarily".
 - (ii) for lines 20—25, substitute—
 - "(2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (1), no expediture in the nature of entertainment expenditure shall be allowed in the case of a company, which exceeds the aggregate amount computed as hereunder:—".

- 26. Clauses 38-39.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
- 27. Clause 40.—(Vide para 10 of the Minutes of the Seventh Sitting). The Committee discussed the following amendment:—

Page 42,

for lines 11—20, substitute—

"(b) in the case of any firm, any payment or interest, salary, bonus, commission or remuneration made by the firm to any partner of the firm".

The Draftsman was directed to recast the clause in the light of the discussion in the Committee.

28. Clause 41.—(Vide para 11 of the Minutes of the Seventh Sitting). The following further amendments were accepted:—

Page 43,

- (i) lines 10-11,
 - for "whether the business or profession is continued in that year or not" substitute "whether the business or profession in respect of which the allowance or deduction has been made is in existence in that year or not".
- (ii) line 15, omit "in the previous year".
- (iii) lines 21-22,
 - for "in which the sale took place or the money payable was determined, as the case may be" substitute "in which the moneys payable for the building, machinery, plant or furniture become due".
- (iv) lines 39-40,

omit "whether during the continuance of the business or after the cessation thereof".

Page 44,

for lines 9-10, substitute—

"deemed to be profits and gains of business or profession, and accordingly chargeable to income-tax as income of the previous year in which it is recovered, whether the business or profession in respect of which the deduction had been allowed is in existence in that year or not".

Further discussion on the clause was held over.

- 29. Clause 42.—'. The clause was adopted without amendment.
- 30. Clause 43.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 45.

for lines 36-43, substitute-

"the assets less the depreciation actually allowed to him under this Act or under the corresponding provisions of the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922, diminished by any loss deducted or, as the case may be, increased by any profit assessed, under the provisions of clause (iii) of sub-section (1) of section 32 or sub-section (2) of section 41 of this Act or under the corresponding provisions of the Indian Income-tax Act, 1922, or the actual price for which the asset is re-acquired by him, whichever is the less".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 31. Clauses 44-45.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
- 32. Clause 46.—The following clause was adopted in place of the existing clause 46:—
 - 46. (1) Notwithstanding anything contained in section 45, Capital gains where the assets of a company are distributed to its on distribushareholders in its liquidation, such distribution shall by companies not be regarded as a transfer by the company for the in liquidapurposes of section 45.

- (2) Where a shareholder on the liquidation of a company receives any money or other assets from the company he shall be chargeable to income-tax under the head 'Capital gains', in respect of the money so received or the market value of the other assets on the date of distribution, as reduced by the amount assessed as dividend within the meaning of sub-clause (c) of clause (22) of section 2; and the sum so arrived at shall be deemed to be full value of the consideration for the purposes of section 48".
- 33. Clause 47.—The following amendments were accepted: --

Page 48.

- (i) for lines 31-32, substitute,
 - "(ii) any distribution of capital assets on the dissolution of a firm, body of individuals or other association of persons".

(ii) lines 39-40,

omit "and is a resident".

The clause as amended was adopted.

34. Clause 48.—The following amendments were accepted:-

Page 49,

- (i) line 5, omit "necessarily".
- (ii) for lines 7—9, substitute,
 - "(ii) the cost of acquisition of the capital asset and the cost of any improvement thereto".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 35. Clauses 49—53.—These clausese were adopted without any amendment.
 - 36. Clause 55.—The following amendments were accepted:---

Page 51,

- (i) line 13,
 - after "the case may be" insert "the computation for this purpose being made with reference to the period commencing from the 1st day of January, 1954, in cases to which clause (2) of section 50 applies".
 - (ii) line 26,
 - for "or by the previous owner" substitute "and, where the capital asset became the property of the assessee by any of the modes specified in section 49, by the previous owner".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 37. Clause 56.—The clause was adopted with any amendment.
- 38. Clause 57.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 53, line 26, omit "necessarily".

- 39. Clauses 58-59.—These clauses were adopted without any amendment.
- 40. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 08.00 hours on Wednesday, the 12th July, 1961.

ìΧ

Ninth Sitting

The Committee met from 08.06 hours to 12.45 hours on Wednesday, the 12th July, 1961.

PRESENT

- 1. Shri K. R. Achar
- 2. Shri P. Subbiah Ambalam
- 3. Shri Amjad Ali
- 4. Shri Premji R. Assar
- 5. Shri Bahadur Singh
- 6. Shri M. L. Dwivedi
- 7. Shri D. A. Katti
- 8. Shri Mathew Maniyangadan
- 9. Shri M. R. Masani
- 10. Shri Radheshyam Ramkumar Morarka
- 11. Shri Narendrabhai Nathwani
- 12. Shri C. D. Pande (In the Chair from 08.06 hours to 10.25 hours)
- 13. Shri Naval Prabhakar
- 14. Shri Ram Shanker Lal
- 15. Shri Shivram Rango Rane
- 16. Shri Jaganatha Rao (In the Chair from 10.26 hours to 12.45 hours):
- 17. Shri K. V. Ramakrishna Reddy
- 18. Shri Laisram Achaw Singh
- 19. Shrimati Tarkeshwari Sinha
- 20. Shri Morarji Desai

DRAFTSMAN

Shri G. R. Rajagopaul, Special Secretary, Ministry of Law and Member, Law Commission of India.

Representatives of the Ministries and other Officers

- Shri V. T. Dehejia, Secretary, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.
- Shri V. V. Chari, Senior Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri J. P. Singh, Member. Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri I. P. Gupta, Deputy Secretary, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.

SECRETARIAT

Shri A. L. Rai-Deputy Secretary.

- 2. The Committee resumed clause by clause consideration of the Bill.
- 3. Clauses 60—63.—These clauses were adopted without any amendment.
- 4. Clause 64.—(Vide para 13 of the minutes of the Seventh Sitting).
 - (1) The following further amendments were accepted:—
 - (i) Page 56, line 9,

for "section 27" substitute-

"clause (i) of section 27,";

(ii) Page 56, line 13,

before "to a minor child".

insert "subject to the provisions of clause (i) of section 27"

(2) The Committee further felt that before clubbing of incomes the assessee should be given an opportunity of being heard.

The draftsman was asked to submit a draft of the clause in the light of discussions in the Committee.

5. Clause 65.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 56, line 22,

after "in this Chapter" insert "or in clause (i) of section 27".

The clause as amended was adopted.

6. Clauses 66-67.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.

7. Clause 68.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 58, lines 16-18.

for "the sum so credited shall be deemed to be the income of the assessee and shall be chargeable to income-tax as the income of that previous year".

substitute "the sum so credited may be charged to income-tax as the income of the assessee of that previous year".

8. Clause 69.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 58, line 25,

for "shall" substitute "may".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 9. Clauses 70-71.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 10. Clause 72.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 59, line 9.

for "has not been" substitute "cannot be".

The Committee directed the draftsman to examine whether in page 59, line 12, the words "except Capital gains" need be inserted after the words "under any other head".

Subject to above the clause as amended was adopted.

- 11. Clauses 73—78.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
- 12. Clauses 80—83.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
- 13. Clauses 85-86.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
- 14. Clause 87.—(Vide para 16 of the minutes of the Seventh Sitting). The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 66, line 10,

for "out of his total income".

substitute "out of his income chargeable to Income-tax".

15. Clause 88.—In respect of donations for charitable purposes, the Committee felt that after such donations had been made transferor should not be liable to taxation and directed the draftsman to make necessary provision accordingly.

Subject to above the clause was adopted.

16. Clause 89.—The Committee directed the draftsman to examine whether in line 37 at page 68, after the word "assessed" the words "or liable to be assessed" were necessary and need be inserted.

Subject to above the clause was adopted.

- 17. Clause 90.—The clause was adopted without amendment.
- 18. Clause 91.—The following amendments were accepted:—page 70,
 - (i) lines 8-9, for "in respect of the same share of income". substitute "in respect of the income so included".
 - (ii) line 11,

 for "share of income"

 substitute "income so included".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 19. Clauses 92-103.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 20. Clause 104.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 82, line 7,

for "the income whereof is exempt under section 11 or section 12".

substitute "the income from dividend whereof is exempt under section 11"

The clause as amended was adopted.

21. Clauses 105—109.—The Committee directed the draftsman to examine whether these clauses should not be made subject to Company Law which prohibited declaration of dividend out of capital.

Subject to above, the clauses were adopted, without amendment.

22. Clauses 110-111.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.

660 (B) LS-42

- 23. Clause 112.—The following clause was adopted in place of the existing clause 112:—
 - "112. Where the total income of an assessee, not being a com- Tax on company, includes any compensation or other payment which pensation is chargeable as the profits and gains of business or profession in accordance with the provisions of clause (ii) of section 28, the tax payable by him on his total income shall be—
 - (i) the income tax payable on the total income as reduced by the amount of such compensation or other payment and of the capital gains, if any;
 - (ii) the super-tax payable on the total income as reduced by the amount of such compensation or other payment and of capital gains, if any;
 - (iii) the tax on such compensation or other payment equal to the amount which bears to the income-tax and super-tax which would have been payable on the total income as reduced by the amount of capital gains, if any, and two-thirds of the amount of such inclusion, the same proportion as the whole amount of such compensation or other payment bears to such reduced total income; and
 - (iv) the tax on capital gains, if any, computed in accordance with the provisions of clause (b) of section 114".
- 24. Clause 113.—(Vide para 18 of the minutes of the Seventh Sitting).—The following further amendment was accepted:—

Page 86, line 28,

for "as if it were his total world income" substitute "as if it were the total income of a resident".

- 25. Clause 114.—The following amendments were accepted:—Page 87,
 - (i) for lines 9-11. substitute—
 - "(a) the amount of income-tax and super-tax payable on the total income as reduced by the amount of such inclusion and by the amount of compensation or other payment, if any, referred to in clause (ii) of section 28, had the total income so reduced been his total income, plus".

(ii) line 15,

for "such inclusion" substitute-

"such inclusion and by the amount of compensation or other payment aforesaid, if any:"

(iii) line 24,

after "five thousand rupees" insert "plus";

- (iv) after line 24, insert—
 - "(c) the tax on such compensation or other payment aforesaid, if any, computed in accordance with the provisions of clause (iii) of section 112."

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 26. Clauses 115-131.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 27. Clause 132.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 94. lines 1-2,

omit "and have them removed to his office, if necessary".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 28. Clauses 133—136.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 29. Clause 137.—The following amendments were accepted:—
 - (i) Page 97, line 16,

after "State Government" insert "authorised in that behalf".

(ii) Page 98, line 24,

for "In this section" substitute-

"In sub-sections (1), (2) and (4)

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 30. Clause 138.—The clause was adopted without amendment.
- 31. Clause 140.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 100, line 36.

for "by some person" substitute "by the individual concerned or by some person".

32. Clause 141.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 101, line 23.

after "section 73" insert "or sub-section (1) of section 74".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 33. Clauses 142-146.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
- 34. Clause 147.—(Vide para 20 of the minutes of the Seventh Sitting). The following further amendment was accepted:—

Page 104, line 33,

omit "of his income".

The Committee directed the draftsman to examine whether the words "having jurisdiction over him" occurring in the clause should not be omitted.

Further discussion on the clause was held over.

- 35. Clause 148.—The clause was adopted without any amendment.
- 36. Clause 149.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 106, line 11.

for "within a period" substitute "after the expiry".

The clause as amended was adopted.

37. Clause 150.—The Committee felt that when assessment is opened in pursuance of an order on appeal it should not permit opening of a time barred assessment. The draftsman was directed to recast the clause in the light of the discussion in the Committee.

The Minister of Finance stated that administrative instructions would be issued for expeditious disposal of appeals which should not take more than one year.

- 38. Clauses 151-158.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
- 39. Clause 159.—The Committee discussed the following amendment:—

Page 113, line 19,

after "possession" insert-

"to the extent of the value of the asset so charged or disposed of or parted with",

The draftsman was directed to insert suitably the above amendment in the clause.

Subject to the above, the clause was adopted.

- 40. Clauses 160-177.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
- 41. Clause 180.—The Committee discussed the question of allowing exemption on insurance premiums upto a higher limit and the benefit of spread over to persons like, authors painters, musicians, artists, sculptors, film-stars who have a high income for a limited number of years and whose income dwindle with the passage of time.

The Committee directed the draftsman to submit a suitable draft for providing the same.

Subject to above, the clause was adopted without amendment.

- 42. Clause 181.—The clause was adopted without amendment.
- 43. Clause 182.—The Committee felt that 30 per cent of profits of a registered firm should be kept back for payment of income-tax.

The draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly.

- 44. Clause 183.—The clause was adopted without amendment.
- 45. Clause 184.—The Committee discussed the following amendment:—

Page 127, line 33,

after "personally" insert—

"where the individual is absent from India, by some person duly authorised by him in this behalf".

The draftsman was directed to recast the above amendment in the light of the discussion in the Committee.

Subject to above, the clause as amended was adopted.

46. Clause 185.—The clause was adopted without any amendment.

47. Clause 186.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 129.

after line 25, insert-

"Provided that no such cancellation shall be made after the expiry of eight years from the end of the assessment year in respect of which registration has been granted or has effect".

- 48. Clauses 187-189.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
- 49. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 08.00 hours on Thursday, the 13th July, 1961.

Tenth Sitting

The Committee met from 08.04 hours to 11.25 hours on Thursday, the 13th July, 1961.

PRESENT

Shri Jaganatha Rac-In the Chair

MEMBERS

- 2. Shri K. R. Achar
- 3. Shri P. Subbiah Ambalam
- 4. Shri Amjad Ali
- 5. Shri Premji R. Assar
- 6. Shri Bahadur Singh
- 7. Shri M. L. Dwivedi
- 8. Shri D. A. Katti
- 9. Shri P. Kunhan
- 10. Shri Bhausaheb Raosaheb Mahagaonkar
- 11. Shri Mathew Maniyangadan
- 12. Shri M. R. Masani
- 13. Shri Radheshyam Ramkumar Morarka
- 14. Shri Narendrabhai Nathwani
- 15. Shri Naval Prabhakar
- 16. Shri Ram Shanker Lal
- 17. Shri Shivram Rango Rane
- 18. Shri K. V. Ramakrishna Reddy
- 19. Shri Laisram Achaw Singh
- 20. Dr. Ram Subhag Singh
- 21. Shrimati Tarkeshwari Sinha
- 22. Shri Morarji Desai

DRAFTSMAN

Shri G. R. Rajagopaul, Special Secretary, Ministry of Law and Member, Law Commission of India.

7.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRIES AND OTHER OFFICERS

- Shri V. T. Dehejia, Secretary, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.
- Shri V. V. Chari, Senior Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri J. P. Singh, Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri I. P. Gupta, Deputy Secretary, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.

SECRETARIAT

Shri A. L. Rai-Deputy Secretary.

- 2. In the absence of Shri Mulchand Dube, Chairman of the Select Committee, Shri Jaganatha Rao was elected Chairman for the sitting.
- 3. The Committee resumed clause by clause consideration of the Bill.
- 4. Clauses 190—193.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 5. Clause 194.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 133,

after line 3, insert,

"Provided that where in the case of any shareholder not being a company the Income-tax Officer gives a certificate in writing in the prescribed manner that to the best of his belief the total income or the total world income of the shareholder will be less than the minimum liable to income-tax, the person responsible for paying any dividend to the shareholder shall so long as the certificate is in force pay the dividend without any deduction."

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 6. Clauses 195—200.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 7. Clause 201.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 135, line 13,

omit "first".

- 8. Clauses 202-203.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 9. Clause 204.—The following amendments were accepted:—Page 135,
 - (i) line 36.

for "or company" substitute "corporation or company".

(ii) lines 39-40.

omit "not being income chargeable under the head "Interest on securities"."

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 10. Clauses: 205-206.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 11. Clause 207.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 136, line 32,

omit "Salaries" and"

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 12. Clause 208.—The clause was adopted without amendment.
- 13. Clause 200,-The following amendment was accepted:-

Page 137, line 6,

for "has been assessed" substitute "has been assessed by way of regular assessment".

The clause as amended was adopted.

14. Clause 210.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 137, line 34,

for "previously assessed" substitute "previously assessed by way of regular assessment."

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 15. Clause 211.—The clause was adopted without amendment.
- 16. Clause 212.—The following amendments were accepted:—

Page 139,

(i) lines 3-4,

omit "total income exclusive of capital gains or".

(ii) lines 6-7.

omit "the total income exclusive of capital gains on the basis of which or".

(iii) lines 7-8,

omit "as the case may be".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 17. Clauses 213—219.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 18. Clause 220.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 142, line 30,

after "Any amount" insert "otherwise than by way of advance tax".

The clause as amended was adopted.

19. Clause 221.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 144, lines 4-5,

for "be liable to pay by way of penalty an amount not exceeding the amount of tax in arrears" substitute "be liable to pay by way of penalty, which, in the case of a continuing default may be increased from time to time, so, however, that the total amount of penalty does not exceed the amount of tax in arrears."

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 20. Clauses 222—229.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 21. Clause 230.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 149, line 20,

for "Central Government" substitute "Board".

The clause as amended was adopted.

22. Clause 231.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 149, lines 33—35,

for "the Income-tax Officer sends an intimation in writing to such person to the effect that he is deemed to be an assessee in default" substitute "the assessee is deemed to be in default".

23. Clauses 232—240.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.

24. Clause 241.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 153, line 19,

٤

for "may" substitute "is likely to".

The clause as amended was adopted.

The Minister of Finance gave an assurance to the Committee that administrative instructions would be issued that an order holding up refund should be reported to Government.

- 25. Clauses 242—245.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 26. Clause 246.—The following amendments were accepted:—Page 155.
 - (i) omit lines 24-25.
 - (ii) lines 27-28.

omit "with reference to the Finance Act applicable to the case".

The Committee felt that provision should be made for removal of penalty where the entire income is revised on appeal.

Some members referred to certain orders in respect of which appeals should have been provided. The Chairman directed the draftsman to examine the suggestion.

Subject to above the clause as amended was adopted.

- 27. Clause 247.—The clause was adopted without amendment.
- 28. Clause 248.—The following amendments were accepted:—

Page 156,

- (i) line 2,
 for "section 200" substitute "sections 195 and 200".
- (ii) line 3, omit "or dividend".

29. Clause 249.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 156, line 16,

for "intimation" substitute "notice".

The clause as amended was adopted.

30. Clause 250.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 157, lines 8-9,

omit "and the relief, if any, to which the appellant is entitled".

The clause as amended was adopted.

31. Clause 251.—The Committee felt that provision should be made in the explanation for giving to the appeallant an opportunity of being heard and the draftsman was directed to recast the explanation accordingly".

Subject to above the clause was adopted.

- 32. Clauses 252-253.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 33. Clause 254.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 159, lines 20-21,

omit "any such orders may include an order enhancing the amount of tax determined or penalty imposed".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 34. Clauses 255-256.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 35. Clause 257.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 161, line 30,

omit "arising therefrom".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 36. Clauses 258—262.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 37. Clause 263.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 163, line 24,

for "the assessment proceeding" substitute "my proceeding under this section".

- 38. Clause 264.—The clause was adopted without amendment.
- 39. Clause 265.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 164, line 27,

after "High Court" insert "or the Supreme Court".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 40, Clause 266.—The clause was adopted without amendment.
 - 41. Clause 267.—The following: amendment: was accepted:—

Page 165, line 3,

after "association or" insert "to".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 42. Clauses 268—270.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
- 43. Clause 271.—The Committee felt that reference to Appellate Tribunal in sub-clause (1) should be omitted.

The draftsman was directed to carry it out and make other consequential changes in this and other clauses.

Subject to above the clause was adopted.

- 44. Clauses 272—274.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 45. Clause 275.—The following amendment was accepted:—

¢

Page 169,

omit lines 16-18.

The Committee decided that abetment etc. of false returns should be made a penal-offence and directed the draftsman to provide for it accordingly,

Subject to above the clause as amended was adopted.

46. Clause 276.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 169,

after line 22, insert

"Explanation.—In computing the period of limitation for the purpose of this section, the time taken in giving an opportunity to the assessee to be re-heard under the proviso to section 129 and any period during which a proceeding under this Chapter for the levy of penalty is stayed by an order or injunction of any court shall be excluded".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 47. Clauses 277—279.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 48. Clause 280.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 170, line 17,

for "Commissioner" substitute "Central Government".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 49. Clauses 281—285.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 50. Clause 286.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 171, line 37,

omit "effective".

The clause as amended was adopted.

51. Clause 287.—The following amendment was accepted:—Page 172,

for lines 33-37, substitute

"(i) in the case of an assessee mentioned in clause (a) of sub-section (2) who has presented an appeal under section 246 or under clause (b) of sub-section (1) of section 253 against the order imposing the penalty, until the appeal is disposed of by the Appellate Assistant Commissioner, or, in the case of an appeal filed under clause (b) of sub-section (1) of section 253, by the Appellate Tribunal".

The clause as amended was adopted.

52. Clause 288.—(Vide para 23 of the minutes of the Seventh Sitting). The following further amendments were accepted:—

Page 174,

(i) line 11,

after "under this Act" insert "or under the Indian Incometax Act, 1922".

(ii) line 16,

after "dismissed" insert "or removed".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 53. Clauses 289—296.—These clauses were adopted without amendment.
 - 54. Clause 297.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 178, line 29,

after "section 149" insert "or section 150".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 55. Clause 298.—The clause was adopted without amendment.
- 56. The First Schedule—The following amendments were accepted:—

Page 183,

(i) line 28.

for "securities or other assets" substitute "investments".

- (ii) for lines 29-30, substitute
 - "(c) such amount carried over to a reserve for unexpired risks as may be prescribed in this behalf shall be allowed as a deduction."

The Schedule as amended was adopted.

57. The Second Schedule.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 185, line 15,

for "an officer" substitute "a person".

The Schedule as amended was adopted.

- 58. The Third Schedule and the Fourth Schedule.—These Schedules were adopted without amendment.
- 59. The draftsman was authorised to carry out corrections of consequential nature and patent errors.
- 60. The Chairman informed the Committee that the Central Council of Indian Associations, Kampala have sent a cable stating that in addition to the evidence given by their representatives on the 21st June, 1961, another delegation of the Council was arriving in New Delhi on the 16th July, 1961 and requesting the Committee to permit the Council to give evidence before them. After some discussion the Committee decided to hear their evidence on Monday, the 17th July, 1961 at 08.00 hours.
- 61. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 08.00 hours on Monday, the 17th July, 1961.

Xi

Eleventh Sitting

The Committee met from 08.04 hours to 12.55 hours on Monday, the 17th July, 1961.

PRESENT

Shri Jaganatha Rao-In the Chair.

MEMBERS

- 2. Shri K. R. Achar
- 3. Shri P. Subbiah Ambalam
- 4. Shri Amjad Ali
- 5. Shri Premji R. Assar
- 6. Shri Bahadur Singh
- 7. Shri Shree Narayan Das
- 8. Shri M. L. Dwivedi
- 9. Shri D. A. Katti
- 10. Shri P. Kunhan
- 11. Shri Bhausaheb Raosaheb Mahagaonkar
- 12. Shri Mathew Maniyangadan
- 13. Shri M. R. Masani
- 14. Shri Radheshyam Ramkumar Morarka
- 15. Shri Narendrabhai Nathwani
- 16. Shri C. D. Pande
- 17. Shri Naval Prabhakar
- 18. Shri Ram Shanker Lal
- 19. Shri Shivram Rango Rane
- 20. Shri K. V. Ramakrishna Reddy
- 21. Shri Laisram Achaw Singh
- 22. Dr. Ram Subhag Singh
- 23. Shrimati Tarkeshwari Sinha
- 24. Shri Radhelal Vyas
- 25. Shri Morarji Desai.

DRAFTSMAN

Shri G. R. Rajagopaul, Special Secretary, Ministry of Law and Member, Law Commission of India.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRIES AND OTHER OFFICERS

- Shri V. T. Dehejia, Secretary, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.
- Shri V. V. Chari, Senior Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri J. P. Singh, Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri I. P. Gupta, Deputy Secretary, Deptt. of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.

SECRETARIAT

Shri A. L. Rai-Deputy Secretary.

WITNESSES

Central Council of the Indian Associations in Uganda

- 1. Shri R. J. Mehta
- 2. Shri C. M. Shah.
- 2. In the absence of Shri Mulchand Dube, Chairman of the Select Committee, Shri Jaganatha Rao was elected Chairman for the sitting.
- 3. The Committee heard the evidence given by the representatives of the association named above.
 - 4. A verbatim record of the evidence was taken down.
- 5. The Committee then considered the amendments and redrafts of clauses prepared by the draftsman according to the decisions taken by the Committee at their earlier sittings.
- 6. Clause 2.—(Vide para 3 of the minutes of the Eighth Sitting). The Committee reopened discussion on the clause. The following further amendments were accepted:—
 - (i) Page 1, line 14,
 - for "as such by officers of the Government" substitute "by officers of the Government as such".

(ii) Page 3.

for lines 29-31, substitute.

- "(15) "charitable purpose" includes relief of the poor, education, medical relief and the advancement of any other object of general public utility not involving the carrying on of any activity for profit."
- (iii) Page 4, line 7.

for "public company" substitute "not a private company".

- (iv) Page 4, lines 16 and 17.
 - for "(not including a company to which the provisions of section 104 apply)" substitute "(not being a director or a company to which this clause does not apply)".
- (v) Page 4, line 30.
 - for "the provisions of section 104 do not apply" substitute "this clause applies".
- (vi) Page 5, line 21,

for "preference shares", substitute "shares".

- (vii) Page 5, line 37.
 - after "shareholder" insert "being a person who has a substantial interest in the company".
- (viii) Page 5, line 39.
 for "shareholder" substitute "any such shareholder".
- (ix) Page 7, line 26,
 - after "resident" insert "and for the purposes of sections 92, 93 and 113 includes a person who is not ordinarily resident within the meaning of sub-section (6) of section 6."

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 7. Clause 5.—(Vide para 5 of the minutes of the Eighth Sitting). The Committee reopened discussion on the clause. The following amendments were accepted:—
 - (i) Page 11,
 - after line 37, insert "Provided that in the case of a person not ordinarily resident in India within the meaning of subsection (6) of section 6, the income which accrues or

arises to him outside India shall not be so included unless they are derived from a business controlled in or a profession set up in India."

(ii) Page 12,

after line 11, insert.

"Explanation 2.—For the removal of doubts it is hereby declared that income which has been included in the total income of a person on the basis that it has accrued or arisen or is deemed to have accrued or arisen to him shall not again be so included on the basis that it is received or deemed to be received in India."

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 8. Clause 6.—(Vide para 6 of the minutes of the Eighth Sitting). The Committee reopened discussion on the clause. The following amendments were accepted:—
 - (i) Page 12, line 21,

for "any time" substitute "thirty days or more"

(ii) Page 12, line 25,

for "thirty" substitute "sixty"

(iii) Page 13,

after line 5, insert-

- "(6) A person is "not ordinarily resident" in India in any previous year if such person is—
 - (a) an individual who has not been resident in India in nine out of the ten previous years preceding that year, or has not during the seven years preceding that year been in India for a period of, or periods amounting in all to, seven hundred and thirty days or more; or
 - (b) a Hindu undivided family whose manager has not been resident in nine out of the ten previous years preceding that year, or has not during the seven years preceding that year been in India for a period of or periods amounting in all to, seven hundred and thirty days or more".

The clause as amended was adopted,

9. Clause 9.—(Vide para 8 of the minutes of the Eighth Sitting). The Committee reopened discussion on the clause.

The Committee considered whether any definition of the term "business connection" was necessary and desired that it might be clarified in the clause that where only purchases were made in India for exporting without having any establishments or office in India such transactions should not be treated as "business connection".

Subject to above the clause was adopted.

- 10. Clause 10.—(Vide para 9 of the minutes of the Eighth Sitting). The Committee reopened discussion on the clause and the following further amendments were accepted:—
 - (i) Page 14, line 9, omit "therein"
 - (ii) Page 16,

for lines 9-29, substitute-

- "(a) where his contract of service was approved by the Central Government before the commencement of his service—
 - (i) in the case of a technician who has special knowledge and experience in industrial or business management techniques, such remuneration due to or received by him during the period of six months commencing from the date of his arrival in India.
 - (ii) in the case of any other technician, such remuneration due to or received by him during the thirty-six months commencing from the date of his arrival in India, and where any such person continues to remain in employment in India after the expiry of the thirty-six months aforesaid and the tax on his income chargeable under the head "Salaries" is paid by the employer to the Central Government (which tax in the case of an employer being a company may be paid notwith-standing anything contained in section 200 of the Companies Act, 1956) the tax so paid by the employer for a period not exceeding twenty-four months following the expiry of the thirty-six months aforesaid;
- (b) in any other case not being the case of a technician, who has special knowledge and experience in industrial or

business management techniques, such remuneration due to or received by him for the period of three hundred and sixty five days in all commencing from the date of his arrival.

- Explanation.—"Technician" means a person having specialised knowledge and experience in—
- (i) constructional or manufacturing operations, or in mining or in the generation or distribution of electricity or any other form of power, or
- (ii) industrial or business management techniques, who is employed in India in a capacity in which such specialised knowledge and experience are actually utilised.
- (iii) Page 17, line 23,
 - after "Defence Service" insert "or any other gratuity not exceeding one half month's salary for each year of completed service, calculated on the basis of the average salary for the three years immediately preceding the year in which the gratuity is paid, subject to a maximum of twenty-four thousand rupees or fifteen months' salary so calculated, whichever is less."
- (iv) Page 18, lines 28-29,
 - for "capital plant and machinery" substitute—"raw materials or capital plant and machinery".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 11. Clauses 11-13.—(Vide para 10 of the minutes of the Eighth Sitting).
 - (i) The Committee considered the following amendments:—Pages 20-21,

for clauses 11, 12 and 13, substitute,

"11(1) Subject to provisions of section 60 to 63 the following income shall not be included in the total income of the previous year of the persons in receipt of the income—

Income from property held for charitable or religious purposes, (a) income derived from property held under trust wholly for charitable or religious purposes, to the extent to which such income is applied to such purposes in India; and where any such income is accumulated for application to such purposes in India, to the extent to which the income so accumulated is not in excess of twenty-five per

- cent, of the income from the property or rupees ten thousand, whichever is higher;
- (b) income derived from property held under trust in part only for such purposes which has been created before the commencement of this Act, to the extent to which such income is applied to such purposes in India; and where any such income is finally set apart for application to such purposes in India, to the extent to which the income so set apart is not in excess or twenty-five per cent of the income from the property held under trust in part;
- (c) income from property held under trust-
 - (i) created on or after the 1st day of April, 1952 for a charitable purpose which tends to promote international welfare in which India is interested to the extent to which such income is applied to such purposes outside India; and
 - (ii) for charitable or religious purposes, created before the 1st day of April, 1952, to the extent to which such income is applied to such purposes outside India:

Provided that the Board, by general or special order, has directed in either case that it shall not be included in the total income of the person in receipt of such income.

- (2) Where the trustees have complied with the following conditions, the restriction specified in clause (a) or clause (b) of subsection (1) shall not apply for the period during which the said conditions remain satisfied—
 - (a) the trustees have, by notice in writing given to the Income-tax Officer in the prescribed manner, specified the purpose for which the income is being accumulated or set apart and the period for which the income is to be accumulated or set apart, which shall in no case exceed ten years;
 - (b) the money so accumulated or set apart is invested in any Government security as defined in clause (2) of section 2 of the Public Debt Act, 1944.
- (3) Subject to the provisions of sections 60 to 63, any income derived from business carried on by any or on behalf of a charitable

or religious institution shall not be included in the total income of the previous year of the institution to the extent and subject to the conditions specified below:—

- (a) the income is applied in India wholly for the purposes of the institution, and where any such income is accumulated for application to such purposes in India, to the extent to which the income so accumulated is not in excess of twenty-five per cent of the income from the business; and
- (b) the business is carried on in the course of the actual carrying out of a primary purpose of the institution.
- Explanation 1.—For the purposes of clauses (a) and (b) of sub-section (1) and of clause (a) of this sub-section, in computing twenty-five per cent of the income from such property for any previous year, the income from such property for the year immediately preceding the previous year may be adopted, if that income is higher than the income for the previous year.
- Explanation 2.—The provisions of sub-section (2) shall apply in the case of any such institution as is referred to in this sub-section as they apply to any trust referred to in that section.
- (4) Any income referred to in sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) or sub-section (3) as is applied to purposes other than charitable or religious purposes as aforesaid or ceases to be accumulated or set apart for application thereto shall be deemed to be the income of such person of the previous year in which it is so applied or ceases to be so accumulated or set apart.

Income of trusts or institutions from voluntary contributions.

- 12. (1) Any income of a trust for charitable or religious purposes or of a charitable or religious institution derived from voluntary contributions and applicable solely to charitable or religious purposes shall not be included in the total income of the trustees or the institution, as the case may be.
- (2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (1) where any such contributions as are referred to in sub-section (1) are made to a trust or a charitable or religious institution by a trust or a charitable or a religious institution to which the provisions of section 11 apply, such contributions shall be deemed to be income derived from property or business for the purposes of that section and the provisions of that section shall apply accordingly.

- 13. Nothing contained in section 11 shall operate so as to exclude Section from the total income of the previous year of the person in receipt in certain cases.
 - (a) any part of the income from the property held under a trust for private religious purposes which does not enure for the benefit of the public;
 - (b) in the case of a trust or charitable or religious institution created or established after the commencement of this Act, if under the terms of the trust all the rules governing the institution any part of such income enures directly or indirectly for the benefit of any relative of the author of the trust or of the founder of the institution, and, where the author of the trust or the founder of the institution is a Hindu undivided family any part of such income enures directly or indirectly for the benefit of any member of the Hindu undivided family or any relative of any member of the family."
- (2) At the end of sub-clause (2) (b) of clause 11 the Committee felt that the words "or any other investment approved by Government" should be added.
- (3) The Committee further felt that an explanation ought to be added to clause 11 to provide that the property includes business undertaking.
 - (4) Sub-clause (3) of clause 11 was omitted.
- (5) Charitable trusts should be open to all the citizens of India and not restricted to any religious community or caste.
- (6) The definition of relative should be expanded to include lineal descendants of brother or sister.
- (7) In clause 13, the Committee felt that the author of the trust or founder of the institution should also be included. Subject to above the clause as amended was adopted.
- 12. Clause 15.—(Vide para 11 of the minutes of the Eighth Siting). The Committee reopened discussion on the clause. The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 22,

after line 11, insert

"Explanation.—For the removal of doubts it is hereby declared that where any salary paid in advance is included in the total income for any year it shall not be included again in the total income when that salary becomes due."

The clause as amended was adopted.

13. Clause 17.—(Vide para 7 of the minutes of the Seventh sitting). The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 23, line 16,

omit "by way of loan or otherwise".

The clause as amended was adopted.

14. Clause 24.—(Vide para 14 of the minutes of the Eighth Sitting). The Committee considered the following amendment:—

Page 27,

for lines 26—30, substitute,

- "(i) in respect of repairs,—
 - (a) where the property is in the occupation of the owner or where the property is let to a tenant and the owner has undertaken to bear the cost of repairs, any amount spent on the repairs subject to a maximum of one fifth of the annual value in the case of any property the construction of which was completed before the 1st day of April, 1950 and one sixth of the annual value in any other case;"

The Committee negatived the amendment.

The clause was adopted without amendment.

15. Clause 32.—(Vide para 21 of the minutes of the Eighth Sitting). The Committee reopened discussion on the clause. The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 31,

for lines 29-37, substitute,

"(iv) in the case of any building which has been newly erected after the 31st day of March, 1961, where the building is used solely for the purpose of residence of persons employed in the business and drawing a remuneration not exceeding two hundred rupees per mensem, or where the building is used solely or mainly for the welfare of such persons or as a hospital, creche, school, canteen, library, recreational centre, shelter, rest-room or lunchroom, a sum equal to twenty per cent, of the actual cost of the building to the assessee in respect of the previous year of erection of the building; but any such sum shall

not be deductable in determining the written down value for the purposes of this clause."

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 16. Clause 33.—(Vide para 22 of the minutes of the Eighth Sitting). The following amendments were accepted:—
 - (i) Page 32, line 28,
 - after "installed" insert "or, if the ship, machinery or plant is first put to use in the immediately succeeding previous year, then, in respect of that previous year".
 - (ii) Page 32, lines 32-33,
 - after "installed" insert "or the immediately succeeding previous year, as the case may be".
 - (iii) Page 33, line 11,
 - after "installed" insert "or the immediately succeeding previous year, as the case may be".
 - (iv) Page 34, line 12,

for "two companies" substitute "two or more companies".

(v) Page 34, line 22,

for "all the shareholders" substitute "shareholders holding not less than nine-tenths in value of the shares".

(vi) Page 34,

after line 29 insert.

"and includes the merger of a subsidiary company in the parent company, where the whole of the share capital of the subsidiary company is held by the parent company or its nominee and the subsidiary company is an Indian company."

11

(vii) Page 34,

for lines 30-43, substitute,

"(4) Where a firm is succeeded to by a company in the business carried on by it as a result of which the firm sells or otherwise transfers to the company any ship, machinery or plant, the provisions of clauses (a) and (b) of sub-section (3) shall so far as may be apply to the firm and the company."

Explanation.—The provisions of this clause shall apply only where—

- (i) all the property of the firm relating to that particular business immediately before the succession becomes the property of the company:
- (ii) all the liabilities of the firm immediately before the succession become the liabilities of the company; and
- (iii) all the shareholders of the company were partners of the firm immediately before the succession."

The Committee felt that in the amendment at item (vi) above it would be better to use the term "holding company" instead of "parent company".

The clause as amended was adopted.

17. Clause 34.—(Vide para 23 of the minutes of the Eighth Sitting). The Committee reopened discussion on the clause. The following further amendment was accepted:—

Page 36.

....

for lines 1—8, substitute—

"Provided that this clause shall not apply-

- (i) where the ship has been acquired or the machinery or plant has been installed before the 1st day of January, 1958; or
- (ii) where the ship or plant is sold or otherwise transferred by the assessee to the Government, a local authority, a corporation established by a Central, State or Provincial Act or a Government company as defined in section 617 of the Companies Act, 1956; or
- (iii) where the sale or transfer of the ship, machinery or plant is made in connection with the amalgamation or succession, referred to in sub-section (3) or sub-section (4) of section 33."

The clause as amended was adopted.

18. Clause 40.—(Vide para 27 of the minutes of the Eighth Sitting). The following further amendment was accepted:—

Page 41,

line 37,

omit "cess".

The clause as amended was adopted.

19. Clause 41.—(Vide para 28 of the minutes of the Eighth Sitting).

The following further amendments were accepted:—

(i) Page 43, lines 31-35,

for the Explanation, substitute

"Explanation.—Where the moneys payable in respect of the building, machinery, plant or furniture referred to in this sub-section become due in a previous year in which the business or profession for the purpose of which the building, machinery, plant or furniture was being used is no longer in existence, the provisions of this sub-section shall apply as if the business or profession is in existence in that previous year."

(ii) Page 44,

after line 3, insert

"Explanation.—Where the moneys payable in respect of any asset referred to in this sub-section becomes due in a previous year in which the business is no longer in existence, the provisions of this sub-section shall apply as if the business is in existence in that previous year."

(iii) Page 44,

after line 10, insert

"(5) Where the business or profession referred to in this section is no longer in existence and there is income chargeable to tax under sub-section (1), sub-section (2), sub-section (3) or sub-section (4) in respect of that business or profession, any loss, not being a loss sustained in speculation business or under the head "Capital gains", which arose in that business or profession during the previous year in which it ceased

to exist and which could not be set off against any other income of that previous year shall, so far as may be, be set off against the income chargeable to tax under the sub-sections aforesaid."

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 20. Clause 54.—(Vide para 12 of the minutes of the Seventh Sitting). The following amendments were accepted:—
 - (i) Page 50, lines 37-38,
 - for "assessee has within a period of one year before or after that date purchased a new property for the purposes of his own residence" substitute "assessee has within a period of one year before or after that date purchased a new property or has within a period of two years after that date constructed a house property for the purposes of his own residence:"
 - (ii) Page 50, line 41,

omit "if the assessee so elects in writing before the assessment is made".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 21. Clause 64.—(Vide para 4 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting). The following further amendments were accepted:—
 - (i) Page 56, line 19,

after "by such individual" insert "to the extent to which the income from such assets is"

* }

(ii) Page 56,

after line 21, insert—

"Explanation.—For the purposes of clause (i), the individual in computing whose total income the income referred to in that clause is to be included shall be the husband or wife whose total income (excluding the income referred to in that clause) is greater; and, for the purpose of clause (ii), where both the parents are members of the firm in which the minor child is a partner, the income of the minor child from the partnership shall be included in the income of that parent whose total income (excluding the income referred to in that clause) is greater; and where any such income is once included in the total income of

either spouse or parent, any such income arising in any succeeding year shall not be included in the total income of the other spouse or parent except after giving that spouse or parent an opportunity to be heard."

The Committee felt that this clause should be amended to provide that if the Income-tax Officer was satisfied that it was not necessary in the circumstances of the case to change the person in whose hands the amount was to be assessed, he need not do so. The Draftsman was directed to make suitable provision accordingly.

The clause as amended was adopted.

22. Clause 67.—(Vide para 6 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause and accepted the following amendment:—

Page 58,

lines 3-4,

omit "but no other deduction shall be allowed in respect of the said share".

The clause as amended was adopted.

23. Clause 72.—(Vide para 10 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause. The following further amendment was accepted:—

Page 59, line 12,

after "any other head" insert "except 'Capital gains'".

The clause as amended was adopted.

24. Clause 79.—(Vide para 14 of the minutes of the Seventh Sitting).

The following revised clause was adopted for the original clause 79:—

Page 61, for lines 29 to 38, substitute:—

"79. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Chapter, "Carry forwhere a change in shareholding has taken place in the ward and set case of a company, not being a company in which the off of losses in the case public are substantially interested, no loss incurred in of certain any year prior to the previous year shall be carried for-

ward and set off against the income of the previous year unless—

- (a) on the last day of the previous year the shares of the company carrying not less than fifty-one per cent. of the voting power were beneficially held by persons who beneficially held shares of the company carrying not less than fifty-one per cent. of the voting power on the last day of the year or years in which the loss was incurred; or
- (b) the income-tax Officer is satisfied that the change in the shareholding was not affected with a view to avoiding or reducing any liability to tax."
- 25. Clause 84.—(Vide para 15 of the minutes of the Seventh Sitting).

The following amendments were accepted:—

- (a) Page 64, after line 21, insert:—
 - "Explanation.—Where any building, machinery or plant or part thereof previously used for any purpose is transferred to a new business and the total value of the part so transferred does not exceed twenty per cent. of the total value of the building, machinery or plant used in the business, then, for the purposes of clause (ii) of subsection (2) and clause (a) of subsection (3), the industrial undertaking or hotel to which the transfer has been made shall be deemed to have complied with the condition specified therein and the total value of the part so transferred shall not be taken into account in computing the capital employed in the industrial undertaking or hotel:"
- (b) Page 64, for lines 22 to 27, substitute:—
 - "(4) The Central Government may, after making such inquiry as it may think fit, direct, by notification in the Official Gazette, that the exemption conferred by this section shall not apply to any class of industrial undertaking with effect from such date as it may specify in the notification".

The clause as amended was adopted.

26. Clause 87.—(Vide para 14 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause. The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 67, for lines 12—17, substitute—

- ".(3) The aggregate of the sums in respect of which a deduction of income-tax is allowed under sub-section (1) shall not exceed—
 - (i) in the case of an individual being an author, playwright, artist, musician or actor, such percentage of his total income as may be prescribed;
 - (ii) in the case of any other individual twenty-five per cert of the total income or eight thousand rupees whichever is less.
 - (iii) in the case of a Hindu undivided family, twenty-five per cent. of its total income or sixteen thousand rupees whichever is less."

The clause as amended was adopted.

27. Clause 88.—(Vide para 15 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause.

The following amendments were accepted:—

- (i) Page 68, line 6, for "and 12" substitute "and 13";
- (ii) Page 68, line 14, for "any particular religious community;", substitute—

"any particular race, religious community or caste;"

- (iii) Page 68, line 26, for "Explanation.—" substitute
 - "Explanation 1.—"; and after line 30, insert—
 - "Explanation 2.—For the removal of doubts it is hereby declared that a deduction to which the assessee is entitled in respect of any donation made to an institution or fund to which sub-section (5) applies shall not be affected merely by reason of the fact that subsequent to the donation any part of the income of the institution or fund has become chargeable to tax due to non-compliance with any of the provisions of section 11."

The clause as amended was adopted.

28. Clause 99.— (Vide para 19 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause. The following amendments were accepted:—

- (i) Page 77, for lines 22 to 24, substitute—
 - "(iv) if the assessee is a company, any dividend received by it from an Indian company, subject to the provisions contained in the Fifth Schedule"
- (ii) Page 80, omit lines 4 to 9.
- (iii) Page 80, line 10 for "(3)" substitute "(2)".

The clause as amended was adopted.

29. Clause 104.—(Vide para 20 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause. The following further amendment was accepted:—

Page 81, for lines 28 to 30 substitute-

- "(b) thirty-seven per cent. in the case of any other company on the distributable income as reduced by
 - (i) the amount of dividends actually distributed, and
 - (ii) any expenditure actually incurred bona fide for the purposes of the business, but not deducted in computing the income chargeable under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession" being
 - (a) a bonus or gratuity paid to an employee,
 - (b) legal charges,
 - (c) any such expenditure as is referred to in clause (c) of section 40,
 - (d) any expenditure claimed as a revenue expenditure but not allowed to be deducted as such and not resulting in the creation of an asset or enhancement in the value of an existing asset."

The clause as amended was adopted.

30. Clause 109.—(Vide para 21 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause and the following amendment was accepted:—

Page 83, for lines 26-28, substitute-

"(d) losses under the head "Capital gains";

- (e) income arising outside India in a country the laws of which prohibit or restrict the remittance of money to India:
- Provided that, when the prohibition or restriction is subsequently removed, any reduction allowed under this provision shall be deemed to be a part of the distributable income of the year in which the prohibition or restriction is removed:
- (f) in the case of a banking company, the amount actually transferred to a reserve fund under section 17 of the Banking Companies Act, 1949."

The clause as amended was adopted.

31. Clause 113.—(Vide para 24 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause and the following further amendments were accepted:—

- (i) Page 86, lines 18-19, for "in which he first becomes assessable", substitute—
 - "In which he first becomes assessable as a non-resident"
- (ii) Page 86, lines 36-37, for-
 - "on the first occasion on which he became assessable" substitute "on the first occasion on which he became assessable as a non-resident"
- (iii) Page 87, lines 4-5, for "and all assessments for subsequent assessment years" substitute "any assessment pending on the date of such declaration and all assessments for subsequent assessment years".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 32. Clause 137.—(Vide para 29 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).
- (1) The Committee reopened discussion on the clause and the following further amendment was accepted:—

Page 97, line 19,

after "Central Government" insert "authorised in this behalf".

(2) The Committee felt that provisions for disclosure of information as in Section 19 of the Foreign Exchange Regulation Act. 1947 should be made in this clause.

Subject to above, the clause as amended was adopted.

33. Clause 139.—(Vide para 19 of the minutes of the Seventh Sitting).

The following amendments were accepted:—

- (i) Page 99, for lines 4 to 24, substitute—
 - "(a) in the case of every person whose total income, or the total income of any other person in respect of which he is assessable under this Act, includes any income from business or profession, before the expiry of six months from the end of the previous year, or where there is more than one previous year, from the end of the previous year which expired last before the commencement of the assessment year, or before the 30th day of June of the assessment year, whichever is later;
 - (b) in the case of every other person, before the 30th day of June of the assessment year:
 - Provided that, on an application made in the prescribed manner, the Income-tax Officer may, in his discretion extend the date for furnishing the return—
 - (i) in the case of any person whose income includes any income from business or profession the previous year in respect of which expired on or before the 31st day of December of the year immediately preceding the assessment year, and in the case of any person referred to in clause (b), upto a period not extending beyond the 30th day of September of the assessment year without charging any interest;
 - (ii) in the case of any person whose income includes any income from business or profession the previous year in respect of which expired after the 31st day of December of the year immediately preceding the assessment year, upto the 31st day of December of the assessment year without charging any interest; and
 - (iii) upto any period falling beyond the dates mentioned in clauses (i) and (ii), in which case, interest at six per cent. per annum shall be payable from the 1st day of October or the 1st day of January, as the case may be, of the assessment year to the date of the furnishing of the return—
 - (a) in the case of a registered firm or an unregistered firm which has been assessed under clause (b) of section 183, on the amount of tax which would have been

payable if the firm had been assessed as an unregistered firm; and

1

- (b) in any other case, on the amount of tax payable on the total income as finally assessed, reduced by the advance tax, if any, paid.".
- (ii) Page 99, line 34

after "Provided that" insert "on an application made in the prescribed manner".

(iii) Page 99,

for lines 37 to 39, substitute-

"falls beyond the 30th day of September or, as the case may be, 31st day of December of the assessment year, the provisions of sub-clause (iii) of the proviso to subsection (1) shall apply".

(iv) Page 190, line 1

after "or profession" insert "or under the head 'Capital gains'".

- (v) Page 100, line 3

 after "section 73" insert "or sub-section (1) of section 74".
- (vi) Page 100, lines 10 and 11

for "may furnish a return of his total income" substitute "may before the assessment is made furnish the return".

(vii) Page 100, line 14 for "(ii)" substitute "(iii)".

The clause as amended was adopted.

34. Clause 147.—(Vide para 34 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).

The following further amendment was accepted:-

Page 104, line 34

omit "having jurisdiction over him".

The clause as amended was adopted.

35. Clause 149.—(Vide para 36 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause. The following further amendments were accepted:—

(i) Page 105, line 38, omit "or sub-clause (iii)".

(ii) Page 105-106.

for lines 39-41 on page 105 and lines 1-9 on page 106 substitute-

"(ii) for the relevant assessment year, where eight years, but not more than sixteen years, have elapsed from the end of that year, unless the income chargeable to tax which has escaped assessment amounts to or is likely to amount to rupees fifty thousand or more for that year;"

The clause as amended was adopted.

36. Clause 150.—(Vide para 37 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).

The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 106,

after line 26, insert—

"Explanation.—The provisions of this section shall not apply in any case where any such assessment, re-assessment or re-computation as is referred to in this section relates to an assessment year in respect of which an assessment, re-assessment or re-computation could not have been made at the time the order which was the subject-matter of the appeal, reference or revision, as the case may be, was made by reason of any other provision limiting the time within which any action for assessment, re-assessment or re-computation may be taken."

The clause as amended was adopted.

37. Clause 155.—(Vide pare 38 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause. The following amendments were accepted:—

- (i) Page 111, line 3,
- after "or plant" insert "installed after the 31st day of December, 1957".
- (ii) Page 112,

after line 14, insert—

"(8) Where in the assessment for any year a capital gain arising from the transfer of any such capital asset is referred to in section 54 is charged to tax and within a period of one year after the date of the transfer the assessee purchases a new property, or within two years from that date constructs a house property, for the

purpose of his own residence, the Income-tax Officer shall amend the order of assessment so as to exclude the amount of the capital gain not chargeable to tax under the provisions of section 54, and the provisions of section 154 shall, so far as may be, apply thereto, the period of four years specified in sub-section (7) of that section being reckoned from the date of the assessment."

38. Clause 159.—(Vide para 39 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause. The following further amendment was accepted:—

Page 113, line 19,

A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PARTY OF

after "his possession" insert "but such liability shall be limited to the value of the asset so charged, disposed of or parted with".

The clause as amended was adopted.

39. Clause 178.—(Vide para 21 of the minutes of the Seventh Sitting).

The folloing amendments were accepted:-

- (a) Page 125, line 1,
 - after "liquidator" insert "within three months from the date on which he receives notice of the appointment of the liquidator";
- (b) Page 125, line 8,
 - after "except for the purpose aforesaid", insert "or for making any payment to secured creditors whose debts are entitled under law to priority of payment over debts due to Government on the date of liquidation".

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 40. Clause 179.—(Vide para 22 of the minutes of the Seventh Sitting).
- (1) The Committee considered the following revised clause in substitution of the original clause 179:—

Page 125,

for lines 19-35, substitute-

"179. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Companies
"Liability of directors of private company on liquidation."

Act, 1956, when any private company is wound up after the commencement of this Act, and any tax assessed on the company, whether before or in the

course of or after its liquidation, in respect of any income of any previous year cannot be recovered, then, every person who was a director of the private company at any time during the relevant previous year shall be jointly and severally liable for payment of such tax unless he proves that the non-recovery cannot be attributed to any neglect, misfeasance or breach of duty on his part in relation to the affairs of the company."

- (2) The Committee felt that the word "gross" should be inserted before the word "neglect".
- (3) The Committee further felt that the clause should apply to those companies which go into liquidation after the commencement of this Act.

Subject to above the revised clause was adopted.

- 41. Clause 180.—(Vide para 41 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).
 - (1) The Committee reopened discussion on the clause.
 - (2) Items (i) and (ii) of the clause were omitted.
- (3) The Committee felt that the period of 12 months provided in the clause should be omitted.
- (4) The Committee further felt that royalties or copyright fees should be allocated for the purpose of assessment by rules to be prescribed by the Government.
 - (5) The draftsman was directed to recast the clause accordingly. Subject to above the clause as amended was adopted.
- 42. Clause 182.—(Vide para 43 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).

The Committee considered the following amendment:-

Page 127, line 6,

after "shall be paid by the firm", insert "and for this purpose it shall be lawful for the firm to retain such part, not exceeding thirty per cent of the share of each partner in the income of the firm, until such time as the tax due from the partner is paid".

The Committee negatived the amendment and directed the draftsman to recast the clause on the lines decided at their Ninth Sitting.

43. Clause 184.—(Vide para 45 of the minutes of the Ninth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause.

The following further amendment was accepted:-

Page 127,

after line 37. insert—

"Explanation.—In the case of any partner who is absent from India or is a lunatic or an idiot, the application may be signed by such person duly authorised by him in this behalf, or, as the case may be, by a person entitled under law to represent him."

The clause as amended was adopted.

44. Clause 217.—(Vide para 17 of the minutes of the Tenth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause. The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 141, lines 41-42,

for "upon the amount of advance tax which should have been paid" substitute "upon the amount by which advance tax falls short of the 75 per cent. referred to in sub-section (1) of section 215".

The clause as amended was adopted.

45. Clause 221.—(Vide para 19 of the minutes of the Tenth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause and the following revised clause in substitution of the original clause 221 was adopted:—

Page 144.

for lines 1-5, substitute-

221. (1) When an assessee is in default or is deemed to be "Penalty in default in making a payment of tax, he shall, in payable when tax in addition to the amount of the arrears and the amount default. of interest payable under sub-section (2) of section 220, be liable to pay by way of penalty, which, in the case of a continuing default, may be increased from time to time, so, however, that the total amount of penalty does not exceed the amount of tax in arrears:

Provided that before levying any such penalty the assessee shall be given a reasonable opportunity of being heard,

- (2) Where as a result of any final order the amount of tax, with respect to the default in the payment of which the penalty was levied, has been wholly reduced, the penalty levied shall be cancelled and the amount of penalty paid shall be refunded."
- 46. Clause 246.— (Vide para 26 of the minutes of the Tenth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause and the following further amendments were accepted:—

Page 155,

- (i) after line 2, insert—
 - "(dd) an order of assessment, re-assessment or recomputation under section 147 or section 150".
- (ii) after line 16, insert—
- "(kk) an order under section 216".

The clause as amended was adopted.

47. Clause 253.— (Vide para 32 of the minutes of the Tenth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause and the following amendments were accepted:—

Page 158J

(i) lines 21-22,

for "section 271, or sub-section (2) of section 275" substitute "or section 271".

(ii) lines 24-25.

omit "or sub-section (1) of section 275".

(iii) omit line 27.

The clause as amended was adopted.

48. Clause 254.—(Vide para 33 of the minutes of the Tenth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause and the following further amendment was accepted:—

Page 159,

omit lines 22-25.

The clause as amended was adopted.

- 49. The Committee felt that provision should be made at an appropriate place in the Bill for Appellate Tribunal to try for contempt of Court.
- 50. Clause 271.—(Vide para 43 of the minutes of the Tenth Sitting)

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause and the following further amendments were accepted:—

- (i) Page 165, lines 32 and 33.
 - for "the Appellate Assistant Commissioner or the Appellate Tribunal", substitute "or the Appellate Assistant Commissioner".
- (ii) Page 166, line 10, omit "or it".
- (iii) Page 167, line 11, omit "or the Appellate Tribunal".
- (iv) Page 167, line 17, omit "or it".

The clause as amended was adopted.

51. Clause 274.—(Vide para 44 of the minutes of the Tenth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause and the following amendment was accepted:—

Page 168, lines 27-28,

omit "or the Appellate Tribunal".

The clause as amended was adopted.

52. Clause 275.—(Vide para 45 of the minutes of the Tenth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause.

The clause was omitted.

- 53. Clause 278A.—(New clause).—After clause 278, the following new clause was adopted:—
 - 278A. If any person abets or induces in any manner another "Abetment person to make and deliver an account, statement or declaration relating to any income chargeable to tax which is false and which he either knows to be false or

....

does not believe to be true, he shall be punishable with simple imprisonment which may extend to six months or with fine which may extend to one thousand rupees or with both."

54. Clause 279.—(Vide para 47 of the minutes of the Tenth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause and the following amendment was accepted:—

Page 170, line 8,

after "or section 278", insert "or section 278A".

The clause as amended was adopted.

55. Clause 288.—(Vide para 52 of the minutes of the Tenth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the clause and the following further amendments were accepted:—

Page 174,

(i) line 9,

for "Assistant Commissioner" substitute "Income-tax Officer".

(ii) line 21,

after "another person" insert "other than a penalty imposed on him under clauses (i) and (ii) of sub-section (1) of section 271".

The clause as amended was adopted.

56. The Second Schedule.—(Vide para 57 of the minutes of the Tenth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the Schedule and the following further amendment was accepted:—

Page 206,

after line 35, insert—

"(aa) the area within which Tax Recovery Officers may exercise jurisdiction".

The Second Schedule as amended was adopted.

57. The Fourth Schedule.—(Vide para 58 of the minutes of the Tenth Sitting).

The Committee reopened discussion on the Schedule and the following amendment was accepted:—

Page 210, line 1,

after "allowance" insert "if so provided under the terms of employment".

The Fourth Schedule as amended was adopted.

58. The Fifth Schedule (New).—The Committee edopted the following new Schedule proposed by the Government:—

Page 221,
after line 34, insert

"THE FIFTH SCHEDULE

Exemption from Super-tax in respect of certain dividends

[See section 99(1) (iv)]

- 1. Super tax shall not be payable by a company in respect of any dividend which is assessable for the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1962, and for the subsequent assessment years, and which is declared—
 - (a) by an Indian company formed and registered after the 31st day of March, 1952, and before the 1st day of April, 1967, where—
 - (1) the Central Government is satisfied that the Indian Company is wholly or mainly engaged in an industry for the manufacture or production of any one or more of the articles specified in any of the items in Part A of this Schedule; and
 - (2) the income of the Indian company would have been exempt under the provisions of section 84, if the provisions of that section had been applicable thereto; or
 - (b) by an Indian company formed and registered after the 31st day of March, 1961, and before the 1st day of April, 1967, where—
 - (1) the Central Government is satisfied that the Indian company is wholly or mainly engaged in an industry for the manufacture or production of any one or more of the articles specified in any of the items in Part B of this Schedule; and

- (2) the income of the Indian company would have been exempt under the provisions of section 84, if the provisions of that section had been applicable thereto.
- 2. Super tax shall not be payable by a company in respect of any dividend which is assessable for assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1962, and for the subsequent assessment years and which is payable to it in respect of any fresh capital raised by an Indian company by public subscription—
 - (a) after the 28th day of February, 1953, and before the 1st day of April, 1967, for the purpose of increasing the production of, or starting a separate unit for the manufacture or production of, any one or more of the articles specified in any of the items in Part A of this Schedule; and
 - (b) after the 31st day of March, 1961, and before the 1st day of April, 1967, for the purpose of increasing the production of, or starting a separate unit for the manufacture or production of, any one or more of the articles specified in any of the items in Part B of this Schedule.
- 3. Where by any Act any of the items in Part A or Part B of this Schedule is repealed, then, notwithstanding such repeal, any exemption conferred by rule 1 or rule 2 shall continue to be available for the dividends declared by any Indian company engaged in any industry referred to in the item so repealed—
 - (i) in the cases referred to in rule 1, so long as such dividends relate to the previous year in which the Indian company is incorporated and the nine previous years immediately succeeding;
 - (ii) in the cases referred to in rule 2, so long as such dividends relate to the previous year in which the fresh capital was raised and the nine previous years immediately succeeding; and
 - (iii) in the case of an Indian company which is wholly or mainly engaged in, or, as the case may be, which runs a separate unit for the manufacture or production of articles specified in any item so repealed and also in any item which continues to be in force, the exemption from super-tax referred to in rule 1 or rule 2 in respect of such part of the dividends declared by the Indian company in respect of any previous year later than the nine previous years referred to in clause (i) or clause (ii) as is attributable to the profits and gains derived from

the the manufacture or production of any article specified in the item so repealed shall lapse.

PART A

- 1. Coal including coke and other derivatives;
- 2. Iron and Steel (metal), ferro-alloys and special steels;
- 3. Motor and aviation fuel, kerosene, crude oils and synthetic oils (not being oil exploration);
 - 4. Chemicals (other than fertilizers) of the following types:
 - (a) Inorganic heavy chemicals:
 - (b) Organic heavy chemicals;
 - (c) Fine chemicals (including photographic chemicals);
 - (d) Synthetic rubber;
 - (e) Man-made fibres, other than viscose rayon;
 - (f) Coke oven by-products;
 - (g) Coal-tar distillation products like napthalene, anthracene and the like;
 - (h) Explosives, including gun powder and safety fuses:
 - 5. Inorganic, organic and mixed fertilisers;
- 6. Industrial machinery of the following types (including gear wheels and parts thereof, boilers and steam generating plants):—
 - A:—Major items of specialised equipment used in specific industries:
 - (i) Textile machinery (such as frames, carding machines powerlooms and the like) including textile accessories;
 - . (ii) Jute machinery;
 - (iii) Rayon machinery;
 - (iv) Sugar machinery;
 - (v) Tea machinery;
 - (vi) Mining machinery;
 - (vii) Metallurgical machinery;
 - (viii) Cement machinery;
 - (ix) Chemical machinery;
 - (x) Pharmaceuticals machinery;
 - (xi) Paper machinery;

- **B:**—General items of machinery used in several industries, such as the equipment required for various 'unit processes':
 - (i) Size reduction equipment—crushers, ball mills and the like;
 - (ii) Conveying equipment—bucket elevators, skip hoists, cranes, derricks and the like;
 - (iii) Size separation units-screens, classifiers and the like;
 - (iv) Mixers and reactors—kneading mills, turbo mixers and the like.
 - (v) Filtration equipment—filter presses, rotary filters and the like.
 - (vi) Centrifugal machines;
 - (vii) Evaporators;
- (viii) Distillation equipment;
- (ix) Crystallisers;
- (x) Driers;
- (xi) Power driven pumps—reciprocating, centrifugal and the like;
- (xii) Air and gas compressors and vacuum pipes (excluding electrical furnaces);
- (xiii) Refrigeration plants for industrial use;
- (xiv) Fire fighting equipment and appliances including fire engines;
- C:—Other items of industrial Machinery:
 - (i) Ball, roller and tapered bearings;
 - (ii) Speed reduction units;
 - (iii) Grinding wheels and abrasives.
- 7. Machinery and equipment for the generation, transmission and distribution of electric energy;
 - 8 Non-ferrous metals including alloys;
 - 9. Paper including newsprint and paper board;
 - 10. Internal combustion engines;
 - 11. Power-driven pumps;
 - 12. Automobiles:
 - 13. Tractors:

- 14. Cement;
- 15. Electric Motors:
- 16. Locomotives:
- 17. Rolling Stock;
- 18. Machine Tools;
- 19. Agriculture Implements;
- 20. Ferro-manganese;
- 21. Dye-stuffs:
- 22. Refractories; and
- 23. Steel pipes and spun iron pipes.

PART B

- 1. Steel castings;
- 2. Steel forgings provided the undertaking is equipped with forges of two-ton hammer and above;
- 3. Pulp machinery;
- 4. Pulp for paper and artificial fibres;
- 5. Dies and jigs;
- 6. Precision tools:
- 7. Industrial Instruments:
 - (i) Water meters, steam meters and electricity meters;
 - (ii) Indicating, recording and regulating devices for pressure, temperature, rate of flow, weights and levels.
- 8. Scientific Instruments:
- 9. Sealed compressor units for the refrigeration industry;
- 10. Earthmoving equipment;
- 11. Boilers;
- 12. Electrical Railway Signalling Equipment;
- 13. Printing Machinery;
- 14. Organic intermediates for dyestuffs, drugs and plastics; and
- 15. Component parts of each of the articles mentioned in items numbers 6, 7, 10, 12 and 13 of Part A and items numbers 10 and 11 of Part B, that is to say, such parts as are essential for the working of the machinery referred to in the items aforesaid and have been

given for that purpose some special shape or quality which would not be essential for their use for any other purpose and are in complete finished form and ready for fitment."

- 59. Clause 1.—The clause was adopted without amendment.
- 60. Long Title and the Enacting Formula.—The Long Title and the Enacting Formula were adopted without amendment.
- 61. The Committee decided that the evidence given before them might be laid on the Table of the House.

The Committee also decided that after the evidence was laid on the Table the memoranda submitted by the associations that gave evidence before the Committee might be placed in the Parliament Library for reference by Members of Parliament.

- 62. Th Chairman announced that the recommendations of the President for the amendments would be placed before the Committee at their next sitting.
- 63. The Committee decided to consider the draft Report and the Bill as amended at their next sitting.
- 64. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 15.00 hours on Monday, the 7th August, 1961.

XT

Twelfth Sitting

The Committee met from 15.00 hours to 15.25 hours on Monday, the 7th August, 1961.

PRESENT

Shri Jaganatha Rao-In the Chair

MEMBERS

- 2. Shri K. R. Achar
- 3. Shri P. Subbiah Ambalam
- 4. Shri Amjad Ali
- 5. Shri Premji R. Assar
- 6. Shri Bahadur Singh
- 7. Shri Prafulla Chandra Borooah
- 8. Shri Shree Narayan Das
- 9. Shri M. L. Dwivedi
- 10. Shri Bhausaheb Raosaheb Mahagaonkar
- 11. Shri Mathew Maniyangadan
- 12. Shri M. R. Masani
- 13. Shri Radheshyam Ramkumar Morarka
- 14. Shri Narendrabhai Nathwani
- 15. Shri C. D. Pande
- 16. Shri Naval Prabhakar
- 17. Shri Ram Shanker Lal
- 18. Shri Shivram Rango Rane
- 19. Shri K. V. Ramakrishna Reddy
- 20. Shri Asoke K. Sen
- 21. Shri Laisram Achaw Singh
- 22. Dr. Ram Subhag Singh
- 23. Shrimati Tarkeshwari Sinha
- 24. Shri Morarji Desai.

DRAFTSMAN

Shri G. R. Rajagopaul, Special Secretary, Ministry of Law and Member, Law Commission of India.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRIES AND OTHER OFFICERS

- Shri V. T. Dehejia, Secretary, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.
- Shri V. V. Chari, Senior Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri J. P. Singh, Member, Central Board of Revenue.
- Shri I. P. Gupta, Deputy Secretary, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance.

SECRETARIAT

- Shri A. L. Rai—Deputy Secretary.
- 2. In the absence of Shri Mulchand Dube, the Chairman of the Committee, Shri Jaganatha Rao was elected Chairman for the sitting.
- 2. The Chairman announced that the recommendations of the President under Article 117(1) and 274(1) of the Constitution in respect of the amendments made in the Bill have been obtained.
 - 4. The Committee adopted the Bill as amended.
- 5. The Committee thereafter considered the draft report and adopted the same.
- 6. The Committee decided that the Minutes of Dissent, if any, may be sent so as to reach the Lok Sabha Secretariat by 17.00 hours on Tuesday, the 8th August, 1961.
- 7. The Committee authorised Shri Jaganatha Rao to sign the report on their behalf.
- 8. The Committee further authorised Shri Jaganatha Rao and in his absence Shri C. D. Pande to present the report on their behalf and to lay the evidence on the Table of the House on Thursday, the 10th August, 1961.

The Committee then adjourned.